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RULE 56 Statement by Ted Bernstein, Ted Bernstein(individually and as
alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd.
6/21/95), S.T.P. Enterprises, Inc., Adam M Simon, David B Simon, Pamela
Beth Simon, The Simon Law Firm regarding motion for summary judgment,
239 STMT OF UNDISPUTED FACTS (Attachments: # 1 Appendix Appendix
to Statement of Facts,_# 2 Exhibit Ex. 1. # 3 Exhibit Ex. 2, # 4 Exhibit Ex. [3, #
5 Exhibit Ex. 4, # 6 Exhibit Ex. 5, # 7 Exhibit Ex. 6_# 8 Exhibit Ex. 7, # 9

Exhibit Ex. 8, #10 Exhibit Ex. 9, # 11 Exhibit Ex. 10_# 12 Exhibit Ex. 11,
13 Exhibit Ex. 12, # 14 Exhibit Ex. 13, # 15 Exhibit Ex. 14)(Simon, Adam)
(Entered: 05/21/2016)
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Beth Simon, The Simon Law Firm in support of motion for summary
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465| MINUTE entry before the Honorable John Robert Blakey: Status hearing held
on 5/26/2016. Motion for leave to file amended complaint 231 is denied. Any
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shall be filed on or before 9/6/2016. Status hearing set for 9/20/2016 at 9{45
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Eliot Bernstein, Eliot lvan Bernstein for extension of time , MOTION by Third
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Eliot Bernstein, Cross Claimant Eliot Bernstein, Plaintiffs Eliot Bernstein,

Eliot lvan Bernstein for extension of time to file response/reply (Bernstein
Eliot) (Entered: 07/17/2016)
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478 | MINUTE entry before the Honorable John Robert Blakey: Eliot Bernstein's
motion for extension of time 252 is granted. Any response to dispositive
motions shall be filed on or before 8/26/2016; replies shall be filed on or hefore
10/6/2016. The 7/21/16 Notice of Motion date is stricken, and the parties heed
not appear. The status hearing previously set for 9/20/2016 is stricken and reset
for 10/27/2016 at 9:45 a.m. in Courtroom 1725. Mailed notice (gel, ) (Entered:
07/18/2016)
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE Northern District of lllinois — CM/ECF LIVE, Ver 6,1
Eastern Division

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd
6/21/95, et al.

Plaintiff,
V. Case No.:
1:13-cv-03643
Honorable John
Robert Blakey
Eliot Bernstein
Defendant.

NOTIFICATION OF DOCKET ENTRY

This docket entry was made by the Clerk on Monday, April 18, 2016:

MINUTE entry before the Honorable John Robert Blakey: Third Party Plaintiff
Eliot Bernstein's motion for leave to file excess pages [228] is denied. The notice of
motion date set for 4/21/16 is stricken, the parties need not appear at that time. Mailed
notice(gel, )

ATTENTION: This notice is being sent pursuant to Rule 77(d) of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure or Rule 49(c) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. It was
generated by CM/ECF, the automated docketing system used to maintain the civil and
criminal dockets of this District. If a minute order or other document is enclosed, please
refer to it for additional information.

For scheduled events, motion practices, recent opinions and other information, visit our
web site at www.ilnd.uscourts.gov.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS EASTERN DIVISION

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95, et al.,

Plaintiffs, Case No. 13-cv-3643
Judge John Robert Blakey
V.
Heritage Union Life
Insurance Co., et al., Filers:

Eliot Ivan Bernstein, Pro Se
Defendants.

THIRD-PARTY DEFENDANT ELIOT I. BERNSTEIN’S MOTION FOR LEAVE TO
AMEND COUNTERCLAIMS - THIRD PARTY COMPLAINT

Third-Party Defendant Eliot I. Bernstein consistent with this Court’s most recent Status
Conference Order respectfully moves under Fed. R. Civ. P. 15(a), 18(a), 19(a) and 20 for leave
to file Amended Counterclaims and Third Party Complaint herein. Specifically, Eliot I.
Bernstein seeks to Amend his Answer and Counterclaims-Third Party Complaint to (1) add
claims against existing parties to this action over which the Court currently has jurisdiction and,
(2) add parties as Third Party defendants which are necessary for complete relief herein and
adding other parties and claims arising out of a common nucleus of facts and transactions. Such
added claims are in the nature of determining and declaring certain Trust instruments and
company entities, tortious interference-delay interference with rights of expectancy-inheritance;
breaches of fiduciary duties, negligence, conversion, loss and waste of assets, conspiracy and

acting in concert and common and joint action with “state actors” under 42 USC Sec. 1983 to
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deprive fundamental due process, First Amendment retaliation claims, conspiracy to deprive
fundamental fair access to the courts, deliberate indifference and failure to train, and conspiracy
to deny, lose, destroy conceal and alter evidence.

Procedural History

This motion is made after a Status Conference held April 14, 2016 and Order therein setting a
schedule for certain actions. This Status Conference came after a prior Conference where this
Court issued a Decision and Order denying Summary Judgment to Plaintiffs and after a prior
Conference where Third-Party Defendant Eliot I. Bernstein had moved for Injunctive relief
under the All Writs Act and Anti-Injunction Act. Discovery is currently closed and had been
stayed for a significant time under the prior Judge assigned in this action, Hon. Amy St. Eve who
had stayed Discovery pending determination of whether Ted Bernstein was a proper “trustee”.
While it was never determined that Ted Bernstein is a proper Trustee, minimal Discovery
including one deposition occurred before Hon. Judge St. Eve was suddenly no longer assigned
on the case. Plaintiffs moved for Summary Judgment shortly after this Court became assigned
and held status conferences in the case and the action was re-scheduled off calendar several
times while Decision on the Summary Judgment was awaiting. There has been a significant
change in the status of the case recently in that Plaintiffs Jill Bernstein lantoni and Lisa
Friedstein are no longer represented by counsel Adam Simon and the Court and parties are
awaiting to see if these Plaintiffs will be represented by counsel or acting pro se. These Plaintiffs
had been added to the action by way of Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint. The status of the 2
Plaintiffs and change of counsel occurred shortly after it was disclosed on the record that a
gruesome dead body with gun wounds to the head was found at the Boca Raton home of
deceased Simon Bernstein at 7020 Lions Head Lane in the day or days before Eliot Bernstein

filed for Injunctive relief under the All Writs and Anti-Injunction act. The body is alleged to be
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one Mitch Huhem who was allegedly acquiring the property at Lions Head Lane through a
transaction involving a shell company and deal with Ted Bernstein and his attorney Alan Rose.
Adam Simon who filed the First Amended Complaint for Ted Bernstein now no longer
represents the sisters Jill Bernstein Iantoni and Lisa Bernstein Friedstein. Third Party Defendant
Eliot Bernstein’s original Answer and Counterclaims alleged Ted Bernstein and others to be
involved in a massive fraud scheme including fraudulent insurance scheme and fraud upon the
courts in Palm Beach County of Florida where the dead body was found.

LEGAL STANDARDS

This is a motion seeking leave to Amend counterclaims against existing parties by adding
new counts, adding parties to the new counts, and adding claims under 42 USC Sec 1983.

In the Seventh Circuit, “leave to file a second amended complaint should be granted liberally.”
Dubicz v. Commonwealth Edison Co., 377 F.3d 787, 792 (7th Cir. 2004). It is well-settled that
courts should apply a liberal policy respecting amendments to pleadings so that cases may be
decided on the merits. Sitrick v. Freehand Sys., 2004 WL 725306, at *2 (N.D. Ill. Mar. 31,
2004). “[I]n the absence of delay, undue prejudice to the party opposing the motion, or futility of
the amendment, leave should be freely given.” Eastern Natural Gas Corp. v. Aluminum Co. of
Am., 126 F.3d 996, 999 (7th Cir. 1997).

A court may grant a party leave to add counterclaims if the failure to previously bring
those claims was the result of “oversight, inadvertence, or excusable neglect, or when justice
requires.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 13(f). Further, leave to amend a pleading should “be freely given when
justice so requires,” Fed. R. Civ. P. 15(a), unless “the amendment would be prejudicial to the

opposing party, there has been bad faith on the part of the moving party, or the amendment
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would have been futile,” Laber v. Harvey, 438 F.3d 404, 426 (4th Cir.2006) (internal quotation
marks omitted).

If, however, there are at least colorable grounds for relief, justice requires that the motion
to amend be granted. Ryder Energy Distrib. Corp. v. Merrill Lynch Commodities Inc., 748 F.2d
774, 783 (2nd Cir. 1984) (quoting S.S. Silberblatt, Inc. v. East Harlem Pilot Block-Bldg. 1
Housing Dev. Fund Co., 608 F.2d 28, 42 (2nd Cir. 1979); Schwimmer v. Guardian Life Ins. Co.,
No. 93 Civ. 0428, 1996 WL 146004, at *3 (S.D.N.Y. Apr. 1, 1996) (allowing amendment where
“it is not so frivolous or outlandish to render it futile), aff’d, 104 F.3d 354 (2nd Cir. 1996); Weg
v. Macciarola, 729 F.Supp. 328, 341 (S.D.N.Y. 1990) (motion should be granted unless
amendment is frivolous or facially insufficient). Before dismissing a party’s claims on technical
or procedural grounds, a court must consider the “sound public policy” preference of deciding
cases on their merits. See Reizakis v. Loy, 490 F.2d 1132, 1135 (4th Cir. 1974).

The Rule does not prescribe a time limit for the filing of amendments. Consequently,
motions for leave to amend have been granted at various stages of litigation, including after the
entry of judgment. See, e.g., Newark Branch, NAACP v. Harrison, 907 F.2d 1408, 1417 (3rd Cir.
1990).

Rule 15(a) "embodies the liberal pleading philosophy of the federal rules" in order to
ensure that claims will be decided on the merits. Adams v. Gould, 739 F.2d 858, 864 (3d Cir.
1984), cert. denied, 469 U.S. 1122 (1985); Dole v. Arco Chemical Co., 921 F.2d 484, 487 (3d
Cir. 1990). The same standard applies when considering a request to add or drop parties. Rolo
v. City Investing Co. Liquidating Trust, 155 F.3d 644, 654 (3d Cir. 1998).1

Two claims are part of the same case or controversy if they “‘derive from a common

nucleus of operative facts. A loose factual connection between the claims is generally
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sufficient.”” Baer v. First Options of Chicago, Inc., 72 F.3d 1294, 1299 (7th Cir. 1995) (quoting
Ammerman v. Sween, 54 F.3d 423, 424 (7th Cir. 1995)).

To establish § 1983 liability through a conspiracy, a plaintiff must [establish that] (1) a
state official and private individual(s) reached an understanding to deprive plaintiff of his
constitutional rights; and (2) those individual(s) were willful participants in joint activity with the
State or its agents.”1 Williams v. Seniff, 342 F.3d 774, 785 (7th Cir.2003).

Joint activity by a private party and a government agent can also transform the private
party into a state actor, where the purpose of the collusion is to violate the federal rights of the
plaintiff. Addickesv. S. H. Kress Co., 398 U.S. 144 (1970) (involving conspiracy between “dime
store” and local deputy sheriffs to prevent integration of southern lunch counter during Civil
Rights Movement).

Similarly, in Dennis v. Sparks, the Court held that private parties who conspired with a
judge to fix a case acted under color of law. A nominally private entity controlled by the state is
also a state actor. Dennis v. Sparks, 449 U.S. 24, 28-29 (1980). Thus, even though the Palm
Beach Judges Colin, French and Phillips may be immune from liability under 1983, private
parties acting in concert can be held liable and state Court judges can be made witnesses under
1983.

A private party may be engaged in “state action” if the act which deprived federal rights
could not have occurred but for the existence of a governmental framework requiring
government approval or action. In North Georgia Finishing, Incorporated v. Di-Chem,
Incorporated, the Court found state action in a private party’s invocation of a court-ordered

attachment that failed to afford due process to the debtor. Similarly, in Lugar v. Edmondson Oil
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Company, the Court held that a creditor who invokes prejudgment attachment remedies requiring
the participation of a court clerk and a sheriff, acts under color of state law.

In Edmondson v. Leesville Concrete Company, the Court found that a private attorney
using peremptory challenges in a jury trial in a racially biased manner was a “state actor”
because his act—use of peremptory challenges—could exist only in the judicial context and with
the approval of a state judge. The rule of these cases is that a private party becomes a state actor
if he or she uses a state procedure requiring some state intervention. There is a sufficiently close
nexus between the State and the challenged action ... so that the action of the [private party] may
be fairly treated as that of the State itself.Blum v. Yaretsky, 457 U.S. 991, 1004 (1982)).

The Fourteenth Amendment entitles the individual to a fair opportunity to present his or
her claim. Armstrong v. Manzo, 380 U.S. 545, 552, 85 S.Ct. 1187, 1191, 14 L.Ed.2d 62; Boddie
v. Connecticut, 401 U.S. 371, 91 S.Ct. 780, 28 L.Ed.2d 113; Logan v. Zimmerman Brush Co.,
455 U.S. 422,437,102 S.Ct. 1148, 1158, 71 L.Ed.2d 265.

Judicial access must be "adequate, effective, and meaningful." Bounds v. Smith, 430 U.S.

817, 822,97 S.Ct. 1491, 1495, 52 L.Ed.2d 72. To deny such access defendants need not literally

bar the courthouse door or attack plaintiffs' witnesses. This constitutional right is lost where, as
here, police officials shield from the public and the victim's family key facts which would form
the basis of the family's claims for redress.

The 7th Circuit has recognized claims under 1983 where actions of Police Officers and other
State actors conceal, cover-up and sabotage investigations and therefore deny proper access to
the Courts. The right of individuals to pursue legal redress for claims which have a reasonable

basis in law and fact is protected by the First and Fourteenth Amendments. Bill Johnson's
Restaurants, Inc. v. NLRB, 461 U.S. 731, 741, 103 S.Ct. 2161, 76 L.Ed.2d 277 (1983); Bell v. City

of Milwaukee, 746 F.2d 1205, 1261 (7th Cir.1984). A corollary of this right is that efforts by state
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actors to impede an individual's access to courts or administrative agencies may provide the
basis for a constitutional claim under 42 U.S.C. § 1983. Judicial access must be "adequate,
effective, and meaningful,” Bounds v. Smith, 430 U.S. 817, 822, 97 S.Ct. 1491, 52 L.Ed.2d 72
(1977), and therefore, when police officers conceal or obscure important facts about a crime
from its victims rendering hollow the right to seek redress, constitutional rights are undoubtedly
abridged. Bell, 746 F.2d at 1261; see also Stone v. City of Chicago, 738 F.2d 896 (7th Cir.1984);
Ryland v. Shapiro, 708 F.2d 967 (5th Cir.1983).

Argument - Amendments

There can be no finding that Eliot Bernstein acted in bad faith or a dilatory motive in
seeking to Amend his counterclaims, third party complaint and adding new parties or causes of
action.

Eliot Bernstein’s motion to amend will foster judicial economy and afford more complete
relief amongst the parties. There is no change of theory brought forth by Third-Party Eliot
Bernstein herein. All claims and parties to be added are consistent with the original Answer and
Counterclaims filed in Sept. of 2013 outlining massive insurance and related frauds and all
claims and parties added are the result of the conduct of these parties in furthering the underlying
scheme set out therein.

Plaintiffs chose the venue by the very bringing of the original litigation in Illinois which
was designed to deprive Eliot Bernstein of rights of expectancy and inheritance. In fact, Third-
party Defendant Eliot Bernstein was only brought in to the case by an insurance carrier after Ted
Bernstein and those parties acting in concert had filed in Illinois without his knowledge. This
Court has both diversity jurisdiction and jurisdiction over claims under 42 USC Sec. 1983. This

Court has spent extensive time in the action and the original Summary Judgment proceedings
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alone were extensive. This Court is able to hear all such claims and afford more complete relief
amongst the parties.

This Court announced at the recent Status Conference that it’s Trial Calendar was already
heavily booked in the summer. There is ample time for all parties to file answers, responsive
pleadings and dispositive motions without affecting any current Trial calendar.

The large extent of information obtained to be set out in an Amended complaint was
gathered after Third Party Defendant Eliot Bernstein had already filed an Answer and
Counterclaim and after Plaintiffs had already filed their first Amended Complaint.

While this Court did not grant Third Party Defendant’s petition for Injunctive relief under
the All Writs Act and Anti-Injunction Act filed just 2 months ago in Feb. of 2016, this Court did
not strike such pleading as was sought by Plaintiffs and which remains in the record. Said
pleading provided a substantial factual background for the amendments sought by Third Party
Defendant Eliot Bernstein. See, All Writs @

http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20160224%20FINAL%20ESIGNED%20
MOTION%20FOR%20INJUNCTION%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY %20COMBINED%?2

OFILING.pdf
The Plaintiffs and parties to be added on an amended complaint should not be benefitting

by the very frauds alleged and thus, the likelihood of any real prejudice being established is non-
existent. Third-Party Defendant Eliot Bernstein raised the necessity of adding some of the
parties back into the case during the Summary Judgment proceedings last year and the parties at
that time were well aware of the intention to amend the pleadings herein. As set out in the recent
petition for injunction, Third-Party Defendant Eliot Bernstein has been occupied on an almost
never-ending basis in the intervening months in responding to sham pleadings, repeated motions
with improper notice, sued as Trustee of a Trust that does not exist, children placed in predatory

guardianships under a Trust they are sued under that does not exist and otherwise responding to
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sharp practices of Ted Bernstein and his Attorney Alan Rose and those acting in concert and thus
any such delay in moving for this amendment is caused substantially by the fraudulent and
improper conduct of the parties themselves.

The Trusts and Other Simon Bernstein created entities such as Bernstein Family

Investments, Bernstein Family Realty, Bernstein Holdings:

All of these entities to be added to an amended pleading are non-probate entities and are
civil in nature. Part of the conspiracy alleged against Ted Bernstein and those parties acting in
concert is a scheme to deny, lose, make unavailable and alter ALL “Original” documents such

99 ¢¢

that Ted Bernstein himself admitted in an orchestrated pre-determined “one-day” “validity”
hearing before Florida Judge John Phillips in Dec. of 2015 that he had never seen ANY of the
“Originals” of the Trusts and at that same hearing Ted’s former attorney and former Co-Trustee
and Co-PR of the Estate and Trust of Simon Bernstein, who had resigned after admitting to fraud
and who admitted at the validity hearing to fraudulently creating a Shirley Bernstein Trust
document, Robert Spallina, Esq., also claimed not to know where the original documents were at
the time of the hearing. Spallina claiming he did not know where they were despite a court order
that demanded his law firm turn over ALL records to the now dead successor Curator, Benjamin
Brown, Esq., who upon receipt of the documents informed Defendant Eliot Bernstein that NO
original documents relating to the Estates and Trusts or other documents of Simon and Shirley’s

were originals, in defiance of the court order. Yet, in the First Amended Complaint filed by

Adam Simon on behalf of Ted Bernstein in this action, an affirmative representation was made

to this Court in such Amended Complaint that an “exhaustive” search for the Trust and
Insurance documents from this action had been made by Ted Bernstein, Tescher and Spallina,

the Simons and related parties as of January 2014. Such a representation asks this Court to
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believe that NO Original document exists anywhere for now deceased Simon Bernstein who was
a financially successful insurance salesman for 50 years using multiple attorneys and having
record and files for decades, running certain of the trust companies that administered and sold the
missing life insurance policy at the heart of this lawsuit all of which apparently seem to be lost
with no explanation.

Many of the “copies” of said Trusts have references to Insurance and insurance proceeds.
Several of the named Trusts such as the “Family Trusts” and Marital Trusts” and Trust for Eliot
Bernstein and family and Jill Bernstein and Family and Lisa Friedstein and family were never
produced or entered into the Florida proceedings whether by copy or original or any form at all
and yet are alleged to have existed by the copies of other trusts produced. Nor were any of the
instruments creating Bernstein Family Holdings and Bernstein Family Investments and Bernstein
Family Realty ever produced at such Florida validity proceeding.

All such items should now be allowed to be added as parties to an Amended pleading to
determine the proper Instruments and proper terms and conditions. Such an amendment is
directly in support of determining the original insurance action herein and likely to yield further
evidence to permit this Court’s path to judgement on the original action. See Exhibit A -

Partial Parties and Entities to be added to Amended Complaint
Ted Bernstein

Third-Party Defendant Eliot Bernstein respectfully seeks to add claims against current
party Ted Bernstein in the nature of conversion of assets, adding claims to tortious interference
and delay of rights of inheritance and expectancy, breaches of fiduciary duties ( if actually a

proper fiduciary ), conspiracy to deprive fundamental rights, due process and meaningful access
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to the courts acting in concert with the County of Palm Beach and PBSO and state actors Judge
Colin and Phillips.

Tescher & Spallina, Kimberly Moran, Gutter Chaves Josepher Rubin Forman Fleisher

Miller PA F.K.A. Tescher Gutter Chaves Josepher Rubin Ruffin & Forman PA, the

County of Palm Beach & PBSO

While Third-party Defendant Eliot Bernstein asserts that Hon. Judge St. Eve erred in
dismissing Tescher & Spallina from this action, new evidence to support bringing these parties
back in and added to an Amended pleading such as TS Bates Discovery obtained AFTER these
parties were Dismissed by Judge St. Eve and referenced in the Feb. 2016 Petition for Injunction
including but not limited to: July 1, 2010 Email to Chris Prindle showing fraud in claiming
Spallina had “certified” Orders regarding the takeover of certain Trusts by Oppenheimer
allegedly signed by Judge Colin and another Email of the same date by Spallina showing the
“close” relationship he had with Judge Colin by claiming to a Stanford related partie Maggie
Brown how he would “walk the orders through” the next week that Spallina was telling Prindle
had already been signed and certified by the Court. Said information was never even discovered
produced until mid to late 2014 and thus Eliot Bernstein had no opportunity to Discover such
information at the time of the original Answer and Counterclaims.

Same with the June 2010 Petition allegedly filed by Spallina with Judge Colin regarding
the Trusts moving from Stanford to Oppenheimer which again Eliot Bernstein never discovered
or received or was produced until 2014 well after his original responsive pleading and after
Plaintiff’s first Amended Complaint. Said Petition signed by Robert Spallina is instrumental in
the claims with the County of Palm Beach and PBSO as direct claims of Fraud were made by

Eliot Bernstein before both Judge Colin and the PBSO who sabotaged and spoiled any such
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investigation against Spallina in this regard in denial of 14th Amendment rights and thus is
supportive of the claims under 42 USC Sec. 1983. Eliot Bernstein obtained direct information
from the PBSO after his original Answer and Counterclaims were filed in this action of Judge
Colin’s “involvement” and interference in the fraud investigations ongoing in his own Court.
Sufficient information exists to plead claims under 42 USC 1983 naming the County of Palm
Beach, PBSO Officers Panzer, Miller & Groover herein.

Oppenheimer, JP Morgan, Steve Lessne, Alan Rose, Gerald Lewin, Brian O’Connell, Joy

Foglietta and the Ciklin law firm and Stanford and Oppenheimer entities:

Third-party Defendant Eliot I. Bernstein seeks to add said defendants for claims relating
to conspiracy to deprive fundamental rights of due process and meaningful access to the Courts,
tortious interference and delay in rights of inheritance and expectancy, breach of fiduciary duties,
loss, concealment and destruction of evidence, conversion and waste of assets, and negligence. It
is noted for this Court that on the date in Feb. 2016 when the Petition for an Injunction was
presented to this Court and where it was not disclosed to this Court or myself that the dead body
with gruesome gun-shot wounds to the head had been discovered just a day or so before at one of
the property assets seeking to be enjoined, later that same day attorney Alan Rose acting with
Ted Bernstein arranged the Probate proceedings with Judge Phillips which allegedly were for a
Guardianship Proceeding to NOT be Electronically Recorded despite information from Court
Administrative Officers that all GAL ( Guardianship ) proceedings were required to be
electronically recorded. This Court is otherwise referred to those sections of the petition for
injunctive relief for the primary factual predicate and background for this motion.

Jackson, Heritage, LaSalle, Reinsurance America, Bank of America
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Third party Defendant Eliot Bernstein respectfully seeks leave to add such parties back to
the action to afford complete relief amongst the parties and for claims relating to loss,
destruction, concealment of evidence and records herein.
WHEREFORE, it is respectfully prayed for an Order granting Third-Party Defendant’s
motion for leave to amend the Counterclaims and Third-Party Complaint and responsive

pleadings herein and for such other and further relief as may be just and proper.

Respectfully Submitted,

Date: April 29, 2016

/sl Eliot lvan Bernstein

Eliot Ivan Bernstein

Third Party Defendant/Cross Plaintiff
PRO SE

2753 NW 34th St.

Boca Raton, FL 33434

Telephone (561) 245-8588
iviewit@iviewit.tv

WWW.1vViewit.tv

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on April 29, 2016 I electronically filed the foregoing with the
Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF and/or email. I also certify that the foregoing is being served
this day on all counsel of record identified below via transmission of Notices of Electronic Filing

generated by CM/ECF or in some other authorized manner.

/s/ Eliot lvan Bernstein

Eliot Ivan Bernstein
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Third Party Defendant/Cross Plaintiff
PRO SE

2753 NW 34th St.

Boca Raton, FL 33434

Telephone (561) 245-8588
1viewit@iviewit.tv

WWW.1viewit.tv

SERVICE LIST

James J. Stamos and

STAMOS & TRUCCO LLP

One East Wacker Drive, Third Floor
Chicago, IL 60601

Attorney for Intervenor,

Estate of Simon Bernstein
jstamos@stamostrucco.com,

dvasquez@stamostrucco.com

and

Kevin Patrick Horan
sberkin@stamostrucco.com,
khoran@stamostrucco.com

Adam Michael Simon, Esq. Ted Bernstein,

#6205304 880 Berkeley
303 East Wacker Drive, Suite | Boca Raton. FL 33487

2725

Chicago, Illinois 60601
Attorney for Plaintiffs
(312) 819-0730
asimon@chicago-law.com

tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.com

Alan B. Rose, Esq.
PAGE,MRACHEK,FITZGERALD,
ROSE, KONOPKA, THOMAS &
WEISS, P.A.

505 South Flagler Drive, Suite 600
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401
arose@pm-law.com

and

arose@mrachek-law.com

Pamela Simon Estate of Simon Bernstein

President Personal Representative
STP Enterprises, Inc.

303 East Wacker Drive
Suite 210

Chicago IL 60601-5210
psimon@stpcorp.com

Brian M. O'Connell, Partner and
Joielle Foglietta, Esq.

Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O’Connell
515 N Flagler Drive

20th Floor

West Palm Beach, FL 33401
boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com

Jill lantoni

2101 Magnolia Lane
Highland Park, IL 60035
jilliantoni@gmail.com

Lisa Friedstein David B. Simon, Esq.

2142 Churchill Lane #6205304

Highland Park, IL 60035 303 East Wacker Drive, Suite 2725
Lisa@friedsteins.com Chicago, Illinois 60601

Attorney for Plaintiffs
(312) 819-0730

lisa.friedstein@gmail.com
lisa@friedsteins.com

Michael Duane Sanders mds@pw-
law.com, sjohnson@pw-law.com

Glenn E. Heilizer John M. O'Halloran joh@mcveyparsky-
glenn@heilizer.com law.com
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EXHIBIT A

1.  Simon L. Bernstein Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former trustees, fiduciaries and
counsel;

2.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Simon L. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel;

Simon L. Bernstein Estate and Will of Simon L. Bernstein (2008) and its current and
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel;

Simon L. Bernstein Estate and Will of Simon L. Bernstein (2012) and its current and
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel;

Simon L. Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust Agreement (2012) and its current and
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel;

Wilmington Trust 088949-000 Simon L. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust and its current and
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel;

Estate and Will of Shirley Bernstein (2008) and its current and former trustees,
fiduciaries and counsel;

Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former trustees, fiduciaries
and counsel;

Shirley Bernstein Irrevocable Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former trustees,
fiduciaries and counsel;

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust dated 6/21/1995 (currently missing and
legally nonexistent) and its current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel;

Shirley Bernstein Marital Trust and Family Trust created under the Shirley Bernstein
Trust (2008) and its current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel;

S.B. Lexington, Inc. 501(C)(9) VEBA TRUST and its current and former Divisions,
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors,
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents,
Administrators, Representatives;

Trust f/b/o Joshua Bernstein under the Simon L. Bernstein Trust dtd 9/13/2012 and its
current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel;

Trust f/b/o Daniel Bernstein under the Simon L. Bernstein Trust dtd 9/13/2012 and its
current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel,;

Trust f/b/o Jake Bernstein under the Simon L. Bernstein Trust dtd 9/13/2012 and its
current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel;

Eliot Bernstein Family Trust dated May 20, 2008 and its current and former trustees,
fiduciaries and counsel;

Daniel Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 and its current and former
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel;

Jake Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 07, 2006 and its current and former
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel,



20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.
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19. Joshua Z. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 07, 2006 and its current and
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel;

Traci Kratish, Fiduciary;
Christopher Prindle, personally;
Christopher Prindle, professionally;
Peter Montalbano, personally;
Peter Montalbano, professionally;
S.T.P. Enterprises, Inc., and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries,
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members,
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, Attorneys,
Insurers and Fiduciaries;
S.B. Lexington, Inc. and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders,
Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors,
Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;
National Service Association, Inc. (of Illinois) and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates,
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners,
Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;
Life Insurance Concepts, Inc. and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries,
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members,
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;
LIC Holdings, Inc. and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders,
Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors,
Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;
LIC Holdings, LLC and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders,
Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors,
Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;
Arbitrage International Management LLC and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates,
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners,
Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;
Arbitrage International Marketing, Inc. and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates,
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners,
Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;
Arbitrage International Holdings, LLC and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates,
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners,
Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;
National Services Pension Plan and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries,
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members,
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;
Arbitrage International Marketing Inc. 401 (k) Plan and its current and former Divisions,
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns,



36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.
43.
44.
45.
46.
47.
48.

49.

50.
51.
52.
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Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators,
Representatives;

Bernstein Family Realty, LLC and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries,
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members,
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;
Bernstein Holdings, LLC and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries,
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members,
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;
Bernstein Family Investments, LLLP and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates,
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners,
Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;
Legacy Bank of Florida and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries,
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members,
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, Attorneys,
Insurers and Fiduciaries;

Chicago Title Land Trust and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries,
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members,
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;
Wilmington Trust Company and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries,
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members,
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;

Janet Craig, personally;

Janet Craig, professionally;

Janet Craig, fiduciary;

Huntington Worth, personally;

Huntington Worth, professionally;

Huntington Worth, fiduciary;

GrayRobinson, P.A. and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders,

Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors,
Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;

GUNSTER and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents,

Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees,
Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;

Mark R. Manceri, Esq., personally;

Mark R. Manceri, Esq., professionally;

Mark R. Manceri, Esq., P.A. and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries,
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members,
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, Attorneys,
Insurers and Fiduciaries;



53.

54.
55.
56.
57.
58.
59.
60.
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Pankauski Law Firm PLLC and its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries,
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members,
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, Attorneys,
Insurers and Fiduciaries;

John J. Pankauski, Esq., personally;

John J. Pankauski, Esq., professionally;

Steven A. Lessne, Esq., personally;

Steven A. Lessne, Esq., professionally;

Kimberly Francis Moran, personally;

Kimberly Francis Moran, professionally;

Lindsay Baxley aka Lindsay Giles, personally;

Lindsay Baxley aka Lindsay Giles, professionally;
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,

Plaintiff,

V.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Defendant,

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY
Counter-Plaintiff

V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant
and,

\_/v\_/vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK )

as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee )
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF )
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA, )
Successor in interest to LaSalle National )
Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST, )
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95,
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN

~——

Case No. 13 cv 3643
Honorable John Robert Blakey
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95,
Ted Bernstein, as Trustee and
Individually, Pam Simon,

and Adam M. Simon
(Respondents)

RESPONSE TO ELIOT BERNSTEIN’S
MOTION FOR LEAVE TO FILE
AMENDED COMPLAINT



Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 233 Filed 05/02/16 Page 2 of 8 PagelD 3866
Case: 17-3595  Document: 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018  Pages: 547

Third-Party Defendants.

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff
V.

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON,
both Professionally and Personally
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
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NOW COMES RESPONDENTS, by and through their attorney, Adam M. Simon, and
state in response to Eliot Bernstein’s Motion for Leave to File an Amended Complaint as
follows:

RESPONSE

1. Eliot’s motion for leave to file an amended complaint should be denied because it is
vexatious on its face.

Eliot’s motion for leave to file an amended complaint is vexatious on its face as it
attempts to name approximately 60 parties as defendants or third-party defendants. Eliot
ignores disregards prior orders entered in the Probate court in Florida which ultimately
resulted in the loss of Eliot’s standing to participate in the Probate actions in Florida not
only on his own behalf but also on behalf of his minor children. Orders entered by Hon.
John L. Phillips on December 15, 2015 and April 8, 2016 in Ted Bernstein, as Trustee of
the Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement dated 5/20/2008 v. Alexandra Bernstein, et. al.,
Case No. 502014CP003698, and In Re Estate of Simon Bernstein, Case No.
502012CP004391 (Cir. Ct. of Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, Palm Beach County, Florida).
(The Probate Orders are attached hereto as Ex. A and Ex. B.)

Why did Eliot lose standing to represent the interests of his own children?
Because after an evidentiary hearing on the matter, the Judge Phillips found that Eliot
was acting to the detriment of his own minor children and as a result appointed a
guardian ad litem to act on their behalf. (See Ex. B). Clearly one of the motivations in
Eliot seeking leave to file an amended complaint here is in furtherance of his efforts to

avoid the effect of the Probate Orders.
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Eliot also ignores prior Orders entered in the instant litigation including those
(1) closing discovery [Dkt. #123] and (ii) dismissing Eliot’s claims against parties he
know seeks to re-file against such as former third-party defendants, Tescher and Spallina.
[Dkt. 106], and (iii) admonishing Eliot to limit an “Omnibus Emergency Motion” t0
issues over which the Northern District has jurisdiction over. [178].

The claims Eliot seeks to reinstate against Tescher and Spallina are dilatory and
likely barred as they are being brought more than two years after the Order dismissing
them from the litigation. These same claims are futile for all of the reasons set forth in
Judge Ste. Eve’s Order. [Dkt. 106]. In fact, Judge Ste. Eve’s reasoning provides a basis
for denying Eliot’s motion for leave to amend against all Third-Party defendants
currently sued by Eliot in this litigation, and all parties he seeks to reinstate or add.

Like all vexatious litigants, Eliot’s motion reflects his never-ending compulsive
search for alternate theories and forums to re-litigate ad nauseum issues previously
litigated and decided adversely to him in prior proceedings.

2. Eliot’s motion for leave to file an amended complaint should be denied because it

fails to attach the proposed amended complaint and fails to adequately describe the
proposed amendments.

Eliot has failed to attach a proposed amended complaint to his motion. The
motion itself is really nothing more than another one of Eliot’s missives with no rational

connection between thoughts that result in nothing more than faux conclusions of law.
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Take for example Eliot’s attempted linkage between a rather mundane motion for
leave to withdraw as counsel for two parties filed by Adam Simon, and a tragic suicide of
the buyer of the former personal residence of Simon Bernstein. Eliot alludes that these
two events are somehow meaningful, but fails to provide an explanation or evidence of
any nexus between the two. Eliot fails to even allege that any of the parties he
references, Jill lantoni, Lisa Friedstein and Adam Simon, all of whom reside in Illinois
were even in the state of Florida anywhere near the time of this tragic death. Eliot also
never mentions that Jill lantoni, Lisa Friedstein or Adam Simon have ever met or spoken
to this person prior to his death. Eliot makes absolutely no connection between these
events and a cognizable claim.

Eliot fails to specify what legal claims he seeks to add and against which parties.
More importantly he fails to specify how any of his ramblings amount to a set of facts
which sets forth an actual claim for which relief can be granted against a specific party.
In light of the Probate Orders entered and described above, it is almost certain any such
claims would be futile, but in any case Eliot has failed to provide the substance of his

proposed amendment such that this court could even make such a determination.

3. Eliot’s motion for leave to file an amended complaint should be denied because the
motion fails to satisfy the legal standards Eliot sets forth in his own motion.

Eliot’s motion includes recitation of the following standard on motions for leave
to amend, “In the absence of delay, undue prejudice to the party opposing the motions, or

futility of the amendment, leave should be freely given.” (Eliot’s motion for leave, p.3).

Eliot’s efforts to add fifty plus parties and litigate issues not germane to the narrow issue



Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 233 Filed 05/02/16 Page 6 of 8 PagelD 3870
Case: 17-3595  Document: 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018  Pages: 547

in this case, including those that have been previously decided in prior proceedings, will
surely prejudice the existing parties to this litigation because of undue delay and
needlessly increased costs.

Eliot’s motion seeks to add or reinstate previously dismissed parties to litigation
and re-open discovery in an interpleader action filed over three years ago involving a
single non-probate asset where discovery has been closed for over one year. Eliot’s
thinly veiled allegations of a 81983 conspiracy involving the Florida Probate Court is
actually no conspiracy at all but rather just a series of adverse rulings in the Probate Court
that correctly determined (i) the validity of the testamentary documents at issue in
Florida, (ii) that Ted Bernstein was a duly authorized Trustee of the various Trusts in
Florida, and had not taken part in any wrongdoing alleged by Eliot; (iii) Eliot was not a
beneficiary of the Trusts or Estates in Florida; and (iv) Eliot’s children required a
Guardian Ad Litem because of Eliot’s persistent actions which adversely impacted his
children’s interests. (Ex. A and Ex. B).

Given the procedural history of both the instant litigation and the Probate action
in Florida it is virtually certain any such amendments, even if they had been properly pled
and timely, would be futile. For example, here Judge St. Eve has already dismissed the
claims brought against Tescher and Spallina, and Eliot’s rambling motion fails to set
forth any specific new facts which entitle him to re-plead, and of course this is in addition
to the fact that Eliot’s claims against Tescher and Spallina were dismissed by Judge St.

Eve over two years ago.
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The same reasoning used by Judge St. Eve likely applies to all of Eliot’s existing
and proposed new claims as well. And that is, Eliot is not faced with any liability in the
instant litigations so his efforts to bring cross-claims in this case against third parties

when Eliot faces no liability for the third-party to share is misplaced. [Dkt. 106].

4. Eliot’s motion for leave to file an amended complaint should be denied because this
court lacks subject-matter jurisdiction.

Eliot’s motion is an improper attempt to use this U.S. District Court as a quasi-
appellate court to circumvent Orders entered in the Probate action. Eliot seeks an
alternate forum in an obvious attempt to re-litigate the exact same issues previously
litigated in Florida over the last four years, and to try to regain standing in Probate
proceedings where Eliot has none. This court has no subject-matter jurisdiction over the
probate matters being litigated in Florida. [178], and Storm v. Storm, 328 F.3d 941 (7'
Cir., 2003).

And despite Eliot’s representations to the contrary, all of Eliot’s counterclaims,
cross-claims, and third-party claims go well beyond the singular issue presented in the

instant litigation which is the determination of the beneficiary of the Policy Proceeds.
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Conclusion

For all the foregoing reasons, Eliot’s motion for leave to file an amended

complaint should be denied.

Respectfully submitted,

[s/ Adam Simon

Adam Simon, Esq.
#6205304

303 East Wacker Drive
Suite 2725

Chicago, Illinois 60601
(312) 819-0730

Attorney for Respondents
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IN. THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND
FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

TED BERNSTEIN, as Trustee Probate Division
of the Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement Case No.: 502014CP003698XXXXNBIJ

dated May 20, 2008, as amended,

Plaintiff,
V.

ALEXANDRA BERNSTEIN; ERIC BERNSTEIN;
MICHAEL BERNSTEIN; MOLLY SIMON;
PAMELA B. SIMON, Individually and as Trustee
f/b/o Molly Simon under the Simon L. Bernstein
Trust Dtd 9/13/12; ELIOT BERNSTEIN, individually,
as Trustee f/b/o D.B., Ja. B. and Jo. B. under the
Simon L. Bernstein Trust Dtd 9/13/ 12, and on

behalf of his minor children D.B., Ja. B. and Jo. B.;
JILL IANTONI, Individually, as Trustee f/b/o J.L.
under the Simon L. Bernstein Trust Dtd 9/13/1 2, and
on behalf of her Minor child J.I.; MAX FRIEDSTEIN ;
LISA FRIEDSTEIN, Individually, as Trustee £/b/o
Max Friedstein and C.F., under the Simon L.
Bernstein Trust Dtd 9/13/12, and on behalf of her
minor child, C.F.,

Defendants.

/

FINAL JUDGMENT ON COUNT II OF THE AMENDED COMPLAINT

This cause came before the Court for trial on December 15, 2015, pursuant to the Court's

ORDER SETTING TRIAL on AMENDED COMPLAINT (DE 26) COUNT 11 dated September 24,

2015. The Court, having received evidence in the form of documents and testimony of witnesses,
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having heard argument of counsel and pro se parties who wished to argue, and being otherwise fully
advised of the premises, hereby enters a Final Judgment as to Count II of the Amended Complaint:

1. This is an action for declaratory judgment to determine the validity, authenticity and
enforceability of éertain wills and trusts executed by Simon Bernstein and Shirley Bernstein, as
follows:

A. Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement dated May 20, 2008 ("Shirley 4
Trust", attached to the Amended Complaint as Exhibit Ag, %P AT TR 9 3/20

B. First Amendment to Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement dated

November 18, 2008 ("Shirley First Amendment", attached to the
Amended Complaint as Exhibit B, o P3z ar rexr <) &K()

C. Will of Simon L. Bernstein dated July 25, 2012 ("Simon Will", .
attached to the Amended Complaint as Exhibit Cg, #¥. P4 At 172:/!—9 @7;)
D. Simon L. Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated

July 25,2012 ("Simon Trust ", attached to the Amended Complaint as
ExhibitD¥amdt % Ps 41 mRidC ) Qonal

E. Will of Shirley Bemnstein dated May 20, 2008 ("Shirley Will "
attached to the Amended Complaint as Exhibit E}, ex. P1 AT 79‘7’9 ﬁ?()
(collectively, the “Testamentary Documents”).

2. Based upon the evidence presented during the trial, the Court finds that the
Testamentary Documents, as offered in evidence by Plaintiff, are genuine and authentic, and are
valid and enforceable according to their terms.

3. The Court finds that Simon's Testamentary Documents were signed by Simon and
Shirley's Testamentary Documents were signed by Shirley, in the presence of two attesting witnesses

who signed in the presence of the testator and in the presence of each other. § 732.502, Fla. Stat.;

§ 736.0403(2)(b), Fla. Stat.

Page2 of 5
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4. . The Court finds the Testamentary Documents meet the requirements for self-proof,
as specified in §732.503, Fla. Stat. Alternatively, the Testamentary Documents were properly
admitted based upon the testimony of at least one of the attesting witnesses, which occurred.
§733.201, Fla. Stat.

5. Based on the evidence presented, the Court finds that Plaintiff, Ted S. Bemnstein,
Trustee, was not involved in the preparation or creation of the Testamentary Documents. [ideeas, XL‘)
Ted S. Bernstein had never seen the documents before his father's death. Mo Ted S. Bernstein W
played no role in any questioned activities of the law firm Tescher & Spallina, PA, who represented .

ELisT BerMSTETN >

Simon and Shirley while they were alive. There is no evidence to support the ssertionsA that Ted
Bernstein forged or fabricated any of the Testamentary Documents, or aided and abetted others in
forging or fabricating documents. -'thTed Bernstein played no role in the preparation of any 5%

improper documents; the presentation of any improper documents to the Court; or any other

improper act, contrary to the allegations of Eliot Bernstein,

6. Based on the evidence presented, the Court finds that an unauthorized version of the

First Amendment to Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement was prepared sometime after Simon died.

This document (P1. Ex. 6) was not signed by Shirley Bernstein and, therefore, is not an operative

document.

7. This ruling is intended to be a Final J udgment under Rule 9.170 of the Florida Rules
of Appellate Procedure, determining the validity of Testamentary Documents, denying any objection
to the probate of Shirley's and Simon's Wills or the validity of the Trust Agreements, and

determining which persons are entitled to recejve distributions from these trusts and estates.

Page3 of 5
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)
.

8. Based upon the rulings made by the Court in this trial of Count II, the Court reserves

Jurisdiction to determine the remaining issues in this action.

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers, in Palm Beach County, Florida, this _Z_Q day of

December, 2015.
L. Phillips ~
CUIT COURT JUDGE

cc: All parties on the attached service list

Paged4of 5
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

IN RE: CASE NO. 502012CP004391 XXXXNBIH

ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN,
/

ORDER APPOINTING GUARDIAN AD LITEM TO
REPRESENT THE INTERESTS OF ELIOT BERNSTEIN'S CHILDREN

THIS CAUSE came before the Court for hearing on April 8, 2016, on Successor Trustee's
Motion for Appointment of a Guardian Ad Litem to Represent Interests of Eliot Bernstein's Children
in this Estate ("the Motion"). The Court, having reviewed the Motion and the record, having heard
argument of counsel and/or the parties, and being otherwise fully advised in the premises, hereby
ORDERS AND ADJUDGES:

1. This Court determined after a trial held on Dece;nber 15, 2015 that the beneficiaries
of The Simon L. Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated 7/25/12 (the "Trust") are
Simon Bernstein's "then living grandchildren." Under that ruling, Simon's children — including Eliot
Bernstein - are not beneficiaries of the Trust.

2, The Court already has determined in the related matter of the Shirley Bernstein Trust
that Eliot Bernstein should not be permitted to continue representing the interests of his minor
children, because his actions have been adverse and destructive to his children's interest, resulting

in appointment of a guardian ad litem.

3. Accordingly, the Court appoints O¢AN l;" LSl g to act as

Guardian ad Litem to advance and protect the interests of Jo.B, Ja.B and D.B. as the guardian sees

fit. The Guardian Ad Litem will have full power and autonomy to represent the interests of the
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children of Eliot Bernstein, subject to the jurisdiction and review of this Court. The Guardian Ad
Litem will be entitled to petition the Court for an award of attorneys' fees to be paid out of the gross
proceeds of any recovery, distributions or inheritance to be received by Ja.B, Jo.B, and/or D.B.

4, To protect the integrity and independence of the guardian, Eliot Bernstein and all
persons acting in concert with him: (a) shall not contact, email or otherwise communicate with the
Guardian Ad Litem except at the request of the Guardian Ad Litem; (b) shall not in any way threaten
or harass the guardian. This Court alone shall supervise the Guardian. Any violation of this order
may subject the violator to severe sanctions for contempt of court. The Court will use the full
measure of its coercive powers to ensure compliance with this Order.

5. The Court reserves jurisdiction to enforce all terms of this Order, and to oversee the
service of the guardian ad litem appointed.

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers, North County Courthouse on $- g , 2016.

cc: All parties on the attached service list
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS EASTERN DIVISION

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95, et al.,

Plaintiffs, Case No. 13-cv-3643
Judge John Robert Blakey
V.
Heritage Union Life
Insurance Co., et al., Filers:

Eliot Ivan Bernstein, Pro Se
Defendants.

THIRD-PARTY DEFENDANT ELIOT I. BERNSTEIN’S REPLY TO PLAINTIFFE’S
OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR LEAVE TO AMEND COUNTERCLAIMS - THIRD
PARTY COMPLAINT

1. Third-party Defendant Eliot I. Bernstein respectfully submits the following on information
and belief and in Reply to the Opposition ( “Response” ) papers filed by attorney Adam
Simon on behalf of Plaintiff Ted Bernstein to a Motion for Leave to Amend Counterclaims.

2. It was anticipated that other Plaintiffs or parties may also file in Opposition to this Motion for
Leave to Amend and I would submit a Reply to all parties at one time. However, as of today
Wed., May 11, 2016, Adam Simon has filed the only opposition to this motion on behalf of
Ted Bernstein.

3. While this Reply seeks to address all of the matters raised in the “Response” in Opposition, I
first wish to address and clarify for this Court matters raised by Adam Simon in Number “2”
where Adam Simon states as follows: “Take for example Eliot’s attempted linkage between a

rather mundane motion for leave to withdraw as counsel for two parties filed by Adam Simon,
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and a tragic suicide of the buyer of the former personal residence of Simon Bernstein” (

emphasis added ).

. First, nowhere in my Motion for Leave to Amend was it suggested that a Claim was being
sought to be added based upon the actual death of one Mitchell B. Huhem, whose body was
allegedly found in the 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, Florida home of my deceased
parents being found on or about Feb. 22nd or 23rd, 2016, 2 days or so before a Motion
Hearing with your Honor on Feb. 25, 2016 on my application for Emergency Injunctive Relief
under the All Writs Act and Anti-Injunction Act.

. However, the discovery of this dead body and the timing of the motion by my sisters Jill
Iantoni and Lisa Friedstein to no longer use Ted Bernstein’s counsel Adam Simon was
referenced in the Procedural history of this action for just that, clear sequence and history
particularly with open criminal investigations into various related matters herein.

. As this Court may recall, the Lions Head Lane home itself in Boca Raton, Florida is not only
a substantial claimed asset which I had moved this Court to restrain and enjoin but also is
referenced in the Plaintiff’s Amended Complaint filed Jan. 13, 2014 here in this action as one
of the alleged places where Plaintiff Ted Bernstein and his Counsel Adam Simon have
represented to this Court as being one of the places searched for an Executed copy of the Trust
which is the subject of this action stating in Par. 35 as follows: “Neither an executed original
nor an executed copy of the BERNSTEIN TRUST Agreement has been located after diligent
searches conducted as follows:

1) Ted Bernstein and other Bernstein family members of Simon Bernstein’s home and

business office;”
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7. Yet, despite this alleged “searching” of the Simon Bernstein home as of Jan. 3, 2014 finding
no such executed original or copy of such Trust for this action to this very day, allegedly that
is, nearly a year and a half later on or about May 20, 2015 just after Florida Probate Court
Judge Colin mysteriously “recuses” after 2.5 years on the Probate case doing so within 24
hours of a mandatory Disqualification motion' I filed, Ted Bernstein’s other counsel. Alan
Rose, magically allegedly finds executed “original” copies ( alleged “duplicate” originals ) of
other Trusts involving my children and parents despite the fact that the PR of the Estate of
Simon Bernstein by and through attorney Brian O’Connell’s law office with attorney Joy
Foglietta had already fully inventoried all items in the home as of March 2015 and removed
said items allegedly to storage. See, Petition for Injunction Paragraphs 95-120.

8. Of course in the prior alleged “searches” of the home that occurs by Ted Bernstein and others
as referenced in his First Amended Complaint filed in this action, none of these “duplicate
originals” now magically found by Alan Rose had apparently turned up, nor had these
“duplicate originals” turned up by the complete Inventory by Brian O’Connell’s office as PR,
allegedly that is.

9. Ted Bernstein’s counsel Alan Rose then proceeded to send through the Electronic mails and
wires an email on such date describing the magical find and attaching “copies” of the alleged
“duplicate” originals in further attempts to extort, coerce and wrongfully extract actions to

agree in the related Trust and Estate matters, yet never provided the alleged actual original

duplicate copies or the actual original documents which he and his client Ted claim not to

possess for Inspection or Review prior to an alleged pre-determined one day ‘“validity” trial

later held in Dec. 2015.

! May 14, 2015 Motion for Disqualification Judge Martin Colin
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150514%20FINAL%20Motion%20for%20Disqualifi
cation%20Co0lin%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY .pdf
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I respectfully draw the Court’s attention to Adam Simon’s affirmative representation in the
recent filed Response before this Court that the death of Mitchell Huhem was “a tragic
suicide” and note that nowhere in this filing does Adam Simon or Ted Bernstein provide any
basis of such knowledge, yet represents this to the Court as if it is fact just like Adam Simon
and Ted Bernstein filed with this Court claiming Ted Bernstein as “Trustee” of the Trust in
this case yet NEITHER party had seen such trust, can produce such Trust, or have stated the
basis for falsely filing as if this was a fact.

I also respectfully remind this Court that at no time on Feb. 25th, 2016 during the hearing on
my Emergency Petition for Injunctive relief which included the 7020 Lions Head Lane home
did either Adam Simon or Ted Bernstein disclose to this Court that a dead body had just been
found at the home with alleged gunshot wounds to the head so gruesome that family members
were not allowed to view the body of the deceased as alleged by the sisters of Mitchell
Huhem.

I can affirmatively represent to this Court that as of April 16, 2016, the Palm Beach Sheriff’s
Office still had an “Open” Investigation into the alleged Suicide as I personally received a
phone call from Detective Max-Carlos A. Perez-Pizarro who specifically was seeking
information about the death and further stated that the Palm Beach Sheriff’s Office was also
investigating the fraudulent deed and shell company and real estate transaction involving the
Lions Head lane home involving both Ted Bernstein and his counsel Alan Rose, See, Petition
for All Writs Act Injunction Paragraphs 146-153..

I can also state to this Court upon information and belief with the source being a direct family
member ( sister ) of deceased Mitchell Huhem that the PBSO had informed them that the

family would be notified when the Investigation was closed and that as of yesterday, Tuesday
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May 10, 2016 the family member sister reports she was directly told by a Supervisor in the
PBSO Central Records Unit that the Status of the Case had now suddenly changed to
“Blocked” Status and the case is Not “Open” nor “Closed” and that “Blocked” meant no one
internally could access the Case files and further stated that one of the possible reasons a case
could become “Blocked” is if an Outside Agency like the State’s Attorney’s Office was
reviewing the case or if a new lead had developed on what happened.

I can further say upon information and belief from the Mitchell Huhem family members (
sisters ) that as of this Tuesday, May 10, 2012 the PBSO still had not interviewed them for
alleged multiple contradictions in the storyline provided by Mitchell Huhem’s wife Deborah
Huhem in the days after the body was discovered and further that Ted Bernstein had claimed
to one sister that he was supposed to be meeting with Mitchell Huhem on the morning the
body was allegedly discovered and that Ted Bernstein portrayed himself as a “close friend” of
Mitchell Huhem’s, yet according to the sister the PBSO had not even interviewed Ted
Bernstein about the case as of March 10, 2016.

Ted Bernstein’s counsel, Alan Rose, however, had claimed in an Electronic mail ( email ) sent
to myself along the wires dated March 10, 2016 in part as follows: “Neither Ted nor anyone
else on your mother's side of this sale knew or needed to know about the buyer.”

Yet, pictorial evidence is available showing Ted Bernstein and Mitchell Huhem together for
Thanksgiving Dinner in Nov. of 2015 and according to Mitchell Huhem’s sister, Mitchell’s
wife was “staying” with Ted Bernstein and Debbie Bernstein at their intra-coastal home in
Florida in the days after the body was allegedly discovered, Mitchell Huhem’s wife Deborah
had waited approximately 15-20 hours to even notify any of Mitchell’s blood relative family

members including the sisters and Mitchell’s mother that he was even deceased, Deborah
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Huhem was constantly on the phone with attorney Laurence Pino who was directly involved
in setting up the fraudulent shell company that had allegedly taken the Deed to the Lion’s
Head home by Deed signed by Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose, and Laurence Pino was
directing or advising Deborah Huhem to Deny family members access to the Lions Head
home to see the scene of the event and further denied the family members permission to view
the body.

According to the Mitchell Huhem sister’s, ultimately after the Mother flew in the next day she
insisted seeing the Lions Head Home and scene where graphic photos of a pool of blood was
found in the garage and Boxes upon boxes were found everywhere in the garage and
elsewhere and while it is not known if any of the boxes contained Records and Documents
from Simon Bernstein’s life and business, one of the sisters did indicate that at least a Medical
Record of Simon Bernstein’s had been found in the upstairs part of the home near a closet.
Thus, I bring these matters to the Court’s attention not only to correct the factual record as I
understand it as there is no “Official” finding of “Suicide” to my knowledge by the PBSO
currently, but also alerting the Court in advance that further investigation by authorities could
yield new evidence which may be relevant to this action as one of the many outstanding items
is the whereabouts and proper Inventory and documentation of where All of Simon
Bernstein’s Business records, files and documents have gone. See Petition for All Writs.

I remind this Court that after my father Simon Bernstein had passed away and allegations of
being “poisoned” had been made at the Hospital, that Ted Bernstein indicated he and his
lawyers would be handling the matters with the police and autopsy, that when I went to my
father’s home at Lions Head I discovered his entire hard drive of files and business records

has been wiped clean and missing, that when the PBSO did eventually come by on the claim
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of my father being “poisoned” the PBSO did not even enter the Home to check all the
Medications and related matters in the home while I was present and claimed they would
return to do so, and after that I was never allowed entry to the home again and have not been
in the home since that time in 2012, that I later found the PBSO had instead docketed the
investigation of “poisoning” as a “Hospital Medical Records Check”, and further that I was

personally present at the home but Court ordered by Judge Colin to remain outside in on or

about March of 2015 when Joy Foglietta, attorney of the Brian O’Connell firm as PR of the
Estate were doing their “complete” Inventory and removal of ALL such items, records, etc in
the home.

20. Thus, there may be relevance as far as pattern and practice by the PBSO in “skewing”,
“sabotaging” and “steering” investigations as it relates to the investigation of the Mitchell
Huhem matter.

Reliance on Judge St. Eve Order to determine Futility is Misplaced and rests on erroneous

Facts

21. Respectfully, the reliance by Adam Simon and Ted Bernstein on Hon. Judge St. Eve’s Order
dismissing the Tescher and Spallina law firm to determine that any amendment would be
futile is misplaced and is based upon an erroneous state of facts.

22. This Order cited to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint in Paragraph 8 as follows: “Eliot
Bernstein, the sole non-consenting adult child of Simon Bernstein, holds the
remaining twenty percent of the beneficial interest in the BERNSTEIN TRUST, and is
representing his own interests and has chosen to pursue his own purported claims, pro se, in
this Matter.”

23. These are erroneous facts.



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.
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I had no knowledge that Ted Bernstein or any of the parties had filed in the instant lawsuit and
action until I was brought in as a Defendant by the insurer, thus these facts relied upon were
erroneous.

Instead at the time I was waiting to see a Florida filed action to determine a Trust since the
Trust was allegedly lost.

But for the fraudulent filing by Ted Bernstein and Adam Simon, I would have and should
have been a proper Plaintiff in a properly filed action to determine a proper Trust, Trustee and
policy herein and should not have been “cornered” and had my rights to seek proper Counter-
claims against proper parties restricted or limited in the manner in which this Order did
cornering me in as Defendant in an impleader action and the Plaintiffs should not be
benefitting by their own fraud in this regard.

Moreover, the case cited and relied upon by Hon. Judge St. Eve is a District court case from
New York which does not appear to be binding and also should not be used to achieve such a
substantial prejudice and injustice.

Other Federal Rules of Civil Procedure apply to adding parties and claims.

FRCP Rule 13 on Counterclaims and Cross-claims provides in part *“ h) Joinder of
Additional Parties. Persons other than those made parties to the original action may be made
parties to a counterclaim or cross-claim in accordance with the provisions of Rules 19 and
20.”

With respect to Heritage, Jackson and the Re-Insurer, these parties should not have been
released from the case in the absence of a produced policy and contract. This court simply

does not know if the amount deposited into the Court is correct without a contract.



31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.
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"It is well established that a party to a contract which is the subject of the litigation is

considered a necessary party." Ryan v. Volpone Stamp Co., Inc., 107 F. Supp.2d 369, 387

(S.D.N.Y. 2000);see also Global Discount Travel Services, LLC v. Trans World Airlines, Inc.,

960 F. Supp. 701, 707-708 (S.D.N.Y. 1997).

These parties should be added back in either under Rule 19(a) as necessary parties or Rule 20
as part of the same transaction and occurrence and common nucleus of operative facts.

The same should apply to Tescher & Spallina either as necessary parties or under the same
transaction and occurrence and common nucleus of operative facts.

Tescher and Spallina were the Estate planners for Simon and Shirley Bernstein who “should
have” knowledge and possession of any such Trust and insurance policies and contracts.
New facts have emerged well beyond the time of my original Answer and as recently as Dec.
2015 when shown that Ted Bernstein and his counsel Alan Rose were “working with” Robert
Spallina as their primary “witness” in an orchestrated “one-day” pre-determined “validity”
trial where Robert Spallina directly provides false and misleading testimony about his status
of pleading to criminal conduct for Insider Trading and SEC Consent Order and by the
discovery that no one knows where the “original” files are and that Ted Bernstein somehow
has never seen an “original” Trust in his entire time as alleged “Trustee” either in this case or
any of the Florida cases.

In Rotter v Leahy, 93 F. Supp.2d 487, 499 (S.D.N.Y. 2000) it was determined that in order to
successfully oppose a motion to amend based upon undue delay, the moving party "must
make a showing of substantial and undue prejudice resulting from the delay".

Neither Ted Bernstein nor Adam Simon have shown “substantial” and “undue prejudice”

resulting from any delay by Eliot Bernstein and in fact, an Amended complaint will amply
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show that virtually all such delay has been caused by the actions of Ted Bernstein and those
acting in concert with him in this case which appears nothing more than a fraud inside a fraud
in a coverup of a fraud between both this action and actions in Florida and that Eliot Bernstein
has had exhaustive amounts of time spent peeling apart and deciphering all such fraud where
it has already been established that a Notary employee directly under Robert Spallina’s
control, one Kimberly Moran, had committed 6 counts of forgery in parts of the Florida case,
where Robert Spallina has admitted to the PBSO of fraudulently altering part of Shirley’s
Trust and then admitting on the stand to dropping such fraudulent document in the US mails

to one of my attorneys who was bullied off the case.

Recent Misleading and False Actions before this Court by Adam Simon and Ted Bernstein

38.

39.

40.

41.

Even Adam Simon’s actions in the Response by claiming my “standing” has been removed in
Florida is itself a false and misleading action in material respects.

Adam Simon would have this Court believe that such a finding came after a Due Process
hearing but nothing could be further from the truth.

In fact, such finding by one John Phillips came at what is called a “UMC” hearing, Uniform

Motion Calendar hearing which by its very nature is NON-evidentiary and thus not as the
result of some fully litigated due process hearing.

The UMC hearings are set up for basic non-contested matters and the like and each party is
only give 5 minutes to speak and by the words at Judge Phillips own web page are Non-

evidentiary. See, “PROBATE/GUARDIANSHIP U.M.C. HEARINGS (Non-evidentiary

matters and/or ex-parte matters) are held on Tuesdays and Thursdays in Courtroom #3 at

8:30 a.m.”. http://15thcircuit.co.palm-beach.fl.us/web/judge-phillips/divinstructions
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42. And to further show the fraud upon fraud and lack of due process, such UMC hearing came
up after a pre-determined “Validity” trial which was limited to one day only regardless of
what evidence or testimony came up and was Expressly not a “Construction” hearing in
relation to the construction and meaning of any such instruments but only if somehow
“validly” executed.

43. Thus there had been no such Construction hearing at the time my standing was removed at a
non-evidentiary hearing and still has been no such Construction hearing and where the
validity hearing was based on copies only of testamentary documents and no originals were
produced and no one knew exactly where they were despite Tescher and Spallina being court
ordered to turn over ALL records and documents upon their resignation upon admission of
fraudulently creating a Shirley Trust document.

44. As shown in the Petition for All Writs Injunction, the parties went into “high gear” after this
Court closed submissions on the Summary Judgement to then obtain Orders in the Florida
Court on Validity which I had been seeking for 2 years prior and as alleged these were
orchestrated in violation of Florida’s own Civil procedure and constitutional due process for
the very purpose of obtaining collateral advantage in this case as well while simultaneously
blocking Discovery, production compliance and necessary witnesses as the Court simply
would not allow the time beyond “one-day” and was further orchestrated so that no attorney
was present to Cross-examine any of Ted Bernstein’s witnesses as Creditor William
Stansbury’s attorney Peter Feaman kept saying the PR attorney Brian O’Connell would be
present at the “validity” trial as the PR had filed a Motion to remove Ted Bernstein as counsel

but at the last moment made some type of “agreement’ with Ted Bernstein and thus the Estate



45.

46.

47.

48.

49.
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was not even represented by counsel at any such “validity” hearing where estate of Simon
documents were being validated in a non legally related Shirley Trust hearing.

That a stay for minor children to have counsel was denied at the hearing and the minor
children and other qualified beneficiaries were not present or represented.

Moreover, the Trusts and other items sought to be determined and added here as amended
claims include Trusts that were never produced or determined in Florida in any event.

Still and all more important as Ted Bernstein’s counsel Alan Rose has only recently admitted
that the very Trust that he sued me under for the Validity trial itself is a Trust that did not
exist, never existed, still does not exist all of which has relevance to the claims to be added
herein.

"Delay must be considered in context; not all delay will result in denial of a motion to

amend."Oneida Indian Nation of New York State v. County of Oneida, N.Y., 199 F.R.D. 61,

74(N.D.N.Y. 2000); see also Messier v. Southbury Training School,No. 3:94-CV-1706, 1999

WL 20907, at *3 (D. Conn. Jan. 5, 1999) ("mere delay, absent a showing of bad faith or undue

prejudice, does not provide a basis for denial of leave to amend") (citing State Teachers

Retirement Bd. v. Fluor Corp., 654 F.2d 843, 856(2d Cir. 1981)); See The Randolph

Foundation v Duncan, 00 Civ. 6445 (AKH)(THK) (S.D.N.Y. Jan 09, 2002).

https://casetext.com/case/the-randolph-foundation-v-duncan

I can provide to this Court exhibits showing approximately 112 Email Communications alone
from Ted Bernstein’s counsel Alan Rose where approximately 40 of which had Attached
documents just during the timeframe of when this Court closed Summary Judgment until
approximately the time of my All Writs filing in Feb. 2016, plus approximately 200 emails

during the same time from the Florida Courts and 80+ submissions by PR Brian O’Connell.
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50. It is asserted that this alone is likely part of a scheme to keep me occupied so that getting to
the business of filings to advance my rights and claims becomes impossible but nonetheless
this provides further context for any such “delay” particularly where there are multiple
investigations and fraud is widespread and has to be considered in each and every submission
and document and filing etc.

51. From the Randolph Foundation case above, see also Schwimmer v. Guardian Life Ins. Co.,

No. 93 Civ. 0428 (RWS), 1996 WL 146004, at *3 (S.D.N.Y. Apr. 1, 1996) (granting leave to
amend where amendment was "not so frivolous or outlandish to render it futile," even though

amended complaint would not with stand summary judgment motion);Hall v. Prendergast,

No. 91 Civ. 3829 (CSH), 1992 WL 88143, at *4(S.D.N.Y. Apr. 22, 1992) ("A proposed
amendment is considered futile if it is “clearly frivolous.") (citation omitted); Lerman v.

Chuckleberry Publishing, Inc., 521 F. Supp. 228, 231 (S.D.N.Y. 1981) ("[U]ness a proposed

claim is clearly frivolous or legally insufficient on its face, the court should not consider the
merits of a claim or defense on a motion to amend.").

52. My submissions on the motion and Petition for All Writs outline at least a colorable claim.

53. I specifically sought instruction from the Court as to whether the Proposed Amended
Complaint was necessary for filing this motion.

54. If failure to attach such a Proposed Amended Complaint is the basis to deny my motion, I
respectfully seek leave to cure by submitted the Proposed Amendment but respectfully seek
an additional 30 days or reasonable timeframe as [ am also facing several deadlines in the
Florida Appeals Court where I am also facing hurdles of being denied proper access to the full
Record and additional hurdles on indigency etc and at least seek a reasonable time to submit

such Proposed Amendment.
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Further, the Storm v Storm ( 7th Circuit ) case cited by Plaintiff is used improperly and was
also decided before the US Supreme Court’s Decision in Marshall v Marshall 547 U.S. 293;
126 S. Ct. 1735; 164 L. Ed. 2d 480; 2006.

In fact the Marshall v Marshall US Supreme Court case itself refers to the Storm v Storm
case in further stated, “As the Court of Appeals correctly observed, Vickie's claim does not
"involve the administration of an estate, the probate of a will, or any other purely probate
matter." 392 F.3d at 1133. Provoked by Pierce's claim in the bankruptcy proceedings, Vickie's
claim, like Carol Ankenbrandt's, alleges a widely recognized tort. See King v. Acker, 725
S.W.2d 750, 754 (Tex. App. 1987); Restatement (Second) of Torts § 774B (1977) ("One who
by fraud, duress or other tortious means intentionally prevents another from receiving from a
third person an inheritance or gift that [s]he would otherwise have received is subject to
liability to the other for loss of the inheritance or gift."). Vickie seeks an in personam
judgment against Pierce, not the probate or annulment of a [***36] will.

Even the Storm v. Storm 7th Circuit case recognized that a Federal court could hear claims of
neglect and mismanagement against a Trustee or PR from a probate case or will.

And Trusts being civil are non-probate in the first place.

A party may obtain a federal judgment that the party has a valid claim against an estate for a
specific amount of money. However, the federal court may not order payment of the money,
because that would be an assumption of control over property under probate. Turton v. Turton,

644 F.2d 344 (5th Cir. 1981.

A party may bring an action in federal court against a former personal representative for civil
theft, RICO violation, breach of fiduciary, conversion, and tortious interference.

Glickstein v. SunBank/Miami, 922 F.2d 666, 672, n. 13 (11th Cir. 1991).
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61. Thus, having shown at least a colorable claim, Plaintiff’s have not met their burden of

showing substantial and undue prejudice or futility.

WHEREFORE, Third-Party Defendant Eliot I. Bernstein respectfully requests that this Court
deny the opposition by Plaintiffs and grant the Motion for Leave to Amend and should a
proposed Amended Complaint be required seeks a reasonable time to submit based upon the

Appeals schedule in Florida and for such other and further relief as may be just and proper.

Respectfully Submitted,

Date: May 12, 2016

/s/ Eliot lvan Bernstein

Eliot Ivan Bernstein

Third Party Defendant/Cross Plaintiff
PRO SE

2753 NW 34th St.

Boca Raton, FL 33434

Telephone (561) 245-8588
iviewit@iviewit.tv

WWW.iviewit.tv

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on May 12, 2016 I electronically filed the foregoing with the
Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF and/or email. I also certify that the foregoing is being served

this day on all counsel of record identified below via transmission of Notices of Electronic Filing
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generated by CM/ECF or in some other authorized manner.

/s/ Eliot lvan Bernstein

Eliot Ivan Bernstein

Third Party Defendant/Cross Plaintiff

PRO SE

2753 NW 34th St.

Boca Raton, FL 33434
Telephone (561) 245-8588
iviewit@iviewit.tv
WWW.iviewit.tv

SERVICE LIST

James J. Stamos and

STAMOS & TRUCCO LLP

One East Wacker Drive, Third Floor
Chicago, IL 60601

Attorney for Intervenor,

Estate of Simon Bernstein
jstamos@stamostrucco.com,

dvasquez@stamostrucco.com

and

Kevin Patrick Horan
sberkin@stamostrucco.com,
khoran@stamostrucco.com

Adam Michael Simon, Esq.

#6205304
303 East Wacker Drive,

2725

Chicago, Illinois 60601
Attorney for Plaintiffs
(312) 819-0730

asimon@chicago-law.com

Ted Bernstein,
880 Berkeley

Suite | Boca Raton, FL 33487

Alan B. Rose, Esq.
PAGE,MRACHEK,FITZGERALD,
ROSE, KONOPKA, THOMAS &
WEISS, P.A.

505 South Flagler Drive, Suite 600
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401
arose@pm-law.com

and

arose@mrachek-law.com

Pamela Simon
President
STP Enterprises, Inc.

303 East Wacker Drive
Suite 210

Chicago IL 60601-5210
psimon@stpcorp.com

Estate of Simon Bernstein
Personal Representative

Brian M. O'Connell, Partner and
Joielle Foglietta, Esq.

Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O’Connell
515 N Flagler Drive

20th Floor

West Palm Beach, FL 33401
boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com

Jill lantoni

2101 Magnolia Lane
Highland Park, IL 60035
jilliantoni@gmail.com

Lisa Friedstein

2142 Churchill Lane
Highland Park, IL 60035
Lisa@friedsteins.com

David B. Simon, Esq.
#6205304

Chicago, Illinois 60601

tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.com

303 East Wacker Drive, Suite 2725
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lisa.friedstein@gmail.com Attorney for Plaintiffs
lisa@friedsteins.com (312) 819-0730
Michael Duane Sanders mds@ pw- Glenn E. Heilizer John M. O'Halloran joh@mcveyparsky-
law.com, sjohnson@pw-law.com glenn@heilizer.com law.com
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE Northern District of lllinois — CM/ECF LIVE, Ver 6.1.1
Eastern Division

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd
6/21/95, et al.

Plaintiff,
V. Case No.: 1:13-cv-03643
Honorable John Robert
Blakey
Eliot Bernstein
Defendant.

NOTIFICATION OF DOCKET ENTRY

This docket entry was made by the Clerk on Thursday, May 12, 2016:

MINUTE entry before the Honorable John Robert Blakey: Case called for motion
hearing on 5/12/2016 and no one appeared, either initially or when the case was recalled
at the end of the Court's status and motion call. Neither side advised the Court of any
conflict. Status hearing reset to 5/26/2016 at 9:45 AM in Courtroom 1725. Failure to
appear on 5/26/2016 may result in dismissal of this case for want of prosecution pursuant
to Local Rule 41.1. Mailed notice(gel, )

ATTENTION: This notice is being sent pursuant to Rule 77(d) of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure or Rule 49(c) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. It was
generated by CM/ECF, the automated docketing system used to maintain the civil and
criminal dockets of this District. If a minute order or other document is enclosed, please
refer to it for additional information.

For scheduled events, motion practices, recent opinions and other information, visit our
web site at www.ilnd.uscourts.gov.
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,

Plaintiff,

V.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Defendant,

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY

Counter-Plaintiff

V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant
and,

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA,
Successor in interest to LaSalle National
Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST,)
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95, )
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN )

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Case No. 13 cv 3643
Honorable John Robert Blakey
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

Filers: Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95,

Ted Bernstein, as Trustee and
Individually,

Pamela B. Simon, Adam M. Simon,
David B. Simon, The Simon Law Firm,
STP Enterprises, Inc. (“Movants”).

MOVANTS’ MOTION FOR SUMMARY
JUDGMENT AS TO ELIOT
BERNSTEIN’S COUNTERCLAIMS,
CROSS-CLAIMS AND THIRD-PARTY
CLAIMS (“ELIOT’S CLAIMS”)
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Third-Party Defendants.

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff
V.

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON,
both Professionally and Personally
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P.
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES

Third-Party Defendants.

N/ N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N




Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 239 Filed 05/21/16 Page 3 of 4 PagelD 3908
Case: 17-3595  Document: 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018  Pages: 547

NOW COMES the above-named Counterdefendants, Cross-defendants and Third-party
defendants (“Movants”), by and through their undersigned counsel, and pursuant to Fed. R. Civ.
P. 56(a) and Local Rule 56.1, move the Court for summary judgment as to each and every one of
Eliot’s counterclaims, cross-claims and third-party claims. In support thereof Movants state as
follows:

1. The undisputed facts and evidence supporting this motion are set forth more fully
in the accompanying Statement of Material Undisputed Facts Pursuant to Local Rule 56.1(a); the
Appendix of Exhibits; and referenced in the Memorandum of Law in Support of Movant’s Motion
for Summary Judgment.

2. This action was originally filed by the Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust
dated 6/21/95 against Heritage Union Life Insurance Company (the “Insurer”) in the Circuit Court
of Cook County. The Action related to Plaintiff’s claim to certain death benefit proceeds (“Policy
Proceeds”) payable under a life insurance policy (the “Policy”) insuring the life of Simon Bernstein
who passed away in September of 2012.

3. The Insurer removed this Action from Cook County to the Northern District, and
filed an Interpleader Action.

4. The Insurer did not dispute its liability under the Policy. Instead, the Insurer sought
to interplead conflicting claimants to the Policy Proceeds, and deposit the Policy Proceeds with
the Registry of the Court. The Insurer accomplished this and after depositing the Policy Proceeds,
the Insurer was dismissed from the litigation.

5. The remaining parties have had access to the Policy records and all documents
produced in this litigation, and have had ample time to conduct discovery. The fact discovery

deadline set by Judge St. Eve passed on January 9, 2015. [Dkt. #123]
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6. Movants have established in their memorandum of law that there is no triable issue
of fact and all Movants are entitled to summary judgment as to Eliot’s Claims as a matter of law.
This motion shall be dispositive as to all of Eliot’s Claims and will significantly narrow the focus
of these proceedings to where it belongs — determining the beneficiary of the Policy Proceeds that
remain on deposit with the Registry of the Court.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs respectfully request that the Court
and enter an Order as follows:

a) granting Movants’ motion for summary judgment in its entirety as to all of
Eliot’s Claims;

b) entering summary judgment for each Movant as to Eliot’s Claims, and
terminating Movants on the docket, but solely in their capacities as counterdefendants,
cross-defendants, or third party defendants to Eliot’s Claims;

C) terminating Eliot Bernstein as a party to these proceedings in all capacities
in which he appears on the docket;

d) granting Movants such further relief as this court may deem just and
proper.

Respectfully Submitted,

/s/ Adam M. Simon

Adam M. Simon (#6205304)

303 E. Wacker Drive, Suite 2725
Chicago, IL 60601

Phone: 313-819-0730

Fax: 312-819-0773

E-Mail: asimon@chicagolaw.com
Attorney for Movants
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE

INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,
Plaintiff, Case No. 13 cv 3643

Honorable John Robert Blakey

Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

V.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Defendant, Filers: Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95,
Ted Bernstein, as Trustee and
Individually,
Pamela B. Simon, Adam M. Simon,
David B. Simon, The Simon Law Firm,
STP Enterprises, Inc. (“Movants”).

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY

Counter-Plaintiff
MOVANTS’ STATEMENT OF
UNDISPUTED MATERIAL FACTS IN
SUPPORT OF THEIR MOTION FOR
SUMMARY JUDGMENT

V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant
and,

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA,
Successor in interest to LaSalle National
Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST,)
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95, )
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN )

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
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Third-Party Defendants.

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff
V.

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON,
both Professionally and Personally
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P.
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES

Third-Party Defendants.

N/ N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
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Movants, pursuant to Rule 56 and Local Rule 56.1, submit the following statement of
uncontested material facts, including an appendix of exhibits hereto, in support of their motion
for summary judgment as to Eliot’s counterclaims, cross-claims and third-party claims (“Eliot’s
Claims”).

l. THE PARTIES
The following is a review of the Parties (and entities named as potential parties) listed on the
civil docket for this matter:

1. Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95 (the “Bernstein
Trust”), is an irrevocable life insurance trust formed in Illinois as further described below. The
Bernstein Trust is the original Plaintiff that first filed this action in the Circuit Court of Cook
County. The Insurer then filed a notice of removal to the Northern District of Illinois. The
Bernstein Trust has also been named as a Counterdefendant to Eliot’s Claims. The Bernstein
Trust is represented by counsel, Adam M. Simon. (EX. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 121)

2. Bank of America, N.A. (“Bank of America”), was named a party to Heritage’s
counterclaim for Interpleader. Bank of America was terminated as a co-Plaintiff on January 13,
2014, and the Insurer voluntarily dismissed Bank of America as a Third-Party Defendant on
February 14, 2014. (Dkt. #97; Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 122)

3. Eliot Bernstein (“Eliot”) was named a Party by virtue of Heritage’s counterclaim
for Interpleader, and Eliot filed third-party claims against several Parties described herein
making Eliot a Third-Party Plaintiff as well (“Eliot’s Claims”). Eliot is the third adult child of
Simon Bernstein. Eliot is representing himself, and/or his children, pro se in this matter.

(Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 123)
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4. United Bank of Illinois, now known as PNC Bank, was named as a third-party
defendant in Heritage’s counterclaim for Interpleader. PNC Bank was served on August 5, 2013,

and has never filed an appearance or answer. (Dkt. #25; Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 24)

5. “Simon Bernstein Trust. N.A.” was named a Party to Heritage’s counterclaim for
interpleader. “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.”. There are no Policy records produced by the
Insurer indicating that a policy owner ever submitted a beneficiary designation naming Simon
Bernstein Trust, N.A. as a beneficiary of the Policy. No one has submitted a claim to the Policy
Proceeds with the Insurer on behalf of an entity named “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.”.

(Ex. 2, Aff. of Don Sanders, 169 and 178)

6. Ted Bernstein, as Trustee, of the Bernstein Trust retained Plaintiff’s counsel and
initiated the filing of this Action. Ted Bernstein, is also a co-Plaintiff, individually, and has been
named as a Counter-defendant and Third-Party Defendant to Eliot’s Claims. Ted Bernstein is
the eldest of the five adult children of Simon Bernstein. Ted Bernstein is represented by counsel,
Adam M. Simon. (Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 125)

7. First Arlington National Bank was named as a Third-Party Defendant by virtue of
Heritage’s counterclaim for Interpleader. First Arlington National Bank was never served by
Heritage, and instead Heritage served JP Morgan Chase Bank as First Arlington Bank’s alleged
successor and JPMorgan Chase Bank was substituted as a party in place of First Arlington
National Bank on 10/16/2013. (Dkt. #44; see also JP Morgan Chase Bank at Par. 12 below;
Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 126)

8. Lisa Sue Friedstein is a co-Plaintiff and has been named as a third-party defendant

to Eliot’s Claims. Lisa Sue Friedstein is the fifth adult child of Simon Bernstein. Lisa Sue
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Friedstein is now appearing pro se, and was formerly represented by counsel, Adam M. Simon.

(Ex. 3, Aff. of Lisa Friedstein, 12, 13, 16 and 23)

9. Jill Marla lantoni is a co-Plaintiff and has been named as a third-party defendant
to Eliot’s Claims. Jill Marla lantoni is the fourth adult child of Simon Bernstein. Jill Marla
lantoni is appearing pro-se and was formerly represented by counsel, Adam M. Simon. (Ex. 4,
Aff. of Jill lantoni, 12, 13, 6 and 23)

10.  Pamela Beth Simon is a co-Plaintiff and has been named as a third-party
defendant to Eliot’s Claims. Pamela Beth Simon is the second adult child of Simon Bernstein.
Pamela Beth Simon and is represented by counsel, Adam M. Simon. (Ex. 5, Aff. of Pam Simon,
12, 13, 6 and 138.)

11. Heritage is the successor life insurer to the original insurer, Capitol Banker Life,
that originally issued the Policy in 1982. Heritage was terminated as a party on February 18,
2014 when the court granted Heritage’s motion to dismiss itself from the Interpleader litigation
after having deposited the Policy Proceeds with the Registry of the Court pursuant to an Agreed
Order. The amount of the Policy Proceeds (plus interest) on deposit with the Registry exceeds
$1.7 million. (Dkt. #101 and Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 130)

12.  J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., (“J.P. Morgan”) was named as a third-party
Defendant by virtue of Heritage’s counterclaim for Interpleader. In its claim for Interpleader,
Heritage named J.P. Morgan, as a successor to First Arlington National Bank (described above).
J.P. Morgan filed an appearance and answer to Heritage’s counterclaim for Interpleader in which

it disclaimed any interest in the Policy Proceeds. J.P. Morgan then filed a motion for judgment
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on the pleadings to have itself dismissed from the litigation, and the court granted the motion.
As aresult, J.P. Morgan was terminated as a party on March 12, 2014. (Dkt. #105;
Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 131)

13.  William Stansbury filed a motion to intervene in this action, but his motion to
intervene was denied, and he was terminated as a non-party intervenor on January 14, 2014.
(Dkt. #74; Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 132)

14. Adam M. Simon is counsel himself, and for the Bernstein Trust, Ted Bernstein
(individually and as trustee), Pamela B. Simon, David B. Simon, The Simon Law Firm, and STP
Enterprises, Inc. four of the five adult children of Simon Bernstein. Adam M. Simon was named
a third-party defendant to Eliot’s Claims. Adam M. Simon is the brother-in-law of Pamela B.
Simon, and the brother of David B. Simon. (Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 133)

15. National Service Association, Inc. (of Illinois) was a corporation owned by the
decedent, Simon Bernstein. According to the public records of the Secretary of State of Illinois,
National Service Association, Inc. (of Illinois) was dissolved in October of 2006. There is no
record of Eliot having obtained service of process upon National Service Association, Inc.
because it is dissolved and has been for over 7 years. (Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 134)

16.  Donald R. Tescher, Esg. was named a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot’s Claims.
Donald R. Tescher is a partner of in the firm of Tescher & Spallina. Donald R. Tescher was
terminated as a party to this matter when the court granted his motion to dismiss as to Eliot’s
claims on March 17, 2014. (Dkt. #106; Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 135)

17.  Tescher and Spallina, P.A. was a law firm whose principal offices were formerly
in Palm Beach County, FL. Tescher and Spallina, P.A. was named a Third-Party Defendant to

Eliot’s Claims. Tescher & Spallina, P.A. Donald R. Tescher was terminated as a party to this
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matter when the court granted his motion to dismiss as to the Eliot’s Claims. (Dkt. #106; EX. 1,
Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 36)

18.  The Simon Law Firm was named a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot’s Claims. The
Simon Law Firm is being represented by counsel, Adam M. Simon.

19.  David B. Simon is the husband of Pam Simon, and the brother of counsel, Adam
M. Simon and was named a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot’s Claims. David B. Simon is being
represented by counsel, Adam M. Simon. (Ex. 6, Aff. of David Simon, 120 and 29)

20.  S.B. Lexington, Inc. was a corporation formed by Simon Bernstein. According to
the records of the Secretary of State of Illinois, S.B. Lexington, Inc. was dissolved on April 3,
1998. (Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein 139, Dep. of David Simon, p. 51:13-18)

21.  S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust (the “VEBA Trust”) was
named a Third-Party Defendant by virtue of Eliot’s Claims, and was a Trust formed by Simon
Bernstein in his role as principal of S.B. Lexington, Inc. The VEBA Trust was formed pursuant
to I.R.S. Code Sec. 501(c)(9) as a qualified Employee Benefit Plan designed to provide a death
benefit to certain key employees of S.B. Lexington, Inc. The VEBA was dissolved in 1998
concurrently with the dissolution of S.B. Lexington, Inc. (Ex. 7, Dep. of David Simon, p.
51:13-18; Ex. 30, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 140)

22.  Robert Spallina, Esq. was named a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot’s Claims.
Robert Spallina is a partner of in the firm of Tescher & Spallina, P.A. Robert Spallina was
terminated as a party to this matter when the court granted his motion to dismiss as to Eliot’s

Claims on March 17, 2014. (Dkt. #106; Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 141)
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23. S.T.P. Enterprises, Inc. was named a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot’s Claims.
S.T.P. Enterprises, Inc. has filed an appearance and responsive pleading and is represented by
counsel, Adam M. Simon. (Dkt. #47; Ex. 5, Aff. of Pam Simon, 25)

24.  According to the records of the Secretary of State of Florida, National Service
Association, Inc. (Florida) was a Florida corporation formed by Simon L. Bernstein. National
Service Association, Inc. (Florida) was named a Third-Party Defendant in Eliot’s Claims.
According to the records of the Secretary of State of Florida, National Service Association, Inc.
(Florida) dissolved in 2012. (Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 42).

25. Benjamin Brown as Curator of The Estate of Simon Bernstein filed a motion to
intervene in this litigation. The court granted the motion to intervene on July 28, 2014, and as a
result the Estate became a third-party claimant in the litigation. (Dkt. #121). Subsequently,
Brian O’Connell as successor Curator and Administrator Ad Litem of the Estate of Simon
Bernstein filed a motion to substitute for Benjamin Brown, and the court granted the motion
November 3, 2014. For purposes of this motion, Movants refer to this party as the “Estate of
Simon Bernstein” or the “Estate”. The Estate is represented by the law firm of Stamos & Trucco
in this matter. (Dkt. #126; Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein 143-144)

1. THE PoLICY AND PoOLICY PROCEEDS

26. In 1982, Simon Bernstein, as Insured, applied for the purchase of a life insurance
policy from Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Company, issued as Policy No. 1009208 (the
“Policy”). A specimen policy and a copy of the Schedule Page of the Policy are included in
Movant’s Appendix to the Statement of Facts. (Ex. 2, Aff. of Don Sanders at 138, 139, 148,

152; See Ex. 14). The amount of the Policy Proceeds (plus interest) on deposit with the Registry
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of the Court exceeds $1.7 million. (Dkt. #101 and Ex. 1, Aff. of Ted Bernstein, 130). The

Policy defines “Beneficiary” as follows:

217.

A Beneficiary is any person named on our [the Insurer’s] records to receive proceeds of
this policy after the insured dies. There may be different classes of Beneficiaries, such as
primary and contingent. These classes set the order of payment. There may be more than
one beneficiary in a class. Unless you provide otherwise, any death benefit that becomes
payable under this policy will be paid in equal shares to the Beneficiaries living at the
death of the Insured. Payments will be made successively in the following order:
(emphasis added)

a. Primary Beneficiaries.

b. Contingent Beneficiaries, if any, provided no primary Beneficiary is living at the
death of the Insured.

c. The Owner or the Owner’s executor or administrator, provided no Primary or
Contingent Beneficiary is living at the death of the Insured.

Any Beneficiary may be named an Irrevocable Beneficiary. An irrevocable beneficiary
is one whose consent is needed to change that Beneficiary. Also, this Beneficiary must
consent to the exercise of certain other rights by the Owner. We discuss ownership in
part 2. (SoF, 1126; Ex. 7 at bates no. JCK00101)

MOVANTS’ CLAIMS TO THE PoLICY PROCEEDS

Plaintiff’s claims to the Policy Proceeds are based on their allegations that the five adult

children of decedent, INCLUDING ELIOT, are the beneficiaries of The Simon Bernstein

Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95, and that this same Trust is the named beneficiary of the

Policy Proceeds at issue (the “Stake”). (Ex. 8, Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint).

V.

28.

EL10T’S NON-EXISTENT CLAIM TO THE POLICY PROCEEDS

Eliot Bernstein filed counterclaims, third-party claims and cross-claims in this litigation

(“Eliot’s Claims”). (Ex. 9, Eliot’s Claims).

29.

The pleading setting forth Eliot’s Claims—not including exhibits—is seventy-two pages

long and consists of one hundred and sixty-three separate paragraphs. Eliot’s Claims are devoid

9
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of any allegation or supporting facts to show that either Eliot or his children were ever named a
beneficiary of the Policy Proceeds. (Ex. 9, Eliot’s Claims).

30. This is confirmed by the 30(b)(6) witness designated by the Insurer affirming that no
Owner of the Policy ever submitted any change of beneficiary forms which were received by the
Insurer that designated Eliot, or any of Eliot’s children as a beneficiary of the Policy. (Ex. 2, Aff.
of Don Sanders, 65-168).

V. ELIOT’S STATUS VIS-A-VIS THE ESTATE OF SIMON BERNSTEIN

31. The case styled as In Re Estate of Simon L. Bernstein, has been pending in the Probate
Division of the Palm Beach County Circuit Court in Florida since 2012. In Re Estate of Simon
L. Bernstein, No. 502012CP004391XXXNBIH.

32. A related case styled as Ted Bernstein, as Trustee of the Shirley Bernstein Trust
Agreement dtd 5/20/2008 v. Alexandra Bernstein, et. al., has been pending in the same court
before the same judges since 2014 involving matters related to a testamentary trust formed by
Shirley Bernstein — Simon Bernstein’s spouse -- prior to her death. Ted Bernstein, as Trustee of
the Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement dtd 5/20/2008 v. Alexandra Bernstein, et. al, No.
502014CP003698XXXXNBH. For purposes of this motion, the actions pending in Palm Beach
County are referred to as the “Probate Action(s)”.

33. On December 15, 2015, after a trial was held in the Probate Actions, where Eliot
Bernstein appeared and represented himself pro se, Judge John L. Phillips entered an Order
including the following:

a. This was a “Final Judgment” on Count II of the Amended Complaint;

b. A trial was held on December 15, 2015 pursuant to the Court’s Order setting trial
on Amended Complaint Count II;

10
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c. The Court received evidence in the form of documents and testimony of
witnesses;

d. The Court heard argument from counsel and pro se parties who wished to argue;

e. The Court found that five testamentary documents, including the Will of Simon
Bernstein and a Simon Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated
July 25, 2012 are “genuine and authentic, and are valid and enforceable according
to their terms.”

f. That based on evidence presented, “Ted S. Bernstein, Trustee, was not involved in
the preparation or creation of the Testamentary Documents...Ted S. Bernstein
played no role in any questioned activities of the law firm of Tescher & Spallina,
P.A., who represented Simon and Shirley when they were alive. There is no
evidence to support the assertion of Eliot Bernstein that Ted Bernstein forged or
fabricated any of the Testamentary Documents, or aided or abetted others in
forging or fabricating documents. The evidence shows Ted Bernstein played no
role in the preparation of any improper documents, the presentation of any
improper documents to the Court, or any other improper act, contrary to the
allegations of Eliot Bernstein.

g. This ruling is intended to be a Final Judgment under Rule 9.170 of the Florida
Rules of Appellate Procedure...” (EX. 10, Probate Order of 12/15/15, Ted
Bernstein, as Trustee of Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement v. Alexandra
Bernstein...Eliot Bernstein, et. al. No. 502014CP003698.) (ADD
TRANSCRIPT SHOWING ELIOT ATTENDED?).”

34.  On April 8, 2016, Hon. John. L Phillips entered another Probate Order including

the following findings:

a. “This court determined after a trial held on December 15, 2015 that
the beneficiaries of The Simon L. Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust
Agreement dated 7/25/12 (the “Trust”) are Simon Bernstein’s ‘then living
grandchildren’. Under that ruling, Simon’s children -- including Eliot — are
not beneficiaries of the Trust.” (insert footnote explaining that the Trust is
beneficiary of the Will”).

b. The Court has already determined in the related matter of the Shirley
Bernstein Trust that Eliot Bernstein should not be permitted to continue
representing the interests of his minor children, because his actions have been
adverse and destructive to his children’s interest resulting in appointment of a
guardian ad litem.

11
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c. Accordingly, the Court appoints Diana Lewis to act as Guardian ad Litem to
advance and protect the interests of Jo.B, Ja.B and D.B. as the guardian sees
fit. The Guardian ad Litem will have full power and autonomy to represent
the interests of the Children of Eliot Bernstein, subject to the jurisdiction and
review of the court.” (EXx. 11, Order entered 4/8/16, Eliot Bernstein, et. al v.
Theodore Stuart Bernstein, et al., No. 502015CP001162).” (Ex. 11, Probate
Order entered 4/8/16)

35. In this same Probate Order, Judge Philips admonished Eliot that the court intended to
use its “full measure of its coercive powers” to ensure Eliot’s, and anyone acting in concert with
Eliot, non-interference with the guardian ad litem appointed for Eliot’s children. (emphasis
added). (Ex. 11, Probate Order entered 4/8/16). For purposes of this motion, the two orders

attached as Ex. 10 and Ex. 11 are referred to as the “Probate Orders”.

VI. THE ESTATE’S INTEREVENOR COMPLAINT

36. In its intervenor complaint, the Estate of Simon Bernstein, asserts that it has an
interest in the policy because “Plaintiff cannot prove the existence of a Trust document; cannot
prove that a trust was ever created; thus, cannot prove the existence of the Trust nor its status as
purported beneficiary of the Policy. In the absence of a valid Trust and designated beneficiary,
the Policy Proceeds are payable to the Petitioner [Estate].....”. (Ex. 12 at 112, Estate’s

Intervenor Complaint).

12
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VII. THE INSURER’S INTERPLEADER ACTION

37. A copy of the Insurer’s Interpleader Action is included in Movant’s Appendix to its
Statement of Undisputed Facts as (EX. 13, Insurer’s Interpleader Action). In its Interpleader
Action, the Insurer alleges that it failed to pay the Bernstein Trust’s death claim because the
claimants could not produce an original or copy of an executed trust agreement, and because the

Insurer received a letter from Eliot setting forth a potentially conflicting claim. (Ex. 13 at 22).

Respectfully submitted,

[s/ Adam Simon

Adam Simon, Esqg.

#6205304

303 East Wacker Drive

Suite 2725

Chicago, Illinois 60601

(312) 819-0730

Attorney for Plaintiffs-Movants

13
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE

INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,
Plaintiff, Case No. 13 cv 3643

Honorable John Robert Blakey

Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

V.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Filers:

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95,
Ted Bernstein, as Trustee and
Individually,

Pamela B. Simon,

David Simon, Adam Simon,
The Simon Law Firm, and STP
Enterprises, Inc. (“Movants”).

Defendant,

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY

Counter-Plaintiff

COUNTERDEFENDANTS AND THIRD
PARTY DEFENDANTS

STATEMENT OF UNDISPUTED
MATERIAL FACTS IN SUPPORT OF
THEIR MOTION FOR

SUMMARY JUDGMENT

V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant
and,

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA,
Successor in interest to LaSalle National

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
) APPENDIX TO PLAINTIFFS’,
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
;
Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST, )
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N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95,
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN

Third-Party Defendants.

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff
V.

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON,
both Professionally and Personally
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P.
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES

Third-Party Defendants.

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

Movants, pursuant to Local Rule 56.1, submit the following appendix to their statement of

uncontested material facts in support of their motion for summary judgment:



Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 240-1 Filed 05/21/16 Page 3 of 3 PagelD 3925

Case: 17-3595  Document: 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018  Pages: 547
EXHIBIT # DESCRIPTION
1 Affidavit of Ted Bernstein
2 Affidavit of Don Sanders
3 Affidavit of Lisa Friedstein
4 Affidavit of Jill lantoni
5 Affidavit of Pam Simon
6 Affidavit of David Simon
7 Deposition of David Simon
8 Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint
9 Eliot Bernstein’s Answer, Counterclaims, Cross-claims, and Third-party
claims
10 Probate Order entered 12/15/15 by Hon. John L. Phillips
11 Probate Order entered 4/08/16 by Hon. John L. Phillips
12 Estate Intervenor Complaint
13 Insurer’s Interpleader Complaint
14 Specimen Life Insurance Policy
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EXHIBIT 1
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,
by Ted S. Bernstein, its Trustee, Ted S.
Bernstein, an individual,

Pamela B. Simon, an individual,

Jill Iantoni, an individual and Lisa S.
Friedstein, an individual.

Case No. 13 cv 3643
Honorable John Robert Blakey
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

Plaintiff,

V.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Defendant,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE )
COMPANY )
)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

Counter-Plaintiff
V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant
and,

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA,
Successor in interest to LaSalle National
Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST, )
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )

AUS-5960583-2
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Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95,
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN

Third-Party Defendants.

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff
\2

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

both Professionally and Personally
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P.
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON, )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
g
Third-Party Defendants. )
)

AFFIDAVIT OF TED BERNSTEIN
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I, Ted Bernstein, being duly sworn under oath, deposes and states as follows:

I am a resident of the City of Boca Raton, County of Palm Beach, State of Florida and am over
the age of 18. If I were called and sworn as a witness in the above-captioned matter I could
competently and voluntarily testify to the facts set forth in this Affidavit based upon my personal
knowledge.

My legal name is Ted Stuart Bernstein. I most often go by the name Ted Bernstein. I am also
known as Ted S. Bernstein. Ihave also been referred to by the nickname “Theo” by friends and
family.

I have been employed in the life insurance industry since 1980. I have been a licensed life
insurance agent in Illinois since at least 1980, and in Florida since 2000.

When I use the term “Affidavit of Don Sanders” I mean that certain affidavit executed by Don
Sanders, Assistant Vice President of Operations for Jackson National Life Insurance Company
on April 8, 2014.

When I use the term “Capitol Bankers”, I mean Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Company.

When I use the term “Consenting Children”, I mean collectively four of the five adult children
of Simon Bernstein, whom are Ted Bernstein, Pamela Simon, Jill Iantoni, and Lisa Friedstein.

When I use the term “Heritage”, I mean Heritage Union Life Insurance Company.

When I use the term “Jackson”, I mean Jackson National Life Insurance Company.

When I use the term “Insurer”, I mean the life insurance company that was the insurer on the
risk for the Policy, which started as Capitol Bankers but changed through succession from time

to time,

When I use the term “Policy”, I mean Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Policy No. 1009208
insuring the life of Simon Bernstein.

When I use the term “Insured”, I mean Simon Bernstein.

When I use the term “Owner”, I mean the owner of the Policy as reflected on the Insurers’
records from time to time.
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. When I use the term “Policy Proceeds”, I mean the amount that was payable by the Insurer
under the Policy upon the death of the insured.

When I use the term “Proceeds on Deposit”, I mean the amount that was actually deposited by
the Insurer with the Registry of the Court pursuant to the Insurers’ Complaint for Interpleader.

When I use the term “Policy Records”, I mean the records of the Insurer relating to the Policy as
produced by the Insurer during the Litigation.

When I use the term “Litigation”, I mean the above-captioned litigation.

When I use the term “VEBA”, [ am referring to the S.B. Lexington Employee Death Benefit
Trust.

I am currently employed as President of Life Insurance Concepts, Inc. (“LIC”), a life insurance
brokerage based in Boca Raton, FL.

I have been employed by LIC (or its predecessor) for the past 15 years, and have been employed
in the life insurance industry for approximately 30 years.

From 2001 to 2012, my father, Simon Bernstein and I worked together at LIC, and shared office
space in Boca Raton, FL.

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95 (“Bernstein Trust™), is an irrevocable
life insurance trust formed in Illinois as further described below. The Bernstein Trust is the
original Plaintiff that first filed this action in the Circuit Court of Cook County. The Insurer then
filed a notice of removal to the Northern District of Illinois. The Bernstein Trust has also been
named as a Counter-defendant to the EB Claims. The Bernstein Trust is represented by counsel,
Adam M. Simon.

Bank of America, N.A. (“Bank of America”), was named a party by virtue of Heritage’s
counterclaim for Interpleader. Bank of America was terminated as a co-Plaintiff on January 13,
2014, and the Insurer voluntarily dismissed Bank of America as a Third-Party Defendant on
February 14, 2014.

Eliot Bernstein (“Eliot”) was named a Party by virtue of Heritage’s counterclaim for
Interpleader, and Eliot filed third-party claims against several Parties described herein making
Eliot a Third-Party Plaintiff as well. Eliot is the third adult child of Simon Bernstein. Eliot is
representing himself, and/or his children, pro se in this matter.
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United Bank of Illinois, was named as a Third-Party Defendant in Heritage’s counterclaim for
Interpleader. United Bank of Illinois has never filed an appearance or answer.

I, Ted Bernstein, as Trustee, of the Bernstein Trust retained Plaintiff’s counsel and initiated the
filing of this Action. I am is also a co-Plaintiff, individually, and has been named as a Third-
Party Defendant to the Eliot’s Claims. I am the eldest of the five adult children of Simon
Bernstein. I am represented by counsel, Adam M. Simon.

First Arlington National Bank was named as a Third-Party Defendant by virtue of Heritage’s
counterclaim for Interpleader. First Arlington National Bank was never served by Heritage, and
instead Heritage served JP Morgan Chase Bank as First Arlington Bank’s alleged successor and
JPMorgan Chase Bank was substituted as a party in place of First Arlington National Bank on
10/16/2013. (See 431 below).

Lisa Sue Friedstein is a co-Plaintiff and has been named as a Third-Party Defendant to the
Eliot’s Claims. Lisa Sue Friedstein is the fifth adult child of Simon Bernstein. Lisa Sue
Friedstein is represented by counsel, Adam M. Simon.

Jill Marla Iantoni is a co-Plaintiff and has been named as a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot’s
Claims. Jill Marla Iantoni is the fourth adult child of Simon Bernstein. Jill Marla Iantoni is
represented by counsel, Adam M. Simon.

Pamela Beth Simon is a co-Plaintiff and has been named as a Third-Party Defendant to the EB
Claims. Pamela Beth Simon is the second adult child of Simon Bernstein. Pamela Beth Simon is
represented by counsel, Adam M. Simon.

Heritage is an Insurer as defined above. Heritage was terminated as a party on 2/18/2014 when
the court granted Heritage’s motion to dismiss itself from the Interpleader litigation after having
deposited the Policy Proceeds with the Registry of the Court.

J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., (“J.P. Morgan”) was named as a Third-Party Defendant by
virtue of Heritage’s counterclaim for Interpleader. In its claim for Interpleader, Heritage named
J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as a successor to First Arlington National Bank (described
above). J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. filed an answer to Heritage’s counterclaim for
Interpleader in which it disclaimed any interest in the Policy Proceeds. J.P. Morgan then filed a
motion for judgment on the pleadings to have itself dismissed from the litigation as party and the
court granted the motion. As a result, J.P. Morgan was terminated as a party on March 12, 2014.
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William Stansbury filed a motion to intervene in this action, but his Motion to Intervene was
denied and he was terminated as a non-party intervenor on January 14, 2014.

Adam M. Simon is counsel for the Bernstein Trust and the Consenting Children as defined
below. Adam M. Simon is not counsel for Eliot Bernstein whom has chosen to represent himself
Pro Se in this matter. Adam M. Simon was named a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot’s Claims,
and represents himself with regard to Eliot’s claims. Adam M. Simon is the brother-in-law of
Pamela Beth Simon, and the brother of David B. Simon.

National Service Association, Inc. (of Illinois) was a corporation owned by the decedent, Simon
Bernstein and was named a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot’s Claims. According to the public
records of the Secretary of State of Illinois, National Service Association, Inc. (of Illinois) was
dissolved in October of 2006. (See Ex. 21)

Donald R. Tescher, Esq. was named a Third-Party Defendant by virtue of the EB Claims.
Donald R. Tescher is a partner of in the firm of Tescher & Spallina, P.A. Donald R. Tescher was
terminated as a party to this matter when the court granted his motion to dismiss as to Eliot’s
Claims on March 17, 2014.

Tescher and Spallina, P.A. is a law firm whose principal offices are in Palm Beach County, FL.
Tescher and Spallina, P.A. was named a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot’s Claims. Tescher &
Spallina, P.A. Donald R. Tescher was terminated as a party to this matter when the court granted
his motion to dismiss as to the Eliot’s Claims on March 17, 2014.

The Simon Law Firm was named a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot’s Claims. The Simon Law
Firm is being represented by counsel, Adam M. Simon.

David B. Simon is the husband of Pamela Beth Simon, and the brother of counsel, Adam M.
Simon and was named a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot’s Claims. David B. Simon is being
represented by counsel, Adam M. Simon.

S.B. Lexington, Inc. was a corporation formed by Simon Bernstein. According to the records of

the Secretary of State of Illinois, S.B. Lexington, Inc. was voluntarily dissolved on April 3, 1998.
(See Ex. 9).
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S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust (the “VEBA Trust”) was named a Third-
Party Defendant to Eliot’s Claims, and was a Trust formed by Simon Bernstein in his role as
principal of S.B. Lexington, Inc. The VEBA Trust was formed pursuant to L.R.S. Code Sec.
501(c)(9) as a qualified Employee Benefit Plan designed to provide a death benefit to certain key
employees of S.B. Lexington, Inc. The VEBA was dissolved in 1998 upon dissolution of S.B.
Lexington, Inc.

Robert Spallina, Esq. was named a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot’s Claims. Robert Spallina is
a partner of in the firm of Tescher & Spallina, P.A. Robert Spallina was terminated as a party to
this matter when the court granted his motion to dismiss as to Eliot’s Claims on March 17, 2014.

National Service Association, Inc. (Florida) was named a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot’s
Claims. According to the records of the Secretary of State of Florida, National Service
Association, Inc. (Florida) was a Florida corporation and was dissolved in 2012. (See Ex. 22)

Benjamin Brown as Curator of The Estate of Simon Bernstein filed a motion to intervene in this
litigation. The court granted the motion to intervene on July 28, 2014, and as a result the Estate
became a third-party claimant in the litigation.

Subsequently, Brian O’Connell as successor Curator and Administrator Ad Litem of the Estate
of Simon Bernstein filed a motion to substitute for Benjamin Brown, and the court granted the
motion November 3, 2014.

According to the Policy Records, the Policy was issued by Capitol Bankers in 1982. I have
reviewed and made myself familiar with the Policy Records which start with bates no.
JCKO000001 and end at bates no. JCK001324,

[ have also reviewed and made myself familiar with Plaintiff’s document production made
pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 26. A true, accurate and complete set of copies of those documents
were served upon the other parties to this Litigation and were stamped with bates no. BT000001-
BT000112.

Following the death of Simon Bernstein, I participated in and conducted diligent searches of

Simon Bernstein’s home, office and condominium all located in Palm Beach County, Florida.
All of the records I located pertaining to the Policy and/or Bernstein Trust were turned over to
Simon Bernstein’s attorneys, whose names are Robert Spallina and Donald Tescher.

I am aware that the documents produced by Plaintiffs in this matter also contain documents
located by David Simon and Pamela Simon in their offices in Chicago, Illinois.
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As of the date of this Affidavit, no documents that I am aware of have been located and/or
produced in this Litigation by any Party that appear to be the original Policy contract.

As of the date of this Affidavit, no documents that I am aware of have been produced in this
Litigation by any Party that appear to be executed originals or executed copies of:

(a) the “S.B. Lexington Employee Death Benefit Trust”; or
(b) the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust dated June 21, 1995, or
(c) any purported trust named the “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.”.

From my review of the records, on the date of issuance the sum insured (or death benefit) of the
Policy was $2 million. (See Ex. 5 at Schedule Page, bates no. JCK001021).

The Insurer produced a document that is titled “Financial Activity from Issue” and references
the Policy number. (See Ex. 1.)

The financial activity report produced by Insurer indicates that the amount of the Policy
Proceeds at the time of the Insured’s death was $1,689,070.00. (See Ex. 1, at bates no.
JCK0010201).

Plaintiffs have submitted a copy of the receipt from the Registry of the Court for the Northern
District of Illinois (the “Registry””) which reflects a deposit of the Policy Proceeds, a total of
$1,703,567.09 deposited by the Insurer on June 26, 2013. (See Ex. 2).

According to the receipt, this deposit represented the Policy Proceeds of $1,689,070.00, less a
deduction for a policy loan, plus interest paid from the date of Simon Bernstein’s death until the
date of deposit with the Registry. I concur with the calculation of the Policy Proceeds and that
the amount reflected on the receipt evidences the Insurers payment of the Policy proceeds
pursuant to its Interpleader Action. (See Ex. 2)

According to the Part I of the application for the Policy, the Policy Owner at issuance was “First
Arlington National Bank, Trustee of S.B. Lexington Employee Death Benefit Trust”.
(See Ex. 3)

According to Part I of the application, the beneficiary at issuance was designated as follows:
“First Arlington National Bank, Trustee of S.B. Lexington Employee Death Benefit Trust”.
(See Ex. 3)

According to Part I of the application, Simon Bernstein’s employer at the time of issuance was
S.B. Lexington, Inc. and his title was listed as Chairman of the Board. (See Ex. 3)
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During the application process, the Insurer conducted a routine underwriting investigation of
Simon Bernstein prior to approving his policy. Part of that investigation was conducted by a
company called Equifax, which is a company widely used in the insurance industry for
underwriting investigations. In the Equifax report, the purpose of the insurance being provided
by the Policy was stated as follows: “The beneficiary of this policy is the First Arlington
National Bank, trustee of the S.B. Lexington, Inc. employee death benefit trust. The insurance
will be paid to the trust, and the trust will determine the manner in which the benefits are to be
paid and to whom it will be paid. Normally, benefits are paid to family members.” (See Ex. 20)

In 1982, the year the Policy was issued, I shared office space with Simon Bernstein in Chicago,
IL and can confirm that at that time, Simon Bernstein was employed by S.B. Lexington, Inc.,
which was a life insurance brokerage located in Chicago, IL.

In the early 1980’s, while I was sharing office space with Simon Bernstein and S.B. Lexington,
Inc., I was a licensed insurance agent and participated in the marketing of qualified employee
benefit plans for closely held corporations. The plans were qualified as Voluntary Employee
Benefit Associations under IL.R.S. Code Sec. 501(c)(9). The S.B. Lexington VEBA was designed
to insure the lives of S.B. Lexington employees and the ultimate beneficiaries of the death
benefit was each insured employee’s designated beneficiary.

Simon Bernstein whom was also a licensed insurance agent also marketed the VEBA Plans on
behalf of S.B. Lexington, Inc.

In my experience as an insurance agent, and more specifically in my experience with the sales
of life insurance policies issued through a Voluntary Employee Benefit Association, the original
of the life insurance policy would be delivered by the insurer to the insurance agent whom would
then deliver it to the policy to the owner of the policy as listed on the application. On the
application, the initial owner was listed as First Arlington National Bank as Trustee for the S.B.
Lexington Employee Death Benefit Trust.

In late 1982, First Arlington National Bank was located in Arlington Heights, Illinois. First
Arlington National Bank was the Trustee of the VEBA and was thus acting on behalf of the
VEBA as Owner of the Policy. In my experience the insurer would have delivered the original
Policy to the agent whom would then deliver the Policy to the original Owner. The agent whom
signed the application for the Policy was my father Simon Bernstein whose offices were located
in Chicago, Illinois. The delivery of the Policy to the Owner would have occurred in Arlington
Heights, Illinois.
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65. A document produced by Plaintiffs is a copy of a form entitled S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee
Death Benefit Plan and Trust Beneficiary Designation for plan member, Simon Bernstein (the
“VEBA Beneficiary Designation™). (See Ex. 4)

66. Having worked for my father and with my father for many years, I have seen his signature on a
multitude of occasions and am very familiar with it. I recognize the two signatures on Ex. 4 as
the signatures of my father, Simon Bernstein.

67. The VEBA Beneficiary Designation form is dated “8-26-95”, and in it Simon Bernstein
designates the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust” as his beneficiary to receive the
death benefit under the VEBA. (See Ex. 4)

68. A document bearing bates no. JCK1098-JCK 1117 produced by the Insurer is a specimen policy
form for the Policy. On page JCK001099, the specimen policy includes the product name
“CURRENT VALUE LIFE”. A document produced by the Insurer bearing bates no.
JCK001021 is a copy of the Schedule Page that was included with the Policy. The Schedule
Page indicates the Policy was a “Current Value Life” plan issued on December 27, 1982,
insuring the life of Simon Bernstein with a “sum insured” of $2 million. (See Ex. 5).

69. A document produced by the Insurer bearing bates no. JCK001023 through JCK001024 is a
copy of a Current Value Life, Statement of Policy Cost and Benefit Information which is an
illustration of projected values and benefits of the Policy. This Statement of Policy Cost and
Benefit Information indicates on its face that it was produced on the issue date of the Policy,
December 27, 1982. (See Ex. 6).

70. On or about June 5, 1992, a letter was submitted on behalf of the Policy Owner informing the
Insurer that LaSalle National Trust was being appointed as successor trustee. On June 17, 1992,
the Insurer acknowledged the change of ownership and designated the Policy Owner on its
records as LaSalle National Trust, N.A., as Successor Trustee. (See Ex. 7).

71. The Policy records indicate that on or about November 27, 1995, Capitol Bankers received a
“Request Letter” signed by LaSalle National Trust, N.A. in their capacity as Trustee, as Policy
Owner, and the Request Letter contained the following requested changes to the Policy:

(a) LaSalle National Trust, N.A. as Trustee was designated as the primary beneficiary of
the Policy; and

(b) The Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated June 21, 1995 was
designated as the contingent beneficiary. (See Ex. 8)
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Though the name of the Trust on the Request Letter was set forth as stated in Par. 69(b) above,
it was apparently abbreviated upon input into the Insurer’s systems as Simon Bernstein Ins. Trust
Dated 6/21/95. (See Ex. 8)

On November 27, 1995, Capitol Bankers sent correspondence to LaSalle National Trust N.A.,
as Successor Trustee acknowledging the changes in beneficiaries. (See Ex. 8)

On April 3, 1998, S.B. Lexington was voluntarily dissolved. (See Ex. 9)

Upon the dissolution of S.B. Lexington, Inc., the VEBA was also dissolved and the ownership
of the Policy was changed in April of 1998. According to the Policy Records and the Aff. of
Don Sanders, in April of 1998, LaSalle National Trust, as successor Trustee submitted a change
of owner which designated Simon Bernstein as the Owner of the Policy. (See Aff. of Don
Sanders at €61 and Ex. 10)

After reviewing the Policy Records, and the Affidavit of Don Sanders, I concur with Don
Sanders that on the date of death of Simon Bernstein, the Owner of the Policy was Simon
Bernstein, the primary beneficiary was designated as LaSalle National Trust, N.A. as Successor
Trustee, and the Contingent Beneficiary was designated as Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust dated June 21, 1995. (See Ex. 8 and Aff. of Don Sanders, 956)

According to the Insurer’s pleading of its Interpleader Action, following the death of Simon
Bernstein, the Insurer received conflicting claims to the death benefit proceeds. The Insurer
received claims on behalf of the Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust dated June 21,
1995 and a conflicting claim in the form of a letter from Eliot Bernstein. (See Ex. 25 at p. 3)

Eliot Bernstein’s wife is named Candice Bernstein, and they have three children named Joshua
Bernstein, Jacob Bernstein, and Daniel Bernstein.

According to the Policy Records and Aff. of Don Sanders, no one named Eliot Bernstein was
ever designated as a primary or contingent beneficiary of the Policy. (Aff. of Don Sanders at

965)

According to the Policy Records and Aff. of Don Sanders, no one named Joshua Bernstein was
ever designated as a primary or contingent beneficiary of the Policy. (Aff. of Don Sanders at

T66)
According to the Policy Records and Aff. of Don Sanders, no one named Jacob Bernstein was

ever designated as a primary or contingent beneficiary of the Policy.
(Aff. of Don Sanders at §67)
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According to the Policy Records and Aff. of Don Sanders, no one named Daniel Bernstein was
ever designated as a primary or contingent beneficiary of the Policy. (Aff. of Don Sanders at

Y68)

According to the Policy Records and Aff. of Don Sanders, no Owner of the Policy ever
submitted a beneficiary designation which designated Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A. as a
beneficiary of the Policy. (Aff. of Don Sanders at §69).

According to the Policy Records, no Owner of the Policy ever submitted a beneficiary

designation which designated “Simon Bernstein’s estate”, “the Estate of Simon Bernstein” or
“the Estate” as beneficiary.

The last beneficiary designation submitted by the Policy Owner and acknowledged by the
Insurer prior to the death of the Insured is Bates No. JCK000370. The primary beneficiary
designation is “LaSalle National Trust, N.A., Trustee”, and the contingent beneficiary is “Simon
Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust dated June 21, 1995”. (See Aff. of Don Sanders at 472
and Ex. 8 all 4 pages).

According to the Policy Records, the last change of Owner submitted on the Policy prior to the
death of the insured was on or about April 3, 1998. (See Aff. of Don Sanders and Ex. 11).

According to the Policy Records and the Aff. of Don Sanders, the Insurer received no notices of
claims from any of the following individuals or entities:

a) The VEBA;

b) Any of the Bank Trustees of the VEBA;
¢) Adam Simon;

d) David Simon,;

e) The Simon Law Firm ; or

f) STP Enterprises, Inc.

(See Aff. of Don Sanders at §77).

In 1995, I was sharing office space with Simon Bernstein in Chicago, IL. My sister, Pam
Simon, and brother-in-law, David Simon also shared office space with us. In the summer of
1995, Simon Bernstein discussed with me that he was forming a life insurance trust for the
Policy, and that I would be named one of the trustees for the life insurance trust. He also
indicated that my mother, Shirley Bernstein would be named the initial trustee.
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Prior to Shirley Bernstein’s passing on December 8, 2010, I had never been asked to exercise
any powers on behalf of the Bernstein Trust as Trustee, and I believed that Shirley Bernstein was
then acting as Trustee.

My father, Simon Bernstein, passed away less than two years after my mother, and during that
time prior to Simon Bernstein’s passing, I was not asked or required to exercise any powers as
Trustee of the Bernstein Trust.

A copy of the Death Certificate of Simon Bernstein is attached hereto. (See Ex. 12).
In 2011, the Policy lapsed due to a missed premium payment.

In 2011, I assisted my father with completing the necessary paperwork and underwriting
required by the Insurer to reinstate the Policy. (See Ex. 13).

Approximately one year before his death, my father took the necessary administrative steps and
paid the required premium, and the Policy was reinstated by the Insurer. (See Ex. 14).

During the reinstatement process in 2011, my father reinstated the Policy without making any
changes to the Owner and Beneficiary of the Policy.

On or about July 25, 2012, my father executed his last Will which has been filed and is being
administered in Probate Court in Palm Beach County, Florida. A true and accurate copy of the
Will as filed with the Clerk of the Court in Palm Beach County is included in Movant’s
Appendix to its Statement of Undisputed Facts. In his Will at 49, Simon Bernstein expressly
reaffirmed his beneficiary designations made under any insurance contract. (See Ex. 24 at §9).

Following the death of my father, my sister, Pamela Simon, and brother-in-law, David Simon
conducted searches of their office files and records, and David Simon located two unexecuted
drafts of the Bernstein Trust in their offices. One of the unexecuted drafts was found on David
Simon’s computer database which dates back to 1990’s when David Simon, Pamela Simon, and
Simon Bernstein shared office space in Chicago, Illinois. Ex. 15 includes a printout of metadata
from the computer file for this draft of the Bernstein Trust indicating it was last modified on June
21, 1995. (See Ex. 15 and Aff. of D. Simon),

A second draft of the Bernstein Trust was located as a hard copy inside a file folder within the
stored files of David Simon. (See Ex. 16 and Aff. of D. Simon).
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99. According to the drafts of the Bernstein Trust, and the facts surrounding the execution of
the Bernstein Trust by Simon Bernstein, as told to me by David Simon, I was appointed as
successor trustee of the Bernstein Trust. (See Ex. 15, and Ex. 16, and Aff. of D. Simon.)

100. I am willing and competent and have been acting as Trustee of the Bernstein Trust in
accordance with the intent of the Grantor, Simon Bernstein and with the authorization and
consent of the Consenting Children.

101. Both drafts of the Bernstein Trust at Article Seven have virtually identical provisions
regarding the distribution of the Policy Proceeds upon the death of Simon Bernstein. Both drafts
of the Bernstein Trust provide as follows: “Upon my death, the Trustee shall divide the property
of the Trust into as many separate Trusts as there are children of mine who survive me and
children of mine who predecease me leaving descendants who survive me. These trusts shall be
designated respectively by the names of my children.” One of the drafts goes on to identify the
five children by name. (See Ex. 15 and Ex. 16 at Article Seven)

102. Simon Bernstein had five children, and all of them survived him. The five adult
children of Simon Bernstein are Ted Bernstein, Pamela Simon, Eliot Bernstein, Jill Iantoni and
Lisa Friedstein.

103. The Five Children had a total of ten children, and as a result Simon Bernstein had ten
grandchildren whose names, year of birth, and parent are as follows:

D.O.B. PARENT

i) Alexandra Bernstein 1988 Ted

ii) Eric Bernstein 1989 Ted

iii) Molly Simon 1990 Pam

iv) Michael Bernstein 1992 Ted

V) Max Friedstein 1996 Lisa

vi) Joshua Bernstein 1997 Eliot

vii)  Carly Friedstein 1998 Lisa

viii)  Jacob Bernstein 1999 Eliot

ix) Julia Iantoni 2001 Jill

X) Daniel Bernstein 2002 Eliot

104. In the draft of the Bernstein Trust attached hereto as Ex. 15, at Article Eight, the Five

Children are each identified by name. None of the ten grandchildren’s names appear in the
document.
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105. I have attached a diagram that illustrates Simon Bernstein’s intention and plan to ensure
that the Policy Proceeds were ultimately for the benefit of the Bernstein Trust. The diagram (Ex.
17) illustrates that in Option A had the Primary Beneficiary continued to exist at the time of
Simon Bernstein’s death, then by virtue of the VEBA Beneficiary Designation Simon Bernstein
executed which named the Bernstein Trust as beneficiary of the VEBA Trust (Ex. 4), the Policy
proceeds would have been paid from the Insurer to the VEBA Trust and distributed by the
VEBA Trustee to the Bernstein Trust. (See Ex. 17)

106. In this case, as explained in §71 and 472 above, the VEBA ceased to exist in 1998, long
before Simon Bernstein passed away. As a result there was no primary beneficiary in existence
at the time the Insured’s death. At the time of Simon Bernstein’s death, the contingent
beneficiary of the Policy was the Bernstein Trust. By naming the Bernstein Trust as Contingent
Beneficiary, Simon Bernstein ensured that the Policy Proceeds would be paid to the Bernstein
Trust whether or not the VEBA continued to exist. (See Option B on Ex. 17).

107. In addition to records relating to the Policy at issue, my sister Pamela Simon, located
records relating to another life insurance policy issued by Lincoln Benefit Life on the life of
Simon Bernstein in 1994 (the “Lincoln Policy”). This Policy was purchased through a life
insurance brokerage known as STP Enterprises, Inc. which in the 1990°s was co-owned by
Simon Bernstein, Pamela Simon and David Simon.

108. This second policy was issued by Lincoln Benefit Life as policy no. U0204204 in June of
1994 with Simon Bernstein as the initial owner and insured (the “Lincoln Policy”). In August of
1995, the ownership of the Lincoln Policy was changed by Simon Bernstein to the Bernstein
Trust. The Lincoln Benefit Life policy lapsed several years prior to Simon Bernstein’s death.
The transfer of ownership form contained the name of the Bernstein Trust and its tax
identification number, identified Shirley Bernstein as trustee, and also contains the witnessed
signature of Simon Bernstein. The Lincoln Policy lapsed in 2006 for non-payment of premium
approximately six years prior to my father’s passing.

109. The Consenting Children are all in agreement regarding the following facts, and the
intent of our father, Simon Bernstein, with regard to the Policy and Policy proceeds:

a) At the time of Simon Bernstein’s death, Simon Bernstein was the owner of the Policy;

b) In June of 1995, Simon Bernstein formed the Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance
Trust Dated June 21, 1995;
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c) In November of 1995, the VEBA as Owner submitted a Request to the Insurer
designating the VEBA as primary beneficiary, and the Bernstein Trust as second or
contingent beneficiary.

d) In 1998: (i) S.B. Lexington, Inc. was voluntarily dissolved; (ii) the VEBA was
terminated and (iii) the VEBA as Owner submitted a change of Owner to the Insurer
designating Simon Bernstein as Owner of the Policy.

¢) On the date of Simon Bernstein’s death, Simon Bernstein was the Owner of the Policy
and the sole surviving beneficiary of the Policy was the contingent beneficiary, the
Bernstein Trust;

f) Following the death of my mother, Shirley Bernstein, and according to the drafts of
the Bernstein Trust and the intent of Simon Bernstein, Ted Bernstein was appointed to act
as successor Trustee;

g) Each of the Consenting Children have signified their consent to a court appointment
affirming Ted Bernstein’s role as Trustee.

h) The beneficiary of the Policy Proceeds is the Bernstein Trust;

i) The beneficiaries of the Bernstein Trust are the five adult children--Ted, Pam, Eliot,
Jill and Lisa--to share equally, twenty percent each;

1) The sole asset of the Bernstein Trust is the Policy Proceeds, and the distribution of
such proceeds to the five children of Simon Bernstein and any administrative matters
related to the termination of the Trust are the only remaining acts required of the Trustee;

k) The four consenting children of Simon Bernstein agree that upon entry of a judgment
in favor of the Plaintiffs declaring that the Bernstein Trust is beneficiary of the Policy
Proceeds, counsel for Bernstein Trust, Adam M. Simon, shall be authorized to present the
judgment to the Registry and have the Registry distribute the Policy Proceeds in a check
payable as follows:

“The Simon Law Firm Client Trust f/b/o Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust
Dated June 21, 1995;

1) The Policy Proceeds shall then be deposited to The Simon Law Firm Client Trust
Account and shall be disbursed as follows:

i) First to the payment of attorney Adam M. Simon’s fees and costs;

ii) Retention of $5,000.00 in the Simon Law Client Trust Account for the
benefit of the Bernstein Trust in order to pay for any professional
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expenses, i.e. accounting or legal, related to the final distribution of the
Trust Assets and termination of trust. Any remaining balance after
payment of such expenses shall be distributed to the five adult children
in equal shares;

iii) The balance to be split equally among the five adult children of Simon
Bernstein;

iv) Each Beneficiary that receives a share of the Policy proceeds shall
execute and deliver to the Trustee (or Adam M. Simon) a receipt for
such payment received; and

v) Along with the distributions, the Trustee shall provide each beneficiary
with a final accounting of the distributions made from the Policy
Proceeds.

110. Plaintiffs, the Bernstein Trust, Ted Bernstein as Trustee and the Consenting Children
submit the following evidence of the existence and terms of the trust:

a) The SS-4 Form containing the name of the Bernstein Trust, the tax identification
number of the Bernstein Trust, and the signature of the initial trustee, Shirley Bernstein.
(See Ex. 19);

b) The VEBA Beneficiary designation form containing the name of the Bernstein Trust
and the signature of the grantor, Simon Bernstein. (See Ex. 4);

¢) The Policy beneficiary designation form designating the Bernstein Trust as the
contingent beneficiary. (See Ex. 8);

d) A copy of two unexecuted drafts of the Bernstein Trust Agreement (See Ex. 15 and
Ex. 16).

¢) My Affidavit and the Affidavits of David Simon, and each of the four consenting
children.

f) The Affidavit provided by the Insurer, of Don Sanders, also references Policy records
that confirm the designation of the Bernstein Trust as contingent beneficiary of the
Policy.
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g) The Lincoln Benefit Life change of ownership form for the second policy transferring
the ownership of the Lincoln Benefit Life policy from Simon Bernstein to the Bernstein
Trust. This form contains the name of the Bernstein Trust, identifies Shirley Bernstein as
Trustee, and has a witnessed signature of Simon Bernstein. (See Ex. 18).

h) The Equifax investigation report from 1982 which indicates that at the time of
issuance the benefits of the insurance policy would be paid to the VEBA, and then as
stated in the inspection report, “normally those benefits are paid to family members.”
(See Ex. 20).

111. Plaintiffs submit the following evidence of the terms of the Bernstein Trust, including its
designated beneficiaries and trustees:

a) The two unexecuted copies (one of which contains contemporaneous handwritten
notes) of the Bernstein Trust Agreement;

b) The Lincoln Benefit Life change of ownership form for the second policy
transferring the ownership of the Lincoln Benefit Life policy from Simon Bernstein to the
Bernstein Trust. This form contains the name of the Bernstein Trust, identifies Shirley
Bernstein as Trustee, and has a witnessed signature of Simon Bernstein. (See Ex. 18).

c) The SS-4 Form containing the name of the Bernstein Trust, the tax identification
number of the Bernstein Trust, and identifying the initial trustee, Shirley Bernstein. (See
Ex. 19);

d) Declarations or Affidavits of Ted Bernstein, David Simon, Pam Simon, Jill
Iantoni, and Lisa Friedstein.

e) The Equifax investigation report from 1982 which indicates that at the time of
issuance the benefits of the insurance policy would be paid to the VEBA, and then as
stated in the inspection report of Simon Bernstein, “normally those benefits are paid to
family members.” (See Ex. 20).
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112. I agree to waive and do not claim any compensation for acting as Trustee of the Bernstein
Trust, but I do reserve the right to claim reimbursement for anly costs [ incur such as legal, or
accounting fees in connection with the final distribution.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

¥
Dated: Februar ¢7 , 2015 )

T’%j/ﬁemstein :

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,

by Ted S. Bernstein, its Trustee, Ted S.
Bernstein, an individual,

Pamela B. Simon, an individual,

Jill Tantoni, an individual and Lisa S.
Friedstein, an individual.

Plaintiff,

V.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Defendant,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
%
HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE )
COMPANY )
)

)

)

)

Counter-Plaintiff )

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

e)

)

)

)

V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN JRREVOCABLE
TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant
and,

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employe
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA,
Successor in interest to LaSalle National

AUS-5961160-1

Case No. 13 cv 3643
Honorable Amy J. St. Eve
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland
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Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST, )
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95,

and ELIOT BERNSTEIN

Third-Party Defendants.

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff
2

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

both Professionally and Personally
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A,,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P.
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES '

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON, )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
%
Third-Party Defendants. )
)

AFFIDAVIT OF DON SANDERS
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10.

11.

12,

13.

14,

I, Don Sanders, am a resident of the City of Mansfield, County of Tarrant, State of Texas
and am over the age of 18. If I were called and sworn as a witness in this matter I could
competently and voluntarily testify to the facts set forth in this Affidavit.

When I use the term Capitol Bankers, I mean Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Company.
When I use the term “Heritage”, I mean Heritage Union Life Insurance Company.
When I use the texrm “Jackson” I mean Jackson National Life Insurance Company.

When I use the term “Insures”, I mean the life insurance company that was the insurer of
the risk for the Policy, which started as Capitol Bankers but changed through succession
from time to time.

When I use the term “Policy” herein, I mean Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Policy No.
1009208 insuring the life of Simon Bernstein.

When I use the term “Insured”, I mean Simon Bernstein.

When I use the term “Owner”, I mean the owner of the Policy as reflected on the
Insurers’ records from time to time.

When I use the term “Policy Proceeds”, I mean either the amount that was payable by the
Insurer under the Policy upon the death of the insured and/or the amount that was
actually paid by the Insurer to the Registry of the Court pursuant to the Insurers’
Complaint for Interpleader.

When I use the term “Policy records”, I mean the records of the Insurer relating to the
Policy as produced by Jackson during the Litigation.

When I use the term “Litigation”, I mean the above-captioned litigation.

When I use the term “VEBA”, I am referring to the S.B. Lexington Employee Death
Benefit Trust.

I am currently employed as Assistant Vice-President of Operations for Jackson.

T have been employed in Jackson’s operations department for the past 11 years, and have
been employed in the life insurance industry for approximately 32 years.
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15. In my role as Assistant Vice President of Operations with Jackson, I have personal
knowledge regarding the policy administration and death claim practices and procedures
Jackson utilizes with regard to the Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Policy at issue.

16. I am aware that I am being presented as a witness pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 30(b)(6), on
behalf of Jackson in response to a Subpoena for Deposition served upon Jackson by the
Plaintiffs in the above-captioned matter.

17. T am aware that pursuant to Rule 30(b)(6) my statements and this Affidavit shall be relied
upon as the statements of Jackson, itself.

18. T have had access to counsel for Jackson with regard to my testimony and affidavit prior
to having signed this Affidavit.

19. I understand that since Heritage paid the Policy Proceeds to the Registry of the Couut,
Heritage has been dismissed and is no longer a party to the Litigation.

20. I have no personal or business interest in the outcome of the Litigation including no
interest in the determination by the court of the beneficiary(ies) of the Policy Proceeds.

21. No one from Jackson has any interest in the outcome of this Litigation including
determination by the court of the beneficiary(ies) of the Policy Proceeds.

22. T have received no compensation from any party to the Litigation in exchange for my
testimony.

23. The Policy was issued by Capitol Bankers in 1982.
24. In June 1998, Capitol Bankers was acquired by Swiss Re Life & Health America, Inc.

25. In May of 2000, Capitol Bankers entered into a one hundred percent
Coinsurance/Administrative Reinsurance Agreement with Reassure America Life

Insurance Company.

26. In May 2000, one hundred percent of stock of the Capitol Bankers was sold to Annuity &
Life Reassurance.

27. In December of 2000, Capitol Bankers changed its name to Annuity & Life Reassurance
America, Inc.
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28.

29.

30.

3L

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

In August 2005, Annuity & Life Reassurance America, Inc. was acquired by Wilton Re
Group.

In August 2008, Annuity & Life Reassurance America, Inc. changed its name to
Heritage Union Lifc Insurance Company.

In 2012, Jackson acquired and merged Reassure America Life Insurance Company into
Jackson, and as a result, Jackson became administrator and reinsurer of the Policy.

Since at least 2000, Jackson (and/or its predecessor Reassure America Life Insurance
Company) has been in possession of the Policy records.

I have personal knowledge regarding the record-keeping procedures and practices utilized
by Jackson with regard to its administration of the Policy and others like it.

I have reviewed and made myself familiar with the Policy records.

The Policy records start with bates no. JCK000001 and end at bates no. JCK001275. I
have reviewed these bate-stamped records, and can attest that the bate-stamped records
are a true, accurate and complete set of the Policy records in Jackson’s possession
pertaining to the Policy.

The Policy records do not contain an original or executed duplicate of the Policy, which
was issued in 1982.

The Policy records do include a specimen policy form, a copy of the Insured’s
application, and copies of the schedule pages that were included with the original Policy.

Also, the Policy records do not include:

(a) an original or copy of the “S.B. Lexington Employee Death Benefit Trust”; or
(b) the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust dated June 21, 1995”, or
(¢) any purported trust named the “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.”.

Bates no. JCK001099 to JCK001117 is a Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Company
specimen policy form of the Capitol Bankers whole life insurance product referred to as
“Current Value Life”. This specimen policy is a sample of the policy form issued on the
life of Simon Bernstein as Policy No. 1009208 (the “Policy”).

This specimen policy form contains the same policy language that is contained in Policy
No. 1009208. The only pages that are different are pages that relate to the variable policy
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40.

41.

42,

43,

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

specifications that pertain primarily to Simon Bernstein’s age, underwriting
classification, sum insured and statement of policy costs and benefits.

From my review of the records, on the date of issuance the sum insured (or death benefit)
of the Policy was $2 million.

The Policy is a whole life, flexible premium, life insurance contract, which is a type of
policy that builds cash value as premium payments are made.

The Insurer will deduct the monthly cost of insurance charges from any existing cash
value in the Policy, but when the cash value is insufficient to cover the cost of insurance,
then the Policy will go into a grace period and eventually lapse if no premium payment is
made. A brief summary description of these features of the Policy are contained in a
letter from the Insurer dated November 9, 2010, to the Owner. (Bates No. JCK000131).

If premium payments are not made according to schedule, or Policy loans are taken
against the cash value, this reduces the cash value which negatively impacts the Policy’s
performance and eventually results in a reduction in the Policy proceeds.

The Policy records indicate that premiums were not made according to schedule, and
Policy loans occurred with regard to the Policy such that at the time of the Insured’s
death, the net death benefit payable by the Insurer was $1,689.070.00 (the “Policy
Proceeds™).

Bate stamp no. JCK001252-JCK001258 is a financial history report that is titled
“Financial Activity from Issue.”

On page JCK001258, the financial history report indicates that the amount of the Policy
Proceeds at the time of the Insured’s death was $1,689.070.00.

I have reviewed the receipt from the Registry of the Court for the Northern District of
Ilinois (the “Registry™), and according to the receipt the Policy Proceeds, a total of
$1,703,567.09, was deposited by the Insurer to the Registry on June 26, 2013. This
deposit represented the Policy Proceeds of $1,689,070.00, less a deduction for a policy
loan, plus interest paid from the date of Simon Bernstein’s death until the date of deposit
with the Registry. (Bates No. BT000106)

Part I of the Policy application is contained in the Policy records as Bates No.
JCKO000419. The owner and beneficiary sections of Part [ set forth the initial policy
owner and beneficiary(ies) of the Policy.
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49. According to Part I of the application, the Policy Owner at issuance was “First Arlington
National Bank, Trustee of S.B. Lexington Employee Death Benefit Trust”.

50. Also according to Part I of the application, the beneficiary was designated as follows:
“First Arlington National Bank, Trustee of S.B. Lexington Employee Death Benefit
Trust”.

51. According to Part I of the application, Simon Bernstein’s employer at the time of
issuance was S.B. Lexington, Inc. and his title was listed as Chairman of the Board.
(JCKO000419).

52. Bates no. JCK001021 is a copy of the Schedule Page that was included with the Policy.
The Schedule Page indicates the Policy No. 1009208 was a “Current Value Life” plan
issued on December 27, 1982, insuring the life of Simon Bernstein with a “sum insured”
of $2 million.

53. Bates no. JCK001023 through JCK001024 is a copy of a Current Value Life, Statement
of Policy Cost and Benefit Information which is an illustration of projected values and
benefits of the Policy. This Statement of Policy Cost and Benefit Information indicates
on its face that it was produced on the issue date of the Policy, December 27, 1982.

54. On or about November 7, 1989 the Insurer acknowledged a change of ownership
designating United Bank of Illinois as trustee. (JCK000811). This first change of trustee
likely occurred as early as July 6, 1983, because the Insurer received and recorded a
Request Letter making this same change in trustee. (JCK000935)

55. On or about June 5, 1992, a letter submitted on behalf of the Policy Owner informing the
Insurer that LaSalle National Trust was being appointed as successor trustee. On June
17, 1992, the Insurer acknowledged the change of ownership and designated the Policy
Owner on its records as LaSalle National Trust, N.A., as Successor Trustee. (Bates No.
JCK000365).

56. On or about November 27, 1995, Capitol Bankers received a “Request Letter” signed by
LaSalle National Trust, N.A. in their capacity as Trustee, as Policy Owner, and the
Request Letter contained the following requested changes to the Policy:

(a) LaSalle National Trust, N.A. as Trustee was designated as the primary beneficiary of
the Policy; and

(b) The Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated June 21, 1995 was
designated as the contingent beneficiary. '
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-57. Though the name of the Trust on the Request Letter was set forth as stated in Par. 30(b)
above, it was apparently abbreviated upon input into the Insurer’s systems as Simon
Bernstein Ins. Trust Dated 6/21/95. (Bates No.JCK 000370, JCK000372, JCK000514,
JCK000554, 599, 601).

58. As a matter of standard policy and procedures at Jackson and as set forth in the Policy
itself, the designation of the Owner and Beneficiary is governed by the Request Letter or
Direction of the Owner and not by how the name of the owner or beneficiary is input by
employees into the Insurer’s systems as part of policy administration.

59. In my experience in operations, Insurers” systems require employees to abbreviate names
of owners and/or beneficiaries at times when the names contain too many characters for
the Insurer’s systems capabilities.

60. On November 27, 1995 Capitol Bankers sent correspondence to LaSalle National Trust
N.A., as Successor Trustee acknowledging the changes in beneficiaries as referenced in
Par, 56 above.

61. In April of 1998, LaSalle National Trust, as successor Trustee submitted a change of
owner which designated Simon Bernstein as the Owner of the Policy. (Bates No.
JCK000560).

62. After reviewing Jackson’s records on the Policy, I can confirm on behalf of Jackson that
on the date of death of Simon Bernstein, the Owner of the Policy was Simon Bernstein,
the primary beneficiary was designated as LaSalle National Trust, N.A. as Successor
Trustee, and the Contingent Beneficiary was designated as Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust dated June 21, 1995. (Bates No. JCK000370).

63. Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Company acknowledged receipt of the “executed
beneficiary change” in its correspondence to the Owner of the Policy dated November 27,
1995, (JCK000372).

64. According to Jackson’s records, following the death of Simon Bernstein, Heritage or
Jackson received competing claims to the death benefit proceeds. J ackson or Heritage
received claims on behalf of the Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust dated June
21, 1995 and a competing claim in the form of a letter from Eliot Bernstein either on his
own behalf or on behalf of his children.
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65. According to Jackson’s records on the Policy, no one named Eliot Bernstein was ever
designated as a primary or contingent beneficiary of the Policy.

66. According to Jackson’s records on the Policy, no one named Joshua Bernstein was ever
designated as a primary or contingent beneficiary of the Policy.

67. According to Jackson’s records on the Policy, no one named Jacob Bernstein was ever
designated as a primary or contingent beneficiary of the Policy.

68. According to Jackson’s records on the Policy, no one named Daniel Bernstein was ever
designated as a primary or contingent beneficiary of the Policy.

69. According to Jackson’s records on the Policy, no Owner of the Policy ever submitted a
beneficiary designation which designated Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A. as a beneficiary of
the Policy.

70. According to Jackson’s records, no Owner of the Policy ever submitted a beneficiary
designation which designated “Simon Bernstein’s estate” or “the Estate” as beneficiary.

71. From my review of the records, and my experience in the industry and with Insurer
database systems, it is evident that the name Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A. was either
entered by an employee of the Insurer either as an abbreviation for the actual contingent
beneficiary or in error. In any case, the document that contains the Owner’s actual last
beneficiary designation prior to the death of the insured is Bates No. JCK000601. In this
document, the Owner designates Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust dated June
21, 1995 as the contingent (or successor) beneficiary.

72. The last beneficiary designation submitted by the Policy Owner and acknowledged by the
Insurer prior to the death of the Insured is Bates No. JCK000370. The primary
beneficiary designation is “LaSalle National Trust, N.A., Trustee”, and the contingent
beneficiary is “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust dated June 21, 1995”. (See
Bates No. JCK000370 and JCK000372).

73. According to Jackson’s records, the last change of Owner submitted on the Policy prior
to the death of the insured was on or about April 3, 1998. (JCK000563 and 566).

74. According to Jackson’s records, a company named Equifax conducted an interview in
connection with the application and underwriting for the Policy. The Equifax report
indicates that Simon Bernstein was interviewed on March 25, 1982. The report says on
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75.

76.

71.

its face that it was prepared for Life Insurance Underwriting purposes only.
(JCKO001074).

Contained in the Equifax Report from Simon Bernstein’s interview is the following
description of the intended purpose of the insurance:

“BENEFICIARY-PURPOSE OF INSURANCE: The beneficiary of this policy is First
Arlington National Bank, S.B. Lexington, Inc. employee death benefit trust. The
insurance will be paid to the trust, and the trust will determine the manner in which the
benefits are to be paid and to whom it will be paid. Normally, benefits are paid to family
members.” (JCK001084).

Since the death of Simon Bernstein, Jackson (and “Heritage”) has received notices of
potential claims from the Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust dtd 6/21/95, and
from Eliot Bernstein, purportedly on his own behalf and on behalf of his children. Tam
aware that a person named William Stansbury filed a petition to intervene in the above-
captioned litigation but that his petition to intervene was denied by the court. I am aware
that in Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint, that Ted Bernstein, Pamela Simon, Jill
Iantoni and Lisa Friedstein have filed claims seeking imposition of a Resulting Trust and
as such First Amended Complaint does represent additional potential claims to the Policy
Proceeds.

The Policy records do not include any notices of claims from any of the following
individuals or entities:

a) The VEBA;

b) Any Bank Trustee of the VEBA;

¢) Adam Simon;

d) David Simon;

e) The Simon Law Firm ; or

f) STP Enterprises, Inc.
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78. 1 am unaware of any claims having been received by Jackson or Heritage as to the Policy
proceeds from any persons or entities, other than those described in Par. 76 above.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

Dated: April 8, 2014

Q@ﬂ é; =
Don Sandets, Assistant Vice-President
Jackson National Life Insurance Company

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME
THIS 8th DAY OF APRIL, 2014.

W Leldleos @c pole

NOTARY PUBLIC
County of Dallas, TX

e

@%‘»5@ Debbxe Jacobs-
9 ‘ Commiission Expires
¢ 2&2" 06-11-2016

\$
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EXHIBIT 3
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,
by Ted S. Bernstein, its Trustee, Ted S.
Bernstein, an individual,
Pamela B. Simon, an individual,
Jill Iantoni, an individual and Lisa S.
Friedstein, an individual.

Plaintiff, Case No. 13 cv 3643
Honorable John Robert Blakey
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland
v,

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Defendant,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
|
HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE )
COMPANY - )
)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

Counter-Plaintiff

V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant
and,

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA,
Successor in interest to LaSalle National

AUS-5960583-2
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Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST, )
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95, )
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN

Third-Party Defendants.

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff
v.

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)
PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON, )
both Professionally and Personally )
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and )
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM, )
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A., )
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally )
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA, )
both Professionally and Personally, )
LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI )
S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE )
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P. )
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON, )
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE )
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA), )
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION )
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE )
DOES )
)

)

)

Third-Party Defendants.

AUS-5960583-2
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AFFIDAVIT OF LISA FRIEDSTEIN

I, Lisa Friedstein, being duly sworn under oath, deposes and states as follows:

. lam aresident of the City of Highland Park, County of Lake, State of lllinois and am over the

age of 18. If I were called and sworn as a witness in the above-captioned matter I could
competently and voluntarily testify to the facts set forth in this Affidavit based upon my personal
knowledge.

My maiden name is Lisa Bernstein. My married name is Lisa Friedstein.

I'am one of five adult children of Simon Bernstein.

When I use the term “Affidavit of Don Sanders” [ mean a certain affidavit executed by Don
Sanders, Assistant Vice President of Operations for Jackson National Life Insurance Company
on April 8, 2014.

When [ use the term “Capitol Bankers”, I mean Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Company.

When I use the term “Consenting Children”, I mean collectively four of the five adult children of
Simon Bernstein, whom are Ted Bernstein, Pamela Simon, Jill lantoni, and Lisa Friedstein.

When 1 use the term “Heritage”, I mean Hetitage Union Life Insurance Company.
When I use the term “Jackson”, I mean Jackson National Life Insurance Company.
When I use the term “Insurer”, I mean the life insurance company that was the insurer on the risk

for the Policy, which started as Capitol Bankers but changed through succession from time to
time.

‘When I use the term “Policy”, I mean Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Policy No. 1009208

insuring the life of Simon Bernstein.
When 1 use the term “Insured”, I mean Simon Bernstein.

When [ use the term “Owner”, I mean the owner of the Policy as reflected on the Insurers’
records from time to time.

AUS-5960583-2




20.

21,

22.

Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 240-4 Filed 05/21/16 Page 5 of 7 PagelD 3962
Case: 17-3595  Document: 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018  Pages: 547

. When I use the term “Policy Proceeds”, I mean the amount that was payable by the Insurer under

the Policy upon the death of the insured,

- When I use the term “Proceeds on Deposit”, I mean the amount that was actually deposited by

the Insurer with the Registry of the Court pursuant to the Insurers’ Complaint for Interpleader.

- When [ use the term “Policy Records”, I mean the records of the Insurer relating to the Policy as

produced by the Insurer during the Litigation.

- When I use the term “Litigation”, I mean the above-captioned litigation.

. When [ use the term “VEBA”, [ am referring to the S.B. Lexington Employee Death Benefit

Trust.

- I'have had an opportunity to consult with my attorney, and review the documents produced by all

parties in the above-referenced litigation.

. I'have also reviewed the Affidavit of Don Sanders.

I'have reviewed the Insurer’s records regarding the amount of the death benefit, and have
reviewed the receipt for the deposit of the Policy Proceeds with the Registry of the Court in the
amount of $1,703,567.09. I have no dispute or objection to the amount deposited as the Policy
Proceeds.

I'concur with the statements of Don Sanders in his Affidavit that the last beneficiary designation
submitted by the Policy Owner and acknowledged by the Insurer prior to the death of the Insured
marked as Bates No. JCK000370. The primary beneficiary designation is “LaSalle National
Trust, N.A., Trustee”, and the contingent beneficiary is “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance
Trust dated June 21, 1995,

I'concur with Ted Bernstein and the documentation submitted by Plaintiffs in support of our

motion for summary judgment with regard to the existence and terms of the Bernstein Trust, and
Ted Bernstein’s role as trustee.

AUS-5960583-2
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23. Based on the foregoing, I am in agreement regarding the following facts, and the intent of our
father, Simon Bernstein, with regard to the Policy proceeds:

a) Atthe time of Simon Bernstein’s death, Simon Bernstein was the owner of the Policy;

b) In June of 1995, Simon Bernstein formed the Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance
Trust Dated June 21, 1995;

¢) In November of 1995, the VEBA as Owner submitted a Request to the Insurer
designating the VEBA as primary beneficiary, and the Bernstein Trust as second or
contingent beneficiary.

d) In 1998: (i) S.B. Lexington, Inc. was voluntarily dissolved; (ii) the VEBA was
terminated and (iii) the VEBA as Owner submitted a change of Owner to the Insurer
designating Simon Bernstein as Owner of the Policy.

¢) On the date of Simon Bernstein’s death, Simon Bernstein was the Owner of the Policy
and the sole surviving beneficiary of the Policy was the contingent beneficiary, the
Bernstein Trust;

f) Following the death of my mother, Shirley Bernstein, and according to the drafts of
the Bernstein Trust and the intent of Simon Bernstein, Ted Bernstein was appointed to act
as successor Trustee;

g) Each of the Consenting Children have signified their consent to a court appointment
of Ted Bernstein as Trustee.

h) The beneficiary of the Policy Proceeds is the Bernstein Trust;

i) The beneficiaries of the Bernstein Trust are the five adult children (including Eliot,
the non-consenting child) to share equally, twenty percent each;

J) The sole asset of the Bernstein Trust is the Policy Proceeds, and the distribution of
such proceeds to the five children of Simon Bernstein and any administrative matters
related to the termination of the Trust are the only remaining acts required of the Trustee.

k) The four consenting children of Simon Bernstein agree that upon entry of a judgment
in favor of the Plaintiffs declaring that the Bernstein Trust is beneficiary of the Policy
Proceeds, counsel for Bernstein Trust, Adam M. Simon, shall be authorized to present the
judgment to the Registry and have the Registry distribute the Policy Proceeds in a check
payable as follows:

AUS-5960583-2
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“The Simon Law Firm Client Trust f/b/o Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust
Dated June 21, 1995”,

) The Policy Proceeds shall then be deposited to The Simon Law Firm Client Trust
Account and shall be disbursed as follows:

i) First to the payment of attorney Adam M. Simon’s fees and costs;

i1) Retention of $5,000.00 in the Simon Law Client Trust Account for the
benefit of the Bernstein Trust in order to pay for any professional
expenses, i.e. accounting or legal, related to the final distribution of the
Trust Assets and termination of trust. Any remaining balance after
payment of such expenses shall be distributed to the five adult children
in equal shares.

iii) The balance to be split equally among the five adult children of Simon
Bernstein.

iv) Each Beneficiary that receives a share of the Policy proceeds shall
execute and deliver to the Trustee (or Adam M. Simon) a receipt for
such payment received.

v) Along with the distributions, the Trustee shall provide each'beneﬁciary
with a final accounting of the distributions made from the Policy
Proceeds.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

Dated: FEBRUARY 6’ 2015
LA T 4/( AW
D )

LISA FRIEDSTEIN

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME
THIS DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2015.

— =t

NOTARY PUBLIC /
County of Lake, IL

OFFICIAL SEAL
SONJA PATRICK
Notary Public - State of llinois
My Commission Expires Oct 28, 2018

AUS-5960583-2
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,

by Ted S. Bernstein, its Trustee, Ted S.
Bernstein, an individual,

Pamela B. Simon, an individual,

Jill Iantoni, an individual and Lisa S.
Friedstein, an individual.

Case No. 13 cv 3643
Honorable John Robert Blakey
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

Plaintiff,

V.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Defendant,

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY

Counter-Plaintiff

V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant
and,

vv\./vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK )
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee )
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF )
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA, )
Successor in interest to LaSalle National )

AUS-5960583-2
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Trust, N.A,, SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST, )
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bermstein )
lrrevocable Insurance Trust Did 6/21/95,

and ELIOT BERNSTEIN

Third-Party Deféndants,

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff
V.

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
frrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

both Professionally and Personally

ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATH BENETFIT TRUST, S.T.P,
ENTERPRISES, INC. $.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON, )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
Third-Party Defendants. )
)

AUS-39603583-2
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AFFIDAVIT OF JILL IANTON]

I, Jill Tantoni, being duly sworn under oath, deposes and states as follows:

1. Tam aresident of the City of Highland Park, County of Lake, State of Illinois and am over the
age of 18. If I were called and sworn as a witness in the above-captioned matter I could
competently and voluntarily testify to the facts set forth in this Affidavit based Upon my personal
knowledge.

2. My maiden name is Jill Bernstein. My married name is Jili Tanton.

3. T'am one of five adult children of Simon Bernstein.

4. When I use the term “Affidavit of Don Sanders” I mean a certain affidavit executed by Don
Sanders, Assistant Vice President of Operations for Jackson National Life Insurance Company
on April 8, 2014,

5. When I use the term “Capitol Bankers”, I mean Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Company.

6. When I use the term “Consenting Children™, I mean collecti vely four of the five adult children of
Simon Bernstein, whom are Ted Bernstein, Pamela Simon, Jill lantoni, and [isa Friedstein.

7. When 1 use the term “Heritage”, I mean Heritage Union Life Insurance Company.

8. When I use the term “Jackson”, I mean Jackson National Life Insurance Company.

9. When Il use the term “Insurer™, | mean the life insurance company that was the insurer on the risk
for the Policy, which started as Capitol Bankers but changed through succession from time to

time.

10. When [ use the term “Policy”, I mean Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Policy No. 1009208
insuring the life of Simon Bernstein,

I'1. When I use the term “Insured”, I mean Simon Bernstein.

12. When I use the term “Owner”, I mean the owner of the Policy as reflected on the Insurers’
records from time to time.

AUS-5960583-2
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When I use the term “Policy Proceeds”, I mean the amount that was payable by the Insurer under
the Policy upon the death of the insured.

When I use the term “Proceeds on Deposit”, I mean the amount that was actually deposited by
the Insurer with the Registry of the Court pursuant to the Insurers’ Complaint for Interpleader.

When I use the term “Policy Records”, I mean the records of the Insurer relating to the Policy as
produced by the Insurer during the Litigation.

When I use the term “Litigation”, I mean the above-captioned liti gation,

When I use the term “VEBA”, I am referring to the S.B. Lexington Employee Death Benefit
Trust.

I have had an opportunity to consult with my attorney, and review the documents produced by all
parties in the above-referenced litigation.

I have also reviewed the Affidavit of Don Sanders.

I'have reviewed the Insurer’s records regarding the amount of the death benefit, and have
reviewed the receipt for the deposit of the Policy Proceeds with the Registry of the Court in the
amount of $1,703,567.09. I have no dispute or objection to the amount deposited as the Policy
Proceeds.

[ concur with the statements of Don Sanders in his Affidavit that the last beneficiary designation
submitted by the Policy Owner and acknowledged by the Insurer prior to the death of the Insured
marked as Bates No. JCK000370. The primary beneficiary designation is “I.aSalle National
Trust, N.A., Trustee”, and the contingent beneficiary is “Simon Bermnstein Irtevocable Insurance
Trust dated June 21, 1995”.

[ concur with Ted Bernstein and the documentation submitted by Plaintiffs in support of our

motion for summary judgment with regard to the existence and terms of the Bernstein Trust, and
Ted Bernstein’s role as trustee.

AUS-5960583-2
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23. Based on the foregoing, T am in agreement regarding the following facts, and the intent of our
father, Simon Bernstein, with regard to the Policy proceeds:

a) At the time of Simon Bernstein’s death, Simon Bernstein was the owner of the Policy;

b) In June of 1995, Simon Bernstein formed the Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance
Trust Dated June 21, 1995;

¢) InNovember of 1995, the VEBA as Owner submitted a Request to the Insurer
designating the VEBA as primary beneficiary, and the Bernstein Trust as second or
contingent beneficiary.

d) In 1998: (i) S.B. Lexington, Inc. was voluntarily dissolved; (ii) the VEBA was
terminated and (iii) the VEBA as Owner submitted a change of Owner to the Insurer
designating Simon Bernstéin ags Owner of the Policy.

¢) On the date of Simon Bernstein’s death, Simon Bernstein was the Owner of the Policy
and the sole surviving beneficiary of the Policy was the conti ngent beneficiary, the
Bemstein Trust;

f) Following the death of my mother, Shirley Bernstein, and according to the drafts of
the Bernstein Trust and the intent of Simen Bemstein, Ted Bernstein was appointed 1o act
as successor Trustee;

8) Each of the Consenting Children have signified their consent {0 a court appointment
of Ted Bernstein as Trustee.

h) The beneficiary of the Policy Proceeds is the Bernstein Trust;

i) The beneficiaries of the Bernstein Trust are the five adult children (including Eliot,
the non-consenting child) to share equally, twenty percent each;

1) The sole asset of the Bernstein Trust is the Policy Proceeds, and the distribution of
such proceeds to the five children of Sitnon Bernstein and an y administrative matters
related to the termination of the Trust are the only remaining acts required of the Trustec.

k) The four consenting children of Simon Bernstein agree that upon entry of a judgment
in favor of the Plaintiffs declaring that the Bernstein Trust is beneficiary of the Policy
Proceeds, counsel for Bernstein Trust, Adam M. Simon, shall be authorized to present the
judgment to the Registry and have the Registry distribute the Policy Proceeds in a check
payable as follows:

AUS-3960383-2
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“The Simon Law Firm Client Trust f/b/o Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust
Dated June 21, 1995”.

1) The Policy Proceeds shall then be deposited to The Simon Law Firm Client Trust
Account and shall be disbursed as follows:

1) First to the payment of attorney Adam M. Simon’s fees and costs;

if) Retention of $5,000.00 in the Simon Law Client Trust Account for the
benefit of the Bernstein Trust in order to pay for any professional
expenses, i.e. accounting or legal, related to the final distribution of the
Trust Assets and termination of trust. Any remaining balance after
payment of such expenses shall be distributed to the five adult children
in equal shares.

iii) The balance to be split equally among the five adult children of Simon
Bemstein.

iv) Each Beneficiary that receives a share of the Policy proceeds shall
execute and deliver to the Trustee (or Adam M. Simon) a receipt for
such payment received.

v) Along with the distributions, the Trustee shall provide each beneficiary
with a final accounting of the distributions made from the Policy
Proceeds.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

Dated/-« RYARY 5,20’
L A2
JILI]WONI

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME
THIS fJDDAY OF FEBRUARY, 2015.

T

NOTARY PUBLIC ~ /
County of Lake, IL

OFFICIAL SEAL
SONJA PATRICK
Notary Public - State of Hlinois
My Commission Expires Oct 28, 2018

AUS-5960583-2
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,
by Ted S. Bernstein, its Trustee, Ted S.
Bernstein, an individual,

Pamela B. Simon, an individual,

Jill Iantoni, an individual and Lisa S.
Friedstein, an individual.

Case No. 13 cv 3643 .
Honorable John Robert Blakey
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

Plaintiff,

V.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Defendant,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE )
COMPANY )
)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

Counter-Plaintiff

V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN JRREVOCABLE
TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant
and,

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK

as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA,

Successor in interest to LaSalle National _
Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST, )
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )

AUS-5960583-2
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Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95,
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN

Third-Party Defendants.

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff

V.

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

both Professionally and Personally

ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A,,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P.
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON, )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
;
Third-Party Defendants. )
)

AFFIDAVIT OF PAM SIMON

AUS-5960583-2
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I, Pam Simon, being duly sworn under oath, deposes and states as follows:

I am a resident of the City of Chicago, County of Cook, State of Illinois and am over the age of
18. If I were called and sworn as a witness in the above-captioned matter I could competently
and voluntarily testify to the facts set forth in this Affidavit based upon my personal knowledge.

My maiden name is Pamela Beth Bernstein. My married name is Pamela Beth Simon or Pam
Simon.

I am one of five adult children of Simon Bernstein.

When I use the term “Affidavit of Don Sanders” | mean a certain affidavit executed by Don
Sanders, Assistant Vice President of Operations for Jackson National Life Insurance Company
on April 8, 2014.

When I use the term “Capitol Bankers”, I mean Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Company.

When I use the term “Consenting Children”, I mean collectively four of the five adult children of
Simon Bernstein, whom are Ted Bernstein, Pamela Simon, Jill Iantoni, and Lisa Friedstein.

When I use the term “Heritage”, I mean Heritage Union Life Insurance Company.

When I use the term “Jackson”, I mean Jackson National Life Insurance Company.

When I use the term “Insurer”, I mean the life insurance company that was the insurer on the risk
for the Policy, which started as Capitol Bankers but changed through succession from time to

time,

When I use the term “Policy”, I mean Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Policy No. 1009208
insuring the life of Simon Bernstein.

When I use the term “Insured”, I mean Simon Bernstein.

When I use the term “Owner”, I mean the owner of the Policy as reflected on the Insurers’
records from time to time.

When I use the term “Policy Proceeds”, I mean the amount that was payable by the Insurer under
the Policy upon the death of the insured.

AUS-5960583-2
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When I use the term “Proceeds on Deposit”, I mean the amount that was actually deposited by
the Insurer with the Registry of the Court pursuant to the Insurers’ Complaint for Interpleader.

When I use the term “Policy Records”, I mean the records of the Insurer relating to the Policy as
produced by the Insurer during the Litigation.

When I use the term “Litigation”, I mean the above-captioned litigation.

When I use the term “VEBA?”, I am referring to the S.B. Lexington Employee Death Benefit
Trust.

I have had an opportunity to consult with my attorney, and review the documents produced by all
parties in the above-referenced litigation.

I have reviewed the Affidavit of Don Sanders.

I have been a licensed insurance agent in the State of Illinois for at least 35 years. In the 1980’s
and early 1990’s, I was located in the same business office as my father, Simon Bernstein.

In the early 1980’s, I along with my father, Simon Bernstein and brother, Ted Bernstein,
marketed and sold VEBA Death Benefit Plans wherein corporate benefit plans would purchase
life insurance on employees, and the employees would name the ultimate beneficiary of their
death benefit by completing a Plan and Trust Beneficiary Designation Form.

In my experience as an insurance agent, and more specifically in my experience with the sales of
life insurance policies issued through a Voluntary Employee Benefit Association, the original of
the life insurance policy would be delivered by the insurer of the policy to the owner of the
policy as listed on the application. On the application, the initial owner was listed as First
Arlington National Bank as Trustee for the S.B. Lexington Employee Death Benefit Trust.

In late 1982, First Arlington National Bank was located in Arlington Heights, Illinois. First
Arlington National Bank was the Trustee of the VEBA and was thus acting on behalf of the
VEBA as Owner of the Policy. In my experience the insurer would have delivered the original
Policy to the agent whom would then deliver the Policy to the original Owner. The agent whom
signed the application for the Policy was my father Simon Bernstein whose offices were located
in Chicago, Illinois. The delivery of the Policy to the Owner would have occurred in Arlington
Heights, Illinois.

In late December of 1982 at the time of Policy issuance and delivery, Simon Bernstein, the
insured, resided and was domiciled in Glencoe, Illinois.
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In the late 1980°s my father, Simon Bernstein, my husband, David Simon and myself, co-
owned a life insurance brokerage named STP Enterprises, Inc. (“STP”) that was located in
offices in Chicago, Illinois. I am currently the president of STP. STP was named a third-party
defendant to Eliot’s claims. STP is represented by counsel, Adam M. Simon.

One of the life insurance companies, STP represented was Lincoln Benefit Life Insurance
Company. In the 1990’s my father, Simon Bernstein applied for and purchased a life insurance
policy issued by Lincoln Benefit Life. During a search of records located at our Chicago offices
following the death of my father, Simon Bernstein, we located a file containing documents
relating to the Lincoln Benefit Life Policy and Plaintiff has produced those documents in this
litigation. (See Ex. 18).

Ex. 18 is Lincoln Benefit Life Request for Service form for Lincoln Policy #U0204204 (the
“Lincoln Policy”). This form indicates that the insured and owner was Simon Bernstein and that
ownership of the Lincoln Policy was being transferred to the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust dtd 6/21/95”, and includes the Tax ID for the trust, and the name of Shirley
Bernstein as trustee. The document also contains the signature of my father, Simon Bernstein. I
recognize my father’s signature and have seen it on many occasions. Also, his signature was
witnessed by former STP employee, Debbie Marsh, whose signature I also recognize. The
document indicates it was received at Lincoln’s Home Office and recorded on August 8, 1995.
The Lincoln Policy lapsed for non-payment of premium in 2006, six years prior to Simon
Bernstein’s passing.

According to the Policy Records, the Policy was issued by Capitol Bankers in 1982. I have
reviewed and made myself familiar with the Policy Records which start with bates no.
JCK000001 and end at bates no. JCK001324.

I have also reviewed and made myself familiar with Plaintiff’s document production made
pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 26. A true, accurate and complete set of copies of those documents
were served upon the other parties to this Litigation and were stamped with bates no. BT000001-
BT000112.

I have reviewed the Insurer’s records regarding the amount of the death benefit, and have
reviewed the receipt for the deposit of the Policy Proceeds with the Registry of the Court in the
amount of $1,703,567.09. I have no dispute or objection to the amount deposited as the Policy
Proceeds.
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On June 5, 1992, Sandy Kapsa (an employee of S.B. Lexington and an affiliated company,
National Service Association, Inc.) submitted a letter to Capitol Bankers Life Insurance
Company informing them that LaSalle National Trust was being appointed successor trustee of
the VEBA. On June 17, 1992, the Insurer acknowledged the change of ownership listing the
owner as LaSalle National Trust, N.A., as Successor Trustee. (See Ex. 7)

I concur with the statement of Don Sanders in his Affidavit that the last beneficiary designation
submitted by the Policy Owner and acknowledged by the Insurer prior to the death of the Insured
marked as Bates No. JCK000370. The primary beneficiary designation is “LaSalle National
Trust, N.A., Trustee”, and the contingent beneficiary is “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance
Trust dated June 21, 1995”.

In 1995, David B. Simon, Ted S. Bernstein, Pam Simon, and Simon L. Bernstein all shared
common office space at 600 West Jackson Blvd., Ste. 800, Chicago, IL 60606.

In 1995, my husband, David Simon and I created irrevocable insurance trusts with the
assistance of attorneys from the firm of Hopkins and Sutter.

On August 26, 1995, Simon L. Bernstein, as a Member of the VEBA, named the Bernstein
Trust as the “person(s) to receive at my death the Death Benefit stipulated in the S.B. Lexington,
Inc. Employee Death Benefit and Trust and Adoption Form adopted by my Employer.” 1
recognize the signature on the VEBA Beneficiary Designation form as that of my father, Simon
Bernstein. (See Ex. 4).

On April 3, 1998, S.B. Lexington, Inc. was voluntarily dissolved by its shareholder(s), and the
VEBA was likewise terminated at this time. As a part of the dissolution, ownership of the Policy
was changed from the VEBA to Simon Bernstein, Individually (See Ex. 9).

After the death of Simon Bernstein, David Simon and I, with the assistance of our employees,
conducted a search of my offices and business records in Chicago, Illinois. We located two
unexecuted drafts of the Bernstein Trust were located. We were unable to locate an executed
original or copy of the Bernstein Trust. (See Ex. 15 and Ex. 16).

Based on the foregoing, I am in agreement regarding the following facts, and the intent of my
father, Simon Bernstein, with regard to the Policy proceeds:

a) At the time of Simon Bernstein’s death, Simon Bernstein was the owner of the Policy;

b) In June of 1995, Simon Bernstein formed the Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance
Trust Dated June 21, 1995;
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¢) In November of 1995, the VEBA as Owner submitted a Request to the Insurer
designating the VEBA as primary beneficiary, and the Bernstein Trust as second or
contingent beneficiary.

d) In 1998: (i) S.B. Lexington, Inc. was voluntarily dissolved; (ii) the VEBA was
terminated and (iii) the VEBA as Owner submitted a change of Owner to the Insurer
designating Simon Bernstein as Owner of the Policy.

e) On the date of Simon Bernstein’s death, Simon Bernstein was the Owner of the Policy
and the sole surviving beneficiary of the Policy was the contingent beneficiary, the
Bernstein Trust;

f) Following the death of my mother, Shirley Bernstein, and according to the drafts of
the Bernstein Trust and the intent of Simon Bernstein, Ted Bernstein was appointed to act
as successor Trustee;

g) Each of the Consenting Children have signified their consent to a court appointment
of Ted Bernstein as Trustee.

h) The beneficiary of the Policy Proceeds is the Bernstein Trust;

i) The beneficiaries of the Bernstein Trust are the five adult children (including Eliot,
the non-consenting child) to share equally, twenty percent each;

i) The sole asset of the Bernstein Trust is the Policy Proceeds, and the distribution of
such proceeds to the five children of Simon Bernstein and any administrative matters
related to the termination of the Trust are the only remaining acts required of the Trustee;

k) The four consenting children of Simon Bernstein agree that upon entry of a judgment
in favor of the Plaintiffs declaring that the Bernstein Trust is beneficiary of the Policy
Proceeds, counsel for Bernstein Trust, Adam M. Simon, shall be authorized to present the
judgment to the Registry and have the Registry distribute the Policy Proceeds in a check
payable as follows:

“The Simon Law Firm Client Trust f/b/o Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust
Dated June 21, 1995”.
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1) The Policy Proceeds shall then be deposited to The Simon Law Firm Client Trust
Account and shall be disbursed as follows:

i) First to the payment of attorney Adam M. Simon’s fees and costs;

if) Retention of $5,000.00 in the Simon Law Client Trust Account for the

benefit of the Bernstein Trust in order to pay for any professional
expenses, i.e. accounting or legal, related to the final distribution of the

Trust Assets and termination of trust. Any remaining balance after
payment of such expenses shall be distributed to the five adult children

in equal shares.

iii) The balance to be split equally among the five adult children of Simon
Bernstein.

iv) Each Beneficiary that receives a share of the Policy proceeds shall
execute and deliver to the Tmstee (or Adam M. Simon) a receipt for

such payment received,

v) Along with the distributions, the Trustee shall provide each beneficiary
with a final accounting of the distributions made from the Policy

Proceeds.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

T
Dated: FEBRUARY Y, 2015

PAMELA SIMON

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME
THIS ,_2(""9[ DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2015.

O/WQ e M&M?
NOTARY PUBLIC” ¢
County of Lake, IL

A*

X CHERYL MARIE SVCHOWSK!
OFFICIAI. SEAL
Notary. Public, Siate of Hlinols
My Commission Expligs
Augus! 08, 2016

p————
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION :

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,
by Ted S. Bernstein, its Trustee, Ted S.
Bernstein, an individual,

Pamela B. Simon, an individual,

Jill Iantoni, an individual and Lisa S.
Friedstein, an individual,

Case No. 13 cv 3643
Honorable John Robert Blakey
Magistrate Mary M, Rowland

Plaintiff,

V.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Defendant,

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY

Counter-Plaintiff

V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
TRUST DTD 6/21/95

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

, )
Counter-Defendant )

and, )
)

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK )
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee )
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF )
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA, . )
Successor in interest to LaSalle National )
Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST, )
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )
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Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95,
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN

Third-Party Defendants.

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,

Cross-Plaintiff
v,

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON,
both Professionally and Personally
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL JANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATIH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P. '
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES

Third-Party Defendants.

i i i . ) N NI N N N /V\J\/\J\/\JV\/\/\/\JV\JVVVV\/V

AFFIDAVIT OF DAVID SIMON
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I, David Simon, being duly sworn under oath, deposes and states as follows:

I am a resident of the City of Chicago, County of Cook, State of Illinois and am over the age of
18. If I were called and sworn as a witness in the above-captioned matter I could competently
and voluntarily testify to the facts set forth in this Affidavit based upon my personal knowledge.

My name is David B. Simon. Iam also known by the nickname “Scooter”, I am married to
Pamela Simon and am the brother of Adam Simon. I am also the owner of The Simon Law
Firm and a Co-Owner of STP Enterprises, Inc. I am represented by Adam Simon as is my wife,
Pam Simon, The Simon Law Firm and STP Enterprises, Inc.

When I use the term “Affidavit of Don Sanders” [ mean a certain affidavit executed by Don
Sanders, Assistant Vice President of Operations for Jackson National Life Insurance Company

on April 8, 2014,

When I use the term “Capitol Bankers”, I mean Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Company.

When I use the term “Consenting Children”, I mean collectively four of the five adult children of
Simon Bernstein, whom are Ted Betnstein, Pamela Simon, Jill Iantoni, and Lisa Friedstein.

When I use the term “Heritage”, [ mean Heritage Union Life Insurance Company.
When I use the term “Jackson”, I mean Jackson National Life Insurance Company.

When I use the term “Insurer”, I mean the life insurance company that was the insurer on the risk
for the Policy, which started as Capitol Bankers but changed through succession from time to

time,

When I use the term “Policy”, I mean Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Policy No. 1009208
insuring the life of Simon Bernstein. '

When I use the term “Insured”, I mean Simon Bernstein,

When I use the term “Owner”, I mean the owner of the Policy as reflected on the Insurers’
records from time to time.

When I use the term “Policy Proceeds”, I mean the amount that was payable by the Insurer

~ under the Policy upon the death of the insured.
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13. When I use the term “Proceeds on Deposit”, I mean the amount that was actually deposited by
the Insurer with the Registry of the Court pursuant to the Insurers’ Complaint for Interpleader.

14. When I use the term “Policy Records”, I mean the records of the Insurer relating to the Policy as
produced by the Insurer during the Litigation.

15. When I use the term “Litigation”, I mean the above-captioned litigation.

16. When I use the term “VEBA”, I am referring to the S.B. Lexington Employee Death Benefit
Trust,

17 I have had an opportunity to consult with my attorney, and review the documents produced by
all parties in the above-referenced litigation.

18. T have also reviewed the Affidavit of Don Sanders.

19. Iam an attorney licensed to practice in the States of California and Illinois. I have been a
licensed insurance agent in the State of Illinois for over 25 years. In the late 1980°s and early
1990’s, I was located in the same business office as my father-in-law, Simon Bernstein.

- 20. Inthe late 1980’s my father-in-law, Simon Bernstein, my wife, Pam Simon and myself, co-
owned a life insurance brokerage named STP Enterprises, Inc. (“STP”) that was located in
offices in Chicago, Illinois.

21. One of the life insurance companies, STP represented was Lincoln Benefit Life Insurance
Company. In the 1990’s my father-in-law, Simon Bernstein applied for and purchased a life
insurance policy issued by Lincoln Benefit Life. During a search of records located at our
Chicago offices following the death of my father-in-law, Simon Bernstein, we located a file
containing documents relating to the Lincoln Benefit Life Policy and Plaintiff has produced
those documents in this litigation. (See Ex. 18).

22. Ex. 18 is a Lincoln Benefit Life Request for Service form for Lincoln Policy #U0204204 (the
“Lincoln Policy”). This form indicates that the insured and owner was Simon Bernstein and that
ownership of the Policy was being transferred to the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance.
Trust dtd 6/21/95”, and includes the Tax ID for the trust, and the name of Shirley Bernstein as
trustee. The document also contains the signature of my father-in-law, Simon Bernstein, I
recognize my father in-law’s signature and have seen it on many occasions. Also, his signature
was witnessed by former STP employee, Debbie Marsh, whose signature I also recognize. The
document indicates it was received at Lincoln’s Home Office and recorded on August 8, 1995,

(See Ex. 18)
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23. In 1994, my wife and I retained an attorney at the law firm of Hopkins and Sutter in Chicago to
help us prepare and execute an irrevocable insurance trust for our own estate planning purposes.

24. Tn 1995, Simon Bernstein came to me and expressed an interest in creating a life insurance trust
for himself. ‘

25. Icreated a sample insurance trust for Simon Bernstein and reviewed it with him. We agreed
that Simon Bernstein should also use Hopkins and Sutter to finalize and execute his insurance
trust. We also discussed that the insurance trust was for the benefit of his wife, and then his five
children, and that he wanted to name his wife, Shirley as Trustee, and then either me, Ted or Pam
as Successor Trustee. I suggested that he appoint Ted as the next trustee,

26. Simon Bernstein took a copy of the draft of the trust I provided and went to Hopkins and Sutter
to execute his insurance trust.

27. I met again with Simon Bernstein after he had signed the trust, and I reviewed the executed
Bernstein Trust Agreement and saw that he had removed me as a Successor Trustee. I also
assisted Simon Bernstein with preparing forms for Lincoln Benefit Life to put ownership of the
Lincoln Policy in the name of the Bernstein Trust.

28. After the death of Simon Bernstein, I conducted a search of my offices and records in Chicago,
Illinois. I was able to locate a hard copy draft of the Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance
Trust in one folder, and this document contains some of my handwritten notes from one of my
conversations with Simon Bernstein referenced above. (See Ex. 16).

29. With the help of my brother, Adam Simon, we also located a file on our computer database
entitled “SITRUST”. We were able to print this draft and the metadata of the file. The metadata
indicated was last modified on June 21, 1995. The metadata also includes a “date created” date
of Septernber of 2004, but I know that the September of 2004 date relates to the creation of our
new database when my offices updated our database servers. The SITRUST file was a pre-2004
file that was uploaded to our new database servers when we purchased and installed' them in -

September of 2004, (See Ex. 15).

30. Once Simon Bernstein formed and executed the Simon Bernstein Insurance Trust Agreement, I
assisted him and his wife, Shirley with obtaining a tax identification number for the Bernstein
Trust. During the process of obtaining the tax identification number I prepared an IRS SS-4
form, which contains the name of the trust, the name of the trustee, the tax identification number,

and the signature of Shirley Bernstein. (See Ex. 19).
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31. To the best of my knowledge and belief, Simon Bernstein took the original Bernstein Trust
Agreement with him at the time he moved his offices from Chicago to Florida.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

Dated: FEBRUARY.AS , 2015

DAVID SIMON

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME

THIS J-5" DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2015. . S
SR, CHERYL MARIE SYCHOWSK |
%/IVX( //V@W i}{}l@% Noiar;)Piz’;)'lS:I%}a?‘aEOA!LI|IInoIs 1
NOTARY PUBLIC ) My Commission Expiras
County of Cook, State of Illinois - - b A
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THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 3
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION g

SIMON BERNSTEIN ) ;
IRREVOCABLE INSURANCE )

TRUST DTD 6/21/95, by )
Ted S. Bernstein, its ) %

Trustee, Ted S. )
Bernstein, an )
individual, Pamela B. )
Simon, an individual, ) %
Jill lantoni, an )
individual, and Lisa S. )
Friedstein, an )
individual, ) %
Plaintiff, )

)

VS. ) No. 13 CV 3643
)

HERITAGE UNION LIFE )
INSURANCE COMPANY, )

)
Defendant. ) i
The deposition of DAVID SIMON, called for Z
examination pursuant to the Rules of Civil
Procedure for the United States District Courts
pertaining to the taking of depositions, taken

before Vicki L. D'Antonio, a certified shorthand
reporter of the State of lllinois, at One East
Wacker Drive, Chicago, lllinois, on the 5th day
of January, 2015, at the hour of 2:18 p.m.

Reported by: Vicki L. D'Antonio, CSR, RPR
License No. 084-004344

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
Chicago, Illinois (312) 263-0052
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1 APPEARANCES: §
STAMOS & TRUCCO, LLP, by
3 MR. JAMES J. STAMOS a
MR. KEVIN P. HORAN i
4 One East Wacker Drive l
Third Floor
5 Chicago, Hllinois 60601
(312) 630-7979
6 jstamos@stamostrucco.com
khoran@stamostrucco.com *
7
Representing the Plaintiff;
g <
9 THE SIMON LAW FIRM, by
MR. ADAM M. SIMON
10 203 East Wacker Drive
Suite 2725
11 Chicago, lllinois 60601
(312) 819-0730
12 asimon21@att.net
13 Representing the Defendant. i
14
15 ALSO PRESENT VIA TELEPHONE:
16 Ms. Joielle Foglietta
Mr. Bill Stansbury
17 ~ Mr. Eliot Bernstein
Honorable Amy J. St. Eve
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1 (Whereupon, the witness was duly §
2 sworn.)
3 DAVID SIMON,
4 having been first duly sworn, was examined and ' é
5 testified as follows:
6 EXAMINATION
7 BYMR. STAMOS:
8 Q. Will you state your name, please.
9 A. David Bruce Simon.
10 Q. Have you been deposed before? ;
11 A. | have.
12 Q. And how many times?
13 A. | believe one or two.
14 Q. The first one that comes to mind -- the ‘é
15 first one that -- bringing to mind the first
16 deposition you can remember, what was it -- what
17 did it involve?
18 A. 1think | was deposed in a case
19 revolving around a suit for disparagement in g
20 Kentucky.
21 Q. What was the name of the case?
22 A. Ernie -- David Simon and S.T.P.
23 Enterprises versus Ernie Sampsdn and Kentucky E
24 Financial, | think, is the -- something like E

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
Chicago, lllinois (312) 263-0052
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1 that.
2 Q. What year was that?
3 A. | want to say the late '80s, early
4 '90s. %
5 Q. Someone had said something unpleasant
:

6 about you and you sued them?

7 A. Not about me, no.
8 Q. About the company? i
9 A. About the program. | §
10 Q. Was that litigation resolved?
11 A. ltwas.
12 Q. And how was it resolved?
13 A. Well, we lost at summary judgment, we &

14 appealed, we lost, and then we entered into an
15 agreement with the individual to correct his

16 misassumptions about the program.

17 Q. Okay. When you said the program, what

18 are you referring to?

19 A. The Arbitrage Life Payment System.
20 Q. s that something that still continues?
21 A. It does.

22 Q. And how -- who is it administered or ;

23 offered by?

24 A. S.T.P. Enterprises, Inc.

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
Chicago, lllinois (312) 263-0052
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1 Q. There was a second deposition, was
2 there?
3 A. ING -- Security Life of Denver.
4 Q. There was a lawsuit involving Security
5 Life of Denver?
6 A. Correct.
7 Q. Who was the plaintiff and who was the
8 defendént?
9 A. Life Plans, Inc. is the plaintiff.
10 Security Life of Denver is the defendant.
11’ Q. Is it a pending litigation?
12 A ltis.
13 Q. Where is it pending?
14 A. Northern District of lllinois.
15 Q. What is the nature of that case?
16 A. Breach of contract and tortious
17 interference.
18 Q. Who is the plaintiff?
19 A. Life Plans.
20 Q. How are you related to Life Plans?
21 A. I'm on their board.
22 Q. And you're a party or you're just a
23 member -- as a person with knowledge, you were
24 deposed?

e B e L TS R T
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1 A. I'm also the general counsel. | don't
.

2 own any of the company, though.

3 Q. Where are you currently employed?

4 A. S.T.P. Enterprises, Inc.

5 Q. Who owns that? 5
6 A. Fifty percent of it is owned by a trust

7 that | control. Fifty percent of it is owned by

8 a trust that Pam Simon controls.

R B P e O T

9 Q. Pam Simon is who?

10 A. My wife.

11 Q. How long have you had that interest,
12 the 50 percent interest that you control in
13 S.T.P.? 2
14 A. | believe 2000.
15 Q. Allright. And how did you come to
16 possess that interest? 4
17 A. Boughtit.
18 Q. From whom?

19 A. Which part?
20 Q. You tell me.
21 A. The first part was bought in from Dov %

22 Kahana, and the second part was bought from
23 Simon Bernstein.

24 Q. 25 percent each part? | want to

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
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1 know -- I'll back up.

2 The 50 percent that you control, was

3 that -- was that obtained at the same time that
4 Pam control -- obtained her 50 percent? |
5 A. Yes.
6 Q. And each of you obtained what portion

7 of your 50 percent from which of those people?

B P R S R R s R

8 A. Half of it from Dov Kahana, half of it

9 from Simon Bernstein. ;
10 Q. And what was the compensation paid for
11 it?
12 A. For Dov Kahana? §
13 Q. Okay.
14 MR. SIMON: I'm going to object as relevance.
15 THE WITNESS: | don't know the exact numbers,
16 but it was six figures and release from any §
17 debts and obligations. ‘
18 BY MR. STAMOS:
19 Q. How about to Mr. Bernstein? }
20 MR. SIMON: Same objection. |
21 THE WITNESS: Several million dollars.

22 BY MR. STAMOS:
23 Q. Allright. When did you first start

24 working with Mr. Bernstein?

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
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1 A. In what capacity? Do you mean with --
2 Q. Any. Any capacity. g
3 Okay. So did you -- at one point, were

4 you in business with Simon Bernstein in any z

5 capacity?
6 A. Yes.
7 Q. When was the first time you were in any
8 way associated with him?
9 A. Well, associated with him the first
10 time was -- | don't know what you mean by
11 associated, but the first time | was associated
12 with him was that his daughter sold my father

13 life insurance in, | believe, 1978. | was --

14 Q. His daughter Pam?
15 A. Yes.
16 Q. Okay.
17 A. When she updated the life insurance
18 plan, that's the first time | met Simon 2
19 Bernstein.
20 Q. Were you employed elsewhere at that |
21 time?

22 A. lwas.

23 Q. Where were you employed?

24 A. | was employed at that -- | was

Mchrkle Litigation Services, Inc.
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10 |
1 self-employed.
2 Q. Doing what?
3 A. Law.
4 Q. When did you graduate law school?
5 A. 1984.
6 Q. And what did you do following

7 graduation from law school?

8 A. Law.
9 Q. Where did you law [sic]? f
10 A. First in California, and then within
11 about six months, lllinois.
12 Q. All right. When you came to work as a
13 lawyer in lllinois, where did you work? f
14 A. For myself.
15 Q. What kind of law did you practice? 2
16 A. General corporate, mostly litigation. ?
17 Q. And have you ever been associated as a

18 lawyer with other lawyers?

19 A. When I first started in California,
20 yes.
21 Q. Other than that, have you always been

22 on your own?

23 A. I've had other lawyers work with me and

S e

24 for me, but yes.

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
Chicago, lllinois (312) 263-0052




Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 240-8 Filed 05/21/16 Page 12 of 117 PagelD 3999
Case—17-3595 Document: 12-8 Eiled: 03/12/2018 Pages: b47

M

1 Q. Do you continue to practice law today?
2 A. ldo.

3 Q. What kind of law do you practice?

4 A. Mostly, | would say | -- my practice is

5 structured finance. However, | also service a
6 handful of clients in whatever their needs are.
7 I will maybe find another attorney to partner

8 with if their expertise is needed or will handle

9 it in-house.
10 Q. Are you on any boards of directors?
11 A. Yes.
12 Q. What boards of directors are you on?
13 A. For-profit companies?
14 Q. Any boards.
15 A. S.T.P. Enterprises, Life Plans, Inc.,
16 Intervivos Foundation, Institutional Longevity
17 Assets.
18 Q. What's that?
19 A. It's a limited liability company.
20 And Institutional Pooled Benefits.
21 Q. The last one, what does that company
22 do?
23 A. That owns a patent that pools death
24 benefit.

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
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1 Q. The entity you named before, that --

2 the LLC, what does that company do?

3 A. That's the asset that promotes that }
4 pooling. %
5 Q. And the company that was in litigation

6 that you were on the board of, which one was it?
7 A. Life Plans?

8 Q. That's the last one you mentioned? Had
9  you mentioned that in the list of boards? |

10 didn't -- | didn't catch it. Okay.

e

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. What is its business, Life Plans?

13 A. Insurance agency.

14 Q. How much of your time do you currently

15 spend practicing law as opposed to the other

16 ventures in which you're involved?

17 A. The Simon Law Firm, | probably spend

18 now probably 25 percent of my time.

19 Q. Did there come a time when you became
20 professionally associated with Simon Bernstein?
21 A. As his attorney? Yes.

22 Q. ldon't--|don't--I'm not sure what

23 you're intending to leave out, but in any

24 capacity; when is the first time you became

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
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1 associated professionally with Simon Bernstein
2 in any way? ?
3 A. 1986. g
4 Q. And what was -- in what capacity was
5 that? i
6 A. Attorney. ;
7 Q. And how long did you serve as his f
8 attorney? E
9 A. About ten years.
10 Q. So that would be about to '967
11 A. Yes.
12 Q. At some point, did you become involved
13 with him in the insurance business?
14 A. Yes.
15 Q. When was that?
16 A. 1987.
17 Q. In what capacity did you become
18 involved with him in the insurance business in
19 19877
20 A. | wrote a documentation for a life
21 insurance sales concept that had been originated
22 by his brother.
23 Q. Who was his brother?
24 A. Norman Bernstein. f

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
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1 Q. Were they in business together at the
2 time?
3 A. | believe they did share one common

4 business.
5 Q. At some point, | take it you married

6 his daughter?

7 A. 1did.

8 Q. When was that?

9 A. July 3, 1988.
10 MR. STAMOS: Let's go off the record for a
11 second.
12 (Whereupon, a discussion was had
13 off the record.)

14 BY MR. STAMOS:

15 Q. Allright. We were talking about his

16 brother Norman, | guess, when he was -- you --
17 you assisted him in preparing a document that
18 defined a product he was going to offer? Is

19 that what that was?

20 A. | prepared some transactional documents
21 for a unique program to sell life insurance and
22 a manner to pay for it.

23 Q. And did there come a time when you

24 became involved in the actual life insurance or

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
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1 insurance business as opposed to simply serving

2 as a lawyer for his business?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. When was that? j

5 A. 1988.

6 Q. Inwhat -- in what capacity did you --

7 did you participate?

8 A. Owner of S.T.P. Enterprises.

9 Q. Right. What does that do? What do you
10 do as the owner of S.T.P.? z
11 A. Promote the Arbitrage Life Payment
12 System as well as general life insurance
13 brokerage.
14 Q. Can you describe for me this Arbitrage
15 program you're talking about?
16 MR. SIMON: Object, relevance and --
17 BY MR. STAMOS: ?
18 Q. ldon't need a long explanation. |
19 just want to -- when you say it, | want to know ;
20 what you're talking about. g
21 A. It's a way to pay for life insurance
22 using leverage.
23 Q. Okay. For example?
24 A. Borrow from a bank to pay the premiums. E

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
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1 Q. Isee. z
2 A. Although the individual doesn't borrow
3 and there's some nuances to the program that are
4 unique compared to standard premium finance.
5 Q. Now, in the course of your association

6 with Mr. Bernstein, | know we're here talking

7 about this life insurance policy. | want to

8 designate it correctly so we don't get ourselves

9 confused. %
10 The Capitol -- was originally the
11 Capitol Bankers Life policy, you know what
12 I'm -- you know what policy I'm talking about,
13 correct?
14 A. ldo. 3
15 Q. Are you aware of any other insurance
16 policies that ever existed that insured the life
17 of Simon Bernstein or his wife?
18 A. lam.
19 Q. Okay. Tell me what other policies
20 you're aware of.
21 A. Lincoln Benefit Life, Inter-Ocean Life.
22 Q. And were benefits paid on those two
23 policies after his death?

24 A. Not to my knowledge.

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
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1 Q. Were they in force at the time of his

2 death? f

3 A. Not to my knowledge. g

4 Q. And how are you aware that they

5 existed?

6 A. The Lincoln Benefit Life was paid for

7 through the Arbitrage Life Payment System, so | |

8 participated in the closing of that policy.

9 Q. What was the benefit on that? ;
10 A. 1 believe $200,000.
11 Q. And the Ocean, Inter-Ocean Life policy,
12 how were you aware of its existence? g
13 A. From Simon.
14 Q. He told you it existed? §
15 A. Yes.
16 Q. What was the -- what was the benefit on
17 that policy?
18 A. I'm not a hundred percent sure, but it |
19 is my belief that it was a million dollars.

20 Q. And what years -- what year was it g
21 initiated? 2
22 A. ldon't know. Sometime in the '70s or
23 early '80s, | believe. %
24 Q. Was it a term policy? 1

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
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1 |
1 A. ldon't know.
2 Q. How did you come to learn about it?
3 A. Discussing with him his life insurance.
4 Q. When did you first become aware of the

5 Capitol life policy?
6 MR. SIMON: Objection just to form. | think
7 we need to --

8 BY MR. STAMOS:

9 Q. Capitol Bankers Life policy. I'm g
10 sorry. j
11 I'll restate the question. g
12 ~ When did you first become aware of the
13 Capitol Bankers Life policy?
14 A. [ believe sometime in the mid '80s. *
15 Q. Do you know what year it was initiated?
16 A. The policy?
17 Q. Yeah. g
18 A. | know only from looking at records.

19 Q. And so what do you know from looking at

20 records?

21 A. 1982,

22 Q. Okay. What -- when was the first time
23 you ever discussed that policy with Simon?

24 A. ldon't know if a first time | remember

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
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1 discussing it with Simon is so much as learning
2 about the VEBA, because one of the things that
3 was done was file the 5500s for the death
4 benefit VEBA at S.B. Lexington, and so sometime
5 in the mid '80s, | became aware of the 5500, and
6 that it had to do with the policy, | believe |
7 learned through Richard Klink, who was Simon
8 Bernstein's partner in S.B. Lexington.
9 Q. Tell me what the 5500 is.

10 A. It's a form, tax filing form.

11 Q. And that's filed in order to obtain the

12 tax benefits that relate to the VEBA?

13 A. It's a-- yes, in part.

14 Q. Whatis it --

15 A. It's some -- it's a -- you know, just

16 like any benefit plan. You file a 5500.

17 Q. I'm not asking very good questions.

18 What was your role in dealing with that

19 is, | guess, what I'm trying to get at. Why did

20 you -- why did you become aware of it?

21 A. Mr. Klink showed it to me, told me

22 about the process he went through to file the

23 form. My father's company also had to do the

24 same thing for his policy.
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1 Q. Was your father's company in any way
2 related to Mr. Bernstein's companies? %
3 A. Not at all.
4 Q. What did you learn about the policy at
5 that time when you first learned its existence ;
6 when Mr. Klink showed you the 55007 5
7 A. It was a policy on Simon's life, owned
8 by the VEBA, and the beneficiary was the VEBA. |
9 Q. What's the next thing you -- strike é
10 that. | %
11 After being told about its existence by
12 Mr. Klink, what's the next time you ever
13 conversed with anyone about it?
14 A. Well, probably conversed annually about
15 the policy because we would get annual
16 statements. i
17 Q. What was the face policy -- I'm sorry.
18 What was the face amount of the policy?
19 A. When originally applied for? E
20 Q Yeah
21 A. | believe $2 million.
22 Q. Did it ever change?
23 A. There was borrowings against the
24 policy, so the death benefit was reduced.
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1 Q. Did the face amount ever -- ever
2 change? ﬁ
3 A. Face amount changes. §
4 (Whereupon, a discussion was had f
5 off the record.) ;
6 THE COURT: Let's go on the record; then, so
7 this is clear.
8 So Mr. Simon, what is the basis of your
9 objection to having Mr. Stansbury present? Is ;
10 he physically present or listening in?
11 MR. SIMON: This is Adam Simon. Our
12 objection is he's a nonparty to this case and
13 he's a potential witness, and | believe under
14 the witness exclusion rules, | think it's 615,
15 he should not be permitted to listen in on this
16 deposition, much less participate.
17 THE COURT: And is he physically there or
18 listening in on the phone? 5
19 MR. STAMOS: Listening in, Judge. f
20 THE COURT: Okay.
21 MR. STAMOS: Yeah. Actually, what we -- what
22 we did was we asked him if we could exclude him, 5
23 pending your call, which we've done, so he |
24 hasn't - he hasn't heard any of the deposition. §
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2 |
1 THE COURT: Okay.
2 MR. STAMOS: And he -- if | may say, Judge,
3 he became involved because he asked the -- my ?

4 client, the estate, if he could attend, and they

5 were willing to have him attend, and | don't }

6 think that witness exclusion rules would apply

7 to a -- to a deposition, which, of course, he

8 could read when it's done anyway, so | don't --

9 | don't think that there are any rules that
10 would prevent him from listening, and he §
11 certainly may not participate. We don't -- we
12 don't -- he won't be allowed to participate.
13 THE COURT: And Mr. Simon, what's the T
14 prejudice of having him present?
15 THE WITNESS: 1 just don't believe he's ;
16 entitled to be present, and from my quick
17 reading online, the witness exclusion rules do
18 apply to depositions, and | don't want his 1
19 testimony to be tainted by listening in or
20 possibly, you know, participating with counsel's 1
21 questioning of our witness.
22 THE COURT: If that's the basis of your %

23 objection, that is overruled because the witness

24 exclusion under Rule 615 does not apply to

BB eI pRe s s
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depositions. Rule 30C specifically says that.
2 It provides that deposition testimony should

3 proceed as if at trial, and the Federal Rules of

4 Evidence apply except for Rules 103 and 615, so
5 Rule 615 does not apply.
6 Your objection is overruled and he may
7 be present. He, of course, may not participate.
8 | will accept your representation with that, but
9 he may be present, listening in on the
10 deposition.
11 MR. SIMON: Okay.
12 THE COURT: So you should proceed forward and

13 he can listen in.

14 MR. SIMON: Thank you, your Honor.

15 MR. STAMOS: Thanks, your Honor.

16 THE COURT: Thank you.

17 MR. STAMOS: Appreciate it.

18 THE COURT: Bye.

19 (Whereupon, a discussion was had
20 off the record.)

21 BY MR. STAMOS:
22 Q. What I'm asking is the -- | understand
23 that the -- maybe I'm not using the terminology

24 correctly.
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1 Was there ever a time that the stated

2 benefit of the policy was other than $2 million?

3 | understand that the amount to be paid would

4 have varied based upon loans, but was there ever
5 a time that it was other than $2 million or g
6 greater than $2 million?

7 A. |don't think | can answer the

8 question.

9 Q. Why not?
10 A. Because | don't understand what you're
11 saying. §
12 Q. Okay. | buy an insurance policy. It ‘

13 says a million dollars on it, a million dollars
14 of life insurance. | understand that there are
15 instances in which the payment of a million upon
16 someone's death might be reduced due to

17 intervening events, but the million -- piece of
18 paper still says a million on it, right?

19 Okay. Now, my question is: With
20 regard to the policy of '82, which is policy ,
21 No. 1009208, | think we can all agree that's
22 what it is, was there ever a time that the face
23 amount of that policy was ever greater than

24 2 million?
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1 A. Not to my knowledge.
2 Q. Allright. Are you aware at any point
3 at which an application was made to increase the
4 benefit amount from 2 million to 3 million?
5 A. Not to my knowledge.
6 Q. Allright. So back to the -- you said
7 that there would be a discussion, likely
8 annually, about the -- about the policy. | take
9 it that would be because you'd have to file an
10 annual 55007?
11 A. Yes.
12 Q. Allright. Other than that, when is
13 the next time you recall a -- strike that.
14 When was the first time you talked to
15 Simon Bernstein about the existence of that
16 policy, other than Mr. Klink?
17 A. 1987.
18 Q. Allright. Who was present for that
19 conversation?
20 A. Dov Kahana, myself, and Mr. Bernstein.
21 Q. And Dov Kahana was Mr. Bernstein's
22 business partner?
23 A. In one of his businesses, yes.
Q. Okay. In which business?
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1 A. Cambridge Associates.

2 Q. What was the business of Cambridge
3 Associates?

4 A. General insurance brokerage, | believe.
5 Q. Okay. What was the occasion for

6 discussing the 1982 policy?

7 A. Simon Bernstein was significantly in

8 debt and did not have the money to pay the

9 premium.

10 Q. Okay. What was the premium? Do you
11 recall?

12 A. No.

13 Q. And who said what to who in that

14 conversation about that topic?

15 A. Simon said to Dov we have to pay the
16 premium.

17 Q. Anyone else say anything in that

18 conversation?

19 A. I'm sure, but that was the gist of’the

20 conversation.

21 Q. Allright. What -- what came from
22 that?
23 A. | believe either the premium was paid

24 or they started to borrow against the cash value
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1 to pay the premium.
2 MR. STAMOS: Bill, is that you?
3 MR. STANSBURY: I'm here. f
4 MR. STAMOS: Got it.
5 MR. STANSBURY: Thank you. 1

6 BY MR. STAMOS:

7 Q. And at that time when you first spoke

8 to him -- Mr. Bernstein about it, were you aware

9 of who the beneficiary was? Was it still the
10 VEBA as far as you knew?
11 A. Yes. §
12 Q. Did you become aware at any point of a

13 change in beneficiary?

14 A. Yes. g
15 Q. When was that?
16 A. Sometime around 1995.
17 Q. And from whom and to whom was the

18 beneficiary changed?

19 A. Beneficiary was still the VEBA and a
20 contingent beneficiary was named as the
21 irrevocable life insurance trust. é
22 Q. How did you become aware of that in
23 19957

24 A. Saw the change of beneficiary forms,
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1 helped Mr. Bernstein design the trust, and

2 signed off on the change of forms. E

3 Q. Do you do trust work? Do you prepare
4 trusts? :
5 A. lhave. | don't regularly, no.

6 Q. Allright. You're aware that there was

7 a -- that the claim here is that a 1995 trust
8 existed, correct?

9 A. | know a 1995 trust existed.

R B e B B

BT

10 Q. Did Mr. -- prior to the -- to 1995 or
11 prior to the date designated as the date of the

12 reported trust of '95, did Mr. Bernstein ever

13 have another trust, prior trust? ?
14 A. Yes.
15 Q. Okay. What year was that trust?
16 A. The VEBA trust was, | believe, in the
17 early '80s.
18 Q. Did he ever have any other trusts that ‘
19 you're aware of? ﬁ
20 A. Subsequent to that or prior?
21 Q. Prior to 1995.
22 A. Not that I'm aware of.
23 Q. Tell me the first time you ever had a i

24 conversation with Mr. Bernstein about a trust in
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1 1995.
2 A. We discussed his making application for §

3 additional death benefit. My wife and I had

4 just completed our own irrevocable life

5 insurance trusts and made applications to

6 Lincoln Benefit. He wished to get more

7 insurance. That was the first time.

8 Q. Okay. And when you say more insurance,
9 what insurance are you talking about? Are you

10 talking about adding the Lincoln Benefit policy?

11 A. More death benefit.

12 Q. On the Capitol Bank -- Bankers policy?

13 A. No. No, a new policy. More death

14 benefit for himself -
15 Q. Okay.
16 A. --for-- on his life. 5
17 Q. Aliright. Did he do that?
18 A. Yes.
19 Q. And what company did he obtain that
20 insurance from?
21 A. Lincoln Benefit Life. Q
22 Q. Okay. That's the one you told me about

23 earlier?

24 A. Yes.
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30 |
1 Q. Okay. And that's -- when you say he
2 owned another policy, you're saying that's a :

3 policy that he -- that he initiated in 1995?
4 A. | believe that's the date. re
5 Q. Allright. And that's the policy that

6 you believed was not in force at the time of his

D e L P e e R 2 e

7 death?
8 A. | believe that's correct. g
9 Q. And you think he added $200,000 to the

10 death benefit?

11 A. 1think the policy had a face amount of
12 $200,000.

13 Q. Okay. Why did he want -- if he had a
14 policy that paid 2 million, why did he -- why 2

15 did he want 10 percent more?

16 MR. SIMON: Objection for speculation. |
17 BY MR. STAMOS:
18 Q. Why?
19 A. | know he was trying to get as much é

20 death benefit as he could. He was uninsurable
21 up until that point, and | believe this was a

22 highly rated policy also.

23 Q. Allright. So tell me the first time

24 you and Mr. Bernstein had a conversation about
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1 the trust. What did you say to him and what did

2 he say to you?

3 MR. SIMON: Can | just make a general point? ;g
4 MR. STAMOS: Yeah.
5 MR. SIMON: There's -- there's so many §
6 Mr. Bernsteins here that | think it's best if z
7 you --
8 MR. STAMOS: That's fine. %

9 MR. SIMON: Yeah.
10 MR. STAMOS: | have no problem.
11 BY MR. STAMOS:
12 Q. With regard to the 1995 trust that is
13 referred to in the complaint, in your complaint,
14 when was the first time you ever had a
15 conversation with Simon Bernstein about that?
16 A. 1995.
17 Q. And what did you say to him and what
18 did he say to you in the course of that
19 conversation?
20 A. It's privileged. | was acting as his
21 attorney at that time.
22 Q. So you were acting as his attorney with
23 regard to the trust?

24 A. In the first conversation, yes.

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
Chicago, lllinois (312) 263-0052




Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 240-8 Filed 05/21/16 Page 33 of 117 PagelD 4020

Case:17-3505  Document: 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018  Pages' 547

32
1 Q. Now, wait a minute. 2
2 A. Subsequently, | do not, but -- %
3 Q. Now, wait a minute. Let's get

4 organized here.
5 There's a complaint that's filed
6 describing your interactions with Mr. Bernstein
7 about that trust, which | assume you plan to ;g
8 testify about?
9 A. Absolutely. .
10 Q. But you're going to not testify about
11 the start of those conversation -- the first of
12 those conversations? ;
13 A. You know, in general, you asked me very
14 specific questions about what did he say and
15 what did | say.
16 Q. Right.
17 A. So in the first conversation, yes, he
18 came to me as an attorney, so | --it's

19 privileged conversation.

20 Q. When did it stop being privileged?

21 A. Right after the first conversation. !
22 Q. What made it stop being privileged? %
23 A. | said | wouldn't act as his attorney a

24 regarding the trust.

S T
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1 Q. Isn't what you told me just now
2 privileged? j
3 A. No.
4 Q. Why not? %
5 A. Because | said it after we discussed
7 Q. Who else was present for this §
8 conversation?
9 A. Just himself and .
10 Q. Well, | take it you're going to refuse
11 to answer questions with regard to that §
12 conversation, based upon privilege? |
13 A. The first conversation.
14 Q. I'm sorry, | don't mean to be clever,
15 but explain to me again how that remains 5
16 privileged and -- and --
17 A. It's where I'm not acting as an
18 attorney for him, it's not privilege. It's his
19 privilege to assert. *
20 Q. Does it -- does it survive his death? :
21 A. As far as | understand, it does.
22 Q. And it can be waived by the estate?
23 A. Don't know. ;
24 MR. STAMOS: Does the estate have an ‘
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o |
1 objection to Mr. Simon testifying about that ;
2 conversation?
3 MS. FOGLIETTA: Can you repeat that? It's a
4 little hard to hear.
5 MR. STAMOS: Yes. l've asked Mr. Simon about
6 the first conversation he had with Simon
7 Bernstein about the trust alleged to exist in é
8 the complaint, and Mr. Simon has asserted a &
9 privilege based upon -- an attorney-client
10 privilege with Mr. Bernstein regarding that
11 first conversation. ’;
12 | don't frankly remember the law on
13 whether that privilege survives his death, but
14 assuming that it does, | believe the estate can
15 waive it, the estate controls it, so | asked 3
16 whether the estate has an objection to his ;
17 testimony about that first conversation.
18 MS. FOGLIETTA: No, no objection. ’
19 MR. SIMON: | will sus- -- or reassert the ?
20 objection, based on privilege. It's my
21 understanding that privilege does survive when
22 it is involved with an individual but not a
23 corporation. | don't think the estate has the ;
24 right to waive that privilege. | think
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N

Mr. Simon has a duty to assert the privilege up
2 to the point where he was no longer acting as
3 the attorney with regard to the trust, and from
4 a practical standpoint -- well, I'll just leave

5 it at that.

T

6 MR. STAMOS: But who does control the

7 privilege if not the estate?

8 MR. SIMON: It just survives.

9 MR. STAMOS: Well, but | mean, it can't be
10 waived by anybody?
11 MR. SIMON: | don't believe it can. z
12 MR. STAMOS: Well, | certainly think it can,

13 and the estate -- if the estate doesn't control

B R e R

14 it, nobody controls it. It's not a -- it

15 doesn't -- | know --

16 MS. FOGLIETTA: | agree, and the estate
17 controls it. g
18 MR. STAMOS: Yeah. So based upon the estate
19 having waived the privilege with regard to that

20 answer, | ask you to answer the question.

21 MR. SIMON: Could we go off the record for a

22 moment?

23 MR. STAMOS: Sure.

24
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1 (Whereupon, a discussion was had 5}
2 off the record.) :
3 MR. STAMOS: Back on the record.

4 So we'll certify the question, deal g
5 with it at a later time. :

6 BY MR. STAMOS:
7 Q. Let's move on to the -- so following
8 this conversation with Mr. Bernstein that you

9 don't contend was privileged, what's the next

10 conversation or the continuation of that %
11 interaction about the trust? é
12 A. So | showed him the trust that |

13 received from Hopkins & Sutter. We discussed

14 how he would want that trust changed for him. |
15 mocked one up. | gave it to him and told him he
16 had to go to Hopkins & Sutter to have it

17 executed.

18 Q. Allright. So when you say you showed
19 him the ones from -- the one from Hopkins & §

20 Sutter, is that the one Hopkins & Sutter had

21 prepared for you? !
22 A. Yes. %
23 Q. And when you say you mocked it up, how i

24 was that not practicing law for him?
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1 A. Iwas not doing it as his attorney. |

N

was filling it in almost as a secretary for him

3 to change some of the names.

4 Q. Who was the lawyer at Hopkins & Sutter?
5 A. Jim Hammond, | believe.
6 Q. Say what?
7 A. James Hammond.
8 Q. James Hammond? 5
9 A. Yeah.
10 Q. Is he still -- | know Hop- -- | know
11 Hopkins is no longer in existence, but is he

12 still practicing?
13 A. No, he does not.
14 Q. How do you know?
15 A. He died. ;
16 Q. Allright. Who is the lawyer at ?

17 Hopkins & Sutter -- strike that.

18 Did you -- did -- to your knowledge,

19 did Simon then -- Mr. Bernstein then interact
20 with Hopkins & Sutter?

21 A. | believe so.

Q. With whom?
A. |don't know.
Q

Was it Mr. Hammond?
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1 A. ldon't know.

2 Q. To your knowledge, was Hopkins & Sutter
3 involved in the execution of his trust?

4 A. | believe so.

5 Q. What makes you believe that?

6 A. Si said that Hopkins & Sutter or an

7 attorney at Hopkins & Sutter helped him execute
8 the will -- | mean the trust.
9 Q. Well, we'll get to that conversation in

10 a_second, okay, and -- but you never learned who

11 it was there?
12 A. No.
13 Q. Did you ever tell Mr. Hammond I'm

14 sending over my father-in-law to do for him what
15 you did for me?

16 A. 1did not. Simon had his own

17 relationships at Hopkins & Sutter.

18 Q. And with whom did he have

19 relationships?

20 A. Several folks.

21 Q. Who?

22 A. Henry Lawrie.

23 Q. Is Henry still alive?
24 A. | believe so.
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1 Q. Okay. Who else? %
2 A. Brad Ferguson.
3 Q. Okay. Who else? 1
4 A. ldon't know. z
5 Q. And of that -- of those two, do you

6 believe either of them participated with him in

7 creating this trust you talked about?

8 A. Be pure speculation. ‘
9 MR. STAMOS: Off the record for a second. f
10 (Whereupon, a discussion was had {
11 off the record and a short
12 break was taken.) ‘
13 MR. STAMOS: All right. We're back on.

14 BY MR. STAMOS:

15 Q. Well, in the declaratory judgment

16 portion of your compilaint, it states that --

17 Paragraph 29: On or about June 21, 1995, David
18 Simon -- that's you, right? -- an attorney, and

19 Simon Bernstein's son-in-law met with Simon

20 Bernstein before Simon Bernstein went to the law
21 offices of Hopkins & Sutter in Chicago, lllinois

22 to finalize and execute the Bernstein trust

23 agreement.

24 You're familiar with that allegation?
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1 A. lam.
2 Q. Allright. Tell me what the facts are
3 surrounding the allegations in that ?
4 Paragraph 29. }
5 A. Gave him a draft of the document to go
6 to Hopkins & Sutter to have it finalized and
7 executed. §
8 Q. Allright. And this is a document that
9 you had taken, the one that had been prepared
10 for you, and changed it to give effect to what
11 Simon -- for Simon. That's your testimony? g
12 A. Yes.
13 Q. And was it in final form? g
14 A. No.
15 Q. In what form was it?
16 A. Near final form.
17 Q. Allright. And tell me what you and
18 Simon said to each other on the 21st before he
19 went to this meeting.
20 A. | believe | spoke to him the day before z
21 and said | would make changes. | took notes on
22 another draft of the document and then utilized
23 those notes to have the document modified to
24 reflect those additional desires, and | handed
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1 itto him. *‘
2 Q. What was it that Mr. Simon told you ;
3 what he wanted the trust to do?
4 MR. SIMON: Strike -- objection on form. j
5 MR. STAMOS: I'm sorry. You're right. f
6 BY MR. STAMOS: Q
7 Q. What was it that Mr. Bernstein told you "
8 he wanted the trust to do in that conversation
9 the day before the 21st? z
10 A. Take care of his wife and children.
11 Q. And did you draft terms that would do 5
12 that, to the best of your ability?
13 A. Yes. {
14 Q. Any other conversation you had with
15 Mr. Bernstein?
16 A. Yes.
17 Q. What did you say to him and what did he ;
18 say to you?
19 A. He asked me to be the trustee after 3
20 Shirley, and at first, | said yes, but at that %
21 night, | thought about it and asked him to j
22 remove me as trustee, and instead, replace it E
23 sequentially with his children.
24 Q. And did you make changes to the form of §
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1 it at that point to give effect to that change? :
2 A. No.
3 Q. What happened about that? E
4 A. He took the draft that | had given him
5 and left.

6 Q. And then in Paragraph 30, it says after 3
7 the meeting, you reviewed the final version.
8 You recall those -- that allegation?

9 I'm paraphrasing, but that's what it says,

10 correct?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. Was it that day?

13 A. | believe the day | reviewed it was the

14 day of the 21st, but it could have been the
15 22nd.
16 Q. Allright. What did you say to him and Z
17 what did he say to you after that -- after that %
18 meeting? Did you have -- strike that.
19 Did you have a conversation with him %

20 after the meeting took place, whenever you first

21 had occasion to converse with, him about the
22 trust?
23 A. Thank you, and thank you for removing

24 me and replacing me with Ted, sign these forms
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1 here and this form here and this form here.
2 Q. So when he brought it back to you, it §
3 was not yet signed?
4 A. His was signed. I'm talking about the
5 change of owner -- | mean the change of i
6 beneficiary forms that we would submit, as well é
7 as the change of beneficiary forms for Lincoln
8 Benefit as -- and any other form that would need
9 to be submitted to the insurance carriers. j
10 Q. So if we got the records of Lincoln
11 Benefit, we would see a beneficiary form
12 indicating that funds from that policy were to
13 be paid to a 1995 trust? ,%
14 MR. SIMON: Obijection, assumes facts not in @
15 evidence, form.
16 THE WITNESS: | believe so.
17 BY MR. STAMOS:
18 Q. Have you ever tried to do that? Has f
19 anyone on behalf of your family ever undertaken
20 to do that, to investigate the records of
21 Lincoln? %
22 A. | know we called and asked to see if g
23 they had a copy of the trust, but that's all %
24 that I'm -- believe we've done. {
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1 Q. Did they have a copy of the trust?
2 A. Not to my knowledge. ;
3 Q. Now, what other documents -- strike ;
4 that
5 He had already -- so when he came back

6 from Hopkins & Sutter, he had a signed document, g;
7 correct?
8 A. Correct. :
9 Q. And he'd obviously left a copy with
10 Hopkins & Sutter, correct?
11 A. No idea. §
12 Q. Now, we're both lawyers. We've both
13 been in the business a long time. I've never,
14 ever, ever heard of a -- of a firm that drafts a
15 trust and doesn't keep a copy, in the word
16 processor, if no place else, but executed copy.
17 Did you call Hopkins & Sutter to see
18 whether there's a -- there's a document -- a .
19 copy of this document in their files? |
20 A. Well, Hopkins & Sutter no longer
21 exists, but we did follow up with their
22 successor firm, as well as some of the attorneys
23 who broke away from Hopkins & Sutter and started

24 their own firm.
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1 Q. Okay. And what did you find?
2 A. Neither had a copy of the executed
3 trust.
4 Q. Who did you talk to? And who did the i

5 talking for you if not you?

6 A. Yeah, | don't know.
7 Q. You don't know who you talked to -- I'm
8 sorry.
9 You don't know who was spoken to at -- 5

10 for those lawyers?

R R O R A S TR,

11 A. Right.

12 Q. Who made the contact with them?
13 A. I'm not sure. I'd have to look.
14 Q. What are the -- what are the choices?
15 A. Anybody in our offices. f
16 Q. Well, probably not anybody in your §
17 office.
18 | mean, who do you think are the likely

19 candidates to have done the investigation to ,,&

20 determine whether the trust existed?

21 MR. SIMON: Objection, asked and answered.
22 THE WITNESS: Could be anyone that's in our
23 office that was just assigned to make the phone

24 call. I mean, | don't know.
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1 BY MR. STAMOS: 5
2 Q. Who asked them to do it?
3 A. Might have been Pam, might have been i
4 me, might have been Adam. é
5 Q. So when the complaint says -- refers j
6 to the -- let me see if | can pull up the
7 correct page here. ‘
8 MR. SIMON: Can we get a copy of the
9 complaint?
10 MR. STAMOS: | don't know if we have a copy
11 here. | don't -- | don't intend to make it an
12 exhibit, but | could make you a copy if you need
13 to. j
14 BY MR. STAMOS:
15 Q. So where the complaint says in {
16 Paragraph 35, as diligent searches were made of i
17 Ted Bernstein and the other Bernstein family
18 members; of Simon Bernstein's home and business; ;
19 the law offices of Tescher & Spallina; the
20 offices of Foley & Lardner, successor to 7
21 Hopkins & Sutter; and the office of the Simon
22 Law Firm, who -- who is it who investigated, %
23 first of all, with respect to the offices of
24 Foley & Lardner? 5
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1 A. | don't know the person's name off the i
2 top of my head. I'd have to look.
3 Q. Idon't mean to be clever, but that ;
4 sounds like an awful important issue for this ;
5 whole litigation. | find it kind of astonishing j
6  thatit could have been a secretary that called %
7 and gave -- came up with the answer. | mean, is
8 that really what might have happened? 2
9 A. | don't find it astonishing. We work
10 in the business, so it's not a big deal to make %
11 a phone call, so it's very possible. 2
12 Q. Okay. But you don't know who was
13 spoken to at the -- at Foley & Lardner? ‘
14 MR. SIMON: Objection, asked and answered. %
15 THE WITNESS: Not as [ sit here today.
16 BY MR. STAMOS: ){
17 Q. Okay. Who made the -- who investigated
18 the -- in the offices of the Simon Law Firm to :
19 see whether a copy existed? g
20 A. Myself, Adam Simon, and Cheryl
21 Sychowski.
22 Q. And the law offices of Tescher &
23 Spallina, who investigated there?
24 A. | don't know.

R e e R G E aR
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1 Q. And how about Ted Bernstein -- about
2 Ted Bernstein and Simon Bernstein's home and
3 business office? %
4 A. ldon't know.
5 Q. Who would I -- whose deposition would |
6 take to find out about that, to find out the
7 answers to those questions?
8 A. ldon't know.
9 Q. So nobody might know? }
10 A. Well, | would -- | would assume that in L
11 Tescher & Spallina, you would ask Tescher &
12 Spallina --
13 Q. That's the easy way. %
14 A. -- and Ted Bernstein, you would ask Ted
15 Bernstein, and for Simon Bernstein, you would 2
16 probably ask Tescher & Spallina.
17 Q. Allright. And after you have this
18 conversation with Mr. -- with Simon Bernstein Q
19 when he came back from the office, what's the
20 next time you had a conversation with him about
21 his -- about that trust?
22 A. After we changed the beneficiaries, | 5
23 don't believe | had a subsequent conversation §
24 until he mentioned it in 2012.

A R L DRt
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1 Q. Okay.
2 A. Actually, he didn't mention the trust.
3 He mentioned the insurance policy. ”
4 Q. Allright. We'll get to that in just a

5 second.

6 At the time that -- in 1995, were you

7 and he working in the same office, physically?
8 A. He had an office there. He seldom came
9 to Chicago. He was living in Florida.

10 Q. Okay. Was there a time when he stopped

T O e

11 coming to Chicago?
12 A. He no longer had an office in Chicago

13 in 1996, but he has family here.

A e T T 2

14 Q. You've seen this 2000 trust, correct?
15 MR. SIMON: Objection. You're referring to

16 some other trust. We'd like to see it.

T e 2 e T S ey

17 MR. STAMOS: Do you have a copy?

18 MS. FOGLIETTA: It's a little hard to hear. 3
19 Would you mind speaking up a little?
20 MR. STAMOS: Yeah, | will. g
21 BY MR. STAMOS:
22 Q. Well, before | show that to him, let --
23 let me ask you this: Did you have any ;
24 conver- -- when's the next -- after 1995,
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1 this -- the June 1995 event we've been

2 discussing, what's the next time you had a

3 conversation with Simon Bernstein about any
4 trust?

5 A. Well, | don't know how long it took to

6 complete the change of beneficiary forms and
7 have them come back, but after that process?

8 Q. Yes.

N R

9 A. | don't believe | spoke to him about

10 the trust again.

11 Q. Okay. ;
12 A. Until the 2012, and again, the
13 reference was more to the policy and not the
14 trust. ﬂ
15 Q. Okay. So let's talk about that, then.

16 So if we're thinking about two -- two concepts,
17 the existence of the insurance policy that we're
18 all litigating about and the existence of the

19 trust, what you're telling me is, after whatever
20 took place in this -- 1995 took place with

21 regard to a new beneficiary and so forth, you
22 never had a conversation with him about either
23 thing until 2012, and at that time, you had a

24 conversation about the insurance policy?

S B B e D A A R R o]
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1 A. Did have a conversation with him about ;
2 the policy, yes. ..
3 Q. Okay. And when in 20127 *

4 A. No, no. In 1998. “é

6 A. But | didn't have another conversation

7 about...

8 Q. Allright. '98's a new year for us, so

9 let's talk about that.
10 What -- who was present for the
11 conversation in 19987 f
12 A. Myself and Mr. Bernstein.
13 Q. And what did you say to him and what

AR T

14 did he say to you?
15 A. Let's voluntarily dissolve the S.B.
16 Lexington VEBA and S.B. Lexington Corporation.

17 Q. Okay.

18 A. And | voluntarily dissolved them.

19 Q. Aliright. Was there a discussion

20 about the wisdom of that or why do it? Why do %
21 it? :
22 A. There was a discussion about the wisdom %
23 of that. i
24 Q. Okay. I'd like you to tell me what you
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1 said to him and what he said to you in that

2 conversation.

15 dissolution of the VEBA, what other conversation

3 A. |said let's dissolve S.B. Lexington
4 and you've got a lot of tax issues that you need ?
5 to bury, and the quicker we do it, the better.
6 Q. Okay. Did he agree to that?
7 A. Yes.
8 Q. Allright. What did he say to you in
9 that conversation?
10 A. Dissolve the corporation.
11 Q. Did you perform the work necessary to
12 achieve that?
13 A. 1did.
14 Q. And other than discussing the
é

16 was there, if any, about the insurance policy?
17 A. That the death benefit would now go to
18 the contingent beneficiary, which is the 1995

19 irrevocable life insurance trQst.

20 Q. And was there any other discussion at

21 that time?

22 A. No.

23 Q. Was there ever another discussion about

24 the insurance policy before he died?
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A. 2012

[N

2 Q. Allright. And where did that

3 conversation take place?

4 A. 1 was on the telephone. 3
S Q. And did you call him or did he call
6 you?
7 A. | believe he arranged a conference

8 call. I don't remember if everyone was called
9 or we called in to a number, but there was a
10 conference call amongst the children, some of
11 the spouses, Mr. Spallina, and Simon Bernstein.
12 Q. Okay. And what -- who said what to
13 whom in that conference call?
14 I'm sorry. Let me interrupt myself for
15 a second.
16 What was the date of that call, the

17 best you can recall?

18 A. A few months before he died. | don't
19 know.
20 Q. Allright. And he was in Florida at

21 that time?

22 A. | wasn't there, but | believe he was in

Florida.
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1 A. He was on the phone, so | can't tell

2 you really where he was.

3 Q. Okay. And tell me what everybody said
4 in that conversation to the best you can recall. ,
5 A. The gist of it was that Simon was going |

6 to change his will and estate to leave his
7 estate and trust to the ten grandchildren, that
8 the life insurance policy proceeds would go to
9 the five children, and that he hoped this would
10 end some of the acrimony within the family.
11 Mr. Spallina introduced Simon and
12 introduced the reason for the call, then each of
13 the children were asked to agree, and each of
14 the children agreed, even though, in my mind,
15 they didn't have to agree anyway.
16 Q. When you say that he was referring to
17 disputes in the family, what was that about?
18 A. He felt that there was a lot of
19 acrimony within the family.
20 Q. About what?
21 A. A whole number of things, as far as |
22 know. His girlfriend, his treatment of some of
23 the children and grandchildren.

24 Q. In what way treatment? Financially?
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1 MR. SIMON: Object, relevance. “
2 THE WITNESS: You're asking my opinion? | §
3 would say emotionally, but financially, if, you
4 know, if you mean two of the children had a
5 clause inside of a trust that if in certain §
6 instances, they would be disinherited, and that
7 translated down to the lineal descendants of the
8 two. f
9 BY MR. STAMOS:
10 Q. And who were the children who would
11 have been disinherited?
12 A. In this narrow exception, it would have
13 been Pam and Ted and their children. 2
14 Q. And what would have -- what was the
16 narrow exception? ‘
16 A. All for distributions made under a
17 trust. j
18 Q. Was there any further discussion in vs
19 that conversation about the insurance policy %
20 beyond what you've described? i
21 A. Just that it was left to the five §
22 children.
23 Q. At the time that you were involved in
24 that conversation, were you aware of whatever
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1 trusts existed at that time?
2 A. | was aware of the 1995 trust. | was ’*
3 not aware of any other trusts.
4 Q. When did you become -- ‘
5 A. Other than -- you're talking about g
6 Simon's life in- -- are you talking about life
7 insurance trusts? %
8 Q. No, no. Just trusts. E
9 A. | was aware -- | was aware of Shirley's a
10 trust.
11 Q. You've since learned of a series of
12 trusts that Simon Bernstein executed, correct?
13 A. Some. I don't know if I'd call it a E
14 series, but --
15 Q. Well, you're aware that he -- that
16 after 19 -- that after the year 1995, his é
17 signature appears on trusts in a number of
18 successive -- succeeding years, not in -- not sé
19 years in a row, but a number of years -- start §
20 again.
21 After the year 1995, you're aware
22 that -- you are now aware that there are trusts
23 dated in various years between 2000 and 2012, é%
24 right?
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1 MR. SIMON: Object, speculation. :’
2 THE WITNESS: I'm aware of one other trust,

3 yes.

4 BY MR. STAMOS:

5 Q. Which other trust are you aware of?

6 A. |saw itin the litigation. | think it

7 was drafted by somebody at Proskauer Rose.

8 Q. And what year was that trust?

9 A. I'd have to see it. If you showed it
10 to me, | would --
11 Q. Okay. | guess what I'm asking is: Are
12 you currently aware, beyond the trust that was
13 drafted by the Proskauer firm, are you aware
14 today of any other trusts that Mr. -- that Simon
15 Bernstein executed prior to his death?
16 A. Yes. There is the Simon Bernstein
17 Trust that has to do with his, you know, last

18 will and trust.

19 Q. Allright. Are you aware of any
20 intervening trusts before then -- between 1995
21 and before the trust that you believe you're

22 aware of?
23 A. And the 2000 one | spoke about?
24 Q. Right. Any others?

e B AR O 4 S S P DR e
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58 |
1 A. No. é
2 Q. Allright. What's your understanding

3 of the significance of the -- of the trust the

4 Proskauer firm prepared? !
5 MR. SIMON: Objection, calls for speculation. f
6 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any
7 significance. j
8 BY MR. STAMOS: %
9 Q. Have you ever made any analysis of its ;
10 relevance to this litigation or to your position f
11 or your family's position in this litigation? j
12 A. No. l
13 Q. Am | correct, if you're successful in

14 this litigation, your wife will receive

15 roughly a -- a fifth of whatever the proceeds
16 are that are -- have been paid into court,

17 correct? (
18 A. Yes. ?
19 Q. What does that calculate out to about,
20 350,000, 300,000, something like that?

21 MR. SIMON: Obiject, speculation.

22 MR. STAMOS: Well, it's math. It's

23 arithmetic.
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59 |
1 BY MR. STAMOS: é
2 Q. Have you ever done the math? I've got ]

3 334,000. Does that sound about right? .

4 A. It could be correct, yes.
5 Q. Allright. That's all I'm asking.
6 But that's how much she would receive, 5

7 correct?

8 MR. SIMON: Obiject to speculation.

9 THE WITNESS: Pre-fees, yes, | believe so. ?
10 BY MR. STAMOS: 3
11 Q. Okay. Allright. Now, have you ever z

12 had conversations with -- well, strike that.

13 When did you first become -- when was

T e P

14 the first attempt made to locate the 1995 trust
15 document?

16 A. | believe some times in the winter of
17 2012, 2013.

18 Q. And what was the first steps taken to

19 locate it?

20 A. |don't believe | took the first steps.

21 Ibelieve -
22 Q. Who did?
23 A. Whoever had Si's documents and f

24 materials. Somebody in Florida.
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1 Q. Who?
2 A. ldon't know, but | -- you know, | 5

3 would guess Donald Tescher and Robert Spallina.
4 Q. Okay. And do you recall being advised
5 that they were unable to locate such a document?
6 A. Yes.
7 Q. When did Spallina first become aware
8 that there was a -- that there was purportedly a
9 1995 document?
10 A. ldon't know.
11 Q. He must have -- according to your
12 testimony, he must have been aware of that prior
13 to the conversation or certainly during the
14 conversation, the conference call you described,
15 correct?

16 A. | assume, but | don't know when that

T e e T e Ty

17 happened. He may have become aware of it in

18 2005 or 2000 --

S e T

19 Q. Truly. é
20 A. | have no idea. ‘g
21 Q. Truly. But certainly no later -- when c

22 that conversation started, it wasn't your

e e e

23 impression that as Simon Bernstein was

describing the policy that that was the first
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1 time Spallina ever heard about it, correct? g
2 A. | was unaware if it was under that ;
3 trust or any other trust during that ;

4 conversation.

5 Q. Isee. So at that point, that

6 conversation, you would have been unaware

7 whether the trust that Simon Bernstein was

8 referring to as being the beneficiary for the

9 policy would have been a 1995 trust or some
10 other trust? |
11 MR. SIMON: Objection. It's facts not in g

12 evidence.

23 referred to the proceeds of the policy.

13 MR. STAMOS: That's a speaking objection. é
14 There aren't facts in evidence because we're E
15 talking -- we're getting the evidence now here, ;
16 SO -- %
17 THE WITNESS: But | don't believe | said what §
18 you said. | -- g
19 BY MR. STAMOS:
20 Q. I misunderstood you, then.
21 A. Yeah. | don't think he referred to a
22 trust in the phone conversation. | think he

24 Q. Okay. And when is -- to your
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1 knowledge, when is the first time that é
2 Mr. Spallina would have become aware that there z
3 was a purported 1995 trust?
4 MR. SIMON: Obijection, speculation.
5 THE WITNESS: No idea. g
6 BY MR. STAMOS: 2
7 Q. Who was the principal contact with ‘
8 Mr. Spallina after Simon Bernstein died, on
9 behalf of the family?
10 A. | assume Ted Bernstein, but | don't
11 know for sure. g
12 Q. Did you have any conversations with 5
13 Mr. Spallina?
14 A. Right after his death, no. Have | had
15 conversations with Mr. Spallina, yes. g
16 Q. And did Mr. Spallina ever -- did you §
17 ever have conversations with him about the trust
18 itself?
19 A. Yes. ;
20 Q. And about its creation? %
21 A. | believe so. %
22 Q. When was the first time you had such a z:
23 conversation? g
24 A. Be the winter of '12-'13.
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1 Q. Was there ever a discussion with him

2 about this trust that was executed in 2000 -- .

3 MR. STAMOS: What's the date of that trust? 3
4 MR. HORAN: August 15th. i
5 MR. STAMOS: Of what year? i
6 MR. HORAN: 2000. i
7 BY MR. STAMOS:
8 Q. Did you ever have a conversation with

9 Mr. Spallina about a trust that was executed by

10 Mr. Simon Bernstein in August of 2000 --

11 August 15th of 20007

12 A. I'm not sure.

13 Q. When did you first become aware that

14 such a document might exist?
15 A. During the course of the litigation.
16 Q. And did you have any conversations with

17 Mr. Spallina once you learned of its existence?

18 A. I'm not sure it was Mr. Spallina.

19 Q. Who did you talk to? 7‘
20 A. | believe it was Alan Rose.
21 Q. Who's Alan Rose? M\
22 A. He's an attorney.

23 Q. With who?

24 A. ldon't remember the firm.
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1 Q. Why Mr. Rose?
2 A. Oh, he was representing Ted Bernstein,
3 and during the course of the conversation, Eliot %
4 Bernstein had brought up the 2000 trust in one 3
5 of his pleadings, and Mr. Rose said it was
6 unfunded, and it's very possible Mr. Spallina 3
7 echoed that sentiment.
8 Q. Unfunded in what sense? 3;
9 A. That there's no res in the trust.
10 Q. Were there any -- was there ever any ;
11 discussion of the fact that that trust had E
12 indicated that one of its assets was a -- the
13 1982 insurance policy?
14 A. | think that was the conversation | :
15 just referred to.
16 Q. Right. And did anyone -- | mean, it %
17 wasn't funded, but did anyone discuss the
18 significance or the relevance of the i
19 relationship of that trust to the proceeds of g
20 the '82 policy? @‘
21 A. Just that it was to be ignored.
22 Q. Because -- because it had never been §
23 made a beneficiary of the -- of the policy? 3
24 A. Because it was unfunded. f

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
Chicago, lllinois (312) 263-0052




Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 240-8 Filed 05/21/16 Page 66 of 117 PageID 4053

Case: 17-3595 Document; 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018
1 Q. |don't know what that means.

2 A. No race.

3 Q. | know that. That wasn't my question,

4 though.

5 There would be a race if the proceeds

6 of the policy were paid into it, correct?
7 MR. SIMON: Obijection, facts not in evidence.
8 THE WITNESS: Not necessarily. Probably it
9 would have been held in constructive trust for
10 the beneficiary, but because it was never named
11 a beneficiary of the policy, it was --
12 BY MR. STAMOS:
13 Q. That's what I'm getting at. All I'm
14 trying to -- I'm not trying to be tricky. All
15 I'm -- my only point is your understanding was
16 the 2000 trust was not relevant here because it
17 had never been made a beneficiary of the policy

18 from '827?

19 A. And that Simon didn't wish it to be.
20 Q. How did you conclude that?

21 A. That's what | was told.

22 Q. By whom?

23 A. | believe either Mr. Rose or

24 Mr. Spallina.
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1 Q. They told you that Mr. Simon had told ‘
2 them something about the -- about the -- his g
3 desires about the 2000 trust? s
4 A. Correct. *
5 Q. Had he told them that he had intended %
6 it to be paid to the '95 trust? ‘
7 A. To the five children. 3
8 Q. So just so we're clear, at no point - %
9 I think this is what you're telling me: At no é
10 point did Mr. Spallina say Simon Bernstein told ;
11 me that the proceeds of the '82 policy would be
12 paid to a '95 trust. He never said that, ;
13 correct?
14 A. ldon't know.
15 Q. Well, you don't -- you don't remember
16 him saying that, do you?
17 A. | remember him saying something like
18 that he talked about Mr. Bernstein contemplating
19 changing the beneficiary to his girlfriend at }
20 the time, and that instead, he decided to leave 3
21 it as the five children through the trust, but | f
22 don't know that he used the word 1995 at that 5
23 point. {
24 Q. Allright. Because if Mr. Bernstein -- »%
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1 if Mr. Spallina had been aware of the existence %
2 of a 1995 trust, you would agree with me a i
3 prudent attorney would have asked to obtain a
4 copy of that trust, correct?
5 A. | believe he did. 3
6 Q. He asked Mr. Bernstein for that? }
7 A. It's my understanding. é
8 Q. And what -- and what became of that? f
9 A. ldon't know. f
10 Q. He never received it, though, did he?
11 A. lassume not, but | don't know because
12 he didn't produce it. ?
13 Q. Who are ybu aware heard Mr. Spallina
14 say anything that referred to the existence of a %
15 1995 trust?
16 A. All of the children. {
17 Q. In what conversation? ;
18 A. Discussing how to have the proceeds of
19 the trust paid to the -- *
20 Q. This was after death?
21. A. Pardon me? %
22 Q. Was this after Simon's death? }
23 A. Yes.
24 Q. Okay. Goon. I'msorry. | wasn't --
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1 A That's the winter of '12-13,
2 Q. Right. But-- 5
3 A. He died in September, so all the

4 conversations I'm talking about --

5 Q. Are all after death.

6 A. --are all during that period. g
7 Q. But just to revisit it, prior to Simon

8 Bernstein's death -- | don't usually get --

9 sound so formal, Simon Bernstein, but just to
10 keep it clear, I'm going to do that. ¢
11 Prior to Simon Bernstein's death, you
12 are unaware of any conversation in which
13 Mr. Spallina reported or said anything that
14 implied that he was aware that a 1995 trust g
15 existed; am | correct?
16 A. Just the conversation that | referred

17 to in the preceding months.

e e T LT

18 Q. Okay. Butldon't think -- but |

AR

19 think -- | thought | understood you to say in

20 that conversation you don't remember him saying

TR e AV RS S e

21 the word "trust"?
22 A. Correct.
23 Q. Allright. Now, you're aware, | take J

24 it, that the 2000 trust, the terms of that
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1 trust, if it were given effect, would have
2 excluded your wife, correct?
3 A. | have not read the trust.
4 Q. Why not?
5 A. No reason to read it.
6 Q. Why not?
7 A. There's just no reason to read it.
8 Q. Okay. Let's go to a different topic.
9 Do you know Don Sanders? ‘
10 A. Don Sanders?
11 Q. Yes.
12 A. No, | do not.
13 Q. Okay. And how -- do you know how it
14 came to be his affidavit was prepared?
15 A. 1doknow, yes.
16 Q. How?
17 A. Attorney representing the trust sought
18 to seek the deposition of someone from the g
19 servicer for the insurance company and served a
20 notice of deposition and that in the course of 5
21 negotiating that deposition, they agreed to
22 provide an affidavit. ;
23 Q. Who drafted the affidavit?
24 A. 1 don't know.
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1 Q. Who do you think drafted the affidavit?
2 MR. SIMON: Objection, speculation.
3 BY MR. STAMOS:
4 Q. I'm not asking you to speculate, but do
5 you have a -- you have a -- did you ever talk to
6 find out any --
7 MR. SIMON: He said he didn't know -- and he
8 said he didn't know, and then you said who do
9 you think. You're definitely asking him to
10 speculate. He doesn't know.
11 MR. STAMOS: No. There are all sorts of
12 things | think things about that aren't
13 speculation, but | also don't know. | mean,
14 there are gradations to knowledge.
15 THE WITNESS: | would be guessing, but
16 there's --
17 MR. SIMON: Don't guess.
18 BY MR. STAMOS:
19 Q. Okay. Let's see. Aside from
20 discussions regarding a trust in 1995, did you
21 do any other -- did you assist Simon Bernstein
22 in any other way in his personal affairs from
23 1995 forward?
A. Yes.
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1 Q. Like what? g
2 A. Bill paying, litigation, day-to-day §
3 operation of his companies, and occasionally %
4 purchasing gifts for some of his family members,
5 and tickets for himself. ?
6 Q. Did you practice law for him after i
7 19957 Obviously litigation. | assume that :‘
8 would be practicing law for him.
9 A. Yes.
10 Q. What kind of litigation would you help %
11 him with? E
12 A. Depends what came up. Litigation j
13 mostly with 1995 would be ex-business partner.
14 Q. Who was that? é
15 A. Joseph Flanagan. g
16 Q. Was that just litigation over payouts
17 from the business or was there some other issue i
18 involved? Money out of the business? Zj
19 A. Yes. 3
20 Q. Were you aware of the handwritten will
21 that Simon Bernstein prepared? }
22 A. No.
23 Q. You're not aware of that now?
24 A. Nope. %
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1 Q. Have you had occasion to review the g

2 records of that -- that were produced by the
3 insurance company in this case? Have you seen

4 any of them?

5 A. | might have.
6 Q. Do you think you did?
7 A. [ think so. i
8 Q. Did you ever assist -- other than 1995

9 as you've described, was there ever another
10 occasion in which you were aware of another
11 beneficiary designation form being sent to or
12 from the insurance company regarding the 1982

13 policy?

14 MR. SIMON: Objection as to form. é
15 THE WITNESS: I'm not sure | understand what §

16 you asked just now.

17 BY MR. STAMOS:

18 Q. Well, if a policy is going to have a

19 beneficiary change, there's usually a form that

20 has to be filled out, correct?

21 A. Correct. §
22 Q. And where someone requests to change a 4

23 beneficiary, the insurance company might send

out the form to them to fill out, correct? To
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7|
1 prepare?
2 A. Sure. | guess. ’%
3 Q. And likewise, if someone wants to
4 effect a change of beneficiary and they have the
5 form, they fill it out and send it to the ?
6 insurance company. That's one of the things :
7 they could do, correct?
8 A. Sure. {
9 Q. Aliright. Are you aware of any such
10 communications between the insurance company and
11 Mr. Bernstein about the 1982 policy following ;
12 19957 §
13 A. Other than the 1998 dissolution of the
14 VEBA trust, I'm not aware of any other forms.
15 Q. And | take it that you -- were you
16 aware that there were a number of instances in z

17 which the policy lapsed and had to be revived,

18 so to speak, reinstated?

19 A. I'm aware of one.
20 Q. Did you participate in any of the
21 documentation with regard to any instance of

22 reinstatement?
23 A. 1did not.
24 Q. Who did?

— T T ranne B e RO L e
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1 A. ldon'tknow. | assume Mr. Bernstein, j
2 Simon Bernstein.
3 Q. When -- which reinstatement were you
4 aware of?
5 A. ldon't know. |didn't know there was
6 multiple. I'm only aware of one, so | can't
7 tell you -- |
8 Q. Well, but | mean, which -- what year
9 was that?
10 A. Oh, | don't know when it was. | just ?
11 knew that it had lapsed once, then needed to be
12 reinstated.
13 Q. Do you know where the insurance company
14 would send forms or communications regarding the
15 policy -- well, strike that.
16 To your knowledge, would the -- would
17 the insurance company send communications about 4
18 the insurance policy to your office at any time?
19 A. Up until 1996, | believe so.
20 Q. Okay. How about after that?
21 A. Probably not. ﬁ
22 Q. If a communication were sent by the
23 insurance company to your office, that would g
24 come to your attention, wouldn't it? g
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1 A. Not necessarily, no.
2 Q. Whose attention would it go to?
3 A. Depends if it -- who it was addressed ZE
4 to. If it was addressed to him, it may have é
5 just been -- come to our office and forwarded
6 from our offices. If it was addressed to :
7 something more general, then it probably would ;
8 have been opened by Pam Simon.
9 Q. Okay. It's fair to say, though, that
10 if you had come into possession of g
11 communications that could bear on the continuing §
12 existence of the policy, you would want to make »
13 sure that was dealt with, correct? You wouldn't z
14 want the policy to lapse because, as far as you
15 were concerned, your wife was a one-fifth --
16 one-fifth indirect beneficiary of that policy,
17 correct?
18 A. Not correct. §
19 Q. Why not? What's not correct about ;
20 that? i
21 A. | would be indifferent as to whether g
22 the policy lapsed, just as | was when the policy
23 lapsed.
24 Q. When did you first learn it lapsed? E
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1 A. | want to say after he passed away.
2 Q. So you weren't -- so during his ﬁ
3 lifetime, you were unaware of it having lapsed? 3
4 A. Correct.
5 Q. Oh, okay. So when you say it was -- 5
6 you were indifferent to it, you never had the ;
7 occasion to be indifferent to it when there was {}
8 still something to be done about it, right? ‘
9 A. Well, | know | was indifferent about it é
10 because it was a discussion about how to pay for
11 it during the time and he had no other assets,
12 and so this was the way he wanted to take care g

13 of his wife, and at that time, | was not

14 indifferent to it. 5
15 Q. Isee. I'm not following. So --

16 A. Well, | thought with no other assets,
17 that his wife needed to be taken care of, and
18 that should be a priority, along with repaying
19 his debt.

20 Q. Okay. Two things. When you say

21 repaying his debt, to whom was the debt?

22 A. Several people.
23 Q. Who?
24 A. Exchange Bank, Harris Bank Glencoe,
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11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Boulevard Bank, Capitol Bankers Life, Fidelity
Union, and there were a couple of others that

| -- I'm not -- off the top of my head but |
believe had to do with condominiums owed that
were under water, and | can't tell you the exact
names.

Q. Ithink I might have missed -- | might

have -- might be misunderstanding what you said.

Were you aware during his lifetime that
the policy had lapsed?
A. No.
Okay.
While he was alive was | --

Yes.

> o » o

No.

Q. Allright. But you're saying that
after he died, you learned that it had lapsed
and it had to be paid?

A. No.

Q. So what could all of that have to do
with taking care of his wife? She was dead by
then, right?

A. Yeah. You asked me if | was ever

indifferent, and during the early '90s, | was

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
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1 not indifferent.

2 Q. Oh, I'm sorry. I thought -- | meant
3 you were indifferent to it at having lapsed.
4 That's what | was referring to. I'm sorry. |

5 confused myself.

6 A. Okay. | was speaking of decades j
7 before. ;
8 Q. Gotit, gotit. Z
9 MR. STAMOS: Let me step outside just for a
10 second with Kevin.
11 (Whereupon, a discussion was had
12 off the record and a short
13 break was taken.) ﬁ
14 MR. STAMOS: All right. We're going to go ‘

15 back on. We just have a few more questions.

16 BY MR. STAMOS:

17 Q. When -- to your knowledge, what -- who

18 made the first approach to the insurance company

19 with regard to the policy?

20 A. Simon Bernstein.
21 Q. No, no. I'm sorry. ’E
22 After Simon's death, who's the -- who

23 was the person who made the first communication

to the insurance company with regard to
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1 obtaining payment of the proceeds?
2 A. ldon'tknow.
3 Q. Do you recall being part of any

4 conversations or becoming aware of any
5 conversations that took place prior to that
6 approach being made?
7 MR. SIMON: Objection, facts not in --
8 THE WITNESS: | don't know if it was prior to
9 or subsequent to the first approach.
10 BY MR. STAMOS:
11 Q. And when was the first approach -- I'm

12 sorry. Mr. Bernstein died in September of 20127

13 A. Simon Bernstein?

14 Q. Yes.

15 A. September of 2012.

16 Q. And when was the first approach made to

17 the insurance company?

18 A. ldon't know.

19 Q. When was the first conversation you had
20 with anyone after Simon Bernstein's death about
21 making an approach to the insurance company?
22 A. | believe in the winter of '12-'13.

23 December, January, right in there.

24 Q. And why then, not more proximate to the

TN TL] e —— R NE A PRI pa s Eeny passsra pa R R LD o m—
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1 time of his death?
2 A. That's the first conversation | had. | 3
3 don't know. That's why I said it's very
4 possible that a prior approach had been made.
5 Q. And with whom did you have the first
6 conversation about it? g
7 A. |don't know who. It was all on the §
8 phone, but Robert Spallina for sure was on the 5
9 phone. Ted Bernstein. | believe Lisa z
10 Friedstein.
11 Q. Okay. ;
12 A. Jill lantoni. Eliot might have been on
13 the phone. | don't know.
14 Q. Okay. And who said what to whom in
15 that conversation? g
16 A. Does anybody have a copy of the
17 insurance policy. f
18 Q. Allright. And -- j
19 A. And does anybody have a copy of the
20 life insurance trust.
21 Q. And who initiated that call?
22 A. | don't know.
23 Q. Do you know, when the first submission §
24 was made to the insurance company, do you know ;
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1 who made it as trustee? Who was identified as
2 the trustee of the trust of that communication?
3 A. ldon't know if anyone was identified
4 as trustee on the first submission.
5 Q. Have you ever seen the first submission
6 of the document?
7 A. | don't know if it was the first
8 submission. | don't know what -- |1 -- | can't E
9 tell what would be the first submission.
10 Q. Right, right. Have you seen a document
11 that -- that you believe to have been the first
12 submission? |
13 A. [ would have no belief of whether it %
14 was the first or second or third submission.
15 Q. Have you seen any documents that you
16 understand to have been a submission? i
17 A. Yes.
18 Q. And who was identified -- did you see

19 one or more than one?

20 A. I've seen more than one.

21 Q. And in those, who was identified as

22 trustee? ?
23 A. Inone, | don't know that anyone was
24 identified as trustee, and in the other one, | é
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1 believe Robert Spallina identified himself as
2 trustee. j
3 Q. Okay. And was he the trustee? "°
4 A. No. 2
5 Q. Then why did he identify himself as

6 trustee?

7 MR. SIMON: Objection, speculation.

8 THE WITNESS: Ask Robert Spallina. %

9 BY MR. STAMOS: é
10 Q. Were you surprised to see him g
11 identified as trustee when you -- when you read
12 it? 5
13 A. Yes. i
14 Q. And did you discuss that with anyone?
15 Did you discuss the fact that he was identified
16 as the trustee when you knew that, to your
17 knowledge, he would not have been the trustee?
18 A. |discussed it before filing this ;
19 litigation, yes.
20 Q. With whom?
21 A. Adam Simon.
22 Q. Okay. And what did you -- g
23 A. Ted Bernstein.
24 Q. And what did you say to Adam and what %
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1 did he say to you?

2 MR. SIMON: Obijection, attorney-client. %

3 BYMR. STAMOS:

4 Q. You're not a party to this litigation,

5 are you?

6 A. No.

7 MR. SIMON: Yes, he is.

8 THE WITNESS: It's true. |1 am. Eliot sued ?

9 me. g
10 BY MR. STAMOS: g
11 Q. Well, at the time that the suit was
12 filed -- prior to the time the suit was filed,
13 you were not to be a party, correct? How could
14 you be a party? You never understood yourself
15 to be a beneficiary of either the trust or 3
16 the -- or the policy, correct?
17 A. That's correct. 1
18 Q. So when the suit was brought in order i
19 to obtain proceeds of the policy and presumably
20 proceeds of the trust, you couldn't have been
21 suing on your own behalf, right?
22 A. |was not.
23 Q. So he wasn't representing you?
24 A. No. f;
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1 Q. So what did he say to you and what did ’E
2 you say to him?
3 A. | said that Spallina is not the ;
4 trustee. Ted is. 2
5 Q. Okay.
6 A. | saw the trust. | know Ted's the
7 trustee because that was one of the things that ;
8 needed to be changed in the draft, and | wasn't ;
9 positive that that was changed. ;
10 Q. Okay. Now, tell me this: You -- what f
11 are the terms of the trust that you saw with
12 your own eyes?
13 A. I'd have to see a draft of the trust to 5
14 give you all the terms. %
15 Q. Allright. Did you ever have a
16 conversation with Mr. Spallina in which he -- in
17 which you asked him or he explained why it was é
18 he identified himself as the trustee?
19 A. I may have. | don't recall.
20 Q. What did you say to him and what did he ;%
21 say to you? %
22 A. |just have a general remembrance of a i
23 discussion about us filing the litigation. g
24 Q. And what's your general remembrance of ;
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85 |
1 how he explained that he identified himself as ;
2 the trustee? f
3 A. I'm not sure that that specifically was g
4 talked about. f
5 MR. STAMOS: All right. | think that's all | j
6 have. Anybody else have anything? i
7 MR. SIMON: | do. |
8 MR. STAMOS: Guys on the phone? ‘
9 MS. FOGLIETTA: Not me. é
10 MR. STAMOS: Okay. Eliot? Eliot, are you
11 there? f
12 MR. SIMON: | take that as a no. ’;
13 MR. BERSTEIN: | said I'm okay. §
14 MR. STAMOS: Okay. I'm sorry. We didn't
15 hear you. Thank you. All right. ;
16 MR. SIMON: | do have questions.
17 MR. STAMOS: Yeah, of course. é
18 MR. SIMON: | have some questions. §
19 Just for the record, this is Adam Simon %
20 questioning David Simon.
21 EXAMINATION |
22 BY MR. SIMON: 2
23 Q. David, during the entire deposition,
24 you have not been presented with any marked |
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86 |
1 exhibits by Mr. Stamos; is that correct? ;
2 A. Yes. E
3 Q. You've been asked to testify solely by %

4 recollection; is that true?

5 A. Yes.

T o 4 T

6 Q. Okay. | just would like to show you %
7 some documents that may be relevant to some of
8 your testimony.

9 MR. SIMON: Can we mark this as David Simon

10 Deposition Exhibit No. 1.
11 (Whereupon, D. Simon Deposition 1
12 Exhibit No. 1 was marked for
13 identification.)
14 BY MR. STAMOS: 5
15 Q. David, | am showing you what's been |

16 marked as David Simon Deposition Exhibit No. 1
17 that's got a Bates stamp BT 000031, and at the
18 top of the page, it says S.B. Lexington, Inc.,
19 Employer.

20 Have you ever seen that document

21 before?

22 A. Yes, | have.
23 Q. And can you describe what that document
24 is? §
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1 A. Under the VEBA, the individual insured

2 or member fills out a beneficiary designation

3 form. This is Si Bernstein's membership -- Si

R S5 5 30 7 AR S R e BT

4 Bernstein as member, filling out his beneficiary
5 designation.
6 Q. And at the top of the page, can you

7 read that, the very heading?

8 A. S.B. Lexington, Inc., Employer/Employee v

9 Death Benefit Plan and Trust, Plan and Trust ;
10 Beneficiary Designation, Simon L. Bernstein. ‘i
11 Q. And then can you read -- actually, can

12 you read the entire form into the record?

13 A. Sure.

T TN B o e F A o S F o TR

14 | hereby designate in accordance with
15 the terms of said plan and trust as it may be

16 amended that the name of the beneficiary should

R ARG RS T et o e Pt RS

17 be Simon Bernstein irrevocable insurance trust
18 and is signed then by Simon Bernstein as the
19 person to receive at my death the death benefit
20 stipulated in the S.B. Lexington, Inc. employee
21 death benefit and trust in the adoption form

22 adopted by my employer.

23 It is then signed again by Simon and
24 dated. *
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1 Q. What s the date?
2 A. 8/26/95. 2
3 Q. And do you recognize those signatures?
4 A. 1do.
5 Q. And what are -- whose signatures are (
6 those?
7 A. Simon Bernstein.
8 Q. Okay. | have no further questions on
9 that. »«;
10 I'd like to show you --
11 MR. STAMOS: Can you mark this as David Simon

12 Deposition Exhibit No. 2.

13 (Whereupon, D. Simon Deposition

14 Exhibit No. 2 was marked for
15 identification.)
16 BY MR. SIMON: é

17 Q. David, I'm showing you what's been

18 marked David Simon Deposition Exhibit No. 2.

19 It's got a Bates stamp of BT 000104. It's
20 entitled SS-4, Application for Employer §
21 Identification Number.
22 Have you ever seen that form before? é
23 A. Yes, | have.
24 Q. And can you describe what that is?

2 2 R e e N B AR e S e R e RO TR g R e
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1 A. This is an application for a tax ID 2
2 number on behalf of the irrevocable insurance {
3 trust, and | filled it out. %
4 Q. And can you tell me what appears on :
5 Line 1 under Name of Applicant? ’
6 A. Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance E
7 Trust. ;
8 Q. Andon Line No. 3 as trustee or
9 executor? i
10 A. Shirley Bernstein.
11 Q. And in the upper-right corner, can you 5

12 identify what number that is?
13 A. The tax ID number given to the

14 insurance trust.

15 Q. And that -- can you read that number
16 into the record? g
17 A. 65-6178916, signed by Shirley Bernstein ;
18 as trustee, June 21, 1995. :é
19 Q. And do you recognize that signature?
20 A. ldo.
21 Q. And whose signature is that? §
22 A. Shirley Bernstein.

23 MR. SIMON: Can we mark this as David Simon

24 Exhibit 3.
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12
13
14
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17
18
19
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22
23
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(Whereupon, D. Simon Deposition
Exhibit No. 3 was marked for
identification.)

BY MR. SIMON:

Q. David, I'm showing you what's been
marked as David Simon Deposition Exhibit No. 3.
It's Bates stamped BT 000002 through BT 000012,
and I'm going to ask you if you recognize this
exhibit?

A. |do.

Q. And can you tell me -- can you describe
what's contained on the page stamped BT 0000027?

A. Itis a screenshot of a page from our
database.

Q. And can you tell us what it says at the
top of the page of that screenshot?

A. Itis Si Trust and the properties of Si
Trust, and then it says when it was modified,
which was the day it was put in, June 21, 1995,
and the date that we accessed it, September 30,
2013, and then it has a created date, which was
when we modified our database to the new
database, which is September 3, 2004, so it was

reentered.
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91 §
1 Q. Can you describe that further about the ;
2 new database?
3 A. We switched over and had to enter
4 into -- some old records into a new database. %
5 Q. And do you recall how this document was j
6 found?
7 A. Myself or Cheryl conducted a search and
8 found this print of the screen and then the ?
9 attached draft of the irrevocable trust

10 agreement.

11 Q. And can you describe what the remainder

B R R T DR

12 of the exhibit is?

13 A. It's a draft of the irrevocable life

14 insurance trust that | gave to Si.

15 Q. And this was in June of 1995? f
16 A. Yes. i
17 Q. Showing you -- |
18 MR. SIMON: Can you mark this as Exhibit 4, ‘
19 please.
20 (Whereupon, D. Simon Deposition %
21 Exhibit No. 4 was marked for
22 | identification. )

23 BY MR. SIMON:

24 Q. Showing you what has been marked as
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92 %
1 David Simon Deposition Exhibit No. 4. It's
2 Bates stamped BT 000013 through 000021. ‘
3 Have you ever seen that document j
4 before?
5 A. Yes, | have, and it has my writing on }
7 Q. So you see some handwriting in the 4
8 blanks on the first page?
9 A. ldo. %
10 Q. And what does that say?
11 A. The handwriting says Si, then Shirley, ;
12 then Si.
13 Q. And it's got Shirley -- Shirley's name }
14 and then the words -- what words follow g
15 Shirley's name?
16 | A. Astrustee. This is an earlier draft g
17 of the same document.
18 Q. Okay. Now, I'd like to direct your
19 attention to Article 7 of Exhibit 4, and can you 5
20 read that Article 7 into the record?
21 A. Upon my death, the trustee shall divide %
22 the property of this trust into as many separate g%
23 trusts as there are children of mine who survive f
24 me and children of mine who predecease me
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93 |

1 leaving descendants who survive me. These
2 trusts shall be designated respectively by the %
3 name of my children. Each trust shall be g

4 administered and distributed in the following
5 manner.

6 And there's an A, B, and C.

7 Q. And then Article 8, let's look at the

8 last paragraph. Right before Article 9, can you

T e e e

9 read that sentence?
10 A. As of the date of this agreement, |
11 currently have blank children living; namely,
12 colon.
13 Q. And now I'd like you to look back at

14 Exhibit No. 3 and read to me Article 7.

15 A. Upon my death, the trustee shall divide

16 the property of the trust into as many separate
17 trusts as there are children of mine that

18 survive me and children of mine who predecease
19 me, living descendants who survive me. These

20 trusts shall be designated respectively by the

21 names of my children. Each trust shall be
22 administered and distributed in the following g

23 manner.

24 And there's an A, B, and C.

e B
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1 Q. And directing you to the end of
2 Article 8 of that draft, which is, again,
3 Exhibit 3, can you read the last same sentence?
4 A. Sure.
5 As of the date of this agreement, |
6 currently have five children living; namely, Ted
7 S. Bernstein, Pamela B. Simon, Jill Bernstein,
8 Lisa Bernstein Friedstein, and Eliot Bernstein.
9 MR. SIMON: | have nothing further.
10 MR. STAMOS: Couple follow-ups.
11 FURTHER EXAMINATION
12 BY MR. STAMOS:
13 Q. When you look at Exhibit No. 4,
14 where -- where was this document located?
15 A. My file.
16 Q. And when you say your files, what does
17 that mean? | mean, did you have a file that --
18 A. File, yes, my --
19 Q. Was it lying on a -- laying on a desk?
20 A. Oh, no. In storage --
21 Q. | mean, how was it maintained? | mean,
22 how did you -- how did you locate it?
23 A. Went to storage, got the manila folder
24 out that said File on it, opened the file.
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1 Q. And what did that file -- what did that

2 file -- how was that file designated? ;i
3 A. 1--1don't know off the top of my

4 head. I'd have to check.

5 Q. How did you -- were there other

6 materials in it aside from this document, this

7 blank? 3

8 A. No.
9 Q. So | take it the document that we have
10 marked as Exhibit No. 3 was not in that file,

11 because this -- this, you had to go in the
12 computer to find, correcf?

13 A. Correct.

14 Q. And so how did -- where did this -- 5
15 when you look at Exhibit No. 4, where did this |
16 origihally come from? Was this originally --

17 was this at some point in your word processor

18 and you -- with these lines in it that were to ‘

19 be filled out?

2 ey T

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. Did you locate that? This, meaning
22 Exhibit 4, right, just so we know what we're
23 talking about. %
24 A. Did I locate that on the word
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1 processor? %
2 Q. Yeah, no, | wasn't clear. ;
3 Looking at Exhibit No. 4, | take it a

4 this is at -- this was at one point on your word
5 processor and it was printed out and then filled
6 out and then --
7 A. Not -- not the exhibit, no. It has my
8 handwriting on it, so what | think | did is, is
9 | wrote this in and gave it to my assistant who
10 then made the modifications which you see is
11 Exhibit 3.
12 Q. But my question to you is: Before you
13 wrote in, this was obviously printed out from a
14 printer, correct?
15 A. Correct.
16 Q. This must have been on your word
17 processor to be printed out on a printer,
18 correct? Exhibit 4.
19 A. | believe so.
20 Q. Did you find Exhibit 4 in your - in
21 your computer?
22 A. Changed to look like Exhibit 3, yes.
23 Q. And then | take it -- hang on for a

24 second.
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1 Were any subsequent drafts made on your

R SR )

2 computer after -- after Exhibit No. 37

3 A. No.
4 Q. Did you give a copy of Exhibit No. 3 to

5  Simon Bernstein?
6 A. Yes. %
7 Q. And what did he do with it? %
8 A. 1don't know for sure because | wasn't A

9 there, but | believe he went to Hopkins & Sutter

AR

10 to have it changed one last time and executed.
11 Q. And did you share your draft with

12 Hopkins & Sutter? What's in your computer, was
13 it ever transmitted to Hopkins & Sutter so they

14 could mark it up? ‘
15 A. It originated at Hopkins & Sutter

16 because it was Hopkins & Sutter that did my
17  irrevocable life insurance trust. ;
18 Q. No, no, | know that, but -- but you iz
19 created the document called Si Trust that you've
20 talked about, Exhibit No. 3, correct?

21 A. Actually, it was created at -- most of

22 it by Hopkins & Sutter when they did the work
23 for me.

24 Q. Okay.

o
[
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1 A. | modified what you're seeing.

2 Q. lunderstand that. So you modified a

3 document that had been your document from

4 Hopkins & Sutter, right? That's what you're

5 telling us?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. And then -- and you made modifications,
8 including you being identified as the trustee,

9 correct?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. On No. 3, Exhibit No. 3?
12 A. Yes.
13 Q. And you gave that to Simon Bernstein, g

14 correct?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Okay. What I'm asking is: Did you

17 also transmit to Hopkins & Sutter electronically
18 what we have before us as Exhibit No. 3 so that
19 they could make modifications to it pursuant to

20 what Mr. Bernstein wanted?

21 A. | personally did not.
22 Q. Did somebody else do that? ¢
23 A. lt's very possible.
24 Q. And who would have done that? :
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My assistant. g
Who?

Debbie.

Is she still with you?
She's not.

Is she still available?

N
> 0o » p » 0 >

Don't know.
8 Q. Would she have done that without your
9 instruction? ;
10 A. She would -- if Si would have told her,
11 she would have, yes.
12 Q. Do you think that happened?
13 A. |don't know.
14 Q. When Mr. Bernstein -- did you -- did

15 you keep a copy of what you gave Mr. Bernstein

B e e P R

16 to take to Hopkins & Sutter?

17 A. No, | did not.
18 Q. Why not?
19 A. No reason.
20 Q. Why'd you keep a draft?
21 A. 1didn't realize | did, but obviously

22 at the time, Debbie must have filed it.
23 Q. When he returned to you after his

24 meetings at Hopkins & Sutter, did you keep a

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
Chicago, lllinois (312) 263-0052
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1 copy of that document?

2 A. The executed trust? j
3 Q. Yeah. %
4 A. | believe we did have it for a period

ST e

5 of time till we moved offices.
6 Q. Okay. And | take it you would have
7 stored it in the same file as the draft, right?

8 You wouldn't put it in another place --

9 A. ldidn't store it. §
10 Q. Who -
11 A. Mr. Bernstein would have stored it,

12 Simon Bernstein.

13 Q. He did? Did you see him put it in the

14 file? *
15 A. Did I see him? No. | don't watch -- z
16 Q. Did you ever see it again after that
17 day? %
18 A. We do a thing called the document

19 review board, so depending on the exact date
20 that it was funded, I'd have to go back. |

21 probably would have seen it at that point, too,
22 so on every time there's an A.L.P.S. funding,

23 there's a series of documents.

Q. Every time there's a what funding?

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
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1 A. ALP.S.
2 Q. Yeah?
3 A. Arbitrage Life Payment System. %
4 So at the time of the funding of the é

5 policy, there would have been a document review
6 board, and that would have been reviewed again

7 at that time.

8 Q. Why do you care who the beneficiary is?

9 A. He was also the owner. z
10 Q. What does that matter at that the %
11 point?
12 A. Because in thé Arbitrage Life Payment

13 System, there's reps and warrantees made by the
14 owner that are essential to the payment plan.

15 Q. Is it your testimony that you saw

16 the -- the trust at a later date in your office?

17 A. | would have to see what date it was

R T2 St e

18 funded, but | would say yes, | saw it on the

19 date that it was funded also.

20 Q. Do you remember doing that? Do you :
21 remember seeing it? §
22 A. | remember seeing it when he came back.
23 I do not have an independent recollection of

that, but it was our habit and custom to do that

McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
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1 on each and every trust and each and every g
2 owner. ?
3 Q. Okay. And that's something that would

4 have been maintained by your company because you
5 were participating in this A.L.P.S. program,
6 correct?
7 I'm probably not talking about it
8 properly, but -- but the exercise you said you
9 went through --
10 A. Yes.
11 Q. -- was something that -- this review
12 you would have done would have been done as the
13 company. The company would have been required
14 to do that as part of this A.L.P.S. payment?
15 A. S.T.P. would have done it. It's not
16 required to, but it's one of the ways that --
17 Q. Allright. And it would have been in
18 your records, the document would have been in
19 your records to facilitate your doing that,

20 correct?

21 A. No.
22 Q. Whose records would it have been in?
23 A. Simon Bernstein's.

24 Q. And all the -- do you have other people

McCorkle Litigatibn Services, Inc.
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1 who have purchased insurance pursuant to the

2 A.L.P.S. program?

3 A. Yes. §
4 Q. Do you do the same review for all of %
5  them? ‘
6 A. Yes.
7 Q. Do you have them bring their records in ;

8 to look at or do you look at the records you

9 maintain for them?

10 A. No, | would look at the records. And

11 if it wasn't other than Simon Bernstein or ;
12 myself or the employees are there, then we ?
13 probably would have kept a copy of that ;

14 individual's trust, but maybe not the whole
15 trust. Usually what happens is we get a trust

16 certification from the attorney, so there's a

17 front two pages, and then a back signature page. g
18 That's the standard practice for us.
19 Q. Isee. |see. §
20 And your testimony is that at some ;

21 point, he just took that with him and it was no

22 longer available to you?

23 A. 1996 or when we moved offices, he took
24 all of his furniture, books, records. %

e B S e R e R e e e e E R RS e
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1 Q. And when did - when did -- at some
2 point, did he -- did it cease being funded 4
3 through the A.L.P.S. program?
4 A. The Lincoln Benefit policy?
5 Q. No. The --the -- §
6 A. Capitol Bankers policy was never funded
7 through the A.L.P.S. program.
8 Q. Did the Lincoln benefits policy have
9 the '95 trust you've talked about as the 1
10 beneficiary? E
11 A. And owner.
12 Q. Well, you said that earlier.
13 MR. STAMOS: Okay. That's all | got.
14 Thanks.
15 Reserve? »
16 MR. SIMON: Yes. %
17 (Whereupon, the deposition
18 concluded at 4:25 p.m.) .
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1 IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT |
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS g
2 EASTERN DIVISION
3 SIMON BERNSTEIN )
IRREVOCABLE INSURANCE )
4 TRUST DTD 6/21/95, by )
Ted S. Bernstein, its ) 5
5 Trustee, Ted S. ) é
Bernstein, an ) E
6 individual, PamelaB. )
Simon, an individual, )
7 Jilllantoni, an ) é
individual, and Lisa S. ) i
8  Friedstein, an ) %
individual, )
9 )
Plaintiff, )
10 ) 'i
VS. ) No. 13 CV 3643
11 )
HERITAGE UNION LIFE ) %
12 INSURANCE COMPANY, ) };
13 Defendant. )
14 This is to certify that | have read the
transcript of my deposition taken in the ,1
15 above-entitled cause by Vicki L. D'Antonio, \
Certified Shorthand Reporter, on January 5, 2015, {
16 and that the foregoing transcript accurately |
states the questions asked and the answers given %
17 by me as they now appear.
18
i
19 DAVID SIMON
20
21 SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO
before me this day g
22 of , 2015.
23
Notary Public
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1 STATE OF ILLINOIS ) %
2 ) SS:
3 COUNTYOFCOOK ) %
4 |
5 I, VICKI L. D’ANTONIO, a Notary Public %
6 within and for the County of Cook and State of
7 lllinois, do hereby certify that heretofore, :
8 to-wit, on the 5th day of January, 2015,
9 personally appeared before me, DAVID SIMON, a

10 witness in a certain cause now pending and %

11 undetermined in the United States District é

12 Court, Northern District of lllinois, Eastern j

13 Division, wherein SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE

14 INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95 is the Plaintiff and

15 HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

16 is the Defendant.

17 | further certify that the said DAVID ;

18 SIMON was by me first duly sworn to testify the

19 truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the j

20 truth in the cause aforesaid; that the testimony

21 then given by said witness was reported

22 stenographically by me in the presence of said

23 witness and afterwards reduced to typewriting by é

24 Computer-Aided Transcription, and the foregoing |
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1 is a true and correct transcript of the i
2 testimony so given by said witness as aforesaid. %
3 | further certify that the signature to {
4 the foregoing deposition was reserved by counsel
5 for the respective parties.
6 | further certify that the taking of this
7 deposition was pursuant to notice and that there f
8 were present at the deposition the attorneys
9 hereinbefore mentioned. (
10 | further certify that | am not counsel é
11 for nor in any way related to the parties to
12 this suit, nor am I in any way interested in the %
13 outcome thereof.
14 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF: | have hereunto
15 set my hand and affixed my notarial seal this |
16 9th day of January, 2015. g
1
19 w7 / /ﬁr S j
Rt/ £
20 NOTARY F[JBLIC, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 7
CSR LIC. NO. 84-004344 ;
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.
1 McCorkle Litigation Services, Inc.
200 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 2900
2 Chicago, lllinois 60601-1014
January 9, 2015
5  The Simon Law Firm |
Mr. Adam M. Simon
6 203 East Wacker Drive, Suite 2725 |

Chicago, lllinois 60601

IN RE: Bernstein v. Heritage
8 COURT NUMBER: 13 CV 3643
DATE TAKEN: January 5, 2015

Margaret Setina Court Reporter Present:
23 Signature Department Vicki L. D'Antonio
24 cc: Mr. James Stamos

9 DEPONENT: Mr. David Simon |
10 Dear Mr. Simon:
11 Enclosed is the deposition transcript for the

aforementioned deponent in the above-entitled z
12 cause. Also enclosed are additional signature
pages, if applicable, and errata sheets. i
13
Per your agreement to secure signature, please |
14 submit the transcript to the deponent for review
and signature. All changes or corrections must
15 be made on the errata sheets, not on the transcript
itself. All errata sheets should be signed and
16 all signature pages need to be signed and notarized. %
17 After the deponent has completed the above,
please return all signature pages and errata
18 sheets to me at the above address, and | will
handle distribution to the respective parties. i
19 |
If you have any questions, please call me at the
20 phone number below. e
21 Sincerely, 5
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,
by Ted S. Bernstein, its Trustee, Ted
Bernstein, an individual,
Pamela B. Simon, an individual,
Jill Iantoni, an individual and Lisa S.

- Friedstein, an individual,

Case No. 13 cv 3643
Honorable Amy J. St. Eve
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

Plaintiff,

V.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Defendant,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
%
HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE )
COMPANY )
)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

Counter-Plaintiff
V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant
and,

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK

as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA,
Successor in interest to LaSalle National
Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST, )
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )
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Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95,
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN

Third-Party Defendants.

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff
V.

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON,
both Professionally and Personally
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A,,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL JANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P.
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES

Third-Party Defendants.

vvvvvvvv\./\./\/vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv
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PLAINTIFFS’ FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

NOW COMES Plaintiffs; SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE INSURANCE
TRUST dtd 6/21/95, and TED BERNSTEIN, as Trustee, (collectively referred to as
“BERNSTEIN TRUST”), TED BERNSTEIN, individually, PAMELA B. SIMON, individually,
JILL IANTON]I, individually, and LISA FRIEDSTEIN, individually, by their attorney, Adam M.
Simon, and complaining of Defendant, HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,

(“HERITAGE”) states as follows:

BACKGROUND

1. At all relevant times, the BERNSTEIN TRUST was a common law irrevocable life
insurance trust established in Chicago, Illinois, by the settlor, Simon L. Bernstein, (“Simon
Bernstein™ or “insured”) and was formed pursuant to the laws of the state of Illinois.

2. At all relevant times, the BERNSTEIN TRUST was a beneficiary of a life insurance
policy insuring the life of Simon Bernstein, and issued by Capitol Bankers Life Insurance
Company as policy number 1009208 (the “Policy”).

3. Simon Bernstein’s spouse, Shirley Bernstein, was named as the initial Trustee of the
BERNSTEIN TRUST. Shirley Bernstein passed away on December 8, 2010, predeceasing
Simon Bernstein.

4. The successor trustee, as set forth in the BERNSTEIN TRUST agreement is Ted
Bernstein.

5. The beneficiaries of the BERNSTEIN TRUST as named in the BERNSTEIN TRUST

Agreement are the children of Simon Bernstein.
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6. Simon Bernstein passed away on September 13, 2012, and is survived by five adult
children whose names are Ted Bernstein, Pamela Simon, Eliot Bernstein, Jill Iantoni, and Lisa
Friedstein. By this amendment, Ted Bernstein, Pamela Simon, Jill Iantoni and Lisa Friedstein
are being added as co-Plaintiffs in their individual capacities.

7. Four out five of the adult children of Simon Bernstein, whom hold eighty percent of
the beneficial interest of the BERNSTEIN TRUST have consented to having Ted Bernstein, as
Trustee of the BERNSTEIN TRUST, prosecute the claims of the BERNSTEIN TRUST as to the
Policy proceeds at issue.

8. Eliot Bernstein, the sole non-consenting adult child of Simon Bernstein, holds the
remaining twenty percent of the beneficial interest in the BERNSTEIN TRUST, and is
representing his own interests and has chosen to pursue his own purported claims, pro se, in this
matter.

9. The Policy was originally purchased by the S.B. Lexington, Inc. 501(c)(9) VEBA
Trust (the “VEBA”) from Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Company (“CBLIC”) and was
deli‘vered to the original owner in Chicago, Illinois on or about December 27, 1982.

10. At the time of the purchase of the Policy, S.B. Lexington, Inc., was an Illinois
corporation owned, in whole or part, and controlled by Simon Bernstein.

11. At the time of purchase of the Policy, S.B. Lexington, Inc. was an insurance
brokerage licensed in the state of Illinois, and Simon Bernstein was both a principal and an
employee of S.B. Lexington, Inc.

12. At the time of issuance and delivery of the Policy, CBLIC was an insurance company

licensed and doing business in the State of Illinois.
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13. HERITAGE subsequently assumed the Policy from CBLIC and thus became the
successor to CBLIC as “Insurer” under the Policy and remained the insurer including at the time
of Simon Bernstein’s death.

14. In 1995, the VEBA, by and through LaSalle National Trust, N.A., as Trustee of the
VEBA, executed a beneficiary change form naming LaSalle National Trust, N.A., as Trustee, as
primary beneficiary of the Policy, and the BERNSTEIN TRUST as the contingent beneficiary.

15. On or about August 26, 1995, vSimon Bernstein, in his capacity as member or
auxiliary member of the VEBA, signed a VEBA Plan and Trust Beneficiary Designation form
designating the BERNSTEIN TRUST as the “person(s) to receive at my death the Death Benefit
stipulated in the S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit and Trust and the Adoption Form
adopted by the Employer”.

16. The August 26, 1995 VEBA Plan and Trust Beneficiary Designation form signed by
Simon Bernstein evidenced Simon Bernstein’s intent that the beneficiary of the Policy proceeds
was to be the BERNSTEIN TRUST.

17. S.B. Lexington, Inc. and the VEBA were voluntarily dissolved on or about April 3,
1998.

18. On or about the time of the dissolution of the VEBA in 1998, the Policy ownership
was assigned and transferred from the VEBA to Simon Bernstein, individually.

19. From the time of Simon Bernstein’s designation of the BERNSTEIN TRUST as the
intended beneficiary of the Policy proceeds on August 26, 1995, no document was submitted by
Simon Bernstein (or any other Policy owner) to the Insurer which evidenced any change in his

intent that the BERNSTEIN TRUST was to receive the Policy proceeds upon his death.
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20. At the time of his death, Simon Bernstein was the owner of the Policy, and the
BERNSTEIN TRUST was the sole surviving beneficiary of tﬂe Policy.

21. The insured under the Policy, Simon Bernstein, passed away on September 13, 2012,
and on that date the Policy reméined in force.

22. Following Simon Bernstein’s death, the BERNSTEIN TRUST, by and through its
counsel in Palm Beach County, FL, submitted a death claim to HERITAGE under the Policy
including the insured’s death certificate and other documentation.

COUNT 1
BREACH OF CONTRACT

23. Plaintiff, the BERNSTEIN TRUST, restates and realleges the allegations contained
in §1-922 as if fully set forth as 23 of Count I.

24. The Policy, by its terms, obligates HERITAGE to pay the death benefits to the
beneficiary of the Policy upon HERITAGE’S receipt of due proof of the insured’s death.

25. HERITAGE breached its obligations under the Policy by refusing and failing to pay
the Policy proceeds to the BERNSTEIN TRUST as beneficiary of the Policy despite
HERITAGE’S receipt of due proof of the insured’s death.

26. Despite the BERNSTEIN TRUST’S repeated demands and its initiation of a breach
of contract claim, HERITAGE did ' not pay out the death benefits on the Policy to the
BERNSTEIN TRUST instead it filed an action in interpleader and deposited the Policy proceeds
with the Registry of the Court.

27. As a direct result of HERITAGE’s refusal and failure to pay the Policy proceeds to
the BERNSTEIN TRUST pursuant to the Policy, Plaintiff has been damaged in an amount equal

to the death benefits of the Policy plus interest, an amount which exceeds $1,000,000.00.
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WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFF, the BERNSTEIN TRUST prays for a judgment to be
entered in its favor and against Defendant, HERITAGE, for the amount of the Policy proceeds
on'dcposit with the Registry of the Court (an amount in excess of $1,000,000.00) plus costs and
reasonable attorneys’ fees together with such further relief as this court may deem just and
proper.

COUNTII
DECLARATORY JUDGMENT

28. Plaintiff, the BERNSTEIN TRUST, restates and realleges the allegations contained
in §1-927 above as 928 of Count II and pleads in the alternative for a Declaratory Judgment.

29. On or about June 21, 1995, David Simon, an attorney and Simon Bernstein’s son-in-
law, met with Simon Bernstein before Simon Bernstein went to the law offices of Hopkins and
Sutter in Chicago, Illinois to finalize and execute the BERNSTEIN TRUST Agreement.

30. After the meeting at Hopkins and Sutter, David B. Simon reviewed the final version
of the BERNSTEIN TRUST Agreement and personally saw the final version of the
BERNSTEIN TRUST Agreement containing Simon Bernstein’s signature.

31. The final version of the BERNSTEIN TRUST Agreement named the children of
Simon Bernstein as beneficiaries of the BERNSTEIN TRUST, and unsigned drafts of the
BERNSTEIN TRUST Agreement confirm the same.

32. The ﬂﬂal version of the BERNSTEIN TRUST Agreement named Shirley Bernstein,
as Trustee, and named Ted Bernstein as, successor Trustee.

33. As set forth above, at the time of death of Simon Bernstein, the BERNSTEIN

TRUST was the sole surviving beneficiary of the Policy.
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34. Following the death of Simon Bernstein, neither an executed original of the
BERNSTEIN TRUST Agreement nor an executed copy could be located by Simon Bernstein’s
family members.

35. Neither an executed original nor an executed copy of the BERNSTEIN TRUST
Agreement has been located after diligent searches conducted as follows:

i) Ted Bernstein and other Bernstein family members of Simon Bernstein’s home and
business office;

ii) the law offices of Tescher and Spallina, Simon Bernstein’s counsel in Palm Beach
County, Florida,

iii) the offices of Foley and Lardner (successor to Hopkins and Sutter) in Chicago, IL;

and
iv) the offices of The Simon Law Firm.
36. As set forth above, Plaintiffs have provided HERITAGE with due proof of the death
of Simon Bernstein which occurred on September 13, 2012.
WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFF, the BERNSTEIN TRUST prays for an Order entering a
declaratory judgment as follows:
a) declaring that the original BERNSTEIN TRUST was lost and after a diligent search
cannot be located;

b) declaring that the BERNSTEIN TRUST Agreement was executed and established by
Simon Bernstein on or about June 21, 1995;

¢) declaring that the beneficiaries of the BERNSTEIN TRUST are the five children of

Simon Bernstein;
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d) declaring that Ted Bernstein, is authorized to act as Trustee of the BERNSTEIN
TRUST because the initial trustee, Shirley Bernstein, predeceased Simon Bernstein;

¢) declaring that the BERNSTEIN TRUST is the sole surviving beneficiary of the
Policy;

) declaring that the BERNSTEIN TRUST is entitled to the proceeds placed on deposit

by HERITAGE with the Registry of the Court;

g) ordering the Registry of the Court to release all of the proceeds on deposit to the

BERNSTEIN TRUST; and
h) for such other relief as this court may deem just and proper.
COUNT 111
RESULTING TRUST

37. Plaintiffs restate and reallege the allegations contained in §1-936 of Count II as §37
of Count III and plead, in the alternative, for imposition of a Resulting Trust.

38. Pleading in the alternative, the executed original of the BERNSTEIN TRUST
Agreement has been lost and after a diligent search as detailed above by the executors, trustee
and attorneys of Simon Bernstein’s estate and by Ted‘Bernstein, and others, its whereabouts
remain unknown.

39. Plaintiffs have presented HERITAGE with due proof of Simon Bernstein’s death,
and Plaintiff has provided unexecuted drafts of the BERNSTEIN TRUST Agreement to
HERITAGE.

40. Plaintiffs have also provided HERITAGE with other evidence of the BERNSTEIN
TRUST’S existence including a document signed by Simon Bernstein that designated the

BERNSTEIN TRUST as the ultimate beneficiary of the Policy proceeds upon his death.
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41. At all relevant times and beginning on or about June 21, 1995, Simon Bernstein
expressed his intent that (i) the BERNSTEIN TRUST was to be the ultimate beneficiary of the
life insurance proceeds; and (ii) the beneficiaries of the BERNSTEIN TRUST were to be the
children of Simon Bernstein.

42. Upon the death of Simon Bernstein, the right to the Policy proceeds immediately
vested in the beneficiary of the Policy.

43. At the time of Simon Bernstein’s death, the béneﬁciary of the Policy was the
BERNSTEIN TRUST.

44, If an express trust cannot be established, then this court must enforce Simon
Bernstein’s intent that the BERNSTEIN TRUST be the beneficiary of the Policy; and therefore
upon the death of Simon Bernstein the rights to the Policy proceeds immediately vested in a
resulting trust in favor of the five children of Simon Bernstein.

45, Upon information and belief, Bank of America, N.A., as successor Trustee of the
VEBA to LaSalle National Trust, N.A., has disclaimed any interest in the Policy.

46.  In any case, the VEBA terminated in 1998 simultaneously with the dissolution of
S.B. Lexington, Inc.

47.  The primary beneficiary of the Policy named at the time of Simon Bernstein’s
death was LaSalle National Trust, N.A. as “Trustee” of the VEBA.

48.  LaSalle National Trust, N.A., was the last acting Trustee of the VEBA and was
named beneficiary of the Policy in its capacity as Trustee of the VEBA.

49.  As set forth above, the VEBA no longer exists, and the ex-Trustee of the
dissolved trust, and upon information and belief, Bank Of America, N.A., as successor to LaSalle

National Trust, N.A. has disclaimed any interest in the Policy.
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50. As set forth herein, Plaintiff has established that it is immediately entitled to the life
insurance proceeds HERITAGE deposited with the Registry of the Court.
51. Alternatively, by virtue of the facts alleged herein, HERITAGE held the Policy
proceeds in a resulting trust for the benefit of the children of Simon Bernstein and since
HERITAGE deposited the Policy proceeds the Registry, the Registry now holds the Policy
proceeds in a resulting trust for the benefit of the children of Simon Bernstein.
WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS pray for an Order as follows:
a) finding that the Registry of the Court rholds the Policy Proceeds in a Resulting Trust
for the benefit of the five childreﬂ of Simon Bemstein, Ted Bernstein, Pamela Simon,
Eliot Ivan Bernstein, Jill Iantoni and Lisa Friedstein; and

b) ordering th‘e Registry of the Court to release all the proceeds on deposit to the
Bernstein Trust or alternatively as follows: 1) twenty percent to Ted Bernstein; 2)
twenty percent to Pam Simon; 3) twenty percent to Eliot Ivan Bernstein; 4) twenty
percent to Jill Jantoni; 5) twenty percent to Lisa Friedstein

¢) and for such other relief as this court may deem just and proper.

By: s/Adam M. Simon

Adam M. Simon (#6205304)

303 E. Wacker Drive, Suite 210

Chicago, IL 60601

Phone: 313-819-0730

Fax: 312-819-0773

E-Mail: asimon@chicagolaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs and Third-Party
Defendants

Simon L. Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust
Dtd 6/21/95; Ted Bernstein as Trustee, and
individually, Pamela Simon, Lisa Friedstein
and Jill Iantoni
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT COURT ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,

Plaintiff,
Case No. 13-¢v-03643

\

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Honorable Amy J. St. Eve
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

Defendant.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Counter-Plaintiff,
V.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE )
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95, )
)

Counter-Defendant, )
)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

and,

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL
BANK, as Trustee of S.B. Lexington,
Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust,
UNITED BANK OF ILLINOI S, BANK
OF AMERICA, successor in interest to
LaSalle National Trust, N.A.,

SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST, N. A,
TED BERNSTEIN, individually and

as alleged Trustee of the Simon
Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust
Dtd. 6/21/95, and ELIOT BERNSTEIN,

Third-Party Defendants.

MEE ToF 117
Answgr& Cross Claim
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ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff,

v.

TED BERNSTEIN individually and

as alleged Trustee of the Simon
Berustein Irrevocable Insurance Trust
Dtd. 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant

and

PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B. SIMON
both Professionally and Personally,
ADAM SIMON both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.,
DONALD TESCHER both Professionally)
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA )
both Professionally and Personally, )
LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI, )
S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE )
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P. )
ENTERPRISES, INC,, )
)
)
)
)
)
)

N N wm aw ' et Nt Nt ey ~w ' St ' ' St Sar e ~ar' wawr’ -

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC., NATIONAL
SERVICE ASSOCTATION, INC.

(OF FLORIDA) NATIONAL
SERVICE ASSOCIATION, INC.

(OF 1LLINOIS) AND

JOHN AND JANE DOE’S

Third Party Defendants.

4.8 Cross Claim
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ELIOT TVAN BERNSTEIN (“ELIOT”) (1) ANSWER TO JACKSON NATIONAL LIFE
INSURANCE COMPANY (“JACKSON”) ANSWER AND COUNTER-CLAIM AND
THIRD-PARTY COMPLAINT FOR INTERPLEADER AND (2) CROSS CLAIM

ELIOT a third party defendant and an alleged beneficiary of a life insurance policy Number
1009208 on the life of Simon L. Bernstein (“Policy(ies)”), a “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust dtd. 6/21/95” and a “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.” that are at dispute in the
Lawsuit, makes the following (1) Response to Jackson’s Answer and Counterclaim and (2) Cross

claim.

1, Eliot lvan Bernstein, make the following statements and allegations to the best of my

knowledge and on information and belief and as a Pro Se Litigant":

ANSWER TO JACKSON’S COUNTER-CLAIM AND THIRD PARTY COMPLAINT

FOR INTERPLEADER

1. TJackson National Life Insurance Company ("Jackson") brings this counter-claim and third-
party complaint for Interpleader pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1335(a) and Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 14, as it seeks a declaration of rights under a life insurance policy for which it is
responsible to administer. The proceeds from the policy (the "Death Benefit Proceeds") have

been tendered to this Court.

! pleadings in this case are being fited by Plaintiff In Propria Persona, wherein pleadings are to be considered
without regard to technicalities. Propria, pleadings are not to be held to the same high standards of perfection as
practicing lawyers. See Haines v. Kerner 92 Sct 594, also See Power 914 F2d 1459 {11th Cir1990}, also See Hulsey v.
Ownes 63 F3d 354 {5th Cir 1995). also See In Re: HALL v. BELLMON 935 F.2d 1106 {(10th Cir. 1991)."

in Puckett v. Cox, it was held that a pro-se pleading requires less stringent reading than one drafted by a lawyer
(456 F2d 233 {1972 Sixth Circuit USCA). Justice Black in Conley v. Gibson, 355 U.S. 41 at 48 (1957)"The Federal
Rules rejects the approach that pleading is a game of skill in which one misstep by counset may be decisive to the
outcome and accept the principle that the purpose of pleading is to facilitate a proper decision on the merits."
According to Rule 8(f) FRCP and the State Court rule phich holds that all pleadings shall be construed to do
substantial justice. A
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ELIOT ANSWER: To the extent Par. 1 of Jackson’s counter-claim/third-party complaint

contain conclusions of law, no response is required. However, ELIOT denies that Jackson
has tendered the death benefit to the court, as when ELIOT contacted Jackson’s counsel
Alexander David Marks (“MARKS”) he stated at that time, after Jackson’s Answer was
filed, that the death benefit had not been paid to this Court.

2. Jackson, successor in interest to Reassure America Life Insurance Company ("Reassure"),
successor in interest to Heritage Union Life Insurance Company ("Heritage"), is a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Michigan, with its principal
place of business located in Lansing, Michigan. Jackson did not originate or administer the
subject life insurance policy, Policy Number 1009208 (the "Policy"), but inherited the Policy
and the Policy records from its predecessors.

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

3. | The Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95 (the "Bernstein Trust") is
alleged in the underlying suit to be a "common law trust established in Chicago, lllinois by
the settlor, Simon L. Bernstein, and was formed pursuant to the laws of the state of Illinois."
ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

4. Ted S. Bernstein is a resident and citizen of Florida. He is alleged in the underlying suit to be
the "trustee” of the Bernstein Trust. Ted Bernstein is further, individually, upon information
and belief, a beneficiary of the Bernstein Trust (as Simon Bernstein's son).

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT admits that Ted S. Bernstein (“TED”) is a resident of Florida.

ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to the truth of the
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remainder of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same. That ELIOT
claims that TED makes his claims in this Lawsuit acting as alleged “trustee” of the “Simon
Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95” but also TED alleges this trust and any
executed copies cannot be located. Therefore, it would be almost impossible for TED to
make assertions to who the true and proper trustees and beneficiaries of such lost trust are.
ELIOT claims that the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95” was not
the final beneficiary of the Policy(ies). On information and belief the beneficiary of the
Policy(ies) at the time of Simon L. Bernstein (“SIMON”) death, as according to Jackson’s
Counter Claim the beneficiary at the time of death was the “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.”
and thus the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95” may have no valid
claim as a prior beneficiary.

5. Eliot Bernstein is a resident and citizen of Florida. He has asserted that he and/or his children
are potential beneficiaries under the Policy(ies) as Simon Bernstein's son, presumably under
the Bernstein Trust.

ELIQT ANSWER: ELIOT admits residency and citizenry of Florida and that he has

asserted that he and/or his children are potential beneficiaries as SIMON’s son and
grandchildren. ELIOT denies his claims were made under the Bernstein Trust, which
according to TED’s response to Jackson’s Counter Claim, “Ted Bernstein and the Bernstein
Trust admit that to its knowledge no one has been able to locate an executed original or an
execﬁted copy of the Bernstein Trust, but denies that no one has located a copy of the

- Bernstein Trust.” In other words the executed “Bernstein Trust” is lost and no one has a
copy and herein the term “lost” trust will gefer to the “Bernstein Trust” and any other names

it is referenced as.
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6. First Arlington National Bank is, upon information and belief, a bank in Illinois that was, at
one point, and the alleged trustee for the "S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit
Trust" (the "Lexington Trust"). The Lexington Trust was, upon information and belief,
created to provide employee benefits to certain employees of S.B. Lexington, Inc., an
insurance agency, including Simon Bernstein, but it is unclear if such trust was properly
established.

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

7. United Bank of Illinois is, upon information and belief, a bank in Illinois that was, at one
point, a named benéﬁciary of the Policy. To date, Jackson has not determined the current
existence of this bank.

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

8. Bank of America, N.A, is a national banking association with its principal place of business
in Charlotte, North Carolina. Bank of America, N.A. is the successor in interest to LaSalle
National Trust, N.A., which was a named beneficiary of the Policy.

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT Jacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

9. The "Simon Bernstein Trust" is, upon information and belief, the Bernstein Trust listed in
paragraph 3, above, and was a named contingent beneficiary of the Policy. However, based
on the variance in title, to the extent it is a separate trust from the Bernstein Trust referenced

above, it is named separately.
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ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.
10. Subject matter jurisdiction is proper in accordance with 28 U.S.C. § 1335(a).

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

11. Personal jurisdiction is proper over Ted Bernstein because he, allegedly as Trustee of the
Bernstein Trust, caused this underlying suit to be filed in this venue.
ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same. ELIOT claims
that TED cannot assert with any proof or contract or trust that he is the trustee of the “Simon
Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95” aka “Bernstein Trust” as TED claims the
trust is lost and no executed copies exist.

12. Personal jurisdiction is proper over First Arlington National Bank, United Bank of 1llinois,
and Bank of America in accordance with 735 ILCS 5/2-209(a)(1) because each, upon
information and belief, transacts business in Illinois.

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

13. Personal jurisdiction is proper over Ted and Eliot Bernstein in accordance with 735 ILCS
5/2-209(a)(13) as each are believed to have an ownership interest in the Bernstein Trust,
which is alleged in the underlying complaint to exist underneath laws of and to be
administered within this State.

ELIQT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of this paragraphgegarding personal jurisdiction and therefore
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denies the same. ELIOT denies that TED or ELIOT can assert an ownership or beneficial

interest in the lost “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95” aka “Bernstein

Trust,” as if the trust is lost they cannot prove through contract anyone’s interests or rights.
14. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) in that a substantial part of

the events giving rise to this interpleader action occurred in this District.

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegatioﬁs of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

15. On December 27, 1982, upon information and belief, Capitol Bankers Life Insurance
Company issued the Policy, with Simon L. Bernstein as the alleged insured (the "Insured").

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same. The Court should
note that after repeated attempts by ELIOT to secure copies of the underlying policies and
trusts pertinent to this Lawsuit from the parties, he has been denied and refused all such
suppressed and denied information and documents to form any opinion on the validity of the
claims,

16. Over the years, the Policy's owner(s), beneficiary(ies), contingent beneficiary(ies) and issuer
changed. Among the parties listed as Policy beneficiaries (either primary or contingent)
include: "Simon Bernstein"; "First Arlington National Bank, as Trustee of S.B. Lexington,
Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust"; "United Bank of Tllinois"; "LaSalle National Trust,
N.A., Trustee"; "LaSalle National Trust, N.A."; "Simon Bemnstein Insurance Trust dated
6/21/1995, Trust"; and "Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A."

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

therefore denies the same. The Court should
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note that after repeated attempts by ELIOT to secure copies of the underlying policies and
trusts pertinent to this Lawsuit from the parties, he has been denied and refused all such
suppressed and denied requested information and documents to form any opinion on the
validity of the claims.

At the time of the Insured's death, it appears "LaSalle National Trust, N.A." was the named
primary béneﬁciary of the Policy, and the "Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A." was the contingent
beneficiary of the Policy. The Policy's Death Benefit Proceeds are $1,689,070.00, less an
outstanding loan.

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations regarding the beneficiaries of the Policy(ies) and therefore denies
the same. ELIOT denies that the Policy(ies) Death Benefit Proceeds are $1,689,070.00, as it
was initially represented by TED, Robert Spallina, Esq. (“SPALLINA”) and others that the
death benefit was $2,000,000.00 less outstanding loans. When ELIOT asked TED and
SPALLINA and others for copies of the policies loans or any other Policy(ies) information it
was denied and suppressed. After repeated attempts by ELIOT to secure copies of the
underlying policies, trusts and carrier information pertinent to this Lawsuit from the parties,
he has been denied and refused all such requested information and documents to form any
opinion on the validity of the claims.

Subsequent to the Insured's death, Ted Bernstein, through his Florida counsel (who later

claimed Bernstein did not have authority to file the instant suit in Illinois on behalf of

the Bernstein Trust and withdrew representation), [emphasis added] submitted a claim to
Heritage seeking payment of the Death Benefit Proceeds, allegedly as the trustee of the

Bemstein Trust. Ted Bernstein claimed thatjthe Lexington Trust was voluntarily dissolved in
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1998, leaving the Bernstein Trust as the alleged sole surviving Policy beneficiary at the time

of the Decedent's death.

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same. ELIOT claims,
on information and belief that TED’s counsel that withdrew from representation after

advising TED that he did not have “authority” to file this Lawsnit is believed to be Robert

Spallina, Esq. (“SPALLINA”) and Donald Tescher, Esq. (“TESCHER”) of Tescher &
Spallina, P.A. (“TSPA™), whé are acting as estate counsel for SIMON’s estate and as alleged
Personal Representatives for the estate of SIMON.

That ELIOT does not have the necessary files from this Court’s records to determine whom
the original counsel who drafted and filed this Lawsuit were and if withdrawal of counsel
papers were filed after the filing of the suit or withdrawal was prior to filing. That EL10T
believes that any claims of any fiduciary capacities claimed by TED on behalf of any party
that is a litigant in this Lawsuit are allegedly fraudulently acquired and are part of a larger
insurance fraud and fraud on the beneficiaries of the estate. The alleged criminal acts are
more fully defined in the Petitions and Motions listed below with URL hyperlinks to the
filings, whereby the documents contained at the hyperlinks are hereby incorporated in
entirety by reference herein with all exhibits .therein, and where the Petitions and Motions
were filed in the Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach
County, Florida / Probate (“Probate Court”) case # 502012CP004391XXXXSB for the estate
of Simon L. Bernstein, as follows:

i,  May 6, 2013 ELTOT filed Docket #23 an “EMERGENCY PETITION TO:
FREEZE ESTATE ASSETS, APPOINT NEW PERSONAL
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.

jii.

iv.

V1.

REPRESENTATIVES, INVESTIGATE FORGED AND FRAUDULENT
DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED TO THIS COURT AND OTHER INTERESTED
PARTIES, RESCIND SIGNATURE OF ELIOT BERNSTEIN IN ESTATE OF
SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN AND MORE” (“Petition 17).

A, www iviewil tv/20130506PetitionFreezelstates pdt 15th Judicial Florida

Probate Court and
b www, iviewit tv/20130512MetionRehearReopenObstruction.pdt US
District Court Pages 156-582
May 29, 2013, ELIOT filed Docket #28 “RENEWED EMERGENCY
PETITION” (“Petition 27)
2. www. iviewit.tv/20130529RenewedEmergencyletitionSIMON. pdf
June 26, 2013, ELIOT filed Docket #31 “MOTION TO: CONSIDER IN
ORDINARY COURSE THE EMERGENCY PETITION TO FREEZE ESTATE
ASSETS, APPOINT NEW PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES, INVESTIGATE
FORGED AND FRAUDULENT DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED TO THIS
COURT AND OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES, RESCIND SIGNATURE OF
ELIOT BERNSTEIN IN ESTATE OF SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN AND MORE
FILED BY PETITIONER” (“Petition 37)
a. www. iviewil tv/20130626MotionReconsiderOrdinaryCourseSIMON pdff
July 15, 2013, ELIOT filed Docket #32 “MOTION TO RESPOND TO THE
PETITIONS BY THE RESPONDENTS” (“Petition 4”)
a. www.iviewit 1v/201307 14MotionRespondPetition SIMON, pdf
July 24, 2013, ELIOT filed Docket #33 “MOTION TO REMOVE PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVES” for insurance fraud and more. (“Petition 57)

a. www iviewit 1v/20130724SIMONMotionRemovePR.pdf’
August 28, 2013, ELIOT filed Docket #TBD “NOTICE OF MOTION FOR:
INTERIM DISTRIBUTION FOR BENEFICIARIES NECESSARY LIVING
EXPENSES, FAMILY ALLOWANCE, LEGAL COUNSEL EXPENSES TO BE
PAID BY PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES AND REIMBURSEMENT TO
BENEFICIARIES SCHOOL TRUST FUNDS” (“Petition 6”)
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a. www.iviewit.tv/20130828MotionFamilvAllowance SHIRLEY pdf
vii.  September 04, 2013, ELIOT filed Docket #TBD “NOTICE OF EMERGENCY

MOTION TO FREEZE ESTATES OF SIMON BERNSTEIN DUE TO
ADMITTED AND ACKNOWLEDGED NOTARY PUBLIC FORGERY,
FRAUD AND MORE BY THE LAW FIRM OF TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A,,
ROBERT SPALLINA AND DONALD TESCHER ACTING AS ALLEGED
PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES AND THEIR LEGAL ASSISTANT AND
NOTARY PUBLIC, KIMBERLY MORAN: MOTION FOR INTERIM
DISTRIBUTION DUE TO EXTORTION BY ALLEGED PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVES AND OTHERS; MOTION TO STRIKE THE MOTION
OF SPALLINA TO REQOPEN THE ESTATE OF SHIRLEY; CONTINUED
MOTION FOR REMOVAL OF ALLEGED PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES
AND ALLEGED SUCCESSOR TRUSTEE. (“Petition 77)

A www, iviewit. tv/20130004MotionFreezeEstatesSHIRLEY DueToAdmitied

NotarvFraud, pdf

19. However, Ted Bernstein could not locate (nor could anyone else) a copy of the Bernstein
Trust. Accordingly, on January 8, 2013, Reassure, successor to Heritage, responded to Ted
Bernstein's counsel stating:

In as much as the above policy provides a large death benefit in

excess of $1.6 million dollars and the fact that the trust document

cannot be located, we respectfully reguest a court order to

enable us to process this claim. [Emphasis Added]

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same. ELIOT claims
that the counsel referred to here as “Ted Bernstein’s counsel” is believed to be SPALLINA
and TESCHER and the law firm of TSPA, as the Heritage Union Life Insurance Company’s

ands a “court order” to approve of the TSPA,

letter referenced in Jackson’s response de, p
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SPALLINA, TESCHER, TED and Pamela Beth Simon (“P. SIMON™) insurance trust and
beneficiary scheme they presented in their death benefit claim. Other correspondences were
sent to TSPA, SPALLINA and TESCHER directly by the carrier(s) in their capacity as
counsel representing the estate of SIMON and as alleged Personal Representatives of the
estate of SIMON.

However, instead of complying with the carriers request to obtain a “court order” to
determine the beneficiaries, the instant Lawsuit was instead filed to try and reap the benefits
through this Breach of Contract suit and without first obtaining a court order approving the
beneficiaries as demanded by the carrier. The initial insurance and trust scheme prepared by
TSPA is fully described, defined and exhibited in Petition 1, Section VII - “Insurance
Distribution Scheme” Pages 30-37 and Pages 170-175, exhibit 7 - “Settlement Agreement
and Mutual Release” (“SAMR”). The trust that would have been created under the SAMR to
replace the lost “Bernstein Trust” aka “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable lnsurance Trust Dtd
6/21/95” is termed herein as the SAMR TRUST (“SAMR TRUST”). The SAMR TRUST
was to act as the proposed trust instrument by which the alleged conversion of proceeds was
to be used funneled to allegedly intentionally post mortem elected wrong beneficiaries, as
defined more fully in Petition 1, Pages 142-168 and 258-259, exhibits 5, 6 and 25.

That TSPA, SPALLINA and TESCHER are SIMON’s estate counsel and alleged Personal
Representatives of SIMON’s estate, and yet, also appear in this Lawsuit to have acted in
apparent conflict with the estate beneficiaries, acting as TED’s counsel in this Lawsuit.
ELIOT claims these conflicts enable part of an alleged larger fraud against the estates of

SIMON and SHIRLEY as further evidencedfand exhibited in the Petitions 1-7 and Petition 1,
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Section XIX. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST BY PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES,
ESTATE COUNSEL AND TRUSTEES DISCOVERED, Pages 88-90.

The documents giving TSPA, SPALLINA, TESCHER and TED fiduciary powers in the
estates of SIMON and SHIRLEY are also currently under investigations and questioned as to
their validity in complaints filed by ELIOT with the Governor of Florida Notary Public
Division, the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office, Fifteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Palm
Beach County, Florida / Probate and have been simultaneously been tendered to the US
District Court of New York Southern District.

In the Notary Public investigation at the Florida Governor’s Office, the Licensed Notary
Public, who is an employee of TSPA, ADMITTED TO ILLEGALLY NOTARIZING
documents and it is alleged that she forged documents after he was deceased and also
improperty Notarized documents, including a Will and Amended Trust of SIMON and
documents that allegedly grant Simon’s estate counsel, TSPA, SPALLINA and TESCHER
their fiduciary capacities as alleged Personal Representatives of the estafes of SIMON.
That the Licensed Notary Public Kimberly MORAN (“MORAN?”), admitted to committing
six instances of Fraud by falsely Notarizing documents and allegedly Forged documents in
the estate of SHIRLEY. The alleged forgeries included a document ILLEGALLY
NOTARIZED in SIMON’s name and with a fraudulent signature affixed, done two months
after SIMON’s passing and submitted to the Probate Court and others as part of official
records in the estates. These acts are illegal felony crimes. The Notary Public MORAN’s
Response to the complaints filed against her with the Governor of Florida’s office in an

ongoing investigation, including her Admission o the allegations, the Response filed by
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ELIOT to MORAN’s Response and the original Notary Public original complaint, all can be
found as exhibits in Petition 7, exhibits 1,2 &3.

Presently, the Bernstein Trust still has not been located. Accordingly, Jackson is not aware

whether the Bernstein Trust even exists, [EMPHASIS ADDED] and if it does whether its

title is the "Simon Bernstein Insurance Trust dated 6/21/1995, Trust," as captioned herein, or
the "Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A." as listed as the Policy's contingent beneficiary (or

otherwise), and/or if Ted Bernstein is in fact its trustee. [Emphasis Added] In conjunction,

Jackson has received conflicting claims as to whether Ted Bernstein had authority to file the
instant suit on behaif of the Bernstein Trust.

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same. ELIOT admits
that the “Bernstein Trust” is unknown if it exists. ELIOT admits that TED is questionably
the trustee of the “Bernstein Trust” and believes TED has no basis or authority to file this
Lawsuit or a death benefit claim with the carrier.

In addition, it is not known whether “LaSalle National Trust, N.A." was intended to be
named as the primary beneficiary in the role of a trustee (of the Lexington and/or Bernstein
Trust), or otherwise. Jackson also has no evidence of the exact status of the Lexington Trust,
which was allegedly dissolved.”

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.
Further, Jackson has received correspondence from Eliot Bernstein, attached as Exhibit 1, -
asserting that he and/or his children are potential beneficiaries under the Policy, (presumably

under the Bernstein Trust, but nonetheless yaising further questions as to the proper
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beneficiaries of the Policy), and requesting that no distributions of the Death Benefit

proceeds be made,

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT admits in part and denies in part and lacks sufficient information

and knowledge in part to form a belief as to the truth of the remainder of the allegations of
this paragraph and therefore denies the same. ELIOT admits that he and/or his children are
the beneficiaries. ELIOT denies sending correspondence to Jackson but instead sending such
correspondence to Reassure America Life Insurance Company (“RALIC”) after failing to
reach Heritage after several attempts. RALIC may have tendered the correspondence to
Jackson without ELIOT authorization or knowledge. ELIOT admits stating that NO
DISTRIBUTION OF DEATH BENEFITS BE MADE and further until both CIVIL AND
CRIMINAL REMEDIES ARE NOW RESOLVED, regarding the Policy(ies).

23. This is an action of interpleader brought under Title 28 of the United States Code, Section
1335.
ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same. ELIOT makes no
answer to the allegations in Par. 23 as they are conclusions of law.

24. Jackson does not dispute the existence of the Policy or its obligation to pay the contractually
required payment Death Benefit Proceeds under the Policy, which it has tendered into the
registry of this Court.

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same. ELIOT claims

that Jackson has not tendered the Policy(ies) Proceeds to the registry of this Court after
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conversations with Jackson’s Attorney at Law, MARKS, who denied benefits have been paid
into the registry of this Court at that time.

Due to: (a) the inability of any party to locate the Bernstein Trust and uncertainty associated
thereunder; (b) the uncertainty surrounding the existence and status of "LaSalle National
Trust, N.A." (the primary beneficiary under the Policy) and the Lexington Trust; and (c) the
potential conflicting claims under the Policy, Jackson is presently unable to discharge its
admitted liability under the Policy.

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same. ELIOT admits
that “Jackson is presently unable to discharge its admitted liability under the Policy(ies).”
Jackson is indifferent among the defendant parties, and has no interest in the benefits payable
under the Policy as asserted in this interpleader other than to pay its admitted lability
pursuant to the terms of the Policy(ies), which Jackson has been unable to do by reason of
uncertainty and potential competing claims. ELIOT claims the death benefit amount is
unknown with conflicting claims as to the amount due to the to be determined beneficiaries
and therefore cannot determine how much the admitted liability is. Until ELIOT receives all
Policy(ies) records and information ELIOT denies that Jackson has no interest in the benefits
payable under the Policy(ies) and thus should not be released from this Lawsuit at this time.
There may also be other liabilities that are unknown at this time regarding record keeping of
beneficiaries and more and these liabilities may be due to any of the parties of this Lawsuit
and is yet still unknown, leaving further reasonjfor this Court to leave Jackson a party to the

Lawsuit.
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ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

27. Justice and equity dictate that Jackson should not be subject to disputes between the

defendant parties and competing claims when it has received a non-substantiated claim for

entitlement to the Death Benefit Proceeds by a trust that has yet to be located, nor a copy of

which produced.

ELIOT ANSWER: ELIOT lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

ELIOT shall not be liable to Jackson for any fees or any type of damages.

RELIEF

WHEREFORE, ELIOT prays that:

L

iL.

it

Even if this court comes to the conclusion that Jackson should be paid attorney fees,
then these fees should be paid by TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA, TED, Simon Law
Firm (“SLF™), David Simon (“D. SIMON™), Pamela Beth Simon (“P. SIMON”) and
Adam Simon (“A. SIMON”) directly, as all these costs have resulted from the
allegedly fraudulent and illegal acts of TSPA, SPALLINA, TESCHER, TED, P.
SIMON, SLF D. SIMON and A. SIMON, in attempting to convert the Policy(ies)
proceeds through an alleged Fraud on this Court and fraud on the true and proper
beneficiaries of the Policy(ies).

ELIOT and his children be paid their legal share of the Policy(ies) proceeds as
beneficiaries after a “court order” determining the beneficiaries is made.

under no circumstances should ELIOT or other beneficiaries or interested parties be

made liable for attorney fees or anyfother damages to Jackson or any other party.
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v, bonding be required if this Court finds that Abuse of Process has occurred in the
filing of this Lawsuit.
V. Jackson should not pay the Policy(ies) proceeds to this Court registry at this time

until all beneficiary disputes are wholly resolved by a court of law.

Vi. this Court should not release Jackson from the remainder of the proceedings, as their
interest in Heritage makes them a party to this suit and any damages, which may
result from their actions or those of Heritage’s are still unknown, and so it would be
prudent to leave them in at the present time.

Vi, this Court demand all parties release all insurance policy(ies) records, trust
documents and any other information regarding the Policy(ies) or any other
insurance or other contracts held to ELIOT immediately so that he may better
prepare pleadings for this Lawsuit as he has been denied all such records and
information to this point, and,

viil. leave to amend this Answer,

CROSS CLAIM / COUNTER CLAIM

INTRODUCTION

1. ELIOT brings this cross claim under FRC Rule 13(g) against the Cross Defendant Ted Stuart
Bernstein (“TED”) and requests this court under FRC Rule 19 to add Pamela B. Simon (“P.
SIMON™), David B. Simon (“D. SIMON”), Adam Simon (“A. SIMON”), The Simon Law
Firm (“SLF”), Tescher & Spallina P.A. (“TSPA”), Donald Tescher (“TESCHER”), Robert
Spallina (“SPALLINA”), Jill Tantoni (“]ANTONI"), Lisa Friedstein (“FRIEDSTEIN™),

S.T.P. Enterprises (“STP”), S.B. L'exingto , Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust (“SBI™), SB
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Lexington, Inc. (“SBL”), National Service Association, Inc. (of Florida) (“NSA”™), National
Service Association, Inc. (of Illinois) (“NSA2”) and John and Jane Doe’s to this case as

additional Third Party Defendants and further requests this Court to:

1. To seize all records and demand that all records of all parties concerning either
Shirley Bernstein (“SHIRLEY”) or Simon Bernstein (“SIMON”) held by all parties
be turned over to ELTOT, as NO documents have been tendered to him regarding
these Policies;

ii.  Award Court Costs not from the Policy(ies) but from alleged conspirators and force
bonding for these unnecessary legal and other costs by those parties that have caused
this baseless Lawsuit in efforts to perpetrate a fraud;

iii.  ELIOT has requested the Probate Court to remove TSPA, SPALLINA, TESCHER,
TED and P. SIMON of any fiduciary capacities regarding the estates of SIMON and
SHIRLEY on multiple legal grounds stated in said Petitions and Motion 1-7 and
hereby requests this Court remove them as well from acting in any conflicting
capacities or self—fepresentations based on the Prima Facie evidence of Forgery,
Fraud, Fraud on the Probate Court and Mail and Wire Fraud, already evidenced in
Petition 7. That in hearings held on SHIRLEY’s estate on Friday, September 13,
2013 in the Probate Court, Honorable Judge Martin H. Colin told TED,
SPALLINA, TESCHER and their counsel, Mark Manceri, that he [Hon. Jndge
Colin] should read them all their Miranda Rights right at that moment, after
hearing how SIMON had notarized docnments to close SHIRLEY’s estate two

months after he was deceased and ho there was a frand upon his court and
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1v.

vi.

Vil.

himself personally as he closed the estate with the fraudulent documents and
TSPA, TESCHER and SPALLH\‘IA did not think it important to note the Court
of what they were doing. Hon. Colin’s issued this stark Miranda Warning after
hearing of the admitted criminal misconduct before his Court, twice in fact.
That the alleged insurance fraud taking place through the instant Lawsuit in this Court
as further defined herein is allegedly being committed by similar parties of the
alleged estate frauds, again misusing their fiduciary and professional powers and they
should be removed from further representing any parties, sanctioned and all Cross
Detfendants and Third Party Defendants forced to retain non cbnflicted counsel
further in these proceedings.

ELIOT requests this Court take Judicial Notice of the alleged and admitted crimes
herein and in Petitions 1-7 and Hon. Colin’s warning and act on its own motions to
prevent any furthér possible criminal activities and damages to otherls being incurred
until these alleged criminal matters are fully resolved.

Allow ELIOT to ECF in this case due to health problems and expenses. In US
District Court Scheindlin has ordered ELIOT access to ECF filing.

Allow leave ;[o amend this Cross Claim as it was served while ELIOT was recovering
from a traumatic brain injury with bleeding on the brain, a fractured rib and bruised
collar bone and in ICU for 3 days in Del Ray Beach, FL hospital and the recovery
was almost two months during the time for response and therefore ELIOT would like
an opportunity to perfect it. The Court granted several extensions during this time
period and ELIOT thanks Your Honor fgr the additional extensions in light of these

medical maladies.
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viii.  Award damages sustained to date and continuing in excess of at least EIGHT
MILLION DOLLARS ($8,000,000.00) as well as punitive damages, costs and
attorney's fees.

JURISDICTION

Personal jurisdiction is proper over Ted S. Bernstein because he, allegedly claims to be
Trustee of the Bernstein Trust, caused this underlying suit to be filed in this venue.
Personal jurisdiction is proper over Pamela B. Simon, David. B. Simon, Adam Simon, Lisa
S. Friedstein and Jill M. Iantoni to this case under 735 ILCS 5/2-209(a)(1 3), as each are
believed to have a beneficial interest in the Bernstein Trust, which is alleged in the
underlying complaint to exist underneath laws of and to be administered within this State.
Tescher & Spallina, P.A., Donald Tescher and Robert Spallina, as each are Personal
Representatives, Trustees and estate counsel of the estate of SIMON,

Personal jurisdiction is proper over The Simon Law Firm, , S.T.P. Enterprises, S.B.
Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust, SB Lexington, Inc., National Service
Association, Inc. , of Florida, National Service Association, Inc. Illinois, and John and Jane
Doe’s to this case under 735 ILCS 5/2-209(a)(1 3), as each are believed to have business in

this State.

PARTIES AND VENUES

Eliot Ivan Bernstein (“ELIOT”) is a resident and citizen of Florida. ELIOT and/or his
children are beneficiaries of the Policy(ies).

Theodore Stuart Bernstein is a resident and citizen of Florida. He is claiming to be Successor
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“Bernstein Trust” and alleging he is a beneficiary of the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95 regarding Heritage Policy #1009208 (“Policy(ies”). He is the
son of SIMON and SHIRLEY.

David B. Simon, Esq. is a resident and citizen of Illinois and an Attorney at Law. He is a
partner in The Simon Law Firm and married to P. SIMON | daughter of SIMON and
SHIRLEY.

Adam Simon, Esq. is a resident and citizen of Illinois and an Attormey at Law. He is a
partner in the SLF law firm and is brother to D. SIMON.

The Simon Law Firm is believed to be a law firm licensed in Illinois.

Pamela Beth Simon is a resident of Illinois and citizen of Illinois. She is daughter to SIMON
and SHIRLEY and married to D. SIMON and sister-in-law to A. SIMON,

Tescher & Spallina, P. A. is believed to be a Florida law firm.

Robert L. Spallina, Esq. is a resident of Florida and citizen of Florida and an Attorney at
Law.

Donald R. Tescher is a resident of Florida and citizen of Florida and an Attorney at Law.
Jill Marla Iantoni is a resident and citizen of Illinois. She is daughter to SIMON and
SHIRLEY.

Lisa Sue Friedstein is a resident and citizen of Illinois. She is daughter to SIMON and
SHIRLEY.

S.T.P. Enterprises Inc. is believed to be an Illinois insurance agency believed to be owned by
P. SIMON as President and D. SIMON as VP.

S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death BenefitfTrust, is a trust alleged to be managed by P.

SIMON and D. SIMON.
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14. S.B. Lexington, Inc. is an Illinois insurance agency managed by D. SIMON and P. SIMON.

15. National Service Association, Inc. is a Florida insurance consulting firm believed to be
managed by SIMON prior to his death.

16. National Service Association, Inc. is an Illinots insurance consulting firm believed to be

managed by P. SIMON and D. SIMON.

FACTS

1, Eliot Ivan Bernstein, make the following statements and allegations to the best of my

knowledge and on information and belief and as a Pro Se Litigant:

17. That the alleged criminal acts defined herein are more fully defined in the Petitions and
Motions listed below with URL hyperlinks to the filings, whereby the documents contained
at the hyperlinks are hereby incorporated in entirety by reference herein with all exhibits
therein, and where the Petitions and Motions were filed in the Circuit Court of the Fifteenth
Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida / Probate (“Probate Court™) case #

502012CP004391XXXXSB for the estate of Simon L. Bernstein, as follows:

i. May 6, 2013 ELIOT filed Docket #23 an “EMERGENCY PETITION TO: FREEZE
ESTATE ASSETS, APPOINT NEW PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES,
INVESTIGATE FORGED AND FRAUDULENT DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED TO
THIS COURT AND OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES, RESCIND SIGNATURE
OF ELIOT BERNSTEIN IN ESTATE/OF SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN AND MORE”

(“Petition 17).

AnswerR ¢ress Claim
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b. www. iviewll tv/20150506PeiitionFreezelstates. pdf 15th Judicial Florida

Probate Court and

c. www.iviewil.iv/2013051 2MotionRehearReopenObstruction.pdf US

District Court Pages 156-582

. May 29, 2013, ELIOT filed Docket #28 “RENEWED EMERGENCY PETITION”

(“Petition 2”)

d. www iviewit.tv/20130529RencwedEmergencyPetitionSIMON. pdf

. June 26, 2013, ELIOT filed Docket #31 “MOTION TO: CONSIDER IN
ORDINARY COURSE THE EMERGENCY PETITION TO FREEZE ESTATE
ASSETS, APPOINT NEW PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES, INVESTIGATE
FORGED AND FRAUDULENT DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED TO THIS COURT
AND OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES, RESCIND SIGNATURE OF ELIOT
BERNSTEIN IN ESTATE OF SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN AND MORE FILED BY

PETITIONER” (*Petition 3”)

e. www. iviewit.iv/20130626MotionReconsiderOrdinaryCourseSIVION pdf

iv.  July 15, 2013, ELIOT filed Docket #32 “MOTION TO RESPOND TO THE

PETITIONS BY THE RESPONDENTS” (“Petition 4”)

£ www.iviewit.tv/201307 1dMotionRespondPetition SIMON pdf

v.  July 24, 2013, ELIOT filed Docket #33 “MOTION TO REMOVE PERSONAL

REPRESENTATIVES” for insurancefraud and more. (“Petition 57)
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vi.

Vii.

g. www.iviewit.tv/20130724SIMONMotionRemovePR pdf

August 28, 2013, ELIOT filed Docket #TBD “NOTICE OF MOTION FOR:
INTERIM DISTRIBUTION FOR BENEFICIARIES NECESSARY LIVING
EXPENSES, FAMILY ALLOWANCE, LEGAL COUNSEL EXPENSES TO BE
PAID BY PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES AND REIMBURSEMENT TO

BENEFICIARIES SCHOOL TRUST FUNDS” (“Petition 6”)

h. www.iviewit 1v/20130828MotionFamilyAllowanceSHIRLEY pdf

September 04, 2013, ELIOT filed Docket #TBD “NOTICE OF EMERGENCY
MOTION TO FREEZE ESTATES OF SIMON BERNSTEIN DUE TO ADMITTED
AND ACKNOWLEDGED NOTARY PUBLIC FORGERY, FRAUD AND MORE
BY THE LAW FIRM OF TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A., ROBERT SPALLINA
AND DONALD TESCHER ACTING AS ALLEGED PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVES AND THEIR LEGAL ASSISTANT AND NOTARY
PUBLIC, KIMBERLY MORAN: MOTION FOR INTERIM DISTRIBUT1ON DUE
TO EXTORTION BY ALLEGED PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES AND
OTHERS; MOTION TO STRIKE THE MOTION OF SPALLINA TO REOPEN
THE ESTATE OF SHIRLEY; CONTINUED MOTION FOR REMOVAL OF
ALLEGED PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES AND ALLEGED SUCCESSOR

TRUSTEE. (“Petition 7”)

Lowww iviewit tv/201 30904 MotionFreezeEstatesSHIRLEY DueToAdmitted

NotarvFraud. pdf
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18. That in hearings held on SHIRLEY’s estate on Friday, September 13, 2013 in the Probate
Court, Honorable Judge Martin H. Colin (“Hon. Colin”) told TED, SPALLINA, TESCHER
and their counsel, Mark Manceri (“MANCERI"), that he should read them all their Miranda
Rights after hearing their explanation how SIMON had notarized documents to close
SHIRLEY’s estate two months after he was deceased, Hon. Colin stated this fact twice in the

hearings.

19. That ﬁlﬁﬁer upsetting Hon. Colin in the hearing to the reopen the estate of SHIRLEY, which
was ordered reopened, was that at no time after SIMON had passed had the court been
notified by estate counse! of SIMON’s death and that documents were being submitted to the
Court after SIMON was deceased as if he was alive. The documents in SHIRLEY’s
ESTATE now admittedly fraudulently crafted by a TSPA contracted L.egal Assistant/Notary
Public and alleged forged after SIMON’s death, were then filed with his Court and used to
close the estate as if SIMON were alive at the time. Hon. Colin realized they had committed
a fraud upon his court and him personally as he signed off to close the estate using these

bogus documents.
20. From an excerpt from that hearing transcript, see attached, Exhibit 1 on September 13, 2013,

9 MR. SPALLINA: Yeah, it was after his date

10 of death.

11 THE COURT: Well, how could that happen
12 legally? How could Simon --

13 MR. MANCERI: Who signed that?

14 THE COURT: -- ask to closefand not serve
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16 MR. MANCERI: Your Honor, what happened
17 was is the documents were submitted with the
18 waivers originally, and this goes to

19 Mr. Bernstein's fraud allegation. As you know,
20 your Honor, you have a rule that you have to
21 have your waivers notarized. And the original
22 waivers that were submitted were not notarized,
23 so they were kicked back by the clerk. They
24 were then notarized by a staff person from

25 Tescher and Spallina admittedly in error. They
1 should not have been notarized in the absentia
2 of the people who allegedly signed them. And

3 I'll give you the names of the other siblings,

4 that would be Pamela, Lisa, Jill, and Ted

5 Bernstein.

6 THE COURT: So let me tell you because I'm

7 going to stop all of you folks because I think

8 you need to be read your Miranda warnings.

9 MR. MANCERI: I need to be read my Miranda
10 warnings?

11 THE COURT: Everyone of you [ referring to TED, SPALLINA, TESCHER
an MANCERI ] might have to

12 be.

13 MR. MANCERI: Okay.

14 THE COURT: Because I'm looking at a
15 formal document filed here April 9, 2012,

16 signed by Simon Bernstein, a signature for him.
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17 MR. MANCERI: April 9th, right.

18 THE COURT: April 9th, signed by him, and
19 notarized on that same date by Kimberly. It's
20 a waiver and it's not filed with The Court

21 until November 19th, so the filing of it, and
22 it says to The Court on November 19th, the
23 undersigned, Simon Bernstein, does this, this,
24 and this. Signed and notarized on April 9,

25 2012. The notary said that she witnessed Simon
1 sign it then, and then for some reason it's not

2 filed with The Court until after his date of

3 death with no notice that he was dead at the

4 tume that this was filed.

5 MR. MANCERI: Okay.

6 THE COURT: All right, so stop, that's

7 enough to give you Miranda warnings. Not you
8 personally --

9 MR. MANCERI: Okay.

10 THE COURT: Are you involved? Just tell

11 me yes or no.

12 MR. SPALLINA: I'm sorry?

13 THE COURT: Are you involved in the

14 transaction?

15 MR. SPALLINA: I was invojved as the

16 lawyer for the estate, yes.
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21. That the alleged insurance fraud taking place through the instant Breach of Contract Lawsuit
in this Court is allegedly being committed by similar parties of the alleged estate fra:uds
described herein and in Petitions 1-7, again misusing their fiduciary and professional powers
to convert estate assets and TED, A. SIMON, the SLF should all be removed from further
representing any parties in this Lawsuit, sanctioned and forced to retain non conflicted

counsel in these proceedings.

22. ELIOT requests this Court take Judicial Notice of the alleged and admitted crimes herein and
in Petitions 1-7 and on the Hon. Colin’s warning and act on it.s own motions to prevent any
further possible criminal activities and damages to others being incurred, until these alleged
criminal and civil matters are fully resolved by this Court, the Probate Court, the Palm Beach

County Sheriff and Florida Governor Notary Public Division.

FIRST ATTEMPT TO FRAUDULENTLY CONVERT THE DEATH BENEFIT

23. That the first attempt to convert the life insurance Policy #1009208 (“Policy(ies)) proceeds
on SIMON’s life by TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA, TED and P. SIMON took place on or
about January 2013 when a death benefit claim was made according to Jackson National
Insurance Company’s (“Jackson™) Counter Complaint for the Policy(ies) proceeds to be paid

to a beneficial designations unknown by ELIOT.

24. That ELIOT and his children’s former counsel after repeated requests have no records of the
death benefit claim filed or any other records requested including the Policy(ies) and have

been denied the information upon request by TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA, TED, P.
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STMON, Heritage Union Life Insurance Company (“Heritage”) and Reassure America Life

Insurance Company (“RALIC”).

That Heritage refused to pay the Policy(ies) proceeds based on the death benefit claim filed,
claiming it was legally deficient and they would therefore need a “court order” to determine
if the beneficiary claimed was the legal beneficiary and thus the first attempt to claim the

benefits failed.

SECOND ATTEMPT TO FRAUDULENTLY CONVERT THE DEATH BENEFIT — THE

SAMR & SAMR TRUST

26.

27,

28.

That the SAMR and SAMR TRUST is fully described, defined and exhibited in Petition 1,
Section VII - “Insurance Distribution Scheme” Pages 30-37 and Pages 170-175, exhibit 7 -
“Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release” (“SAMR”). The post mortem trust that would
have been created under the SAMR 1o replace the lost “Bernstein Trust” aka “Simon
Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95” is termed herein as the SAMR TRUST

(“SAMR TRUST”).

That once the death benefit claim was denied and a “court order” was necessary to pay the
Policy(ies) proceeds, the SAMR and SAMR TRUST insurance trust and beneficiary fraud
scheme, as further defined herein, was then proposed to ELIOT by TSPA, TESCHER,

SPALLINA, TED, P. SIMON and D. SIMON.

That the SAMR & SAMR TRUST was proposed as a post mortem trust replacement created

to remedy for an allegedly lost trust created by SIMON that is claimed to be the alleged
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beneficiary of the Policy(ies), the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd

6/21/95.”

That the SAMR TRUST was proposed by TSPA, SPALLINA, TESCHER, TED and P.
SIMON as a means to convert the insurance proceeds from going to the estate of SIMON due
to an alleged lost trust and where the proceeds under the SAMR. TRUST they claimed would
not go to the estate and would instead flow into the newly created post mortem SAMR
TRUST, where a newly elected post mortem “trustee” TED, would then divvy it up to newly

elected by TED beneficiaries of the SAMR TRUST.

That in this Court proceeding, in a response filed by A. SIMON, we learn who is divvying up
the proceeds when he claims (“4/5”) of SIMON’s children, TED, P. SIMON, IANTONI and

FRIEDSTEIN agree with the beneficiary designation that was filed in this Lawsuit.

That TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA, TED and P. SIMON further claimed that the SAMR
TRUST was necessary to keep the proceeds estate tax free and free from creditors of the
estate, despite that this would be a new post mortem trust designating new trustees and

beneficiaries who were not elected by SIMON while he was alive.

That this post mortem SAMR TRUST was to be created without STIMON’s knowledge,
consent or keeping with his wishes he documented while alive, as it was done post mortem
and thus ELIOT claims that it could not then be used to escape estate taxes or creditors

legally and would be construed as an artifice to defraud.

That ELIOT sent letters to TSPA, SPALLINA, TESCHER, TED and P. SIMON and claimed

that the SAMR TRUST appeared to be a shamytrust and beneficiary scheme that was
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potentially illegally attempting to circumvent SIMON’s estate creditor liabilities and federal

and state estate taxes.

34. That ELIOT refused to participate in the SAMR or SAMR TRUST and sent TSPA,
SPALLINA, TESCHER, TED and P. SIMON a letter telling them to cease and desist any
attempt at collection of the death benefit until ELIOT and his children could seek

independent counsel to review the legality of the SAMR and SAMR TRUST.

35. That after ELIOT had the plan reviewed by legal counsel and was advised to not sign the
SAMR or SAMR TRUST, as evidenced in Petition 1, and ELIOT sent letters to TSPA,
SPALLINA, TESCHER, TED, P. SIMON and other potential beneficiaries notifying them of
his findings that the SAMR and SAMR TRUST appeared a sham that could be construed as

insurance fraud, tax evasion, creditor fraud and more.

36. That further ELIOT noticed them that no one appeared to be representing the grandchildren’s
alieged beneficial interests in the estate in the SAMR and SAMR TRUST, which was in
conflict now with TED, P. SIMON, JANTONI and FRIEDSTEIN’s interests beneficial
interest to be gained in the Policy(ies) through the SAMR TRUST, as newly named t;'ustees

and beneficiaries in the SAMR TRUST.

37. That if the monies flowed to the estate and were paid to the estate beneficiaries, TED, P.
SIMON, IANTONI and FRIEDSTEIN would not receive monies directly and only manage
the money of their children as trustees for them and therefore since they would not be
beneficiaries they were not in conflict but the SAMR TRUST or any scheme that inures

Policy(ies) proceeds to them directly does putghem in direct conflict and no one seemed to
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be looking out for their own children, in fact, blindly looking the other way while attempting
to convert the monies to themselves. This is an abomination of fiduciary duties and trust as

trustees for their alleged children beneficiaries.

38. That IANTONI asked SPALLINA if she needed to get counsel for herself and her children
due to conflicts created in the SAMR and SAMR TRUST, as ELIOT had stated her
beneficial interests conflicted with her daughters beneficial interests, especially where the
payout is substantially different depending on if her daughter received the benefit through the
estate (1/10 share) or if she received it directly under the SAMR TRUST (1/5 share). The
conflict here is significant and where IANTONI would favor the SAMR TRUST scheme

versus a “court order,” which would favor her daughter.

39. That IANTONI further asked SPALLINA if her daughter could later sue her for taking the
proceeds directly under the SAMR TRUST and SPALLINA stated that “only if she finds

out” or words to that effect.

40. That SIMON’s daughter, P. SIMON, her husband D. SIMON and his brother A. SIMON
through the SLF, believed to be A. SIMON and D. SIMON’s law firm that works out of P.
SIMON’s offices at STP, worked with TSPA, SPALLINA, TESCHER, TED and P. SIMON
in attempts to get the life insurance benefits of the Policy(ies) paid to the newly created post
mortem SAMR TRUST created after SIMON’s death and go against the beneficial wishes

and desires and estate contracts of SIMON and SHIRLEY, as designated in their estate plans.

41. That initially, the SAMR TRUST was proposed to replace an allegedly lost “Simon Bernstein

Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95,” with TED acting as the Trustee of the newly
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created post mortem SAMR TRUST, as evidenced in the SAMR, by claiming he was the
“trustee” of the lost trust that allegedly no executed copies exist for and therefore he was the
“trustee” of the newly created SAMR TRUST with all the unknown fiduciary powers granted
in the alleged lost trust, of which again, no executed copies or originals exist as claimed in

TED’s response to Jackson’s Counter Claim.

42. That TED, TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA and P. SIMON all claimed that “Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95” was “lost” and that through TED, as the self-
elected “trustee” of the new post mortem SAMR TRUST, they would then designate new
beneficiaries that would replace the unknown ones in the lost trust. New beneficiaries
designated by TED based on his belief that TED, P. SIMON, TANTONI and FRIEDSTEIN
and possibly, without ELIOT’s knowledge or consent, ELIOT, were beneficiaries under the

lost trust.

43. That TSPA, SPALLINA, TESCHER, TED and P. SIMON have various alleged fiduciary
capacities as estate counsel, personal representatives and trustees responsible for keeping and
maintaining records of the Policy(ies) and the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust
Dtd 6/21/95” that SPALLINA, TESCHER, TED, P. SIMON, D. SIMON and A. SIMON

claimed was the last known beneficiary on the Policy(ies).

44. That P. SIMON over the years since the Policy(ies) was issued acted as a fiduciary of several
of the trusts that controlled the Policy(ies) and the distribution of proceeds for beneficiaries
who are elected as contingent beneficiaries by employees in a Voluntary Employee

Beneficiary Association VEBA 501(c)(9) lifg insurance trust she controls, that held
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SIMON’s Policy(ies) and many other thousands of policies, through several companies

owned and operated by SIMON and then P. SIMON and D. SIMON.

That TSPA, SPALLINA and TESCHER have various alleged fiduciary capacities regarding
the Policy(ies) and the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95” as they
did the estate planning work concerning the Policy(ies) and trusts and failed to properly
protect the beneficiaries of the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95”
and the estate beneficiaries by properly documenting the beneficiaries in the alleged Wills

and Trusts of SIMON.

That by failing to properly document the beneficiaries of the lost trust, failing to maintain
records of the Policy(ies) and trusts and failing to clearly define the beneficiaries, TSPA,
SPALLINA and TESCHER have caused liabilities by damaging all of the beneficiaries of the

estate and Policy(ies).

That TED has various alleged fiduciary capacities as the self-appointed alleged “trustee” of
the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95,” including the alleged power
to file suit on its behalf and yet TED has no documented evidence to support this claim
according to Jackson. TED is misusing alleged fiduciary powers to con'ven Policy(ies)
prqceeds to himself, P. SIMON, YANTONI & FRIEDSTEIN, secreted from ELIOT and his

counsel and to the disadvantage of ELIOT and his children.

That TED and P. SIMON both claim to have once upon a time been in possession of the
“Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95” and have claimed to have

witnessed the language contained therein, /From their recollections they claim recalling that
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TED was “trustee” of the lost trust and they were named “beneficiaries.” These legally
insufficient claims are also made by two people who stand to gain individually from their
recollections putting them in conflict with other potential beneficiaries, including their own

children.

49. That these alleged fiduciary roles of TED for the lost trust now are being asserted in attempts
to process a death benefit claim without any signed or executed copy of the lost trust. From
Jackson’s Counter Claim there appears to be insufficient evidence to pay a claim to this

insurance trust and beneficiary fraud scheme.

50. That after claiming to have lost the Policy(ies) and trust and assigning TED alleged fiduciary
responsibilities, TED and P. SIMON then attempt to redirect and convert benefits by naming
themselves as newly elected post mortem designated beneficiaries of the Policy(ies). That
ELIOT alleges that this misleading information in the death benefit claim may constitute a

basis for insurance fraud and more.

51. That Bernstein family insurance agencies founded by SIMON allegedly sold the Policy(ies)
and administered the trusts concerning the Policy(ies). Suddenly, when SIMON, a
meticulous record keeper, passes away, all those with control of the Policy(ies) and who have
fiduciary responsibilities and liabilities regarding the Policy(ies) and trusts involved in this
Lawsuit, now claim that the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95” is
missing and lost with no executed copies injexistence and that it was the last known

beneficiary.
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52. That all parties with fiduciary responsibilities for the Policy(ies) and the trusts named in this
Lawsuit are alleged to have fiduciary liabilities and in certain instances with the Attorneys at
Law, professional liabilities, from the damages to the true and proper beneficiaries for their
actions or inactions and for the damages caused by their breaches of fiduciary and

professional responsibilities and alleged violations of law.

53. That ELIOT claims that TSPA, SPALLINA, TESCHER, TED and P. SIMON have allegedly
instead suppressed and denied the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd
6/21/95” and have not “lost” it or found it to be “missing” as they claim and this was done
with intent to commit fraud upon the true and proper beneficiaries of the Policy(ies), this

Court and the estate beneficiaries.

54. That ELIOT states that TED and P. SIMON were excluded as beneficiaries of the Policy(ies)
and trusts, as TED and P. SIMON were wholly excluded and disinherited from the estates of
both SIMON and SHIRLEY and therefore allegedly excluded in all insurance contracts and

policies thereunder.

55. That if the estate received the Policy(ies) proceeds and then determined the beneficiaries,
there is very little likelihood that TED and P. SIMON would be entitled to any Policy(ies)
proceeds in their name if they flowed into the estate to the estate beneficiaries, as they have

been wholly excluded from the estates of both SIMON and SHIRLEY.

56. That it should be noted by this Court that TED and P. SIMON are alleged in Petition 1 to be

the cause of attempting to force SIMON toyallegedly change the beneficiaries in his estate
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plan, in near deathbed changes allegedly made wecks before his death and while under

extreme physical and emotional duress at the time.

57. That it is now unclear due to the Notary Public ADMITTED Fraud and alleged Forgery in
the estate of SHIRLEY and the alleged Fraudulent and Legally Defective estate documents in
SIMON, if SIMON actually signed any changes to his estate plan prior to his death or if the
documents were signed and notarized for him after he died, in efforts to change SIMON’s

estate disposition and wants,

58. That prior to the alleged near deathbed changes made by SIMON, under duress, TED, P.
SIMON and their children were wholly disinherited from the estates of both SIMON and

SHIRLEY.

59. From the alleged May 20, 2008 “Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement®” the language

regarding beneficiaries is as follows,

1. Children, Lineal Descendants. The terms "child," "children" and "lineal
descendant" mean only persons whose relationship to the ancestor designated is
created entirely by or through (a) legitimate births occurring during the marriage
of the joint biological parents to each other, (b) children and their lineal
descendants arising from surrogate births and/or third party donors when (i) the
child is raised from or near the time of birth by a married couple (other than a
same sex married couple) through the pendency of such marriage, (ii) one of such
couple is the designated ancestor, and (iii) to the best knowledge of the Trustee
both members of such couple participated in the decision to have such child, and
(c) lawful adoptions of minors under the age of twelve years. No such child or
lineal descendant loses his or her status as such through adoption by another
person. Notwithstanding the foregoing, as I have adequately provided for them
during my lifetime, for purposes of the dispositions made under this Trust, my

2 That Shirley’s May 20, 2008 trust language was used here, as the May 20, 2008 “Simon Bernstein Trust
Agreement” has been suppressed and denied to ELIOT by TSPA, TESCHER and SPALLINA for over a year now. They
have refused to release the SIMON original trust despite repeated oral and written requests from ELIOT and his
children’s former counsel, Christine Yates at Tripp Scott lawffirm in Fort Lauderdale, FL. The language is presumed
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children, TED S. BERNSTEIN ("TED") and P. SIMONELA B. SIMON ("'P.
SIMON™), and their respective lineal descendants shall be deemed to have
predeceased the survivor of my spouse and me, provided[emphasis added],
however, if my children, ELIOT BERNSTEIN, JILL. TANTONI and LISA S.
FRIEDSTEIN, and their lineal descendants all predecease the survivor of my
spouse and me, then TED and P. SIMON, and their respective lineal descendants
shall not be deemed to have predeceased me and shall be eligible beneficiaries for
purposes of the dispositions made hereunder.”

60. From the alleged November 18, 2008 “First Amendment to Shirley Bernstein Trust

Agreement” the language is as follows,

"Notwithstanding the foregoing, as my spouse and I have adequately provided for
them during our lifetimes, for purposes of the dispositions made under this Trust,
my children, TED S. BERNSTEIN ("TED'") and P. SIMONELA B. SIMON
("P. SIMON"), shall be deemed to have predeceased the survivor of my
spouse and me [emphasis added], provided, however, if my children, ELIQT
BERNSTEIN, JILL IANTONI and LISA S. FRIEDSTEIN, and their respective
lineal descendants all predecease the survivor of my spouse and me, then TED
and P. SIMON shall not be deemed to have predeceased the survivor of my
spouse and me and shall become eligible beneficiaries for purposes of the
dispositions made hereunder."

61. That even after the near deathbed changes allegedly made by SIMON under duress or
perhaps made post mortem, as now TSPA’s Notary Public Kimberly Moran has admitted to
notarizing documents in his name, months after his death, TED and P. SIMON where again
wholly disinherited from the estates of SIMON and SHIRLEY and only their adult children

are alleged beneficiaries.

62. That from the alleged July 25, 2012 “Simon L. Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust

Agreement” the language is as foliows,

“Children Lineal Descendants. The terms “child," "children," “grandchild,"
"grandchildren” and "lineal descendant” mean only persons whose relationship to
the ancestor designated is created entirely by or through (a) legitimate births
occurring during the marriage of the joint biological parents to each other, (b)
children born of female lineal descendants, and (c) children and their lineal
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descendants arising from surrogate births and/or third party donors when (i) the
child is raised from or near the time of birth by a married couple (other than a
same sex married couple) through the pendency of such marriage, (i1) one of such
couple is the designated ancestor, and (iii} to the best knowledge of the Trustee
both members of such couple participated in the decision to have such child. No
such child or lineal descendant loses his or her status as such through adoption by
another person. Notwithstanding the foregoing, for all purposes of this Trust
and the dispositions made hereunder, my children, TED S. BERNSTEIN, P.
SIMONELA B. SIMON, ELIOT BERNSTEIN, JILL IANTONI and LISA S.
FRIEDSTEIN, shall be deemed to have predeceased me as I have adequately
provided for them during my lifetime [emphasis added].

That the alleged Personal Representatives to the estates, TSPA, TESCHER and SPALLINA,
have since SIMON’s passing worked and shared information almost exclusively with TED
and P. SIMON, the two children who were both wholly excluded from benefits of the estates
of SIMON and SHIRLEY in any Will or Trust established. Both TED and P. SIMON are
alleged to have been on bad terms with SIMON and SHIRLEY at the time of their deaths due
to their exclusion from further benefits in the estates, as they already had been compensated
while living as they inherited family businesses worth fortunes and ELIOT, IANTONI and

FRIEDSTEIN did not.

That after SHIRLEY passed until the day of SIMON’s death almost twenty two month, TED
and P. SIMON led an assault on SIMON and recruited IANTONI and FRIEDSTEIN and
together the four of them banned and precluded their seven children from seeing SIMON,
their grandfather, claiming it was over his relationship with his companion, as fully defined
in Petition 1. That this is why SIMON considered altering he and SHIRLEY’s long
established estate plans in May 10, 2012 and sought agreement from his children that if he
chose to make any changes to his estate plan it would put an end to these disputes. and torture

of his soul.
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That in 2 May 10, 2012 conference call with TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA, TED, P.
SIMON, ELIOT, IANTONI and F RIEDSTEIN, SIMON sought and received verbal
agreement from his children to have ELIOT, JANTONI and FRIEDSTEIN give up their
inheritances and divide it to the grandchildren equally to resolve any duress and disputes that

were causing him pain and suffering.

That the disputes and banning of themselves and all their children of SIMON however did
not stop after the May 10, 2012 meeting as agreed and SIMON appears to have had a change
of mind and never made the changes to his or SHIRLEY s estate plans and the changes
appear to have been done post mortem, as essential documents to the alleged changes are all

Legally Defective and therefore NULL and VOID.

That despite repeated requests, TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA, TED and P. SIMON have
shut out ELIOT and his children’s counsel from virtually ALL estate information, documents
and assets, including but not limited to, accountings,‘ inventories, Policy(ies) information,
insurance contracts, corporate accountings, asset liquidation details, accountings and legal

documents, various trusts information and all assets of the SIMON and SHIRLEY estates.

That for over a year, with the aid of TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA, TED, P. SIMON and
others have rushed to liquidate assets and looted the estate in a variety of schemes behind the
backs of ELIOT and his children’s former counsel and if it were not for Jackson’s adding
ELIOT as Defendant in the Lawsuit, ELIOT would never have known about this alleged
traudulent Lawsuit and the insurance policy,and trust scheme being attempted to convert the

Policy(ies) proceeds.
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69. That this suppression and denial of virtually all information and documents in the estates
from certain beneficiaries to the advantage of others, including this Lawsuit, which was filed
without certain beneficiaries knowledge and consent , has gone on for almost three years in

SHIRLEY’s estate and over a year in SIMON’s estate.

70. That it is alleged that these acts of suppression and denial of information and more are
intended to hide criminal activities taking place to loot the estates through a variety of

alleged financial and other crimes, as fully set forth in Petitions 1-7.

71. That the SAMR and SAMR TRUST tha‘; was proposed to ELIOT by TSPA, SPALLINA,
TESCHER, TED and P. SIMON was never signed by ELIOT. ELIOT noticed all parties
involved that he rejected such SAMR and SAMR TRUST as a scheme to reassign
beneficiaries with post mortem designated beneficiaries through suppression and denial of

trust documents that allegedly would constitute, Insurance Fraud, Conversion and more.

72. That ELIOT noticed all parties that he rejected such plan as an to attempt to improperly avoid
Estate Taxes through a sham trust that was created post mortem and therefore how could

SIMON have made it irrevocable or anything at all.

73. That ELIOT noticed all parties that he rejected such plan as an attempt to improperly attempt
to hide assets from creditors of the estate using a post mortem trust to convert assets with

known creditors to the estate.

74. That without ELIOT or his children’s counsel approval of the SAMR and SAMR TRUST

scheme and while ELIOT was led by TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA, TED, P. SIMON,
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IANTONI and FRIEDSTEIN to believe that they were seeking a “court order” to approve

their SAMR scheme and new and secreted plan was hatched.

TBIRD ATTEMPT TO FRAUDULENTLY CONVERT THE DEATH BENEFIT — THE

JACKSON LAWSUIT FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT

75. That without ELIOT and his children’s counsel knowledge or consent the third failed attempt
to convert the Policy(ies) proceeds was hatched by TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA, TED, P.
SIMON, D. SIMON, A. SIMON, IANTONI and FRIEDSTEIN working together and

secreted from ELIOT and his children’s counsel with scienter.

76. That this third attempt to convert the Policy(ies) proceeds began with the filing of this
frivolous “breach of contract” Lawsuit to attempt to convert the benefits against the wishes of
SIMON’s beneficiary designation, in order to profit for themselves at the detriment of the

true and proper beneficiaries, including allegedly their own children.

71. That once the SAMR and SAMR TRUST failed to get ELIOT or his children’s counsel
approval, without notice and knowledge of ELIOT and other beneficiaries, TED, instead of
seeking the demanded “court order” to determine the beneficiaries as requested by RALIC,
claimed to be the “trustee” and a “beneficiary” of the “lost” trust, the “Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95” and instead filed this Lawsuit with TED acting in a
self-professed and self-appointed fiduciary capacity for the “lost” trust and Policy(ies) and

designating himself and others as newly elected beneficiaries.

78. That since claiming “Simon Bemstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95” is “lost” and

“missing” and then unable to get the SAMR TRUST approved by all parties and the Probate
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Court to be the beneficiary, TED represented by A. SIMON instead filed this Lawsuit
demanding that Jackson now pay the death benefits based on a breach of contract suit for
Jackson’s refusal to pay the death benefit claim based on the legally deficient death benefit

claim initially submitted, as indicated in Jackson’s Counter Claim for damages.

That thr(;ugh this Lawsuit, TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA, TED and P. SIMON are now
attempting to avoid having to obtain a court order as requested by RALIC, to first determine
who the beneficiary(ies) is and instead are attempting to convert the Policy(ies) proceeds
through this baseless breach of contract action that TED was advised by counsel he had no

“authority” to file according to Jackson.

That ELIOT alleges that this Lawsuit is an attempt to have this Court pay the Policy(ies)
proceeds to a newly created post mortem trust similar to the SAMR TRUST or other
improper beneficiaries, through a smoke and mirrors illusion, mired in a “Name Game”
further defined herein, using alleged former Policy(ies) beneficiaries names, including but
not limited to the “lost” “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95” in order
to replace the allegedly unknown beneficiaries of the “lost” trust with newly elected
beneficiaries, possibly in a new post mortem trust attempting to be inserted into this Lawsuit

in the confusion created with the variety of names being asserted as beneficiary.

That Jackson claims in their Answer that they are unclear if TED has the alleged fiduciary
capacities in the trusts and Policy(ies) he claims necessary to institute the Lawsuit or the
death benefit claim and they are unclear of the names asserted in the complaint as they are

confusing and even question the existence ofjcertain trusts entirely.
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That TED and P. SIMON are attempting to designate new beneficiaries after SIMON has
passed, claiming that they “believe” they were beneficiaries of the “lost” trust and therefore
they would be beneficiaries of two fifths of the Policy(ies) proceeds but providing no

evidence or proof of such claims other than their beliefs.

That TED, P. SIMON, D. SIMON and A. SIMON are all career life insurance professionals

with extensive trust knowledge and legal knowledge.

That TED is allegedly misusing his “alleged” fiduciary powers in the estates of SHIRLEY
and SIMON, fully described in the Petitions 1-7 and in this Lawsuit where his fiduciary

claims are imagined and undocumented.

That TED now makes efforts in this Lawsuit to assume fiduciary powers in' handling assets
of SIMON’s estate, based on his belief that he was “trustee” of the lost trust and on his own
belief a “beneficiary” and where TED hlas no fiduciary capacities whatsoever in the estate of
SIMON or through any trusts of SIMON that are not “lost.” That. supporting TED’s beliefs
and the actions taken based on those beliefs in effort to convert the Policy(ies) proceeds are
P. SIMON, IANTONI and FRIEDSTEIN, all who stand to gain from such insurance

beneficiary and trust scheme.

That TED’s filing of this Lawsuit as an imagined fiduciary of a “lost” trust is an attempt to
convert benefits of the Policy(ies) for the benefit of TED and P. SIMON, by deceiving the
beneficiaries of the Policy(ies), the beneficiaries of the estate of SIMON, deceiving insurance

companies Heritage, RALIC and Jackson arejall an attempt to perpetrate a fraud on, this
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Court, the Probate Court, the true and proper beneficiaries of the estate of SIMON, the

beneficiaries of the Policy(ies) and the beneficiaries of the trusts of SIMON.

That TSPA, SPALLINA, TESCHER, SLF, P. SIMON, D. SIMON, A. SIMON and TED
have filed this Lawsuit without proper notice to all of the potential beneficiaries and on
information and belief have worked together, with IANTONI and FRIEDSTEIN, to secret

this Lawsuit from ELIOT and his children’s former counsel.

That IANTONI and FRIEDSTEIN are also alleged in TED’s Answer to Jackson’s Counter
Complaint to be part of “4/5” of SIMON’s children (TED, P. SIMON, IANTONI &
FRIEDSTEIN) who are in agreement with the payout to the proposed beneficiary of this

Lawsuit and have conspired together to convert the Policy(ies) proceeds.

That the “4/5” of SIMON’s children in agreement of the beneficiaries of the Policy(ics)
includes themselves personally and is to the detriment of their own children who are alleged
beneficiaries of the estate, where they are trustees to their children who would allegedly be

entitied to the Policy(ies) proceeds if the estate where determined to be the beneficiary.

That TED has numerous conflicts of interest in acting in legal and fiduciary capacities in this
Lawsuit with various parties. TED would be getting benefits directly to himself while acting
as the “alleged” Trustee of the missing “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd
6/21/95” and electing himself as a beneficiary to convert the funds, while also simultaneously
acting as a trustee for his children beneficiaries of the estate of Simon and Shirley, where the
children would get the Policy(ies) proceeds if they flowed through to the estate versus the

insurance fraud beneficiary and trust schepe.
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91. That P. SIMON and D. SIMON would get benefits paid directly to their family from the
efforts of D. SIMON’s SLF law firm, as SLF represents TED in this Lawsuit and if they are
successful in converting the benefits to the proposed insurance fraud beneficiary and trust
scheme, SLF, P. SIMON and D. SIMON would benefit directly by splitting part of the loot,

which poses conflicts in SLF and A. SIMON’s representation of TED and the lost trust.

92. That additionally, P. SIMON and D. SIMON would be doing this conversion of benefits
directly to themselves while acting as trustee for their child beneficiary of the estate of Simon
and Shirley, where their child would get the Policy(ies) proceeds if they flowed through to

the estate versus the insurance fraud beneficiary and trust scheme.

93. That neither TED nor P. SIMON would gain any benefits of the Policy(ies) without their
attempted beneficiary and trust scheme because if the Poliéy(ies) benefits were paid instead
to the estate, due to the missing and “lost™ trust, the benefits would then distributed to either
three of five of SIMON and SHIRLEY”s children, ELIOT, IANTON! and FRIEDSTEIN or
to SIMON or SHIRLEYs ten grandchildren in equal shares, again either way TED and P.

SIMON are wholly excluded.

94. That ELIOT states on information and belief that a policy with a missing beneficiary(ies)
would legally be paid to the estate and the Probate court would then rule on whom the final

beneficiaries of the insurance proceeds would be.

95. That Jackson and Heritage and RILAC have found flaws in the death benefit claim filed for

the Policy(ies) and have refused to pay claims based on fundamental deficiencies.
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That this alleged shell “Name Game™ being played in this Lawsuit uses the names of trusts
and beneficiaries and then attempts to confuse the names by renaming them in a confusing
manner, in order to have the “lost” trust renamed under a variety of confusing names, as

evidenced in Jackson’s Answer and then have the Court pay out an improper beneficiary(ies).

That the alleged intentional confusion and misdirection involving these names is what has
caused the denial of payment of the proceeds in part by the carrier and ELIOT claims this
insurance trust and beneficiary fraud naming scheme is being perpetrated in this Court with
scienter, in efforts to misiead this Court and Jackson so that they may pay the wrong

beneficiary(ies) the Policy(ies) proceeds and convert the Policy(ies) proceeds.

That this “Name Game” being attempted in this Lawsuit to confuse the parties through this
trust and beneficiary insurance fraud naming scheme is also in efforts to have the Policy(ies)
proceeds circumvent the Probate Court and the estate beneficiaries and get the Policy(ies)
benefits instead paid through this Court to improper beneficiaries in substitution for the lost

trust alleged beneficiaries and to evade seeking a “court order.”

That only if the Cross Defendants and Third Party Cross Defendants can confuse this Court
to now payout the death benefit according to their insurance trust and beneficiary fraud
scheme can they derive benefits from the Policy(ies), as their attempt to pull the wool over
the insurance companies’ eyes and have the benefits paid to their alleged fraudulent death
benefit claim and the designated new beneficiaries thereunder has failed and led to this

baseless Lawsuit.

3 hitpy//www youtube com/watchPv=G0aNkrOBrdy “Name Gaime” performed by Jessica Lange for the television

show “American-Horror Story”
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100. That in Petition 1, Pages 34-41 under Section “VII. INSURANCE PROCEED

101.

102.

103.

DISTRIBUTION SCHEME?”, the proposed “Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release”
agreement that would create the new SAMR TRUST to replace the lost trust is contained in
Petition 1 on Pages 173-179 and titled "Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release”, as
exhibit 7 and ELIOT claims that the SAMR TRUST is being secreted into this Lawsuit in a
confusing name with a prior beneficiary as a “lost” trust cannot be the beneficiary and
therefore they must substitute a new trust identical or similar to the proposed SAMR TRUST
or wholly new beneficiary designations that ELIOT is unaware of having not seen the death

benefit claim submitted.

That the SAMR was drafted on or about December 06, 2012 by an unknown Attorney at Law
and law firm, as no law firm markings are on any of the pages, however, on information and
belief, the unknown law firm is believed to be TSPA and Attorneys at Law TESCHER and

SPALLINA.

That the SAMR was distributed by TSPA, SPALLINA and TED to various parties through

mail and wire.

That the names for the trusts in the “Name Game” being played in this Lawsuit as part of the

alleged insurance and trust fraud scheme and their aliases are believed to be as follows:

a. “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95” alleged “lost” with no
original executed document or copies of or as ELIOT claims, suppressed and denied.
TED claims to be “Trustee” and a “Beneficiary” however, he cannot apparently prove

these claims as the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95” is
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“lost” or suppressed and denied and therefore these claims to interests in the “lost” trust
are merely conjecture. “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95” is

used interchangeably with the following trust names in this Lawsuit thus far,
1. “Bernstein Trust” abbreviated by TED in the initial complaint and

2. “Simon Bernstein Trust" according to Jackson’s response this trust MAY also be
called “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95”see item 9 of

their response.

3. “Simon Bernstein Insurance Trust dated 6/21/1995, Trust” (note the addition of the
word Trust inside the quotations) is from Jackson Answer in 20 and is stated to be a
former named beneficiary on the Policy(ies) and may refer to “Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95.” That it is believed that this may be a
variance in the name “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95”,

however due to the variance in names it has been listed as a separate trust herein.

4. “The Bernstein Trust” with a capitalized T in the “The” within the quotations. This
trust is never defined in the pleadings but is used in TED’s response to Jackson’s
Counter Claim frequently and apparently interchangeably with the “Bernstein Trust.”
This trust is almost identical in name to the “Bernstein Trust” and yet, perhaps they
too are different as will be advanced further herein. However, due to the slight

variance in titles it has been listed as a separate trust herein until properly defined.

5. “Simon Bernstein Trust" according to Jackson in 9 of their response, “is, upon

information and belief, the BernsteingI'rust listed in paragraph 3, [listed as the
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( “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95 ” in paragraph 3] above,
and was a named contingent beneficiary of the Policy. However, based on the
variance in title, to the extent it is a separate trust from the Bernstein Trust referenced
above, it is named separately.” That ELIOT is uncertain at this time where Jackson
pulled this reference to a “Simon Bernstein Trust” from, as it is undefined in any
pleadings and suddenly falls from the sky in their response. What is this “Simon
Bernstein Trust” and the Court should demand copies of any records relating to this
trust be provided to all parties of the Lawsuit and have it properly defined in the

pleadings.

b. “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.” according to Jackson IS_the “Contingent Beneficiary”

named at the time of SIMON’s death!®> However, in TED’s response to Jackson’s

( Counter Complaint, TED claims that the “lost” the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95” was the “sole” Beneficiary at the time of SIMON’s death
and according to Jackson’s records this is wholly untrue. This difference in beneficiaries
at time of death is a major and significant discrepancy in who the actual beneficiaries are

alleged to be by the parties to this Lawsuit.

That if Jackson is correct on the Policy(ies) primary and contingent beneficiaries at
SIMON’s death, then the claim in TED’s response to Jackson, in the original complaint
filed and further stated in written and oral statements by TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA,

TED, P. SIMON, D. SIMON and A. SIMON, that the “sole” beneficiary was “Simon

* “LaSalle National Trust, N.A." was according to Jackson the “primary beneficiary,” which they appear unclear if it
was acting as trusice to the “SIMON Bernstein Trust. PLA ™~
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Bermnstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95” becomes a false and misleading

statement as to the true and proper beneficiaries at the time of SIMON’s death.

That if the final primary beneficiary was “LaSalle National Trust, N.A.” and the final
contingent beneficiary listed on the Policy(ies) is the “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.” the
questions then are where are copies of the “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.)” who drafted
and executed this trust and who are the trustees and beneficiaries of this trust and why has

this information been suppressed and false and misleading information proposed instead?

That it therefore appears that the final Policy(ies) beneficiary(ies) must first be
determined to be either “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.” or “Simon Bernstein lrrevocable
Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95, Trust” or “Simon Bernstein Insurance Trust dated
6/21/1995” or other unknown. If the contingent beneficiary at the time of death is
determined to be according to Jackson’s account “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.,” then
“Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95” and any variation of its
title or any earlier beneficial interests become moot and this Lawsuit further becomes
baseless and an Abuse of Process, other than as evidence of, an attempted insurance fraud
on the “Simon Bernstein Trust N.A.” beneficiaries, Insurance Fraud on the insurance
carriers, Fraud on this Court, Fraud on the Probate Court, Fraud on the estate

beneficiaries of SIMON’s estate and more.

c. “SAMR TRUST” —is the Settlement & Mutual Release Trust as exhibited in Petition 1 in
a draft of the post mortem trust proposed to replace the “lost” trust and to present to a

judge for a court order that never tookyplace.
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That ELIOT alleges that the SAMR TRUST or some variation of it, is being referred to in
these pleading as “The Bernstein Trust” or the “Simon Bernstein Trust” or any of the
UNDEFINED trusts referenced herein and in Jackson’s Answer, so as to cause cénﬁlsion
and hope no one notices that these undefined trusts actually reference the proposed
SAMR TRUST or some similar trust and beneficiary scheme, with alleged new
beneficiaries and trustees designated after SIMON’s passing by a “alleged trustee” of a

“lost” trust.

That ELIOT refused to sign the SAMR as further defined herein and the undefined trusts
attempting to claim benefits through this Lawsuit may be trusts done without his
knowledge or consent and used in this Lawsuit to attempt to circumvent the true and
proper beneficiaries on record with the insurance carriers through a cleverly crafted name

game.

“S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust” used interchangeably with the

“Lexington Trust” by Jackson in their response.

“LaSalle National Trust, N.A.” the “primary beneficiary” according to Jackson’s Counter

Complaint at the time of SIMON’s death.

“S.B. Lexington, Inc. 501(¢)(9) VEBA Trust”

104. That the named beneficiaries of the Policy(ies) according to Jackson’s Counter Complaint are

as follows,

a.

"Simon Bernstein " — This appears impossible however, as it would be impossible for one

to name oneself as beneficiary of an insurance policy.
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b. "First Arlington National Bank, as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death

Benefit Trust"
c. "United Bank of Illinois"
d. “LaSalle National Trust, N.A.»
e. "LaSalle National Trust. N.A., Trustee of the VEBA trust”
f  “Simon Bernstein Insurance Trust dated 6/21/1995, Trust"

"Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A." the final “contingent beneficiary” according to Jackson

g

that is listed on the Policy(ies) at the time of SIMON’s death.

105. That according to Jackson at the time of SIMON’s death the Primary Beneficiary is "LaSalle
National Trust, N.A." and the Contingent Beneficiary is the "Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A %"

Paragraph 15-16 of their response.

106. That TED claims to this Court that the fost “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust
Dated 6/21/95” aka “Bernstein Trust” was the “sole” beneficiary of the Policy(ies) at the time

of SIMON’s death to this Court.

107. That TED, TSPA, SPALLINA, TESCHER and P. SIMON have similarly given this allegedly
misleading information regarding the beneficiary at the time of death to the beneficiaries of

the estate and counsel for certain beneficiaries, while suppressing, denying and secreting the

¢ On information and belief, ELIOT claims that ELIOT and his wife Candice Bernstein and their three children were
the named beneficiaries at the time of SIMON's death under whatever trusts where in existence at the time or
directly, including but not limited to, the “SIMON Bernstein Trugt, N.A.” and that SIMON may have also added
Maritza Puccio for a share of the benefits prior to his death.

Page_S
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legal named beneficiary “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.” and thereby secreting from the

designated beneficiaries thereunder their interests.
108. That Jackson claims in Paragraph 18,

“Subsequent to the Insured's death, TED Bernstein, through his
Florida counsel (who later claimed Bernstein did not have
authority to file the instant suit in INiuois on behalf of the
Bernstein Trust and withdrew representation) [emphasis
added], submitted a claim to Heritage seeking payment of the
Death Benefit Proceeds, allegedly as the trustee of the “Bernstein

Trust.”

That ELIOT alleges that this Lawsuit was still filed after being advised by counsel of the
legal defects but now with new conflicted counsel, SLF and A. SIMON, knowing of the lack

of authority TED was advised by counsel of and this represents Abuse of Process.

109. That Jackson claims in Paragraph 19 that neither TED, nor anyone else, could locate the

“Bernstein Trust” that TED claims is the beneficiary of the Policy(ies).

110. That instead of seeking the Probate Court determination and getting a “court order” as to who
the beneficiaries would be in the event of a missing beneficiary designation and “lost” trust,
this suit was instead filed in apparent effort to evade the determination of the Probate Court
and secretly convert the Policy(ies) proceeds before ELIOT was alerted and despite his

protestations that no distributions be made ugtil he and his children’s counsel could review




e N

Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 240-10 Filed 05/21/16 .Page 58 of 73 PagelD 4175

111.

112,

113.

114.

Case: 17-3595  Document: 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018  Pages: 547
Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 35 Filed: 09/22/13 Page 57 of 117 PagelD #:148

their alleged insurance trust and beneficiary fraud scheme and approve of it with a “court

order.”

That an old beneficiary designation of a “lost” trust is now being used to make claims for the
Policy(ies) proceeds in this Lawsuit, instead of the beneficial designation with the insurance

carriers at SIMON’s death, namely the “Simon Bemnstein Trust, N.A.”

That therefore, despite whether the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated
6/21/95” aka “Bernstein Trust” is “lost” or not or what it is called, it was not the

Beneficiary at the time of SIMON’s death according to Jackson and therefore, would not

be entitled to make a claim for the Policy(ies) proceeds. Perhaps this is why all of the
records of the Policy(ies) and trusts have been secreted from certain estate beneficiaries and
their counsel by TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA and TED, so as to hide from them whom the
beneficiaries under the “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.” trust are to the advantages of some
and disadvantage of others and mislead everyone by misrepresenting the real beneficiary(ies)

and converting the Policy(ies) proceeds.

That ELIOT claims that Jackson, Heritage and RALIC should have copies of the “Simon
Bernstein Trust, N.A.,” as well as, TSPA, SPALLINA and TESCHER and possibly P.

SIMON and others named in the Lawsuit.

That ELIOT and others were misinformed, allegedly with intent, by TSPA, TESCHER,
SPALLINA, TED and P. SIMON, that the beneficiary of the Policy(ies) was “Simon
Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95” aka “Bernstein Trust” at the time of

SIMON’s death. Where they stated they had spoken to the carriers and were “friendly” with

i's R =7 ..
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them and received the beneficiary designations directly from the insurance carriers and at
first claimed to have copies of the Policy(ies) and only later, when ELIOT began demanding
to see the Policy(ies), did they then claim to have “lost” their copies or not possess them at

all, similar to the “lost” trust claims.

115. That ELIOT alleges the copies of the Policy(ies) are instead suppressed and denied to the
beneficiaries, in order to perfect their insurance and trust fraud scheme and deny the true and
proper beneficiaries of the “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.” of the Policy(ies) proceeds and

convert them to themselves and others.

116. That Jackson further asserts in Paragraph 20, “Jackson is not aware whether the Bernstein
Trust even exists, and if it does whether its title is the ‘Simon Bernstein Insurance Trust
dated 6/21/1995, Trust’ as captioned herein, or the ‘Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.’, as listed as

the Policy's contingent beneficiary (or otherwise), and/or if Ted Bernstein is in fact its
y g Y.

trustee.” [emphasis added].

117. That the “otherwise” referenced by Jackson above, may be the SAMR TRUST or some
variation of it, that is being allegedly secreted into this Lawsuit and again this may also be
the undefined trusts or misnamed trusts referenced in pleadings by TED and causing Jackson

to deny the claim and file a counter complain to this breach of contract Lawsuit.

118. That in TED’s August 30, 2013 Answer to Jackson’s Counter Complaint TED and A
SIMON start off the “Name Game” in the caption by using an abbreviated naming of the
“Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95” naming it the “Bernstein

Trust.” However, in their caption in their answer to Jackson, which is all capitalized and
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reads, THE BERNSTEIN TRUST, it is impossible to tell whether this reference in the
caption is the undefined “The Bernstein Trust” or if it is the “Bernstein Trust” due to the use
of capitalization in the caption. Yet, if it is not the same, this changes everything in the
pleading to read wholly different and who the beneficiaries are and who is making

. representations in the pleadings.

119. That TED then claims through his brother-in-law counsel that TED is the “trustee” of the
“Bernstein Trust” and therefore trustee of the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust
Dated 6/21/95.” Let this Court read their response without renaming the alleged “lost”
"Simon Bernstein Insurance Trust dated 6/21/1995” as the renamed “Bernstein Trust” or any
other abbreviation given, in order to clarify the matters and it then becomes apparent that a
“lost” trust with no executed copies is attempting to make a claim for the Policy(ies), and
where the lost trust was not even the beneficiary on the Policy(ies) at the time of STMON’s

death.

120. That this Court should note that no matter the name of the trust, if the trust is “lost” as
alleged, how can anyone claim to be the “trustee” or be a “beneficiary” or know what the
terms of the trust are with any certainty and why it is believed a “court order” was requested

by the life insurance company HERITAGE.

121. That in their Answer to Jackson, in response to Jackson’s assertion 1, TED claims, “Ted
Bernstein and “The Bernstein Trust” [emphasis added and note that The is within the
quotations] admit that Jackson has tendered the death benefit to the court.” ELIOT states the
“The Bernstein Trust” cannot make any claims or assertions in the pleadings when it has not

been defined in the pleadings and thus does/mot exist.
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122. That even if this“The Bernstein Trust” is a grammatical error in name used in the pleadings
and it refers to the allegedly lost “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated
6/21/95” defined as “Bemstein Trust” not “The Bernstein Trust” it would be unable to assert
anything on anyone’s behalf, as there are no apparent records of it and just best guesses as to
who the trustees and beneficiaries are and where it is not even the final beneficiary according

to Jackson.

123. That with all these confusing names and baseless claims asserted in this Lawsuit, Jackson did
not just pay the claim on demand for breach of contract but instead filed a counter complaint
and thus the third attempt to convert the Policy(ies) proceeds to the wrong beneficiaries has

hit another “bumyp in the road.”

124. That both D. SIMON and A. SIMON and the SLF law firm are conflicted from handling this
Lawsuit and pleading in these matters, as D. SIMON would directly benefit from this scheme
through conversion of the Policy(ies) proceeds to his wife and family directly, therefore
neither his law firm or his brother, for similar conflicts, would be able to legally file this

Lawsuit and thus may represent a knowing Abuse of Process.

125. That the failure to properly know whom the beneficiaries of the Policy(ies) are is primarily a
result of TSPA, TESCHER and SPALLINA’s failure to legally document the beneficiaries of
the Policy(ies) and maintaining copies of the trusts and Policy(ies) or other necessary
documents to prove the beneficial interests in lieu of not possessing the key documents when

preparing and executing the estate plans of $IMON and SHIRLEY.

'\’;“
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126. That in an investigation with the Florida Governor’s Office Notary Complaint Division
pertaining to the documents that give TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA and TED alleged
fiduciary powers in the estates of SIMON and SHIRLEY, the Licensed Notary Public who
Notarized certain of the estates documents has now ADMITTED AND ACKNOWLEDGED
that she has committed Fraud by ILLEGALLY NOTARIZING certain documents, including

* Fraudulently Notarizing SIMON’s signature on a document and allegedly forging the
signature months after he was deceased.

127. That these acts are illegal and the documents that give TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA and
TED fiduciary powers in the estates of SIMON and SHIRLEY may have been illegally
obtained after death of SIMON. ELIOT has produced the Response of the Notary Public,
ELIOT’s Response to the Notary and the original complaint filed against the Notary, in

exhibits contained in Petition 7, exhibit No. 1, 2 & 3.

128. That it is alleged that the Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants have committed Civil
Conspiracy, Professional Malpractice, Insurance Fraud, Mail and Wire Fraud, Abuse of
Legal Process, Fraud on Beneficiaries and Interested Parties and Fraud on the courts’ in
attempts to convert the Policy(ies) proceeds to themselves, against the wishes and desires and

beneficiary designations made by SIMON prior to his death.
COUNT 1

- FRAUD

” Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure prohibits the filing of lawsuits that are clearly frivolous or
filed simply to harass someone. If the Court determines that you have filed a lawsuit for an improper or
unnecessaty reason, it may impose sanctions against you, including ordering you to pay any legal fees of the
party that you sued.
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FRAUD ON BENEFICIARIES, JACKSON, HERITAGE AND COURTS

That this is an action for Fraud within the jurisdiction of this Court. This is also a

supplemental action for other civil claims of Fraud pursuant to the state laws of Illinois and

Federal law.

That Cross Plaintiff, ELIOT, repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in

paragraph “1" through "129", as though fully set forth herein.

That Cross Defendants and Third Party Defendants filed this case without the knowledge and
information of ELIOT, certain beneficiaries and interested parties of the estate of SIMON,
with the intention allegedly to frandulently convert ELIOT and other beneficiaries Policy(ies)

proceeds.

That Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants created a post mortem trust, assigning new
post mortem beneficiaries or other unverifiable beneficiaries, allegedly frandulently, to make

illegal gains from the Policy(ies).

That the Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants committed fraud on Cross Petitioner,
ELIOT, by participating in fraud to deprive the beneficial rights of Cross Petitioner, his

children, even their own adult and minor children and other rightful beneficiaries of the

Policy(ies).

That as a direct and proximate result of such conduct on the part of Cross Defendant and
Third Party Defendants, Cross Plaintiff, ELIOT, has been damaged by the alleged fraud and
more committed by the conspiratorial actions of Cross Defendant and Third Party

Defendants.
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135. That this alleged Fraud was committed through an alleged Fraudulent legal proceeding
before this Court, constituting not only an alleged Abuse of Process but an alleged Insurance
Fraud and this should make this.Court take Judicial Notice of the alleged crimes herein and
in Petitions 1-7 and take immediate actions to notify all authorities, state and federal, of these

alleged crimes, on its own motions.

136. That as a result of the acts of Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants, Cross Plaintiff
now suffers from delays in distribution of the Policy(ies) proceeds to the true and proper
beneficiaries and he and his family will continue to suffer irreparable injury and monetary
damages, and that Cross Plaintiff is entitled to damages sustained to date and continuing in
excess of at least EIGHT MILLION DOLLARS ($8,000,000.00) as well as punitive

damages, costs and attorney's fees.
COUNT II

BREACH OF FIDUCIARY & PROFESSIONAL DUTIES AS TRUSTEES, LEGAL

COUNSEL & PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES OF ESTATE OF SIMON

137. That Cross Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraph

“1" through "136", as though fully set forth herein.

138. That this is a supplemental action for breach of fiduciary duties and professional
responsibilities by Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants, the law firm TSPA and
Attorneys at Law, TESCHER and SPALLINA, acting as TED’s Personal Counsel in this

‘Lawsuit, as SIMON’s estate counsel and tax attorney and as Personal Representatives of the

SIMON estate, as per the state laws of Illinois and Federal law.
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139. That this is a supplemental action for breach of fiduciary duties and professional
responsibilities by Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants, the law firm SLF and
Attorneys at Law, D. SIMON and A. SIMON as counsel in this Lawsuit in conflict and
representing TED as Trustee of the Bernstein Trust as per the state laws of Illinois and

Federal law.

140. That this is a supplemental action for breach of fiduciary duties and professional
responsibilities by Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants per the state laws of Illinois

and Federal law.

141. That the Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants have conspired and filed this case
breaching their fiduciary and professional duties to defraud the Cross Plaintiff, ELIOT, and

take away his and others rights to the benefits of the Policy(ies).

142. That Cross Plaintiff alleges through the conspiratorial actions of Cross Defendant and certain
Third Party Defendants, through Abuse of Legal Process, Fraud on this Court, Violations of
State and Federal Law, Breaches of Fiduciary Duties and Violations of Attorney Conduct

Codes attempted to perpetrate an insurance fraud and more to defraud Cross Plaintiff.

143. As a result of Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants acts, Cross Plaintiff now suffers
and will continue to suffer irreparable injury and monetary damages, and that Cross Plaintiff
is entitled to damages sustained to date and continuing in excess of at least EIGHT
MILLION DOLLARS ($8,000,000.00), as well as, punitive damages, costs and attorney's

fees.
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LEGAL MALPRACTICE

144. That Cross Plaintiff, ELIOT, repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in

paragraph "1" through "143", as though fully set forth herein.

145. That this is a supplemental action for other civil claims for legal malpractice by Cross
Defendant and Third Party Defendants, TSPA, TESCHER, SPALLINA, SLF, D. SIMON

and A. SIMON pursuant to the state laws of Illinois and Federal law.

146. That the conspiratorial actions of the Third Party Defendants that are licensed to practice Jaw
and acted as Attorneys at Law or law firms in bringing this suit, whether withdrawn or
admitted, or any other Atiorney at Law that aided and abetted this alleged insurance fraud
scheme and more in any way, have through the alleged crimes claimed already herein caused

liabilities to Cross Plaintiff and others.

147. That as a result of the defendants acts, Cross Plaintiff now suffers and will continue to suffer
irreparable injury and monetary damages, and that Cross Plaintiff is entitled to damages
sustained to date and continuing in excess of at least EIGHT MILLION DOLLARS

($8,000,000.00) as well as punitive damages, costs and attorney's fees.
COUNT IV

ABUSE OF LEGAL PROCESS

148. That Cross Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraph

"[" through " 147", as though fully set forth fierein.
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. That this 1s a supplemental action for other civil claims for abuse of legal process by Cross

Defendant and Third Party Defendants pursuant to the state laws of Illinois and Federal law.

That Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants have abused legal process to defraud
Cross Plaintiff by misleading this court and others and filing this case without knowledge of
Cross Plaintiff and against the advice of counsel and with knowledge of a different

beneficiary designation than that they filed a death benefit claim for.

That as a result of the Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants acts to Abuse Legal
Process in order to p.erpetrate an alleged insurance fraud, Cross Plaintiff now suffer and will
continue to suffer irreparable injury and monetary damages, and that Cross Plaintiff is
entitled to damages sustained to date and continuing in excess of at least EIGHT MILLION

DOLLARS ($8,000,000.00) as well as punitive damages, costs and attorney's fees.
COUNT V

CIVIL CONSPIRACY

That Cross Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraph

1" through “151”, as though fully set forth herein.

That this 1s a supplemental action for other civil claims for civil conspiracy by Cross

Defendant and Third Party Defendants pursuant to the state laws of Illinois and Federal law.

That Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants have conspired together to defraud Cross
Plaintiff by misleading this court and others regarding the beneficiary(ies) of the Policy(ies) ,

who they knew had direct beneficial interestsjin the Policy(ies)and filing this case without
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Proceeds.

155. That as a result of the defendants' acts, Cross Plaintiff now suffers and will continue to suffer
urreparable injury and monetary damages, and that Cross Plaintiff is entitled to damages
sustained to date and continuing in excess of at least EIGHT MILLION DOLLARS

($8,000,000.00) as well as punitive damages, costs and attorney's fees.
COUNT VI

CONVERSION OF PROPERTY

156. That Cross Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraph

"1" through “155”, as though fully set forth herein.

157. That this is a supplemental action for Conversion of Property by Cross Defendant and Third

Party Defendants pﬁrsuant to the state laws of Illinois and Federal law.

158. That Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants have conspired together to deprive Cross
Plaintiff of his right to Estate as a beneficiary by their fraudulent acts ad creating false

documents.

159. That as a result of the defendants' acts, Cross Plaintiff now suffers and will continue to suffer
irceparable injury and monetary damages, and that Cross Plaintiff is entitled to damages
sustained to date and continuing in excess ot at least EIGHT MILLION DOLLARS

knowledge of Cross Plaintiff and his children’s counsel in attempts to convert the Policy(ies)
($8,000,000.00) as well as punitive damages, costs and attomney's fees.
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NEGLIGENCE

160. That Cross Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraph

"1" through “159”, as though fully set forth herein.

161. At all times relevant herein, the Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants, acting as
trustees and representatives of Trusts and Insurance policies, had a duty to exercise
reasonable care and skill to maintain the estate and to discharge and fulfill the other incidents
attendant to the maintenance, accounting and servicing of the state on behalf of SIMON and

the beneficiaries.

162. In taking the actions alleged above, and in failing to take the actions as alleged above, the
Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants breached their duty of care and skill towards
maintenance of the estate. Cross Defendant and Third Party Defendants have mismanaged
the estate of SIMON and fraudulently created documents and allegedly forged them without

having the legal authority and/or proper documentation to do so.

163. As a direct and proximate result of the negligence and carelessness of the Cross Defendant
and Third Party Defendants as set forth above, Cross Plaintiff suffered general and special

damages in an amount to be determined by this Court or at trial.

RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Cross Plaintiff ELIOT prays to this Court:
i.  To seize all records and demand that all records of all parties concerning either
SHIRLEY or SIMON held by all parties be turned over to ELIOT, as NO documents

have been tendered to him regarding;these Policies;
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ii.

iv,

Award Court Costs not from the Policy(ies) but from alleged conspirators and force
bonding for these unnecessary legal and other costs by those parties that have caused
this baseless Lawsuit in efforts to perpetrate a fraud;

ELIOT has requested the Probate Court to remove TSPA, SPALLINA, TESCHER,
TED and P. SIMON of any fiduciary capacities regarding the estates of SIMON and
SHIRLEY on multiple legal grounds stated in said Petitions and Motion 1-7 and
hereby requests this Court remove them as well from acting in any conflicting
capacities or self-representations based on the Prima Facie evidence of Forgery,
Fraud, Fraud on the Probate Court and Mail and Wire Fraud, already evidenced in
Petition 7. That in hearings held on SHIRLEY’s estate on Friday, September 13,
2013 in the Probate Court, Honorable Judge Martin H. Colin told TED,
SPALLINA, TESCHER and their counsel, Mark Manceri, that he [Hon. Judge
Colin] should read them all their Miranda Rights right at that moment, after
hearing how SIMON had notarized docnments to close SHIRLEY’s estate two
months after he was deceased ahd how there was a fraud upon his court and
himself personally as he closed the estate with the fraudulent docnments and
TSPA, TESCHER and SPALLINA did not think it important to note the Court
of what they were doing. Hon. Colin’s issued this stark Miranda Warning after
hearing the criminal misconduct admitted to in his Court, twice in fact.

That the alleged insurance fraud taking place through the instant Lawsuit in this Court
is allegedly being committed by similar parties of the alleged estate frauds, again

misusing their fiduciary and professignal powers and they should be removed from
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VI.

vii.

viil.

further representing any parties, sanctioned and forced to retain non conflicted
counsel further in these proceedings.

ELIOT requests this Court take Judicial Notice of the alleged and admitted crimes
herein and in Petitions 1-7 and act on its own motions to prevent any further possible
criminal activities and damages to others being incurred until these alleged criminal
matters are fully resolved.

Allow ELIOT to ECF in this case due to health problems and expenses. In US
District Court Scheindlin has ordered ELIOT access to ECF filing.

Allow leave to amend this Cross Claim as it was served while ELIOT was recovering
from a traumatic brain injury with bleeding on the brain, a fractured rib and bruised
collar bone and in ICU for 3 days in Del Ray Beach, FL hospital and the recovery
was almost two months during the time for response and therefore ELIOT would like
an opportunity to perfect it. The Court granted several extensions and ELIOT thanks
Your Honof for the additional extensions in light of this medical incident.

Award damages sustained to date and continuing in excess of at least EIGHT

MILLION DOLLARS ($8,000,000.00) as well as punitive damages, cost

attorney's fees.

/s/ .

[/
Eliotf| Bérnstgin
2753 NW 34™[St.

Boca Baton, Fh, 33434
(561¥245-8588
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Certificate of Service

The undersigned certifies that a copy of the foregoing Answer and Cross Claim was served by
ECF, US Mail and by E-mail on Septembe@‘; 2013 to the following parties:

US Mail and Email

Robert L. Spallina, Esq. and
Tescher & Spallina, P.A.

Boca Village Corporate Center I
4855 Technology Way

Suite 720

Boca Raton, FL. 33431
rspaliinag@tescherspalling. com

Donald Tescher, Esq. and
Tescher & Spallina, P.A.

Boca Village Corporate Center 1
4855 Technology Way

Suite 720

Boca Raton, FI. 33431
dtescher(@tescherspallina.com

Theodore Stuart Bernstein and

National Service Association, Inc. (of Florida) (“NSA”)
950 Peninsula Corporate Circle, Suite 3010

Boca Raton, Florida 33487
tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.com

Lisa Sue Friedstein

2142 Churchill Lane
Highland Park IL 60035
Lisafeodiiedstens.com

lisa. friedsteinddemail.com

Jill Marla Iantoni

2101 Magnolia Lane
Highland Park, IL 60035
{liantoni@@email com
Tanton jilline bah.com

Pamela Beth Simon and
S.T.P. Enterprises,
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S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust,
SB Lexington, Inc.,

National Service Association, Inc. (of Illinois)

303 East Wacker Drive

Suite 210

Chicago IL 60601-5210

paimon@stpcorp, com

David B. Simon and
The Simon Law Firm
303 East Wacker Drive
Suite 210

Chicago IL 60601-5210
dsimon(@stpcorp.com

Adam Simon and

The Simon Law Firm
General Counsel STP
303 East Wacker Drive
Suite 210

Chicago IL 60601-5210
asimon@@stpeorp.com
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Case: 17-3595 Document: 12-8

IN. THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND
FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

TED BERNSTEIN, as Trustee Probate Division
of the Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement Case No.: 502014CP003698 XXX XNBIJ

dated May 20, 2008, as amended,

Plaintiff,
V.

ALEXANDRA BERNSTEIN:; ERIC BERNSTEIN;
MICHAEL BERNSTEIN; MOLLY SIMON;
PAMELA B. SIMON, Individually and as Trustee
/b/o Molly Simon under the Simon L. Bernstein
Trust Dtd 9/13/12; ELIOT BERNSTEIN, individually,
as Trustee f/b/o D.B., Ja. B. and Jo. B. under the
Simon L. Bernstein Trust Dtd 9/13/ 12, and on

behalf of his minor children D.B., Ja. B. and Jo. B.;
JILL TANTONI, Individually, as Trustee f/b/o J.L.
under the Simon L. Bemnstein Trust Dtd 9/13/ 12, and
on behalf of her Minor child J.L ; MAX FRIEDSTEIN:
LISA FRIEDSTEIN, Individually, as Trustee f/b/o
Max Friedstein and C.F., under the Simon L.
Bernstein Trust Dtd 9/13/ 12, and on behalf of her
minor child, C.F.,

Defendants.
/

FINAL JUDGMENT ON COUNT II OF THE AMENDED COMPLAINT

This cause came before the Court for trial on December 15, 2015, pursuant to the Court's
ORDER SETTING TRIAL on AMENDED COMPLAINT (DE 26) COUNT II dated September 24,

2015. The Court, having received evidence in the form of documents and testimony of witnesses,
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having heard argument of counse] and pro se parties who wished to argue, and being otherwise fully
advised of the premises, hereby enters a Final Judgment as to Count IJ of the Amended Complaint:

L. This is an action for declaratory judgment to determine the validity, authenticity and
enforceability of c,;ertain wills and trusts executed by Simon Bernstein and Shitley Bernstein, as

follows:

A. Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement dated May 20, 2008 ("Shirley
Trust", attached to the Amended Complaint as Exhibjt Ag, b¥. PA AT b “) 8(19

B. First Amendment to Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement dated

November 18, 2008 ("Shirley First Amendment”, attached to the
Amended Complaint as Exhibit By , 0 Pg AT raire) 6529

C. Will of Simon I.. Bernstein dated July 25, 2012 ("Simon Will", .
attached to the Amended Complaint as Exhibit C:) ex. P4 ar TR:/H) @ﬁ
D. Simon L. Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated

July 25,2012 ("Simon Trust", attached to the Amended Complaint as
Exhibit D} w) X Ps gr rﬂtrh_)’ Qi

E. Will of Shirley Bernstein dated May 20, 2008 ("Shirley Will", .
attached to the Amended Complaint as Exhibjt E}, ex. P1 AT TR 9 (/_(j/zg)

(collectively, the “Testamentary Documents™).

2 Based upon the evidence presented during the trial, the Court finds that the
Testamentary Documents, as offered in evidence by Plaintiff, are genuine and authentic, and are
valid and enforceable according to their terms.

3, The Court finds that Simon's Testamentary Documents were signed by Simon and
Shirley's Testamentary Documents were signed by Shirley, in the presence of two attesting witnesses
who signed in the presence of the testator and in the presence of each other. § 732.502, Fla. Stat.;

§ 736.0403(2)(b), Fla. Stat.

Page 2 of 5
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4. . The Court finds the Testamentary Documents meet the requirements for self-proof,
as specified in §732.503, Fla. Stat. Alternatively, the Testamentary Documents were properly
admitted based upon the testimony of at least one of the attesting witnesses, which occurred.
§733.201, Fla. Stat.

5. Based on the evidence presented, the Court finds that Plaintiff, Ted S. Bermnstein,

. : )
Trustee, was not involved in the preparation or creation of the Testamentary Documents. [ndeed; Xa
Ted S. Bernstein had never seen the documents before his father's death. Muorsssmz; Ted S. Bernstein 5/1’?
played no role in any questioned activities of the law firm Tescher & Spallina, PA, who represented .
ﬁ ELioT BeRMSTEWN

Simon and Shirley while they were alive. There is no evidence to support the ssertionsh that Ted &/g
Bermnstein forged or fabricated any of the Testamentary Documents, or aided and abetted others in
forging or fabricating documents. %ﬁTed Bernstein played no role in the preparation of any éSL(:

improper documents; the presentation of any improper documents to the Court; or any other

improper act, contrary to the allegations of Eliot Bernstein,

1 - + £ ot D oz L attoanlad +1 431 £Td D s,
vareus-blogs-and-websttes—mwhich-Eliet-Bernsteinthas attacrxeathe-actonsof Fed Bernstein

6. Based on the evidence presented, the Court finds that an unauthorized version of the

First Amendment to Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement was prepared sometime after Simon died.

This document¥ (P1. Ex. 6) was not signed by Shirley Bernstein and, therefore, is not an operative

document.

7 This ruling is intended to be a Final J udgment under Rule 9.170 of the Florida Rules
of Appellate Procedure, determining the validity of Testamentary Documents, denying any objection
to the probate of Shirley's and Simon's Wills or the validity of the Trust Agreements, and

determining which persons are entitled to receive distributions from these trusts and estates.

Page 3 of 5
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8. Based upon the rulings made by the Court in this trial of Count IL, the Court reserves

Jurisdiction to determine the remaining issues in this action.

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers, in Palm Beach County, Florida, this & day of

December, 2015.

L. Phillips * ~
CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE

&)/M%'A

cc: All parties on the attached service list

Page 4 of 5
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SERVICE LIST Case No.: 502014CP003698XXXXNBILJ

Eliot Bernstein, individually
and Eliot and Candice Bernstein,
as Parents and Natural Guardians of
D.B., Ja. B. and Jo. B, Minors
2753 NW 34th Street
Boca Raton, FL 33434
(561) 245-8588 - Telephone
(561) 886-7628 - Cell
(561) 245-8644 - Facsimile
Email: Eliot I. Bernstein (iviewit@iviewit.tv)

John P. Morrissey, Esq.

330 Clematis Street, Suite 213

West Palm Beach, FL 33401

(561) 833-0866 - Telephone

(561) 833-0867 - Facsimile

Email: John P. Morrissey
(iochn@jmorrisseylaw.com)

Counsel for Molly Simon, Alexandra Bermnstein,
Eric Bernstein, Michael Bernstein

Lisa Friedstein, individually and as trustee for her
children, and as natural guardian for M.F. and
C.F., Minors; and Max Friedstein

lisa.friedstein@gr_nail.com

Jill Iantoni, individually and as trustee for her
children, and as natural guardian for J.I. a minor

jilliantoni@gmail.com

Alan Rose, Esq.

Mrachek Fitzgerald Rose
Konopka Thomas & Weiss, P.A.
505 S Flagler Drive, Suite 600
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
(561) 655-2250 - Telephone
(561) 655-5537 - Facsimile
Email: arose@mrachek-law.com

Pamela Beth Simon
303 E. Wacker Drive, Suite 2725
Chicago, IL 60601

Email: psimon@stpcorp.com

Brian M. O’Connell, Esq.

Joielle A. Foglietta, Esq.

Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O’Connell
515 N. Flagler Dr., 20th Floor

West Palm Beach, FL 33401
561-832-5900 - Telephone
561-833-4209 - Facsimile

Email: boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com:

jfoglietta@ciklinlubitz.com;
service@ciklinlubitz.com;
slobdell@ciklinlubitz.com

Page 5 of 5
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EXHIBIT 11
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

IN RE: CASE NO. 502012CP004391 XXXXNBIH

ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN,

/

ORDER APPOINTING GUARDIAN AD LITEM TO
REPRESENT THE INTERESTS OF ELIOT BERNSTEIN'S CHILDREN

THIS CAUSE came before the Court for hearing on April 8, 2016, on Successor Trustee's
Motion for Appointment of a Guardian Ad Litem to Represent Interests of Eliot Bernstein's Children
in this Estate ("the Motion"). The Court, having reviewed the Motion and the record, having heard
argument of counsel and/or the parties, and being otherwise fully advised in the premises, hereby
ORDERS AND ADJUDGES:

1. This Court determined after a trial held on Dece?mber 15, 2015 that the beneficiaries
of The Simon L. Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated 7/25/12 (the "Trust") are
Simon Bernstein's "then living grandchildren." Under that ruling, Simon's children - including Eliot
Bernstein — are not beneficiaries of the Trust.

2, The Court already has determined in the related matter of the Shirley Bernstein Trust
that Eliot Bernstein should not be permitted to continue representing the interests of his minor
children, because his actions have been adverse and destructive to his children's interest, resulting

in appointment of a guardian ad litem.

3. Accordingly, the Court appoints L)/ AN/ H’ L < to act as

Guardian ad Litem to advance and protect the interests of Jo.B, Ja.B and D.B. as the guardian sees

fit. The Guardian Ad Litem will have full power and autonomy to represent the interests of the
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children of Eliot Bernstein, subject to the jurisdiction and review of this Court. The Guardian Ad
Litem will be entitled to petition the Court for an award of attorneys' fees to be paid out of the gross
proceeds of any recovery, distributions or inheritance to be received by Ja.B, Jo.B, and/or D.B.

4. To protect the integrity and independence of the guardian, Eliot Bernstein and all
persons acting in concert with him: (a) shall not contact, email or otherwise communicate with the
Guardian Ad Litem except at the request of the Guardian Ad Litem; (b) shall not in any way threaten
or harass the guardian. This Court alone shall supervise the Guardian. Any violation of this order
may subject the violator to severe sanctions for contempt of court. The Court will use the full
measure of its coercive powers to ensure compliance with this Order.

5. The Court reserves jurisdiction to enforce all terms of this Order, and to oversee the

service of the guardian ad litem appointed.

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers, North County Courthouse on Y- g ,2016.

Ol ple LY,

HONORABLE JOHN L. PHILLIPS —

cc: All parties on the attached service lis
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SERVICE LIST Case No.: 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH

Eliot Bernstein, individually

and Eliot and Candice Bernstein,

as Parents and Natural Guardians of

D.B., Ja. B. and Jo. B, Minors

2753 NW 34th Street

Boca Raton, FL 33434

(561) 245-8588 - Telephone

Email: Eliot I. Bernstein (iviewit@iviewit.tv)

John P. Morrissey, Esq.

330 Clematis Street, Suite 213

West Palm Beach, FL 33401

(561) 833-0766 - Telephone

(561) 833-0867 - Facsimile

Email: John P. Morrissey
(john@jmorrisseylaw.com)

Counsel for Molly Simon, Alexandra Bernstein,
Eric Bernstein, Michael Bernstein

Lisa Friedstein

2142 Churchill Lane

Highland Park, IL 60035

lisa@friedsteins.com

Individually and as trustee for her children, and
as natural guardian for M.F. and C.F., Minors

Alan Rose, Esq.

Mrachek Fitzgerald Rose
Konopka Thomas & Weiss, P.A.
505 S Flagler Drive, Suite 600
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
(561) 655-2250 - Telephone
Email: arose@mrachek-law.com

Jill Tantoni

2101 Magnolia Lane

Highland Park, IL 60035
jilliantoni@gmail.com

Individually and as trustee for her children, and
as natural guardian for J.I. a minor

Peter M. Feaman, Esq.
Peter M. Feaman, P.A.

3695 West Boynton Beach Blvd., Suite 9

Boynton Beach, FL. 33436

(561) 734-5552 - Telephone
Email: service@feamanlaw.com:
mkoskey@feamanlaw.com
Counsel for William Stansbury

Gary R. Shendell, Esq.

Kenneth S. Pollock, Esq.
Matthew A. Tornincasa, Esq.
Shendell & Pollock, P.L.

2700 N. Military Trail, Suite 150
Boca Raton, FL 33431

(561) 241-2323 - Telephone
Email: garvi@shendellpollock.com
ken@shendellpollock.com
matt@shendellpollock.com
estella@shendellpollock.com
britt@shendellpollock.com
grs@shendellpollock.com
robyne@shendellpollock.com

Robert Spallina, Esq.

Donald Tescher, Esq.

Tescher & Spallina

925 South Federal Hwy., Suite 500
Boca Raton, Florida 33432

Brian M. O'Connell, Esq.

Joielle A. Foglietta, Esq.

Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O’Connell
515 N. Flagler Dr., 20th Floor

West Palm Beach, FL 33401
561-832-5900 - Telephone

Email: boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com:
ifoglietta@ciklinlubitz.com:

service@ciklinlubitz.com;
slobdell@ciklinlubitz.com
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Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 240-13 Filed 05/21/16 Page 2 of 18 PagelD 4202
C4s85%:18cH05643 BREUMEN #1712 Filed: dal65119Phge St 17 PAGED #4521

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95

PlaintifT, Case No. 13 ev 3643
V.
Honorable Amy J. St. Eve
HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE Magistrate Mary M. Rowland
COMPANY,

Defendant,

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE ,

COMPANY, INTERVENOR COMPLAINT FOR
DECLARATORY JUDGMENT BY
INTERESTED PARTY BENJAMIN P.
BROWN, CURATOR AND
ADMINISTRATOR AD LITEM OF
THE ESTATE OF SIMON L.
BERNSTEIN :

Counter-Plaintiff,
V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant

and,

N Nt N S S N N N N N A e Ml N N N e N e N S S N N N S s N A

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK, )
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc, Employee)
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF )
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA, )
successor in interest to “LaSalle National )
Trust, N.A,, TED BERSTEIN, individually )
and as alleged Trustee of the Simon
Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd,
6/21/95 and ELIOT BERNSTEIN,

Third Party Defendants

AN S T WO N N S
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ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,

Cross-Plaintiff
v,

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and as
alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd. 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and

PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B. SIMON )
both Professionally and Personally, ADAM )
SIMON both Professionally and Personally, )
THE SIMON LAW FIRM, TESCHER & )
SPALLINA, P.A., DONALD TESCHER )
both Professionally and Personally, )
ROBERT SPALLINA both Professionally )
and Personally, LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL )
TANTONI, S.B. LEXINGTON, INC,, )
EMPLOYEE DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, )
S.T.P ENTERPRISES, INC,, S.B. )
LEXINGTON, INC., EMPLOYEE DEATH )
BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P. ENTERPRISES, )
INC,, S.B. LEXINGTON, INC., )
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION,
INC. (OF FLORIDA) NATIONAL
SERVICE ASSOCIATION, INC,

(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND

JANE DOE’S

Third Party Defendants

BENJAMIN P. BROWN, as Curator and
Administrator Ad Litem of the Estate of
Simon L. Bernstein, .

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Intervenor,

INTERVENOR COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY JUDGMENT BY INTERESTED

PARTY BENJAMIN P. BROWN, CURATOR AND ADMINISTRATOR AD LITEM OF
THE ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN




AN
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NOW COMES Benjamin P, Brown, as Curator and Administrator Ad Litem of the Estate
of Simon L. Bernstein (“Brown™), by and through his undersigned counsel, and states as follows
for his Complaint for Declaratory Judgment pursuant to Fed. R. Civ, P. 57 against the purported
Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Trust DTD 6/21/95 (the “Trust”) and Heritage Union Life

Insurance Company:

INTRODUCTION

1. This declaratory judgment action is filed pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 57 and seeks
a declaration that there exists no designated beneficiary of the life insurance policy proceeds at
issue in the instant action and that the proceeds of the policy must be paid to the Estate of Simon
Bernstein, currently pending in the Circuit Court of Palm Beach County, Florida.

PARTIES AND JURISDICTION

2. Benjamin P, Brown is an Intervening Party pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P, 24 and is a
resident of Palm Beach County, Florida.

3. The purported Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust is alleged in
Plaintiff’s original Complaint to have been established in Chicago, Illinois.

4, Heritage Union Life Insurance Company, a Minnesota corporation, is the
successor corporation to the insurer that issued the life insurance policy (the “Policy”) at issue in
the instant litigation.

5. The death benefit payable under the Policy exceeds $1 million dollars.

6. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter in that it is a civil action wherein the
parties are all citizens of different states and the amount in controversy exceeds $75,000.00. 28

U.S.C. §1332(a).
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BACKGROUND

7. Simon L. Bernstein, a resident of Florida, died in September of 2012. His estate
was admitted to probate in Palm Beach County, Florida on October 2, 2012, Letters of
Curatorship in favor of Benjamin Brown were issued on March 11, 2014, (A copy of the Letters
of Curatorship filed in the Probate Court is attached hereto as Exhibit A).

8. At the time of Simon Bernstein’s death, there was in effect a life insurance policy
issued by Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Company as policy number 1009208 (the “Policy™).
The Policy’s current proceeds are $1,689,070.00, less an outstanding loan. (See Dkt. No. 17 at
0.

9. After Mr. Bernstein’s death, several of his children filed a Complaint in the
Circuit Court of Cook County claiming a right to the proceeds of the Policy as alleged
beneficiaries under a purported trust they describe as the “Simon Bernstein Iirevocable Insurance
Trust” (the “Trust”). The Bernstein children acknowledge that they have been unable to produce
an executed Trust document under which they assert their rights. (See letter of Third Party
Defendant Robert Spallina, Esq. to Defendant Heritage Union Life Insurance Company, attached
as Exhibit B).

10.  Defendant, Heritage Union Life Insurance Company, as successor to Capitol
Bankers Life Insurance Company, removed the case to this Court on June 26, 2013 and filed an
Interpleader action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1335(a), in conjunction with its Answer to Plaintiff’s
Complaint. (See Dkt. No. 17). In its Complaint for Interpleader, Heritage asserts the following:

“Presently the Bernstein Trust has not been located. Accordingly [Defendant]

is not aware whether the Bernstein Trust even exists, and if it does whether its

title is the “Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A.,” as listed as the Policy’s contingent

beneficiary (or otherwise), and/or if Ted Bernstein is in fact its trustee. In

conjunction, [Defendant] has received conflicting claims as to whether Ted
Bernstein had authority to file the instant suit on behalf of the Bernstein Trust.”




Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 240-13 Filed 05/21/16 Page 6 of 18 PagelD 4206

C4s8Se15lcd 8643 BOGUMGR Y1218 Filed: 0BITSI19PAGE 8 17 PAGSH #1525

(Dkt. No. 17 at §20).

11, On May 23, 2014, Mr. Brown was appointed Addministrator Ad Litem to act on
behalf of the Estate of Simon L. Bernstein (the “Estate”) and, more specifically, directed by the
Probate Cowrt in Palm Beach County “to assert the interests of the Estate in the Iilinois Litigation
involving life insurance proceeds on the Decedent’s life.” (A copy of the Order Appointing
Administrator Ad Litem is attached hereto as Exhibit C). |

12.  Plaintiff cannot prove the existence of a Trust document; cannot prove that a trust
was ever created; thus, cannot prove the existence of the Trust nor its status as purported
beneficiary of the Policy. In the absence of a valid Trust and designated benceficiary, the Policy
proceeds are payable to Petitioner, the Estate of Simon Bernstein, as a matter of both Illinois and
Florida law. See New York Life Ins. Co. v. RAK, 180 N.E. 2d 470 (Ill. 1962) (where beneficiary
no longer existed, proceeds of life insurance policy passed to the decedent’s estate); Harris v.
Byard, 501 So.2d 730 (Fla, Dist. Ct. App. 1987) (in the absence of a named beneficiary, no basis
in law for directing payment of insurance policy proceeds to anyone other than decedent’s estate
for administration and distribution).

13.  Intervenor Benjamin P. Brown secks a judgment from this Court declaring that no
valid beneficiary is named under the Policy and that the proceeds of the Policy must therefore be
paid to the Estate.

WHEREFORE, Intérvenor, Benjamin P. Brown, as Curator and Administrator Ad Litem
on behalf of the Estate of Simon L. Bernstein, requests this Court to enter judgment as follows:

A. Declare that there is no valid beneficiary designated under the Policy;

B. Declare that the proceeds of the Policy are payable to the Estate of Simon

Bernstein;
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C. For Intervenor’s costs and expenses incurred herein, including reasonable

attorneys’ fees, and such other and further relief as this Court deems just and

proper.

Dated: June 5, 2014

James J, Stamos (ARDC 03128244)
Kevin P. Horan (ARDC 06310581)
Stamos & Trucco LLP

One East Wacker Drive, Third Floor
Chicago, 1L 60601

Telephone: (312) 630-7979
Facsimile: (312) 630-1183

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ James J. Stamos
One of the attorneys for Proposed Intervenor,
Benjamin P. Brown, Curator and Administrator Ad
Litem on behalf of the Estate of Simon L. Bernstein
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

THEREBY CERTIFY that on June S, 2014, I electronically filed the foregoing with the
Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF. I also certify that the foregoing is being served this day on all
counsel of record identified below via transmission of Notices of Electronic Filing generated by
CM/ECF or in some other authorized manner.
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

PROBATE DIV,
CASENO.: 502012 CP 004391 XXXX SB

IN RE: ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN,
Deceased.
{

LETTB,RS OF CURATORSHIP IN FAVOR OF BENJAMIN BROWN

WHEREAS, Co-Pezsonal Representatives of the Bstate of Simon L. Bernstein were permitted to
resign by Order of this Court on February 18,2014, A copy of the Order is attached hereto as Exhibit “A*;
and ' | | |

WHL:REAS, this Court found it necessary for the appointment of a Curator and Apboﬁted
Benjamin Brown, Bsq, as Curator of this Estate on February 25, 2014. A copy of the Order is attached
hereto as Exhibit “B™ and »

WHEREAS Benjamin Byown as Curator appointed by Order of this Cotat has performed all acts
prerequisite to the issnance of Letters of Curatorship as a legally qualified Curator of the Estate of Simon L.
Benstein; _ |

NOW, THEREFORE, I the undersigned Circuit Judge do grant Benjamin Brov?n (hereinafier

" Curator), ‘the Curatorship of the Estate of Simon 1. Bernstein with the follo:wing pox;vels:

(a) _ Ta collect and preserve assets of the Estate; |

()  To administer the assets of the Estate;

(<.:,) To evaluate all discovery requests related to the Decedent for the purposes c.)f asserting
objections and privileges on behalf of the Bstate, ifnecessary, |

(d)  Toappear on behalf of the Estate in the following two cases: CaseNo. 502012CA013933

{Circuit Court, Palm Beach County, FL) and Case No. 13CV3643 (U.S. ’DisL Ct. Northern Dist,,
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[llinois),

Further, pmsbant to Fla. Stat. §733.603, Curator shall proceed expeditiously with the duties
described herein and except as otherwise specified by the Florida Probate Code, or ordered by the
Court, shall do so without adjudication, Order or direction of the Cowt. The Curator may invoke the
jurisdicﬁon of this Court to fesolvc ques_tions conceming the Estate or its administration.

DONE AND ORDDRED in Chambers at Delray Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida,

this _ day of March, 20 14
o Q4 % s‘:‘}}
aiGNED 35&
s
Martin Colin, Circu ge' ™
' o gt 60U
Copies furnished to: Y

Alai; Rose, Esq., PAGE, MRACHEK, 505 So. Flagler Drive, Suite 600, West Palm Beach, FL
33401, arose@pm-law.com and mchandler@pm-law.com;

Johu Pankauski, Esq., PANKAUSKI LAW FIRM, 120 So. Olive Avenue, Suite 701, West Palm
Beach, FL.-33401, counf Im gs@nankauskxlawﬁxm comy;

Peter M. Feaman, Esq., PETER M. FEAMAN, P.A., 3615 W. Boynton Beach Blvd Boynton
Beach, FL 334306, service@feumnanlaw.com;

Eliot Bernstein, 2753 NW 34" Street, Boca Raton, FL 33434, fviewit@iviewit. tv;

William H. Glasko, Esci., Golden Cowén, P.A., Palmetto Bay Law Center, 17345 S. Dixie
Highway, Palmetto Bay, FL 33157, bill@palmettobaylaw.com.
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IN THY: CIRCUXT COURT FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FL,

IN RE; ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, PROBATE DIVISION

Deceased. o CASE NO. 502012CP00430 X XKSH
| / | ‘
ELIOT IVAN BERNSTELN, 'RO S8 DIVISION: I¥ (COLIN)
Petitlnoer

Y3,

TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A,, (and all parties,
asgoelates and of covingel); ROBERT L, SPALLINA
(both personally snd professionally); DONALD R, .
TESCHER (both personally and professionally);
THECDORE STUART BERNSTEIN (as alleged
porsonal representative, trustee, suceossor trusteo)
(both personally and profcssionally); ctoal

Respondents. :
; / -
ORDER ON FOR GNATIO GE

This cause was heard by the Court on the co-Personal Repmsentatlves Peunon for

‘ Resxgnaﬁon and Dischmge. on Februury 18, 201 4, and the Coutt, havmg heard argumenis ofeounqel :

and otherwise being fully advised in the premises, ORDERS AND ADJUDG]*,S AS FOLLOWS:

{. The Petitioners’ request o accept their resignation is ACCEPTED, The rec.>-I~’ersonai
Representstives’ Lottsrs of Admiﬁisfration are hersby revoked.

odarsyoseaboriidueiany tho resigning co-Personal Representatives shall deliver fo the succeésor
fiduciary all property of the Estafo, real, pérsonal, tangible or intangible, all of the docmnents and
records of the Estate and all records associated with any proporty of the Estate, regardless of‘whether

such property has been prewously distributed, transferred, abandoned or otherwise disposed of,

EXHIBIT “A”

R DT S R L
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3. The Petitlonets’ request to reserve ruling 01_1' their discharge is ACCEPTED.
4, The resigning co-Personal Representatives shall file an accounting and a Renewed
Pefition for Disch‘arge within slxty (66) days afier the date ﬁercof, which Renewed Petition for
Discharge shall be verified and recite that the lettors of adnihxistmﬁon have been revoked, the
resigning @-Personal Representatives have surrendered all undistributed Estaié assets, becords,
documents, papers and othcr‘ property o_f or coneerning the Eétate to the su_éceséor ﬁduciafy as set
fouth ébovc, and the amount of compeﬁSation pald or fo be paid by the resigning co-Personal
Representatives pursnant to Probate Rule 5.430(g). Such eiccounting shall include cash and
transactions from the commencement of administration of the Estate and ending as of the date the
aceounting is submitted, |
5, The resigning co-Personal Representaﬁves shall serve notice of filing and a copy of
the aceoutiting and Rencwedl’etition for Discharge on all interésted parties and the notice shall state
that the objection to the Renewed Petition for Discharge must be filod within thirty days aftet the

later of service of the petiﬁon or service of the accounting on that interested person pursuant to

@ Probate Rule §.430().

6, The successor Personal Representative or Curator is anthorized to paya $_

—— e ———

#ot to court appfoval, '
DONE AND ORDERED in Delay Beach, Florida; this _ f ? daz ﬁ’L' , 2014,

, Circuit fidge
ce: Partles on attached service list

2.

T
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-

SERVICE LIST

Theodore Stuart Bernstein (¢-medl)

Lifs Insurance Concepts :

950 Peninsula Corpotate Citole, Suite 3010
Boca Raton, Florida 33487

Eliot Bernstein (U.S, Mail)
2753 NW 34" Street
Boca Raton, Florida 33434

Lisa Sue Friedstein (U.S. Mail)
2142 Churohill Lane ,
Highland Park, Hlinols 60035

Pamela Beth Simon (U.S. Mail)
950 North Michigan Avenue, Suite 2603
Chicago, Hlinois 60611

- Jill Tantoni (U,8. Mail)

2101 Megnolia Lane
Highland Patk, llinois 60035

Donald R. Tesoher (E-mall)
4855 Technology Way, Suite 720
Boca Raton, Florida 33431

Matk R, Manceti, Bsq, (E-mail)

Matk. R, Mangeri, P.A,

2929 Bast Commercial Boulevard, Ste. 702
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308

Alan B, Rose, Esq. (E-mail)

Page Mrachok Fitzgerald Rose Konopka &
Dow PA ‘

505 S Flagler Dr Ste 600 _

West Palm Beach, Florida 33401

rw s . e e
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE

FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROBATE D1V,

CASENO.: 502012 CP 004391 XXXX SB

INRE: ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN,
Deceased,

ORDER ON “INTERESTED PERSON” WILLIAM STANSBURY’S
MOTION FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF A CURATOR
. OR SUCCESSOR PERSO, ALREPRDSENTA TVE

_THIS CAUSE came on to be heard by this Honorable Court on Wednesday, Febmary 19,
2014, on {he Motion of William Stansbury, as an “Interested Porson” in the Estate,’ For the |
Appointmeqt of a Curator or Successor Personal Representative, and the Court having received
evidence; roviewed the file, heard argument of counse], and being otherwiss dﬁly advised in the
prenﬁses, itis | |

* ORDERED and ADJUDGED:

1. The Motion of William Stansbury is hereby granted,

2.. | The Court hereby appoints Benjamin Brown, Bsq,, Mahvidzyk & Brown, LLP,
625 No. Flagler Drive, Suite 401, West Palni Beach, FL 33401 as Curaior of this Estate pursnant
to §733,501 Fla, Stat. (2013) and Florida Probate Rule 5.122@). |

3. Reasonable fees for the Curator are capped at $350.00 per hour,

X
EXHIBIT “B” | \ ‘/3\\

Q~{}
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4. Fee paymenis will be made in $5,000,00 increments, Any fee requests in excess

of that amount for any given period will require a court hearing,

5 In accordanco with §733.501(2) Fle. Stat. (2013), bond is hereby sct in fho

amountof § W”"C/ .
DONE and ORDERED in West Palm Beach, Peln Beach County, Florida on this

____day of February, 2014. .

MAR SIGNEL & DATED

TIN COL ‘
Chrouit Court Judge FEB A 29!2 "
JUDGE MARTIN 1.

Copies to:

Alan Rose, Esq., PAGE, MRACHEK, 505 So. Flagler Drive, Suite 600, West Palm Beach, FI, -
33401, arose@pm-law.com and mchandler@pm-law. COm; : ' :

John Pankauski, Bsq., PANKAUSKT LAW FIRM, 120 So. Olive Avenue, Suiic 701, West Palm

Beach, FI, 3.3401,'ggurtﬁling§@gankausldlawﬁrm.com; .

Peter M. Feaman, Esq., PETER M. FEAMAN, PA., 3615 W. Boynton Beach Blvd., Boynton
Beach, FL 33436, service@feamanlaw,com; '

Eliot Bernstein, 2753 NW 34 Street, Boca Raton, FL 33434, iviewit@iviewit. v '

William H. Glasko, Esq., Golden Cowan, PA,, Palmetto Bay Law Centcr, 17345 8. Dixie b
Highway, Palmetto Bay, FL 33157, bill@palmettobaylaw.com.

N pre e e e
Yoo oo s ”
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Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 56-4 Filed: 12/05/13 Page 1 of 1 PagelD #:296

Law OQOFFICEHEGS

}. ):qu HLR SPAL LINA 1> A

JR oar bt

Boca ViLtact CORPORATE CENTER |
#8355 TECHROLOGY WaY, SUNTE 720
Boca Raton, Frowpa 33431

ATTORNEYS s e e SUPPORT STAFF
DONALD R. TESCHER TeL 561-997- 7008 Disme DusTiv
ROBERT J.. SPALLINA Fax: 561-997-7308 KIMBERLY MORAN
LaureN &. GALVANS TolL Frer: 888-997-7008 SUANN TESCHER

WAV, TESCHERSPALLINA.COM

December 6, 2012

V1A FACSIMILE: 803-333-4936

Atn: Bree

Claims Departiment

Heritage Union Lifc Insurance Company
1275 Sandusky Road

Jacksonville, [L 6265}

Re:  Inswred: Simon L. Bernstein
Contract No.: 1009208

Denr Bree;

As per our earlier telephone conversation:

.0 We are unable to locate the Simon Bemstein lrrevocable Insurance Trust dated June 1,

1995, which we have spent much time scarching for.

¢ Mrs. Shirley Berstein was the initial beneficiary of the 1993 trust but predeceased My,
Bernstein.

° ‘The Bernstein children are the secondary beneficiavies of the 1995 wust.  «

- We are submitting the Letters of Administration for the Estate of’ Simon Bernsiein
showing that we are (he naimed Personal Representatives of the Estale.

o We would like to have the proceeds from the Heritage policy teleased (o our firm’s trust
account so that we cap make distributions amongst the five Bernstein children,

° If necessary, we will prepare for Heritage an Agreement and Mutual Release amongst
.al} the children.

. We are enclosing the SS4 signed by Mr, Bemstein in 1995 to obtain the EIN nunbey for

the 1595 trust,
I you have any questions with regard to the foregoing, please dn not hesitate w comtact me.
Sincerely,
{0h s ﬂ»&/(/xf 1 / W

ROBERT L., sm\LErNA
RLS/kin

Enclosures
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FROM:Petor M. Feaman P.A, 7345664 TO:2741418 05/23/201410:43:07 /7697 P.003/008

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDIGIAL CIRCUIT
INAND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

IN RE: ’ CASE NO.! 502012 CP 004391 XXXX SB
. PROBATE D1V,
ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, )
Decoasad.
. /

ORDER APPOINTING ADMINISTRATOR AD LITEM TO
ACT ON BEHALF OF THE ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN
TO ASSERT THE INTERESTS OF THE ESTATE IN THE ILLINOIS
LITIGATION (CASE NQ, 13CV3643, N,D. ILL, K, DIV)) INVOLVING

SURANC OCELDS N YHE DE NT’8 LIFE

THIS CAUSE came bufors this Honoruhle Court on May 23, 2014 upon the Curator's
Amended Motion for Instrustions/Detormination rcgurdi:'tg Eatato Entitlement to Life Ingurance
. Prooceds and upon the Petition for Appointment of Administrutor Ad Litem filed by Willlam
Btanshwry, in the 1.8, Distciut Court case stylod Stmen Barnstuln lrvevocahle Inssrance Trust
DT> /21795 v Harltage Union Lifee Insuranee, Case Na. 13~cv-03643, autrently pending in the
United States Dlstriot Court for the Northern Distelat Court of 1Rinols, und the Conrt having
heard argumont of counsel and baing othierwise duly advised in the premises, It Is
ORDERED shd ADIUDGED thut
l. The Court appoints Benjantin P, ﬁru\vn. Esq., who is ourrently serving as Gurator,
o thes Administmtor Ad Litem on béhult' of the Estate of Simon L. Bernstein to agsert the
mluresm of the Estate In the Ulinoiz Litigation mvolvlug life insurence procacda on the
Duwdem s ltfe in the U.S. Distelel Court case styled Stmon Bernstein hrevocable bswrance
Trust DTD 6/21/95 v. Herltuye Um‘:m' Life Insurance, Caga No. 13-ev-03643, pending In the

United States District Court for the Northorn Distriet Court of Minois,
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2, Fo‘r t?m reusans and subect to the conditlons stated on the rgeord duﬁng the hearlng, ol
feos und costs incurred, Including for the Cayator In conneetion with his work as Adminjstrator
Ad-Litem and sny counsel rotainsd by the Administeator Ad Liiom, wifl initially e bomig by
William Stamsbury, .
1 The Cx{uzt will considur any subchuent Potition for Fecs and Costs by William Stansbury
a3 approprigte under Florida law.

DONE AND ORDERED in Palm Buuch County, Rlorida (his Z }day of May,

Jith—

MARTIN COLIN
Cirault Court Judge

2014,

Caplay 1n:

Alon Roxe, Raq., PAGE, MRACIILK, S05 So. Flagler Deive, Suito 600, Wast Poly Beach, ¥L 33401, anpsiopms
lawsuomy und mshaudleriepomfnwppu

John Pankuuski, Bxg., PANKAUSK] LAW FIRM, 120 So. Ofiva Avenve, Suite 701, West Puim 1seach, FL. 33401,
souiigumapkouskibwlirm.equ .

Poter M, Fommue, By, PETBR M, FHAMAN, PA, 3615 W, Boynton Beunh Blvd,, Boyntan Beadk, FI, 33436,
serviosfaibutnlywcqny; '
Eltot Bemstoln, 2753 Nw 34 Steeet, Boca Raton, FL 33434, jewdetgiviewis o

Wilkiaen, H, Glaxko, Livg,, Golden Cowan, PA.. Palmetto By Law Contar, 17945 . Dixie Uglywey, Palnjolio Bay,
FL 33187, billlemaligtiphaylow.gum; :

Jobn ¥, Morzissey, Bsn,, 330 Clemnly 84, Suite 213, West Paim Beaul, FL 33401, Jubnwgsimorrten Lunmy
Buijamin ¥ Brown, fsq,, Mutwioryk & Brown, T.LP, 625 No. Flagler Driva, Suite 401, West Paln Beach, L,

33401, bhrgyagemathools wegm
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,

Plaintiff,
\'A Case No. 13 ¢cv 3643
HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Honorable Amy J. St. Eve
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

Defendant.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Counter-Plaintiff,
\2

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,

Counter-Defendant,
and,

vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK, )
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee )
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF )
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA, )
successor in interest to LaSalle National )
Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST,)
N.A,, TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon
Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd.
6/21/95, and ELIOT BERNSTEIN,

N’ N’ N N N

Third-Party Defendants,

JACKSON'S (1) ANSWER TO COMPLAINT AND (2) COUNTERCLAIM
AND THIRD-PARTY COMPLAINT FOR INTERPLEADER

Defendant, Jackson National Life Insurance Company ("Jackson"), as successor in

interest to Reassure America Life Insurance Company, successor in interest to Heritage Union
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Life Insurance Company, makes the following (1) answer to Plaintiff's complaint and (2)
counterclaim and third-party complaint for interpleader:
ANSWER

i At all relevant times, the Bernstein Trust was a common law trust established in
Chicago, Illinois by the settlor, Simon L. Bernstein, and was formed pursuant to the laws of the
State of Illinois.

ANSWER:  Jackson lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

2. Ted S. Bernstein is the Trustee of the Bernstein Trust.

ANSWER:  Jackson lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

3. At all relevant times, the Bernstein Trust was a beneficiary of a life insurance
policy insuring the life of Simon L. Bernstein, and issued as policy number 1009208 (the
"Policy").

ANSWER:  Jackson lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

4, The Policy was originally purchased by the S.B. Lexington, Inc. 501(c)(9) VEBA
Trust (the "VEBA") from Capital Bankers Life Insurance Company ("CBLIC") and was
delivered to the original owner in Chicago, Illinois on or about December 27, 1982.

ANSWER:  Jackson lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

5. At the time of issuance and delivery of the Policy in 1982, CBLIC was an
insurance company licensed and doing business in the State of Iilinois, and the insured, Simon L.

Bernstein, was a resident of the state of Illinois.
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ANSWER:  Jackson lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

6. Heritage subsequently assumed the Policy from Capital Bankers and thus became
the successor to CBLIC as "Insurer" under the Policy.

ANSWER:  Jackson lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

7. In 1995, the VEBA, as owner of the Policy, executed a beneficiary change form
naming LaSalle National Trust, N.A., as Trustee of the VEBA, as primary beneficiary of the
Policy, and the Bernstein Trust as the contingent beneficiary.

ANSWER:  Jackson lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

8. S.B. Lexington, Inc. and the VEBA were voluntarily dissolved on or about April
3, 1998.

ANSWER:  Jackson lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.

9. Upon the dissolution of the VEBA in 1998, the Policy ownership was assigned
and transferred from the VEBA to Simon L. Bernstein, individually.

ANSWER:  Jackson lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same,

10. At the time of his death, Simon L. Bernstein was the owner of the Policy, and the
Bernstein Trust was the sole surviving beneficiary under the Policy.

ANSWER:  Jackson lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to

- the truth of the allegations of this paragraph and therefore denies the same.
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11, The insured under the Policy, Simon L. Bernstein, passed away on September 13,
2012, and on that date the Policy remained in force.

ANSWER:  Jackson admits the allegation of this paragraph.

12. Following Simon L. Bernstein's death, the Bernstein Trust, by and through its
counsel in Palm Beach County, FL, submitted a death claim to Heritage under the Policy
including Simon L. Bernstein's death certificate and other documentation.

ANSWER:  Jackson admits the allegation of this paragraph.

13, The Policy, by its terms, obligates Heritage to pay the death benefits to the
beneficiary of the Policy upon Heritage's receipt of the due proof of the insured's death.

ANSWER:  Jackson admits it, as a successor to Heritage, is obligated to pay the death
benefits to the beneficiary(ies) of the Policy, but denies that the remainder of paragraph 13
accurately and fully states the obligations of a beneficiary in submitting a claim under the Policy,
and/or when the obligation for Jackson to make such payment becomes due and therefore denies
the same.

14.  Heritage has breached its obligations under the Policy by refusing and failing to
pay the Policy's death benefits to the Bernstein Trust as beneficiary of the Policy despite
Heritage's receipt of due proof of the Insured's death.

ANSWER:  Jackson lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the true beneficiary of the Policy, resulting in it tendering the death benefit funds to the Court
and filing its interpleader counterclaim and third-party complaint, and thus it denies the
allegation of this paragraph.

15.  Despite the Bernstein Trust's demands Heritage has not paid out the death benefits

on the policy to the Bernstein Trust.
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ANSWER:  Jackson lacks sufficient information and knowledge to form a belief as to
the true beneficiary of the Policy, resulting in it tendering the death benefit funds to the Court
and filing its interpleader counterclaim and third-party complaint, and thus it denies the
allegation of this paragraph.

16.  As a direct result of Heritage's refusal and failure to pay the death benefits to the
Bernstein Trust pursuant to the Policy, Plaintiff has been damaged in an amount equal to the
death benefits of the Policy plus interest, an amount which exceeds $1,000,000.

ANSWER:  Jackson denies the allegation of this paragraph.

WHEREFORE, Defendant, Jackson National Life Insurance Company, as successor in
interest to Reassure America Life Insurance Company, successor in interest to Heritage Union
Life Insurance Company, respectfully requests that it be dismissed from this lawsuit, and
requests such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

COUNTER-CLAIM AND THIRD-PARTY COMPLAINT FOR INTERPLEADER

INTRODUCTION

1. Jackson National Life Insurance Company ("Jackson") brings this counter-claim
and third-party complaint for Interpleader pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1335(a) and Federal Rule of
Civil Procedure 14, as it seeks a declaration of rights under a life insurance policy for which it is
responsible to administer. The proceeds from the policy (the "Death Benefit Pfoceeds") have

been tendered to this Court.

PARTIES AND VENUE

2. Jackson, successor in interest to Reassure America Life Insurance Company
("Reassure"), successor in interest to Heritage Union Life Insurance Company ("Heritage"), is a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Michigan, with its principal

place of business located in Lansing, Michigan. Jackson did not originate or administer the
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subject life insurance policy, Policy Number 1009208 (the "Policy™), but inherited the Policy and
the Policy records from its predecessors.

3. The Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95 (the "Bernstein
Trust") is alleged in the underlying suit to be a "common law trust established in Chicago,
Hlinois by the settlor, Simon L. Bernstein, and was formed pursuant to the laws of the state of
[llinois."

4, Ted S. Bemnstein is a resident and citizen of Florida. He is alleged in the
underlying suit to be the "trustee" of the Bernstein Trust. Ted Bernstein is further, individually,
upon information and belief, a beneficiary of the Bernstein Trust (as Simon Bernstein's son),

5. Eliot Bernstein is a resident and citizen of Florida. He has asserted that he and/or
his children are potential beneficiaries under the Policy as Simon Bernstein's son, presumably
under the Bernstein Trust.

6. First Arlington National Bank is, upon information and belief, a bank in Illinois
that was, at one point, and the purported trustee for the "S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death
Benefit Trust" (tﬁe "Lexington Trust"). The Lexington Trust was, upon information and belief,
created to provide employee benefits to certain employees of S.B. Lexington, Inc., an insurance
agency, including Simon Bernstein, but it is unclear if such trust was properly established.

7. United Bank of Illinois is, upon information and belief, a bank in Illinois that was,
at one point, a named beneficiary of the Policy. To date, Jackson has not determined the current
existence of this bank.

8. Bank of America, N.A,, is a national banking association with its principal place
of business in Charlotte, North Carolina. Bar‘xk of America, N.A. is the successor in interest to

[.aSalle National Trust, N.A., which was a named beneficiary of the Policy.
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9, The "Simon Bernstein Trust" is, upon information and belief, the Bernstein Trust
listed in paragraph 3, above, and was a named contingent beneficiary of the Policy. However,
based on the variance in title, to the extent it is a separate trust from the Bernstein Trust
referenced above, it is named separately.

10.  Subject matter jurisdiction is proper in accordance with 28 U.S.C. § 1335(a).

11. Personal jurisdiction is proper over Ted Bernstein because he, purportedly as
Trustee of the Bernstein Trust, caused this underlying suit to be filed in this venue.

12, Personal jurisdiction is proper over First Arlington National Bank, United Bank of
[llinois, and Bank of America in accordance with 735 ILCS 5/2-209(a)(1) because each, upon
information and belief, transacts business in Illinois.

13. Personal jurisdiction is proper over Ted and Eliot Bernstein in accordance with
735 ILCS 5/2-209(a)(13) as each are believed to have an ownership interest in the Bernstein
Trust, which is alleged in the underlying complaint to exist underneath laws of and to be
administered within this State.

14, Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) in that a
substantial part of the events giving rise to this interpleader action occurred in this District,

FACTS

15. On December 27, 1982, upon information and belief, Capitol Bankers Life
Insurance Company issued the Policy, with Simon L. Bernstein as the purported insured (the
"Insured"), |

16.  Over the years, the Policy's owner(s), beneficiary(ies), contingent beneficiary(ies)
and issuer changed. Among the parties listed as Policy beneficiaries (either primary or
contingent) include: "Simon Bernstein"; "First Arlington National Bank, as Trustee of S.B.

Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust"; "United Bank of Illinois"; "LaSalle National
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Trust, N.A., Trustee"; "LaSalle National Trust, N.A."; "Simon Bernstein Insurance Trust dated
6/21/1995, Trust"; and "Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A."

17. At the time of the Insured's death, it appears "LaSalle National Trust, N.A." was
the named primary beneficiary of the Policy, and the "Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A." was the
contingent beneficiary of the Policy. The Policy's Death Benefit Proceeds are $1,689,070.00,
less an outstanding loan.

18.  Subsequent to the Insured's death, Ted Bernstein, through his Florida counsel
(who later claimed Bernstein did not have authority to file the instant suit in Illinois on behalf of
the Bernstein Trust and withdrew representation), submitted a claim to Heritage seeking payment
of the Death Benefit Proceeds, purportedly as the trustee of the Bernstein Trust. Ted Bernstein
claimed that the Lexington Trust was voluntarily dissolved in 1998, leaving the Bernstein Trust
as the purported sole surviving Policy beneficiary at the time of the Decedent's death,

19. However, Ted Bernstein could not locate (nor could anyone else) a copy of the
Bernstein Trust. Accordingly, on January 8, 2013, Reassure, successor to Heritage, responded to
Ted Bernstein's counsel stating:

In as much as the above policy provides a large death benefit in excess of
$1.6 million dollars and the fact that the trust document cannot be located,
we respectfully request a court order to enable us to process this claim.

20.  Presently, the Bernstein Trust still has not been located. Accordingly, Jackson is
not aware whether the Bemsteianrust even exists, and if it does whether its title is the "Simon
Bernstein Insurance Trust dated 6/21/1995, Trust," as captioned herein, or the "Simon Bernstein
Trust, N.A.", as listed as the Policy's contingent beneficiary (or otherwise), and/or if Ted
Bernstein is in fact its trustee. In conjunction, Jackson has received conflicting claims as to

whether Ted Bernstein had authority to file the instant suit on behalf of the Bernstein Trust.




Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 240-14 Filed 05/21/16 Page 10 of 12 PagelD 4228

E&88 111330263648 BOUNRRH Y 7 Filed: GB1381 {5 Py8 Y'5r 11 PAgEM ¥4s

21. In addition, it is not known whether "LaSalle National Trust, N.A." was intended
to be named as the primary beneficiary in the role of a trustee (of the Lexington and/or Bernstein
Trust), or otherwise. Jackson also has no evidence of the exact status of the Lexington Trust,
which was allegedly dissolved.

22. Further, Jackson has received correspondence from Eliot Bernstein, attached as
Exhibit 1, asserting that he and/or his children are potential beneficiaries under the Policy,
(presumably under the Bernstein Trust, but nonetheless raising further questions as to the proper
beneficiaries of the Policy), and requesting that no distributions of the Death Benefit Proceeds be
made.

COUNT I- INTERPLEADER

23.  This is an action of interpleader brought under Title 28 of the United States Code,
Section 1335.

24.  Jackson does not dispute the existence of the Policy or its obligation to pay the
contractually required payment Death Benefit Proceeds under the Policy, which it has tendered
into the registry of this Court.

25. Due to: (a) the inability of any party to locate the Bernstein Trust and uncertainty
associated thereunder; (b) the uncertainty surrounding the existence and status of "LaSalle
National Trust, N.A." (the primary beneficiary under the Policy) and the Lexington Trust; and (c)
the potential conflicting claims under the Policy, Jackson is presently unable to discharge its
admitted liability under the Policy.

26. Jackson is indifferent among the defendant parties, and has no interest in the
benefits payable under the I"olicy as asserted in this interpleader other than to pay its admitted
liability pursuant to the terms of the Policy, which Jackson has been unable to do by reason of

uncertainty and potential competing claims.
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27.  Justice and equity dictate that Jackson should not be subject to disputes between
the defendant parties and competing c!aims when it has received a non-substantiated claim for
entitlement to the Death Benefit Proceeds by a trust that has yet to be located, nor a copy of
which produced.

WHEREFORE, counter- and third-party plaintiff Jackson National Life Insurance
Company respectfully requests pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1335 that this Court enter an Order:

a. That counter-defendants be temporarily enjoined during the pendency of this
suit and thereafter permanently and perpetually enjoined from commencing
any proceedings or prosecuting any claim against Jackson in any state or
federal court or other forum with respect to the Policy;

b. That judgment be entered in favor of Jackson on the Complaint in
Interpleader;

¢. That upon determination that the proper parties have been made subject to this
suit, Jackson be excused from further attendance upon this case, be dismissed
from this case with an express finding of finality pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure;

d. That Jackson be awarded actual court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees
incurred in connection with this interpleader action to be paid out of the
admitted liability deposited by it with the Clerk of the Court; and

e. That Jackson be granted such other and further relief as this Court deems just
and appropriate.

JACKSON NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,
By:___ /s/ Alexander D. Marks

One of Its Attorneys

Frederic A. Mendelsohn (ARDC No. 6193281)
Alexander D. Marks (ARDC No. 6283455)
Burke, Warren, MacKay & Setritella, P.C.

330 N. Wabash Ave., 22" Floor

Chicago, Illinois 60611

312-840-7000

312-840-7900 (facsimile)

10
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned, an attorney, states that on June 26, 2013 he caused a copy of the
foregoing Answer to Complaint and Counter-Claim and Third-Party Complaint for Interpleader
to be filed electronically with the Northern District of Illinois electronic filing system, and
electronically served upon the following:

Adam M. Simon

The Simon Law Firm

303 E. Wacker Drive, Suite 210
Chicago, IL 60601

/s/ Alexander D. Marks

1434759.1

11
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Capitol Bankers Life
CAPITOL BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
A Stock Compuny

Home Office; Minneapolis, Minngsota
Bussness Office:  Milwoukee, Wisconsin

Policy Number Sum Insured
Insured Age & Sex
Plan Policy Date

Dear Policy Owner: .
‘This policy has been wiltten in readable language 1o help you understand s terms. As
you read through the policy, remember the words “‘we”, nad “our” rufor to Capital
Bankers Life Insurance Company. Similarly, the words “you’ and “your" refer to you,
the Owner of this policy.

We will, subject to the terms of (his policy, pay the death benefit to the Beneficlary
when duc proof of the Insurnd's death is reccived at our Business Office. The terms of
this policy are contained on this and the following pages.

A Policy Summary is on the other side of this page, A Table of Contents is inyide the
back coven . .

Por service or informyation on this policy, contact the agent who sold the policy, any

of our agency offices or our Business Office.

YO HAVE A RIGHT TO RETURN THIS POLICY, If you decide not to keep this
policy, return it within ten days after you receive it It may be yeturned by delivering

or mailing it to our Business Office or to any of our anthorizéd agents. Upon xelurn, the
policlg will be as though it had never been issusd. We will promptly refund any premium
paid for it.

Signed for Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Company at Milwaukes, Wisconsin,

Sincerely yours,

AW AT R C WL

[ Prosident . Vice President

S LIS % s s Sy 3

CURRENT VALUE LIFE

Whols Life Insurance for an Initial Tornt - Renewable Annuslly durfog Life of Insured -
Cash Surrender Values - Options to Change Premiums and Sum Insyred e
Premiums Payable during Life of Insured - Nonparticipating N

Premiums, henefits ond policy valucs may vary from those illustrated on the Issue _Ji‘%

Vo

Pate. See Part 4. **Rencwal Options" and Part 10, “Basls of Our Compulations,”
m—————————

JCK001099
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p.2

POLICY SUMMARY

This summary briclly highlights some of the major policy provisions, Since
this is u summury, only the detallad provisious of the policy will cuntol,
See those provisions for full information and any limits or estrictions
that apply. To locoe 1his policy’s provisions, use the Talic of Contents
on 1he inside of the back cover, Your policy is a Tegad contract hefween
you and us. You shoutd. therefure, READ YOUR PQLICY CAREFULLY,

This policy muy br vontinued in Foree until the Insured dies, [t {5 issued
for an initlsl term oF one year. bat you Juwe the righy to renew i1, The
bunefits and prenunmg moy be claoped ut the end of vaeh Policy Year,
Wo wilf piy a degth benefit if the tbsured diss while the palivy Is in foree,
We gusrantee i rate basls for calendaling premmms for the henelits wnder
this policy, IT our current rate basis is lower, we will charge lower pre-
miums for the sioie henetirs, We may change but cureent rate basis it the
end of uny Policy Year. I wa increase our current sate basls, vous pre-
;:\h:m Witk be higher, hut never more than the premium on the gunranteed
asts,

T

"’
L3
L
L3

here are other rights avsdlable while the Insored i liviog, These inchde;
The right to assign this policy.

- The right Ly chunge the Owaer o1 any Benelicisry,
The right 1o surrender this policy for s value,
The right to make loms,

The policy ulso includes 3 number of Payment Options. Thuese provide
allernate ways to pay the death benelis or the smount payubhle wpon
surreadee of the policy,

Payment ol benefite may be affected by other pravisions in thix policy.
For example, see the pravisions in Pant’ § aboul suiclde, voalusiability
und misstulement ol age or sex.

Premiuins 2re payble in advince during the litetime of 1he $rsomed, We
allow a 31.day grace period For puyment ot each premium alter the first
one. 104 premiusi is not paid by the end of fhe grace period, the policy
will tapse as of the due date of that premium, Even i the policy hupses,
st benelits moy be svajlable us deseribed in Part 5, Jn any event, you
will haye the right o reinstate this policy. subject tn the reqitirehents
stuted in Part 5,

T

his palicy may contain riders whielh include added benefits or

JCK001100
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The Partics Involved—
Insured, Owner,
Beneficiary, lirevocable
Beneficiary

Policy Date, Issue Date,
Renewa) Date, and
Policy Year

VL, ac0

N

Part 1. Definitions and Basic Provisions

The Insured is the person whose lfe this policy insures. The Insured may
be the Owaer of this policy, or someone ¢else may be the Owner.

The Owner is rhe person named as Owner of this policy in the applica-
tion, unless later changed as provided in this policy. The Insured will be
the Owner if no other person is named as Owner, If mare than one peyson
is named as Owner, they must aet jointly unless they and we agree
otherwise. Whenever the words “'you®™ and “your" are nsed, they refer to

the Owner,

A Beneficiury is uny person named on our records (o receive proceeds of
this policy after the Insurud dies. There may be different classes of
Boneficlaries, such as Primary and Contingent, These classcs sct the nrder
of payment, There may be more than onc Beneficiary i ina cluss.

Unless you provide otherwise, any death benefit that becomes payable

under this policy will be paid in equal shares to the Beneficiaries living at

the death of the Tnsured. Payiments will be made successively in the fol-

lowing order:

a. Primary Beneliciarfes,

b. Contingent Beneficiaries. if any, provided no Primary Beneficiary is
fiving at the death of the Insured.

¢. The Owner, or the Owner's ¢xecutor or administrator, provided no
Primary or Contingent Beneficiary is Hving at the dcat'h of the Insured.

Any Bencficiary may be named an lrrevocable Beneficiary. An
Irrevocable Beneficiary is one whose consent is needed to change that
Beneficiary. Also, this Beneficiary must consent to the exereise of
cerlain other rights by the Owner. We discuss ownership in Part 2.

.

Twe important dates (shown on the Schedule Page) are the Policy Date
and the Issue Dme. Usvally they are the same date,

The Policy Date s the startlng point for determining premium due dates,
Renzwal Dates and Policy Years, The first Renewal Date is one year after
the Policy Date. The period from the Policy Date to the first Renewal
Pate, or from one Renewi] Dare to the next, is called a Policy Year. A
Policy Yeur dovs not include the Rencwal Date at the end of the yeay,

This policy is issued for an initial term of one Policy Year. it may be
rencwed for additiona) terms of one Policy Year while the Insured is
alive. We djscuss renewal in Part 4,

The lssue Date is used to determine the start of the suicide and contest-
ability perinds. We discuss contestabllity and suicide below, The Issue
Date witl be earlier than the Policy Date only if this policy includes a
rider which provides temporary term Jife insurance for 1 period before the

Policy Date.

Pagel
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“This policy is a legal contract between you and us, The entire contract con-
sists of the application and the policy, which includes any attached riders.
We have {ssuesd this policy in return for the application and the payment
of premiums, Any change or waiver of its terms must be in writing and
signed by our President, a Vice President, aur Secretary or an Assistant

Secretary to be effective.

We rely on all statements made hy or for the Insored in the written
application. These slatements are considered to be representations and
not warrantivs. We van contest the validity ol this policy for any material
missepresentation of o Tact, To du so, however, the musrepresentation
must be contained in the written appheuation und s copy of the application
must be attached to this policy when it is issued,

We cannot coniest the validity of this puhey, exeept for faijure to pay
premiums, after it has been n tarce during the lifetime of the Insured (or

two years from its [ssue Dute,

If within two vears from the Issue Date the fosured dies by suicide,
whether sane of insane, the amount we pay will be imiced (o the pre-
muums pad less any polivy debt,

If the date of birth or the sex ol the Insured has been misstated in the ap-
plication. we will adjust 1he benefits under this policy. 1€ the beneflis pus-
chased by the premiums paid would have been Jower at the correct age and
sex, we will regalculate the benefits so that 1he Endowment Benefit for
each Policy Year is not changed. 1f the benefits purchased by the premiums
paid would have been higher at the correet age and sex, we will recalculate
the benefits so that the amount at risk for each Policy Year is not changed.
(Endowment Benefit and smount ot nsk are defined 10 Part 4.)

This policy will be **in full fuorce™ from the Issue Date, provided the

first premium due is paid while the Insured is slive, 1t will continue *in
Tull foree™ as long us sl premiums are piud when due. We discuss premium
due dates in Purt 3. 1t also continues in full force for 3§ days after the due
date of an unpaid premium, It the unpaid premium is not paid by then,
this policy will *lapse'” us of that due date. Then, it wil! no fonger be in

full foree.

Lapse is not necessarily the same as termination. When a policy lapses, the
insurance may terminate or it may continue for & limited 1ime or amount
AC insurance continues alter lapse, we say that the policy remains “in
forge™. but no longer in I'ull force. We diseuss lapse in Past 5.

We are chartered by the State of Minnesota and have a legal office, known
as our Home Office, in Minneapohs, Minnesota, Qur operations are
condurted at our Business Office. 735 N, Water Stirect, Milwaukee,
Wisconsin, Our nutil address is P.O. Rox 2016, Milwaukee, Wisconsin

§3201.

Part 2. Ownership

While the Insured is living, you may exercise all rights given by this

policy or allowed by us. These rights include assigning this policy,
Page 2
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Alternate Premivm Plans
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'3
changing Beneflclaries, changing ownership, enjoying all policy benelits
and exereising all policy options.

The consent of any Irrevoeable Beneficiary is needed o exercise any
policy right except the right to: '

« Change the frequency of premium payments,

. Change between regular premiums and alternate premium plans.

» Change the renewal option,

» Borrow on this poll¢cy to puy a premium on this policy.

« Reinstate this policy after lapse.

This policy may be assigned, But for any assignment Lo be binding on us,
we must Teceive a signes! copy ol it al our Business Officc. We will not be

responsible for the validity of any assignment.

Once we receive a signed copy, your rights and the Interest of any Bene-
ficlary or any other person will be subject to the assignment. An assign-
ment s subject to any policy debt, Wo discuss policy debt in Part 7.

The Owner or any Bencficiary may be changed during the Insured’s life-
time. We do not limit the number of changes that may be made, To make
a change, o written request, sarisfuctory 1o us, must be recejved at our
Business Oftice, The change will take effect as of the date the request is
signed, cven if the Insured dies before we receive it Each change will be
subjoet to any payment we made or other action we took before receiving

the request.

Part 3. Premium Payments

Premiums are the paynients needed 1o keep this policy in full force,
Premiums for each Policy Year are payable in advance during the Insured’s
lifetime until the end of the Policy Year, The first premium is due on the
Policy Date. The first preminm for a renewal Policy Year is due on the
Restewal Date, Bach subsequent premium is due when the period covered
by the preceding premium ends. Euch premium Is dug on the stine day ol
the month as the day shown in the Policy Date. :

Regular premiums may be paid annually, semiannually, quarterly or
monthly. The frequency of payments may be changed by giving us
advance written notice. A change may also be made as of any premium
due date, without notice, by paying the regulur premium for the frequency
wanted, However, no premium may be paid for a period beyond the next
Renewal Date. Our consent is necded if any chunge will result in o regualr
premium of Jess 1than $20. .

A semiannual premium Is $0.22 plus 51.5% of the annual premium. A
quartterly premium is $0,52 plus 26.5% of the annual preminm. A
monthly premium is $0.70 plus 9% of the annual premium,

We provide a number of alternate premium plans, These jnclude a pre-
anthorized check payment plan, These plans are governed by the rules and

rates we set. Ouy consent is needed to participate in any available plan,
Page 3
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If an alternate premium plan is terminated, regular monthly preminms
will then be payable,

After the first premium has been pald for any Policy Year, we sliow a 33
day gruce period to pay each following premium. This means that each
premium after the first ¢an be pald within 31 days after its due date,
Durinhg this grace period the policy remaing in full force. If 2 preroium is
not paid by the end of this grace period, the policy will lapsc as of the
premium due date, We discuss lapse in Pan 5,

Premiums for the first Policy Year are shown on the Schedude Page. The
premiums for a4 renewal Policy Year may dilfer from the premiums for the
prior Policy Year, We discuss your Renewal Options in Part 4. The way we
compute renewal premijums for the policy, excluding any stiached rider,
is described in Part 10, Tlic premium for continuing any rider is shown on
the Schedule Page. We will notify you of the renewal premiums before

each Renewal Date,

Each premium after the first one is payable at our Business Office. A
receipt for premium payments signed by one of our officers will be given

upon request.

Part 4. Renewal Options

If this policy is in ful] force on a Renewal Date, it may be renewed for an
additional Poli¢y Year by paying a renowal premium. Payment must be
made within 31 days of the Renewal Date, If the Insured dies within thut
31 day period, this policy will be renewed automalically, bul a rencwal
preminm at the regular monthly frequency will be deducted from the

death benefit,

The beneflits and premiums for a renewal Policy Year may change from
those jn the prior term. They will depend on the Renewal Option
selected, Renewal Options are discussed bejow., Also, we may use a rate
basis which is mmore favorable to you than the rate basis we guarantee in
this policy. Rate buses, and the way we compute renewal benefils and
premiums, are discussed in Part 30,

An Endowment Benetit will be payable at the end of the Policy Year. Lt
the policy is not renewed, the Endowment Bencefit, less any policy debd,

will be paid in one sum (o the Owner.

If the policy is renewed, the Fadowment Benefit will not be paid, but a
new Endowment Benefit will be payable at the end of 1the new Policy
Yeur. ‘The Endowment Benefit for the first Policy Year js shown on the
Schedule Page. Our procedure for computing the Endowment Benefit for
renewal Policy Yesrs is discussed In Part 10. We will notify you of the
réenewal Endowment Benefit before cach Renewal Date,

You may vhoose u Renewal Option by notifying us in writing while the
insured is alive and not later than 31 days sfter the Rencwal Date, Any
oplion you choosc will apply until another option is elected. 1f no option

has been chosen, Qption B will apply.
Page 4
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’ K
Amount at Risk In discussing Options D, E and F, we nse the phrase “amount at :isk."'
The amount al risk for a Policy Year is the Sum Insured less the
Endowmens Benefit,

Minimwum Preminm Option. The Sum Insured for the new Policy Year
will he the prior Sum Insured leys any policy debi ropaid from the En-
dowment Henefit, However, the new Sum Insured will not be Jess than
the Endowment Banefit at the end of the new Policy Year. The premium
for the new Policy Year will be the smallest level premium which would
permil the policy to be renewed for the new Sum Insured for the lify of
the Insured, In computing this premium, we will assume that the rate
basis used for the renewal Polley YWear will also be used for fulure renewa)

Policy Years,

Option A

Option B Guamnteed Premium Option, The Sum Insured for the new Policy Year
will be the prior Sum Insured less any pblicy debt repaid from the En-
dowment Benefit. However, the new Sum Insured will not be less than
the Endowment Benefit at the cnd of the new Policy Year. The premium
for the new Policy Year will be the smallest level premium which would
permit the policy to be renewed for the new Sum [nsured for the life of
the Insured. In computing thiy premium, we will assume that the guaran-
teed rale basis will be used for future renewal Pollcy Years,

Option C Specilfied Premium Option. The premium for the new Policy Year may be
. any amount you select, but not less than the premium required under
Oplion A. The Sum Insuted for the new Policy Year will be the prior Sum
Insured less any policy debt repaid from the Endowment Benefit, The
new Sum Insured will not be less than the Endowment Benefit at the end

of the new Policy Year, however,

Option D Incressing Benefit Option. The Sum Insured for the new Policy Year will
be changed so that the amount at risk for the new Policy Year will bo
the amount at risk for the prior Policy Year, The premium for the new
Policy Year will be the smallest level premium which would permit the
policy to be renewed for the new Sum Insured for the life of the Ingsured,
15 computing this premijum, we will assume that the rate basis uscd for the
rencwal Policy Year will also be used for future renewal Policy Years,

Option E Extea Preminm Option. The premium for the new Policy Year may be
any amount you sclect, but not less than the premium required under
Option ., The Sum Insured for the new Policy Year will be changed so
that the amount al risk {0z the new Policy Year will be the amount at

risk for the prior Policy Year.

Option F Changge in_Bencfit Option. The Sum Insured may be changed to any
amount you select. The premium for the new Policy Yeur may be any
amount you select, but not less than the premium required under Option
A for the new Sum Insured. Whun this option is chosen, you may also
specily changes 10 b¢ made on later Renewa) Dates. Any change which
would increase the amount at risk may be made only with ouy consent,
however. We may require a written application, giving evidence of insur-
abllity of the Insured, 10 increase the amount a1t risk. If an appiication is
required, we witl have the same rights to contest the valldity of the in-

CVL180 Page 5
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crease, or to limit the smount of the increase we will pay in the cvent
of suicide, as if we had issued a separate polley for the {ncrease inn the

amount at risk.
Before each Renewal Date while this policy is in Iull fosce, wo will give
you an Annual Report for this policy. This report will show the following

items:
The Sum Insured, Endowment Bencfit and premium for the current

Policy Year.

The Renewal Oplion in effect and 1he Sum Insured, Endowment
Benefit and premium for the next Policy Year under this option.
Any policy debt as of the date the report is prepared,

The minimum level renewal premium under our current rate basis
(Option A) and under the guaranteed rate basis (Option B).

Any change in our current rate basis for 1he next Policy Year, and its
effect on values for the next Polley Yeur.

This policy includes a Table of Illustrative Values, The Table follows the
Schedute Page, Lt is based on the Rencwal Option in affect when this
policy was Issued, The Tabje shows values which would apply if the
guacanteced rute basis were used for all renewal Policy Years, I you pay
the premiums shown jn this Table and do not change the Sum Insured,
then the actual policy values will be at least as large as those shown in the
Tahle, If you chooss to pay smaller premiums, howcver, then the policy
vatlues may be smalier than those jllustrated.

Upon request, we wlll provide an illustration as of the next Renewal Date
of future premiums, Sums Insured and Endowment Bencfits under aay

Renewal Option,

Part 5. Lapse and Reinstatement

1f any premium is not puid within 31 days alter ils due dae, this policy
will lapse as of the due date of that premlum. We call this premium due

date the date of lapso.

Several things can oceur when this policy lapscs, First, this palicy is no
longer “in full force.” If there is no cash surrender value 45 of the date of
lapse, the insurance will terminate, But if there is a cash surrender value, il
will automatically be used as a net single premium at the attained age of
the Insured to provide cither extended term insurance or paid-up life
insurance and the policy will continue “in forge."

These two types of insurance are explained belaw. Either will begin as of
the daic of lapse.

This is a4 level amount of insuranee for a limited period of time, Tho
amount of insurance is the Sum Insured on the date of fapse less any
policy debt, The cush surronder value on the date of lapse determines
the perlod of time that extended term Insurance will be providgd, The
insurance terminates at the end of this period,

Page 6
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This is a level amount of insurance for the lifetime of the Insured, The
cash surrender valie on the date of Iapse determines the amount of paid-
up Hfe insurance that will be provided, The amount of paid-up Jife insur-
ance may not execed the Sum Insured on the date of Japse less any

policy debt, however, [ the cash surrender vetue is Jurger than the value
of the maximum pald-up life insurance, then the paid-up insurance will be
endowment insurance for the maximum amouont,

Paid-Up Life Jnsurance

We dutomatically provide cxtended term insurance, But in the following
situations, we provide gaid-up life insurance jnstead;

« The amount of paid-iap life insurance equals or is more than the
wmount of extended term insurance that would be provided, or
)

Which Type of Insurance
Applics

e The nmount of paldJup life insurance is ot leust $1,000 and a written
request for paid-up life insurance is received at our Business Office
before the end of 62 days after the date of lapse, or

» This policy isin a spkciul premiurm class. The policy is in a special
premium cluss only if shown on the Schedule Pago,

If puid-up life insuranul is requested and the Insured djcs within 62 days
afier the date of lapse, jwe will provide extended term insurance if it
provides a larger death'benefit on the date of death, But, this will happen
only If the extended tefm insurance could have been elected on the date

of Japse. i

Extended tenin insuranice and paid-up life insurance bencfits do not apply
to any rider attuched tp this policy, unless specifically provided in that
rider.

Riders Not Included

While this policy s in force as extended term insurance or paid-up life
insurance, al the right$ granted by it are still avaijlable, unless this policy

states otherwise, h

Policy Rights After Lapse

After this policy has | 'pscd, It may be reinstated — that is, put back in
full force, However, the policy cannot be reinstated if it has been surren-
dered for its cash surrgnder value, Reinstatement must be made within
five yeary after the date of lapse and during the Insured’s lifetime, Also,
all policy debt must bé repaid or reinstated with interest, from the date
of lupse to the date ofireinstotement. Interest will be at the rate usnd for
policy loans. Further &_‘uquimments depend on when this policy is

reinstated.

Reinstatement

Frompl Reinstatemcnk — This is reinstatement within 62 days afler the
date of lapse. Evidenck of insurability is not required. Al overdue
premiums must be pnid.

Later Reinstatement ; This is reinstatement morc than 62 days aftor
the date of Japsc. E/lécnce of insurability satisfactory to us is required,
All pverdue premiums must be paid with incerest from their due dates
to the date of reinstatement, Inlerest will be at the mte used for policy

louns,

CVL-180 Pags 7
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Part 6. Palicy Loans

After tha first Policy Year, loans can he mude on 1his policy at any time
while it is in full force, Loans can also he made if it is in force alter Japse
as paid-up insurance, However, the policy must be properly assipned to us
before any loan Is made, No other collateral is necded, We may delay
granting any Joan for up 10 six months, except for a loun lo pay preminms
on this policy or any other policy we issue, We refer to all outstanding
louns less unearncd intercst as *policy debt.”

The maximum policy loan is an amounl equal to the cush surcender value
on the next Renewal Date less any premiums due before then. Any amount
due us on the date of the loan will be subtracted from the loan, Interest
due on the loan will also be subtracted. We will pay the balance,

The interest rate for loans is stated on the Schedule Page. Interest to the
next Rencewal Date is due in sdvance when g lozn is made. If interest is
not paid when due, it will be added to the policy debt and will bear

Inlerest at the same rote,

1) any policy debt Is repuid, any uncarncd interest on the amount repaid
will he credited 1o the loan amount. Any unearncd jnterest will be added
to the death benefit if the Insured dies, Tt will be added to the cash sur-
rendcr value if the policy is surrendercd or Japses,

Policy debt may be repaid anytime while this policy ‘is in force. 1t may
not be repaid after the Insured dies. [f there is any policy debt ona
Renewal Date, it wil} be repaid out of the Endewmaont Benefit, In lieu of
this aufomatic repayment, uny palicy debt outstanding on a Renewal Date
may be repaid in cash within 31 days after the Renewal Date, but interest
must be paid to the date of repayment, If this is done, we will calenlate

- the benefits and premiums for the next Policy Year as if repayment had

been made on the Renewal Date,

Policy debt may nat cqual or exceed the policy value. If this limit is
reached, we ¢an terminate this policy. To terminate for this reason we
must mail written notlce to the Owner and any assignee shown on our
records at their last known addresses, This notice will state an amount
that will bring the palicy debt back within the limil, If we do not recelve
payment within 31 days after the date we mailed ihe natiee, this policy

wil] terminato at the end of those 31 days.

Part 7. Cash Surrender

This policy may be surrendered for its cash surrender value any time
before the Insured dies. Surrender will be effective on the date we recelve
this policy and a written surrender request, satisfastory to us, at our
Business Olfice. A later cffoctive daic may be clected in the surrender

request,
The policy valuc on any Renewal Date is the Endowment Benefit If the

palicy is in full force, The policy value on the Tirst Rencwal Date is shown
Page 8
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on the Schedule Page. The policy value on any later Renewal Daie w 1
depend on the renewal option clected, This is discussed in Part 4,

The policy value cun be computed at any time during a Policy Year, In
thiat case allowance will be made for the perfod of time since the last
Renewal Date and for any premiums paid for any part of that Policy Year.

I this policy is in force after lapse, the policy vajue at any time is the
reserve for the insurance provided, Sce Part 10, Basis of Computations,*’

Cash Surrender Value The cash surrender value is the policy value less any policy debt,

We compute all the amounts that go into the cash surrender value ss of
the effective date of surrender. However, in two situations the policy
value is computed as of an earlier date, Firss, if this policy is surrendered
withln 62 days after the due date of an unpaid premium, the value will
not be less than it was on that due date. Second, if the poliey is surren-
dered within 30 days after 1 Rencwal Dale while cxiended term insurance
or paid-up life insurance is In effect, the value will not be less than it was
on that Renowal Daté. Weo use these earlier dates only if a higher cash

surtender value results.

How We Pay The cash surrender value may be paid in one sum, or it may be applied
undor any payment option clecied. See “*Part 9. Payment of Palicy
Procceds.” We may dolay paying the cash surrender value for up to six
months from the date the request and this policy are received at our
Business Office. 1f payment s delayed for 30 days or more, we will add
{nterest to it. The amount of interest will be the sume as would be paid
undcr Option 4 of the payment options for that period of time,

Part 8. The Death Benefit

The desth benefit Is the amount of money we will pay when duc proof

of the Insurcd’s death is received at our Business Office. The amount of
the death benefit will be determined as of the date of death, Any amounts
paid Lo us after that date will be refunded. Any payments made by us
after that date will be deducted from the death banefit.

Amount of the
Death Benefit

If the Insured dics while this polisy Is in full force, the basle death benefit
is the Sum Insured for the Policy Year in which deuth occurred. I the
Insured dies while this policy ls In force after lapsc, the basic deuth benefit
will be the amount of extended term insurance or paid-up life insurance.
The death benefit is the basic death benefit with certain additions and
deductions, We add the part of sny premium paid for a period beyond

the Policy Month of death. We deduct any policy debl. We also deduct a
premmium on the regular manthly frequeney, if death oceurs within 31
days of the due date of an unpaid premium.

If the death benefit is paid in onc sum, we will add interest from the date
of death to the date of payment, The amount of interest will be the same
as would be paid under Option 4 of the payment options for that period
of time, See “Part 9. Payment of Policy Proceeds™ for a description of

Option 4.
Page 9
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If the death benefit is applicd under a payment optioun, interest will be
paid from the date of death to the effective date of that option. It will be
pald {n one sum to the Beneliclary living on that effcctive date, The
amount of interest will be the same as would be paid under Option 4 for

that period of time.

Part 9. Payment of Policy Proceeds

The praceeds of 1his policy will be pald In onc sum unless otherwise
provided. As an alternative 10 puyment in one sum, «ll or part of the
proceeds may be applied under a payment option, However, our consent
is required for the ¢lection of a puyment option by a fiduciary or any
entity other than a natural person, If this policy is assigned, any amount
due to the assignee will be paid in one sum. The balance, if any, may be

applitd under any payment option.

To cleet any opilon, we require that a wrltten request, satisfactory to us,
be recelved at our Business Office. ‘YYou may clect an option during the
Insured's lifctime, IT the death benefit is payable in onc sum when the
Tnsured divs, tho Beneficiary may cloct an option, The Bencfliciary must
make this choice before we have paid the proceeds and within three
months after we receive due proof of the Insured’s death,

Unless we agree otherwise when the option is elected, all payments under
any option chosen will be made to tha designated payee or to his or her

sxccutor or administrator. We may requirc proof ol age of any person or
persons on whose life payments depend as well as proot of the continued

survival of any such person{s).

If the arnount to be applied under any option for any payee is luss than
$5,000, we may pay that amount in onc sum instcad, If the payments to
any person under any option come to less than 350 cach, we have the
right to make paymecnts at less frequent intervals.

‘This section provides a briel description of the various payment options
that are available, Any other payment option agreed to by us may be
elected. The payment options nre described in terms of monthily payments.
Annuyl, semiannual, or quarterly payments may be requested instead,

The amount of these payments will be determined in 1 way which (s
consistent with montlily payments and will be quoted on request.

At the end of this Part you will find tables illustrating the guaranteed
monthly payment provided by several of the options described in this
scetion. The amounts shown for Option 1, Option 2 and Option S are
the minimum monthly payments tor each 31,000 upplied. The actual
payments will bo based on the monthly payment ratés we ure using when
the first payment is due, They will not be less than those shown io the

tables. .

Fixed Time Payment Optlon. Equal monthly payments will be made for
Page 10
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any period seleeted, up to 30 years. The amount of vach payment depends
on the 1otal amount applied, the period sclected and the month)y pay-
ment rates we are using when the first payment is due. The rate of any
payment will not be luss than shown in Payment Opiion Table 1,

Option 2 Lifetime Payment Option. Equal monthly payments are based on the life
of a named person, Payments will continue for the lifetime of that person.

The variations arc:

Payments guaranteced for 10 or 20 years, Payments stop at the end of
the selected guaraniced period or when the named persan dies, which-

ever is Jater.

Payments guaranteed for amount applicd. Payments stop when they
cqual the amount applied or when the named person dies, whichever is

later,

The amount of sach payment depends on the total amount spplied, the
variation sefected, the age and sex of the named person and the monthly
payment rates we are nsing whon the first payment is due. The rate of any
payment will not be less $than shown in Payment Option Table 2,

Option 3 Fixed Amount Payment Option. Each monthly payment will be for an
agreed fixed amount, The amount of each payment may Rot be less than
$15 for euch 51,000 applicd. Interest will be credited each month on the
unpaid balance and added to it. This interest will be at a rate determined
by us, but hot Jess than the cquivalent of 4% per year, We may change the
rate from time to time, but not more than once per year, Payments con-
linue untdl the amount we hald yuns out, The last payment will be for the

balance only.

Option 4 Interest Payment Option. We will hold any amount applied under this
optinn, Interest on the unpald batance will be paid each month at a rate
detenmined by us. This rate will be not less than the equlvalent of 4%
per vear. We may change the rate from tine to time, but not more than
once per yeur. Upon death of the payee, we will pay the amount held
by us along with any acerued and unpaid Interest,

Joint Lifetime Payment Optiost With Reduced Payments. Monthly
payments are bascd on the lives of two named persons, Payments will
continue while both are Jiving, When one dies, payments are reduced by
one-third and will continue for the lifetime of the other. Payments stop

when bath persons have died.

Option 5

The amount of sach payment depends on thé total amvunt applicd, the
apes and scxes of the named persons and the monthly payment rates we
are using when the first paymunt is due, The rate of any payment will
not be less than shown in Payment Option Table 3,

Option 6 Single Premaium Life Apnuity Purchase Option. Ary single premium
immediate life annuity being issued by us on the effcective date of the
option may be purchased at a reduced premium rate. The premium rate
for the annnity will be 4% less than our then published premium rate,

CVL.180 Page i1
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The effective date of an option is the date the amount is applicd under
that option. For a death benefit, this is the date that due proof of the
Insured’s death is received at our Business Office. For the cash surrender
value, it §s the effective date of surrender.

The first payment is due on the effective date, except the first payment
under Option 4 is due one month later. A later date for the first puyrment
may be requested in the paymoent option clection. ANl payment dates wil)
fall on the samo date of the month as the first onc. No payment will
become duc until 2 payment date, No part payment will be made for any
period shorter than the time between payment dates.

If provided in the paymeni option cloction, all or part of the unpaid
balance under Option 3 or 4 may be withdrawn or applicd under any
other option, If the cash surrender value is applicd undcr either option, we
may delay payment of sny withdrawal for up to six inonths after the date
of surrender, Interest at the rate in effcct for Option 4 during this peciod

will be pnid an the amount withdrawn,

Payments upder Options 1, 2 and § may not be anticipated, withdrawn
before due, or applied under any other option,

T the extent permitted by law, cach option payment dnd any withdrawal
shall be frec from lepul process and the claim of any creditor of the person
entitled to it. No option payment and no amount held under an

option can be taken or assigned in advance of jts payment date, unless the
Owner's written consent is given before the Insured dies, This consent

must be recelved at our Business Office.

We will {ssue 1o the payee u supplementary contract stating the terms
of seltlement under the payment option elected.

Page 12
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Guaranteed and Current
Rate Basis

Actunrial Assumptions

$Special Premium Class

CVi-140

p.16

Part 10. Basis of Our Computations

You determine both the Sum Insured and the premium for vach renewal
Policy Year when you choose the Renéwal Option, (See Part 4.) From
these, we calculate the Endowment Benefit for the new Policy Year,
(See “*Amount of Endowment Benefit” below). We calil the combina-
tion of the mortality table, the interest rate and the expense charges
used in this calculation vur “*rate basis.” Our “guaranteed rato basis™
consists of the actuarial assumptions set out below and un expense
charge equal lo the factar times the apnual mode premium, This ex-
pense charge factor is stated on the Schedule Page. T his rute basis cannot

be changed.

Our **current tate basis” is a differont combination of morlality table,
nterest rate and expense charges which wo use for polivies of this

class. We may change our current rate basis from time ¢ time, Any change
will take effect on the next Rencwal Date, We will chiange our current

ratc basls only to reflect changes in expected future mortality oxperience,
interest return and level of expenses for policies of this class, We will

not change our current rate basis to yeflect past profits or losses. Our
current rute basls will not be affected by any adverse change in the risk

class of the insured.

Wihen this polley is renewed, we will use our current rate basis to caleu-
late Lhe Endowment Benefit for the new Policy Year if this will give you
a larger Endowment Benefit, [n this case, the larger Endowment Benefit
will be guaranteed for the new Policy Year and all caleulations of the
policy values during the year will be based on that Endowment Benefit.
1f our curcent rats basis is uscd to compute the Endowment Benefit for
a Policy Year, we will also use this basis to compute the minimum pre-
minm needed to renew the policy, (See “Minlimum Renewal Premium”

below.)

This section discusses Lhe mortality and jinterest rutes we use to compute
benefits, preminms und reserves for this policy. Except as otherwise
statcd above, we use the Commissioners 1958 Standurd Ordinary
Mortality Table, an interest rate of 4V2% per year and curtate functions,
For extended term insurance calculations we use the Commissiontrs
1958 Extended Term Mortality Table. If the Insured js female, the
mortalily rates for ages 18 and older are the rates for a male 6 years
younger. FFor females ages 12 through 17, we use the male mortality
rate for age 12. Below age 12, the Female moriality rates are the same

as the male rates.

This policy is in u speeial premium class only if shown on the Scledule
Page. While this policy is in a special premium class, we will increase
the mortality rates used in calculating the Endowment Bencfits und the
minimum premiums for renewal Policy Yeuars, These Increases in the
mortality rates are guaranteed from the Issue Dato and may not be
increased thereafter, Upon request, we will furnish yon with a copy

of any special premium class mortality rate increases used for this

policy,

Page 14

JCKO001114
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Amount of Endowment The Endowment Benefit for the first Policy Year is shown on the
Benefit Schedule Page.
The Endowment BeneFr for uny renewal Policy Year is culcutated
ay follows. We take the annuwal mode premium elected tor the now Policy
Year, We deduct the expense charge {rom this premium, We add the
Endowment Benefit for the prior Policy Year, We deduct any portion
of the prior Endowment Benefit used to repay policy debt on the
Renewal Date, We deduct the one year term net single premium for the
now Sum Insured. We divide the result by the nel single premium for o
one year pure endowment of onc. The guotient js the Endowrnent
Renefit at the end of the new Policy Year,

Wo 1ake the present value at the attained age of the Insured for un
amount of whole life insurance equal 1o the Sum Insured for the new
Policy Year. We subtruct the Endowment Benefit a1 the end of the prior
Policy Year, We 3dd any policy debt repaid from thut Endowment
Benefit. We divide by the present value at the attained npge of the
Tnsured of & life annuity duc ol one minus the expense charge factor

per year. The minimum renewal premium is the quotient, but not less

than zero.

Minimum Rencwal

The reserve is the amount of money which, uecording to our assump-
tions, must be held und Invested to provide future benefits guaranteed
under this policy, The pallcy value is the cash surrender value if there
i3 nO policy debt, Resurves and policy values are always computed
using the assumptions stated under **Acluarial Assumptions” above.
We have [iled a detailed statement of the method we use to caleulate
reserves, policy values and paid-up insurance benelits with the state
wiiere this policy is delivered. All these values and bencfits are not less
than those required by the laws of that state,

Reserves and Policy
Values

CVL-180 Pago 15
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[y

CURRENT VALUIE LIFE
Life Insurance far on Initlal Term
Renewable Annuully Life of

Insured
Cash Surrendec Value
Options fo Chunge Premiums and
Sum Insured :
Premjumns Payable during Lite
of Yasured
Nonparticipating

CVLIKO G

Capitol Bankers Life

CAPITOL BANKERS | IFF (NSURANCE CMPANY

Home Office: Minnecapolis, Minnesota
Business Oftice: Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Pleasc read your policy and the copy of your upplication
which ts attached. If there is any feasture of the policy
you da not understand, you should ask the agent who
sold the policy or write us. Should you find any ersor

or omission in your application, we urge you 1o write
us, s0 that we may give immedjate consideration to

the error oc omission.

When writing to our Business Office, please use the
number of your policy,

JCK001117
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,

Plaintiff,

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Defendant,

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY

V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant
and,

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employe
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA,
Successor in interest to LaSalle National
Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST,)
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95,
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
;
Counter-Plaintiff )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
e)
)
)
)

)
)
)
Third-Party Defendants. )
)

Case No. 13 cv 3643
Honorable John Robert Blakey
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

FILERS:

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95,

Ted Bernstein, as Trustee and
Individually,

Pamela B. Simon, Adam M. Simon,
David B. Simon, The Simon Law Firm,
STP Enterprises, Inc. (“Movants”).
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ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff
V.

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON,
both Professionally and Personally
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P.
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES

Third-Party Defendants.

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

NOW COMES, the above-referenced, Counter-defendants, Cross-defendants, and Third-
party defendants by and through their counsel Adam M. Simon, (collectively referred to as
“Movants”), and respectfully submit this memorandum of law in support of their motion for
summary judgment as to each and every one of Eliot Bernstein’s counterclaims, cross-claims and

third-party claims (collectively referred to as “Eliot’s Claims”).
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l. INTRODUCTION

Movants shall demonstrate that all of Eliot’s Claims fail as a matter of law for several
related reasons. First, Eliot has not pled a claim to the Policy Proceeds as beneficiary, because
he cannot. He was never named a beneficiary of the Policy Proceeds on the records of the
Insurer and neither were his children. Next, Eliot’s Claims are indirect relying instead on the
propositions that the Estate of Simon Bernstein (the “Estate”) is the beneficiary of the Policy
Proceeds by default and that Eliot is a beneficiary of the Estate or a Simon Bernstein
Testamentary Trust at issue in the Probate Actions. But, as Movants will show neither

proposition is true, and as a result Eliot cannot plead a viable cause of action against Movants.

After sixty-one pages of allegations — violating both the rules of civil procedure and local
rules requiring concise and plain statements of fact — Eliot finally sets forth seven counts styled
as fraud, civil conspiracy, negligence, legal malpractice, abuse of process, breach of fiduciary
duty and conversion. But, Eliot’s Claims also share a fatal flaw, and that is he has not and cannot
plead damages because he merely alludes to purported beneficial interests without providing any
allegation of facts, or supporting documentation that show he is a beneficiary of either the Estate
of Simon Bernstein, or the Simon Bernstein testamentary trust at issue in the Probate Actions.
To the contrary, Eliot has lost standing to participate in the Probate Actions on his own behalf
after it was determined that the testamentary documents at issue in the Probate Actions are in fact
valid, genuine and enforceable. Judge John L. Philips also determined that Simon Bernstein’s
grandchildren are the beneficiaries of his Estate, and none of his children are beneficiaries,
including Eliot. Eliot also lacks standing to participate in the Probate Actions on behalf of his
children as the court appointed a guardian ad litem to act on their behalf after finding Eliot’s

actions in Florida to be “adverse and destructive” to his children’s interests.
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A separate basis for granting third-party defendants’ motion for summary judgment was
articulated by Judge St. Eve in her Order dismissing former third-party defendants, Tescher &
Spallina. Judge St. Eve found that since Eliot faces no potential liability in the instant action,
Rule 14 did not authorize Eliot to file third-party claims against any third-party defendant. So,
this same reasoning also applies to the remaining third-party defendants. And with regard to the
sole issue raised by the Insurer’s interpleader action in the Northern District, Eliot has failed to
produce any coherent set of facts, documentation or other evidence that Eliot or his children have

ever been named a beneficiary of the Policy Proceeds on the records of the Insurer.

Il. BACKGROUND
A. SIMON AND SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN AND THEIR ESTATES

Simon Bernstein, the insured and decedent in this matter, had a long career as a life
insurance agent including owning and operating several insurance brokerages. Simon Bernstein
was married to his spouse, Shirley, for fifty-two years prior to Shirley’s death in 2010. Simon
and Shirley Bernstein had five children, whose names in order of age are as follows: Ted
Bernstein, Pamela Simon, Eliot Bernstein, Jill lantoni, and Lisa Friedstein. All five of Simon
Bernstein’s children are now adults with children of their own. Simon and Shirley Bernstein had
ten grandchildren from their five children. (SoF 3, 16, 18, 19, 110). Simon Bernstein was the
Insured under the Policy. On the day Simon Bernstein passed away in 2012, Heritage was the

successor insurer to the insurance company that issued the Policy. (SoF Y11, 126).

Initially, the Bernstein Trust filed an action for breach of contract against Heritage in the
Circuit Court of Cook County. Heritage removed the action from Cook County Court to the
Northern District of Illinois. Heritage then filed a counterclaim for interpleader, and named the

Bernstein Trust, Eliot Bernstein, and certain banks named in the caption above as potential
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competing claimants to the Policy Proceeds. With leave of court, Heritage deposited the Policy
Proceeds with the Registry of the Court and was subsequently dismissed from the case. (SoF
111, 1137). After being served, Eliot Bernstein appeared pro se and filed cross-claims, counter-
claims, and third-party claims (“Eliot’s Claims”) naming the existing parties and many new
third-parties. (SoF 3, 1125). The Estate of Simon Bernstein was granted leave to intervene in
August of 2014. The Estate’s intervenor complaint alleges that if no other claimant can prove up

their claim, then the Estate should take the Policy Proceeds by default. (SoF 13, 125).

B. THE PARTIES
Please see SoF Y1-125 for a review of the identity and status of the parties. *
C. THE PoLICY AND PoLICY PROVISIONS

The Policy was originally purchased from Capitol Bankers by the VEBA in December of
1982 to insure the life of Simon Bernstein and was issued as Policy No. 1009208. (SoF 26).
The Policy provisions which set forth both the definitions of a beneficiary under the Policy, and
the requirements for naming or changing a beneficiary of the Policy are the controlling factors in
making the determination as to whom is the beneficiary of the Policy Proceeds. Bank of Lyons v.
Schultz, 22 11l.App.3d 410, 415, 318 N.E.2d 52, 57 (1% Dist. 1974) citing 2 Appelman, Insurance

Law and Practice §921 (1966).

The Policy includes the Insurer’s requirements for the Policy Owner to effectuate a
change of beneficiary. With regard to changing the beneficiary, the Policy provides as follows:

The Owner or any Beneficiary may be changed during the Insured’s lifetime. We do not
limit the number of changes that may be made. To make a change, a written request,
satisfactory to us, must be received at our Business Office. The change will take effect as
of the date the request was signed, even if the Insured dies before we receive it. Each

! Pursuant to Local Rule 56.1, Movants are concurrently filing their Statement of Uncontested Material Facts
(“SoF”) and Appendix of Exhibits thereto.
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change will be subject to any payment we made or other action we took before receiving
the request. (Ex. 14 at bates #JCKO00103). (emphasis added).

D. THE INSURED AND INSURER

Simon Bernstein was the Insured under the Policy. (SoF, 126). The Insurer of the Policy
changed over the life of the Policy from time to time through succession. The Insurer has been
previously dismissed from this case after having deposited the Policy Proceeds with the Registry
of the Court. Prior to its dismissal, the Insurer did not dispute either the existence of the Policy or

its liability for the Policy Proceeds following the death of the Insured. (SoF 11, 137)

E. THE PoLICY PROCEEDS (THE “STAKE”)

In the Insurer’s Complaint for Interpleader, the Insurer represented that the net death
benefit payable under the Policy was $1,689,070 (less an outstanding policy loan). (Ex. 13, at
117). No objections were made by any Party to this litigation regarding the amount of the Policy
Proceeds that the Insurer deposited with the Registry of the Court. In short, the amount of the

Policy Proceeds is undisputed. (SoF 711).

1. ARGUMENT

A. STANDARDS ON SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Summary judgment is appropriate when “there is no genuine issue as to any material
fact” and the movant “is entitled to judgment as a matter of law.” Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Trust Dtd 6/21/95 v. Heritage Union Life Insurance Co., et al. No. 13 C 3643 (Dkt. #220) citing
Spurling v. C & M Fine Pack, Inc., 739 F.3D 1055, 1060 (7™ Cir. 2014). The party seeking
summary judgment has the burden of establishing that there is no genuine dispute as to any
material fact. Id citing Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 323 (1986). Only disputes “that
might affect the outcome of the suit...will properly preclude the entry of summary judgment.”

“When the material facts are not in dispute....the sole question is whether the moving party is

4
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entitled to judgment as a matter of law.” ANR Advance Transp. V. In¢’l Bhd. Of Teamsters Local
710, 153 F.3d 774, 777 (7th Cir. 1998). If full summary judgment is not warranted, the court
may grant partial summary judgment. Fed R. Civ. P. 56(a). But, summary judgment is not
warranted “if the evidence is such that a reasonable jury could return a verdict for the non-
moving party,” and the Court must “construe all facts and reasonable inferences in the light most
favorable to the non-moving party. Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Trust Dtd 6/21/95, No. 13 cv
3643 citing Liberty Lobby, 477 U.S. 242, 255 (1986), Carter v. City of Milwaukee, 743 F.3d 540,

543 (7th Cir. 2014).

B. ELIOT DOES NOT PLEAD A CLAIM TO THE PoLICY PROCEEDS, AND
INSTEAD IS SHOPPING FOR AN ALTERNATIVE FORUM TO SEEK RELIEF HE
HAS BEEN UNABLE TO OBTAIN IN THE PROBATE ACTIONS.

This motion for summary judgment does not seek a final determination that the Bernstein
Trust exists and is entitled to the Policy Proceeds as beneficiary. Instead, this motion is confined
to exposing the deficiencies with Eliot’s Claims that entitle Movants to summary judgment as to
those claims. Eliot’s Claims fail to set forth any facts or documents in support of his spurious
allegations that either he or his children were named beneficiaries of the Policy. Eliot’s Claims
relate almost exclusively to matters occurring in the Probate Actions and are devoted to seeking
relief here that he was denied in Florida. Instead of pleading a claim to the Policy Proceeds at
issue in the instant litigation, Eliot pleads claims sounding in fraud, negligence, breach of
fiduciary duty, conversion, abuse of legal process, legal malpractice and civil conspiracy relating
primarily to the Probate Actions. Eliot’s Claims and his efforts to amend those claims are

nothing more than blatant -- but futile -- forum-shopping.

None of the prayers for relief made for each of Eliot’s Claims seek the Policy Proceeds.
Instead, in section ““(i)”” of his prayer for relief, Eliot asks the court to seize all records regarding

5
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the Policies. But, Eliot has all Parties’ Rule 26 production of documents including the Insurer’s
records. And, Eliot had well over a year to conduct discovery. In short, this first prayer for relief
is now moot because Eliot has had both access to the documents and records, and ample time to

conduct discovery. (Ex. 9, pg.68).

In section “(ii)”, Eliot asks for court costs to be paid by the Parties not the Policy
Owners. This prayer for relief does not seek the Policy Proceeds. In section “(iii)”, Eliot states
that he has asked the Probate Court in Florida to remove Ted Bernstein, Pam Simon, Donald
Tescher and Robert Spallina from acting in any fiduciary capacity regarding the Estates of Simon
or Shirley and Eliot asks this court for the identical relief. First, Donald Tescher and Robert
Spallina are no longer parties to this action as their motion to dismiss Eliot’s claims was granted.
(SoF, 1116, 117, and 122) Second, this Court has no jurisdiction over the Estates of Simon and
Shirley Bernstein as those matters are being administered and litigated in Palm Beach County,
Florida. Dragen v. Miller, 679 F.2d 712 (7" Cir. 1982). Third, as shown herein, Eliot has no
standing in the Estate matters. Fourth, Ted Bernstein was cleared of any wrongdoing and his
role as Trustee was confirmed in the Probate Actions. (cite). But more to the point, once again

Eliot’s third prayer for relief does not seek the Policy Proceeds. (Ex. 9, pg. 68).

In section “(iv)” Eliot complains of parties abusing their fiduciary duty and demands that
such parties be required to retain non-conflicted counsel. Although this prayer is vague, it
appears to be an attempt to have counsel for Movants disqualified. This prayer for relief was
previously denied by Judge Amy St. Eve when she denied Eliot’s motion to disqualify counsel
(Dkt. #91). And again, this prayer for relief also makes no mention of the Policy Proceeds. (EX.

9, pg.69).
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In section “(v)” Eliot asks the court to take judicial notice of the crimes alleged in his
complaint and to use its court powers to “prevent any further crimes.” This prayer for relief is so
vague on its face that it would be impossible for this court to grant or enforce the relief sought.
No specific redress is requested, and more to the point no demand is made for the Policy
Proceeds. (Ex. 9, pg.70). In section “(vi)” Eliot asks for permission to obtain ECF access.
Movants have been receiving Eliot’s pleadings via ECF, and the ECF timestamps on Eliot’s
pleadings indicate he has access. In section (vii) Eliot asks for leave to amend his claims. None

of these prayers for relief seek the Policy Proceeds. (Ex. 9, pg.70).

In section (viii), Eliot seeks $8 million, plus punitive damages, attorneys’ fees and costs.
Eliot’s Claims contains no allegations of fact regarding the damages alleged that have any
reasonable relation to the $8 million plus punitive damages award he seeks. And the amount he
seeks certainly bears no relation to the amount of Policy Proceeds on deposit which is
approximately $1.7 million. So Eliot’s final prayer for relief seeking money damages does not
request either a determination that Eliot or his children are beneficiaries of the Policy Proceeds,

nor does it make a demand for an award of the Policy Proceeds. (Ex. 9, 170).

Eliot’s Claims are also based in part on his erroneous assumption that the determination
of the beneficiary of the Policy proceeds must be made in Florida by the Probate Court, instead
of the Northern District of Illinois where the Insurer filed its Interpleader and deposited the
Policy Proceeds. Eliot misapprehends the fact that the Policy Proceeds are not part of the
Probate Actions because they are non-probate assets whose beneficiary is determined according
to the life insurance contract, the Policy. The Policy Proceeds vested in the beneficiary of the
Policy immediately upon the death of the insured. Bank of Lyons v. Schultz, 22 1ll.App.3d 410,

318 N.E.2d 52 (1° Dist. 1974). Further, this Court has exercised its jurisdiction from the outset

7
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of this matter and it was left unchallenged by the Insurer or any other party. In fact, it was the
Insurer that removed the action to the Northern District from the Circuit Court of Cook County,
and in so doing, the Insurer alleged and invoked this court’s jurisdiction over this matter pursuant
to 28 U.S.C. 81335. (SoF 140, and Ex. 12). In addition, the matters and issued raised by Eliot
all in involve the Probate Action in Florida, and the Federal Probate Exception precludes this
court’s jurisdiction over such matters. Storm v. Storm, 328 F.3d 941 (7" Cir. 2003). What is
also conspicuously absent from Eliot’s Claims is any set of facts or references to documentation
in the Insurer’s records that support a claim to the Policy Proceeds on Eliot’s own behalf or that
of his children. (SoF 128-131). In short, Eliot has not pled a conflicting claim to the Policy
Proceeds such that this court could find that he or his children were named beneficiaries of the

Policy on the records of the Insurer.

C. THE ESTATE OF SIMON BERNSTEIN HAS INTERVENED AND IS ADEQUATELY
REPRESENTED.

Eliot’s Claims make reference to the fact that the Estate of Simon Bernstein may be
entitled to the Policy Proceeds. But as determined by the Probate Court, Eliot is not a
beneficiary and has no standing to act on behalf of the Estate or participate at all in the Probate
litigation in Florida. (SoF, 1133-134). The Estate is already adequately represented in the instant
litigation by its personal representative and local counsel. (SoF, 125). Also, the interests of
Eliot’s children in the Estate are now being represented solely by the guardian ad litem. (SoF,

133-134).
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D. THE RECENT ORDERS ENTERED IN THE PROBATE ACTIONS, BARRING ELIOT
FROM THE ESTATE PROCEEDINGS AND STRIKING HIS PLEADINGS, ALSO
EFFECT TO BAR ELIOT’S PRESENCE IN THE INSTANT LITIGATION
ACCORDING TO THE DOCTRINE OF COLLATERAL ESTOPPEL.
Judge John L. Phillips in the Probate Actions entered the December, 2015 Order and the
April, 2016 Orders which determined that the testamentary documents at issue in Probate
Actions were valid and genuine. (SoF, 33-134). The Probate Orders bar Eliot from the Probate
Actions to represent his own interests, and appoint a guardian ad litem to represent the interests
of Eliot’s children in their parents’ stead. Eliot has filed separate appeals of the Probate Orders.
Despite Eliot’s pending appeals, the doctrine of collateral estoppel applies, and acts to settle
material issues in the instant litigation. The Probate Orders entered after trial include findings
that (i) Eliot is not beneficiary of the Estate of Simon Bernstein; (ii) appoint a guardian ad litem

for Eliot’s children; and (iii) Eliot has no standing in the Probate Actions on behalf of himself,

the Estate or his children.

In Innkeepers Telemanagement v. Hummert, the court set forth the four elements that
must be satisfied before collateral estoppel may be applied: (i) the issue sought to be precluded
must the same as that involved in the prior action, (ii) the issue must have been actually litigated,
(iii) the determination of the issue must have been essential to the final judgment, and iv) the
party against whom estoppel is invoked must be fully represented in the prior action. Innkeepers

Telemanagement v. Hummert Management Group, 841 F.Supp. 241 (N.D.Ill., 1993).

Here, all four elements apply. First, the issue Movants seek resolve by the application of
collateral estoppel pertains to Eliot’s standing Vvis-a-vis the Estate of Simon Bernstein.
Plaintiffs’ seek to have this court declare that Eliot is collaterally estopped from (i) asserting any

claims here based on his now debunked theory that Eliot is a beneficiary of the Estate or a Simon
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Bernstein testamentary trust at issue in the Probate Actions; (ii) asserting claims on behalf of the
Estate for the same reasons; and (iii) asserting any claims on behalf of his children as they are
now represented by a guardian ad litem in the Estate matters. Both Probate Orders on their face
note that the determinations were made following a trial on the issues. Eliot appeared at the trial
and chose to represent himself pro se’. The trial leading to the Probate Orders is sufficient to
satisfy both the “actually litigated” and “fully represented” elements required to apply the

doctrine of collateral estoppel. Id at pg. 246.

Collateral estoppel is also appropriate in situations such as here where not all the parties
asserting estoppel were parties in the previous action, so long as the party to be estopped was a
party to that action. Here, Eliot is the party to be estopped and Eliot was a party and appeared pro
se’ in the Probate Actions including at the trial leading to the final orders. Id at p. 246 citing
Blonder-Tongue Lab., Inc. v. Univ. of Ill. Found., 402 U.S. 313, 349-350, 91 S.Ct. 1434, 1453,
28 L.E.2d 788 (1971). The fact that these final orders are on appeal does not prevent the
application of collateral estoppel. Innkeepers Telemanagement, 841 F.Supp. at p.246 citing
Cohen v. Bucci, 103 B.R. 927, (N.D.I11. 1989), aff’d 905 F.2d 1111 (7th Cir. 1990). See also, the
following string of citations from Hazel v. Curtis-Wright Corp., 1992 WL 436236 (S.D. Ind.,

1992):

The overwhelming majority rule in the federal courts is that a judgment may be given res
judicata effect during the pendency of an appeal. See, e.g., Erebia v. Chrysler Plastic
Products Corp., 891 F.2d 1212, 1215 n. 1 (6th Cir.1989); Robi v. Five Platters, Inc., 838
F.2d 318, 327 (9th Cir.1988); Blinder, Robinson & Co. v. Securities and Exchange
Commission, 837 F.2d 1099, 1104 n. 6 (D.C.Cir.1988), cert. denied, 488 U.S. 869
(1988); Wagner v. Taylor, 836 F.2d 596, 598 (D.C.Cir.1987); Taunton Gardens Co. v.
Hills, 557 F.2d 877, 879 n. 2 (1st Cir.1977); Lee v. Criterion Insurance Co., 659 F.Supp.
813, 819-20 (S.D.Ga.1987); Cohen v. Bucci, 103 B.R. 927, 931 (N.D.111.1989), aff'd, 905
F.2d 1111 (7th Cir.1990); see also 18 C. WRIGHT, A. MILLER, E. COOPER, FEDERAL
PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE § 4433 AT 308 (West 1981) (“established rule in the
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federal courts is that a final judgment retains all of its res judicata consequences pending
decision of the appeal”).

Moreover, the Seventh Circuit has previously subscribed to the majority rule that res
judicata can operate despite a pending appeal. See Kurek v. Pleasure Driveway & Park
District, 557 F.2d 580, 595 (7th Cir.1977), vacated on other grounds, 435 U.S. 992
(1978); see also Grantham v. McGraw—Edison Co.,444 F.2d 210, 217 (7th

Cir.1971) (“[t]he pendency of the ... late filed appeal.... did not detract from the
conclusive effect of ... judgment”). In Kurek the court recited that, the federal rule is that
the pendency of an appeal does not suspend the operation of an otherwise final judgment
as ... collateral estoppel, unless the appeal removes the entire case to the appellate court
and constitutes a proceeding de novo. Id. at 596 (quoting 1B MOORE'S FEDERAL
PRACTICE 1 0.416[3] at 2254 (2d ed. 1974).

E. Movants’ motion as to all Third-Party Defendants added to this
litigation by Eliot’s Claims, should also be granted for the reasons set
forth by Judge Ste. Eve in her Order dismissing Tescher & Spallina.

. The upshot of Judge St. Eve’s Order dismissing Eliot’s Claims as to Tescher & Spallina
was that Eliot was not an original defendant to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint, but instead
was brought into this litigation by virtue of his appearance in response to the Insurer’s
interpleader action. As such, Judge St. Eve noted, Eliot faces no liability in this action. And
“Rule 14 limits a defendant to joining third-parties that share or supersede the defendant’s
liability to the plaintiff.” (SoF 16. Dkt. #106,at p.3, March 17, 2014 Order citing Metlife
Investors USA Ins. Co. v. Ziedman, 734 F.Supp2d 304, 310 (E.D.N.Y. 2010).

Judge St. Eve dismissed Tescher & Spallina pursuant to Rule 14, finding Eliot was not
authorized to bring his third-party claims against Tescher & Spallina in the instant litigation.
The causes of action brought against Tescher & Spallina are identical to the ones brought against
the remaining third-party defendants. Thus, all of the third-party defendants are in the same
posture as Tescher & Spallina were prior to their dismissal, and are entitled to summary

judgment for the same reasons set forth by Judge St. Eve.
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F. Eliot’s Claims must fail he has failed to allege sufficient facts to prove
damages, a necessary element to all of Eliot’s Claims.

Because Eliot’s prayers for relief do not seek the Policy Proceeds, Eliot has pled no
claim to the Policy Proceeds. It has recently been determined by the Probate Orders that Eliot has
no beneficial interest in the Estate, and has no standing in the Probate Actions involving the
Estate. It follows that Eliot lacks standing to pursue claims on the behalf of the Estate in the
instant litigation as well. And, Eliot has no standing to represent the interests of his children in
the Estate since a guardian ad litem has now been appointed to act on their behalf. Each of
Eliot’s seven causes of action requires proof of the element of damages. Because Eliot cannot
show that he sustained damages or that he has standing to assert damages on behalf of his
children or the Estate, all of Eliot’s Claims fail.

Plaintiff’s claims for fraud dismissed for failing to show fraud caused damages. U.S for
use of Ascher Brothers Co. v. American Home Assurance Co., 2013 WL 1338020 (N.D.ILL,
2003). Plaintiff’s claim for legal malpractice dismissed for failing to show damages. Northern
Illinois Emergency Physicians v. Landau et. al., 216 111.2d 294, 837 N.E.2d 99, 297 Ill.Dec. 319
(1. 2005). Plaintiff’s claim for breach of fiduciary duty dismissed for failing to show damages.
Sadler v. Retail Properties of America, Inc., 2014 WL 2598804 (not reported in F. Supp.2d),
citing Erica P. John Fund, Inc. v. Halliburton Co., — U.S. ——, 131 S.Ct. 2179, 2183
(2011), Lutkauskas v. Ricker, 998 N.E.2d 549, 560 (1st Dist., 2013).

Plaintiff’s claim for legal malpractice dismissed for failing to show damages. Northern
Illinois Emergency Physicians v. Landau et. al., 216 111.2d 294, 837 N.E.2d 99, 297 Ill.Dec. 319
(111. 2005). And, like legal malpractice claims, common law negligence claims require proof of
breach of a duty of reasonable care, and damages caused by that breach. A complainant must

have suffered an injury or damages in order to sustain a cause of action for negligence. Browning
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v. Eckland Consultants, Inc., 2004 WL 2687961 (1st Dist. 2004), Chandler v. Illinois Central
Railroad. Co., 207 111.2d 331, 798 N.E.2d 724, 278 1ll.Dec. 340 (1ll. 2003).

Eliot’s cause of action for conversion fails for a similar reason in that one essential
element to sustain a claim of conversion is to show an immediate unfettered right to the property
allegedly converted. Edwards v. City of Chicago, 389 Ill. App. 3d 350, 353, 905 N.E.2d 897,
900, 329 Ill.Dec. 59, 62 (1st Dist. 2009). Eliot’s conversion claim does not even contain an
allegation of a specific asset or piece of property that was converted much less show an
unfettered right of ownership to such property.

Eliot’s Claim for abuse of process likewise fails. The Orders entered in the Probate
Action have conclusively determined that Eliot had no property rights in the Estate or the
testamentary trusts, and that the testamentary documents that Ted Bernstein submitted to the
court were genuine, valid and binding. Unfortunately, the administration of those estates has
been mired in litigation for the last three to four years. But, the elements for a claim of abuse of
legal process is that (i) the allegedly abusive proceedings must have been instituted for an
improper purpose, and (ii) there must have been an improper act in the prosecution of the
proceedings. Kumar v. Bornstein, 354, Ill.App.3d, 159, 820 N.E.2d, 1167, 290 Ill.Dec. 100 (1st
Dist. 1972), Holiday Magic, Inc. v. Scott, 4 Ill.App.3d 962, 282 N.E.2d 452 (1st Dist. 1972).

The purpose behind the Probate Actions instituted by Ted Bernstein and Teshcer &
Spallina in Florida was to submit the testamentary documents of Simon and Shirley Bernstein to
probate in Florida and to administer their estates and trusts. Here, the proceedings were filed by
the named beneficiary of a life insurance policy to pursue a death claim against a life insurer for
the Policy Proceeds. Additionally, after trial in the Probate Actions, Ted Bernstein was cleared

of any wrong-doing, and none of the other remaining third-party defendants were present at the

13



Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 241 Filed 05/21/16 Page 16 of 17 PagelD 4268
Case: 17-3595  Document: 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018  Pages: 547

trial or mentioned in the Probate Orders. So, Eliot’s abuse of legal process claims fail for similar
reasons in that Eliot has not and cannot show an improper purpose for the filing of the
proceedings alleged in Eliot’s Claim for abuse of process. Also, under Illinois law, elements for
abuse of process are strictly construed because the tort is disfavored. Id.

Eliot’s final cause of action for civil conspiracy fails to adequately identify what the
underlying tort or wrongful act of the conspirators was exactly. Presumably, Eliot is alleging a
conspiracy involving two or more persons committing one of the other counts pled by Eliot.
Since Movants have shown that none of those underlying counts can survive summary judgment,
the conspiracy count must likewise fail.

To sum up, Eliot’s Claims set forth no direct claims on his own behalf or on behalf of his
children to the Policy Proceeds. Eliot has no standing to make a claim on behalf of the Estate. It
has been determined in the Probate Action that Eliot is not a beneficiary of the Estate. The
allegations of loss by Eliot — as convoluted as they are — all rely on the supposition that Eliot has
a beneficial interest in the Estate and that the actions of those Eliot has sued somehow deprived
him of the property he would have inherited. So, the fatal problem for Eliot is that it has been
determined that he is not a beneficiary of the Estate in the first place. In other words, Eliot has
no viable claim against Movants because he has not and cannot show that Movants have
deprived Eliot of anything.

G. A SEPARATE AND DISTINCT REASON EXISTS FOR GRANTING SUMMARY
JUDGMENT IN FAVOR OF STP ENTERPRISES, INC. AS TO ELIOT’S CLAIMS, AND

THAT IS ELIOT HAS MADE NO ALLEGATIONS OF WRONGDOING, -- OR RIGHT-
DOING FOR THAT MATTER — PERTAINING TO STP. STP IS SIMPLY ABSENT.

Eliot’s Claims were filed on September 22, 2013, over two and one-half years ago. Eliot
had over a year to conduct discovery, and discovery has been closed for over one year. Yet,

Eliot’s Claims only reference STP in a preliminary identifying, and jurisdictional paragraphs.
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The first 136 paragraphs of Eliot’s Claims contain the allegations of fact that purportedly support
his Claims which are then set out in conclusory fashion and simply lump all counterdefendants,
cross-defendants, and third-party defendants together without delineating which parties are the
proper party to each specific claim. For example, Eliot’s Claims as written name all third-party
defendants as being liable for his Legal Malpractice Claim, yet several of these same parties are
not even attorneys or law firms, much less Eliot’s attorney. Eliot does not allege that STP is an
attorney or law firm yet it is named a third-party defendant to his legal malpractice claim. In
fact, STP appears nowhere in the 136 paragraphs of factual allegations, Eliot has failed to set
forth any facts at all attributable to STP. Thus, summary judgment is certainly warranted in

favor of STP.

CONCLUSION

For all of the foregoing reasons, Movants’ motion for summary judgment as to each and

every one of Eliot’s Claims should be granted in its entirety.

Respectfully Submitted,

/s Adam M. Simon

Adam M. Simon (#6205304)

303 E. Wacker Drive, Suite 2725
Chicago, IL 60601

Phone: 312-819-0730

Fax: 312-819-0773

E-Mail: asimon@chicagolaw.com
Attorney for Movants
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INTERVENOR’S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Intervenor Brian M. O’Connell, Personal Representative of the Estate of Simon L.
Bernstein (“Estate”), pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 56 and Local Rule 56.1, respectfully moves the
Court for summary judgment as to his Complaint for Declaratory Judgment (ECF No. 112) and
Counts II and III of Plaintiffs’ First Amended Complaint (ECF No. 73). In support of this Motion,
the Estate states as follows:

1. This is an interpleader action concerning the distribution of the proceeds from a life
insurance policy which insured the life of Simon Bernstein (“Policy”). Order at 1 (ECF No. 220).

2. In the absence of a valid designated beneficiary under the Policy, the proceeds are
payable to the Estate as a matter of both Illinois and Florida law. See New York Life Ins. Co. v.
RAK, 180 N.E.2d 470, 470-71 (Ill. 1962); Harris v. Byard, 501 So.2d 730, 734 (Fla. Dist. Ct. App.
1987).

3. Plaintiffs claim that the Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated June
21, 1995 (*“1995 Trust”) is a valid designated beneficiary under the Policy.

4. Because Plaintiffs have produced no executed original or executed copy of the 1995
Trust, they must prove the 1995 Trust by clear and convincing evidence. Order at 3 (ECF No.
220).

5. In deciding this motion for summary judgment, the evidence of the non-movant is
to be believed and all justifiable inferences are to be drawn in his favor, but the Court must then
determine whether the evidence is of insufficient caliber or quantity for a rational trier of fact to
find that Plaintiffs have proven the 1995 Trust by clear and convincing evidence. See Anderson v.

Liberty Lobby, Inc., 477 U.S. 242, 254-55 (1986).
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6. Plaintiffs attempt to establish Simon Bernstein’s intent to create the 1995 Trust and
the terms of the 1995 Trust primarily through the testimony of David Simon and Ted Bernstein.
Under Illinois’ Dead Man’s Act (735 ILCS 5/8-201), however, Plaintiff Ted Bernstein is an
“adverse party” to the Estate, and both he and David Simon are “interested parties.” As a result,
their testimony is inadmissible in this proceeding. Order at 3 (ECF No. 220).

7. Without the testimony of David Simon and Ted Bernstein, the two materially-
different documents which David Simon testified are unexecuted drafts of the 1995 Trust, along
with the other circumstantial evidence, is of insufficient caliber and quantity to enable a reasonable
trier of fact conclude that Plaintiffs have established an intent to create the 1995 Trust and the
terms of the 1995 Trust by clear and convincing evidence.

8. In any event, even if their testimony were not barred by the Dead Man’s Act, that
testimony along with the other circumstantial evidence is inconsistent and contradictory to such a
degree that it is still of insufficient caliber and quantity to enable a reasonable trier of fact conclude
that Plaintiffs have established an intent to create the 1995 Trust and the terms of the 1995 Trust
by clear and convincing evidence.

9. The Estate incorporates herein by reference all facts, arguments and authority in
Intervenor’s Local Rule 56.1(a)(2) Memorandum of Law In Support of Summary Judgment and
Intervenor’s Local Rule 56.1(a)(3) Statement of Undisputed Material Facts, both of which are
being contemporaneously filed herewith.

10. Based on the foregoing, as further detailed in its statement of undisputed facts and

memorandum of law, the Estate has established that there is no triable issue of fact and the Estate
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is entitled to judgment as a matter of law on its Complaint for Declaratory Judgment and Counts
II and III of Plaintiffs’ First Amended Complaint.'
WHEREFORE, Intervenor Brian M. O’Connell, Personal Representative of the Estate of
Simon L. Bernstein, respectfully requests that the Court enter an Order:
A. Granting summary judgment in in his favor and against Plaintiffs on Counts II and
III of Plaintiffs’ First Amended Complaint (ECF No. 73);
B. Granting summary judgment in his favor and against Plaintiffs on his Complaint
for Declaratory Judgment (ECF No. 112) in its entirety;
C. Declaring that there is no valid beneficiary designated under the Policy;
D. Declaring that the proceeds of the Policy are payable to the Estate of Simon L.
Bernstein; and

E. Providing for such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

Dated: May 25, 2016
BRIAN M. O’CONNELL, PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVE
OF THE ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, Intervenor

By: __ /s/James J. Stamos
One of Intervenor’s Attorneys

James J. Stamos (ARDC # 3128244)
Theodore H. Kuyper (ARDC # 6294410)
STAMOS & TRUCCO LLP

One East Wacker Drive, Third Floor
Chicago, Illinois 60601

(312) 630-7979

jstamos @ stamostrucco.com

tkuyper @stamostrucco.com

Attorneys for Intervenor

' On February 18, 2014, Count I of the First Amended Complaint against Heritage Union Life Insurance
Company was dismissed with prejudice. Order (ECF No. 101); Order at 1-2 (ECF No. 220).

5
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that he caused a copy of the foregoing Intervenor’s
Motion for Summary Judgment to be served upon all registered E-Filers via electronic filing
using the CM/ECF system, and to be served upon the following persons via U.S. mail, proper
postage prepaid:

Lisa Sue Friedstein Jill Marla Iantoni

2142 Churchill Lane 2101 Magnolia Lane
Highland Park, IL 60035 Highland Park, IL 60035
Lisa@friedsteins.com jilliantoni @ gmail.com
Pro Se Litigant Pro Se Litigant

on this 25" day of May, 2016.

/s/ James J. Stamos
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Intervenor Brian M. O’Connell, Personal Representative of the Estate of Simon L.
Bernstein (“Estate”), for his Memorandum of Law in support of Motion for Summary Judgment
pursuant to Local Rule 56.1(a)(2), states as follows:

INTRODUCTION

Under well-established law, the Estate is the default beneficiary of the insurance Policy
and entitled to the proceeds absent a valid designated beneficiary. The sole question presented to
this Court is whether Plaintiffs can meet their burden of proving by clear and convincing evidence
the existence and terms of a purported 1995 Trust which they claim is the valid designated
beneficiary of the Policy. Discovery is complete. The only evidence Plaintiffs have to establish
the existence and terms of the 1995 Trust is the self-interested testimony of David Simon and Ted
Bernstein, which is barred by the Illinois Dead Man’s Act, and a variety other of circumstantial
evidence which, as a matter of law, cannot satisfy the “clear and convincing evidence” standard—
either on its own or in conjunction with the testimony of David Simon and Ted Bernstein. As a
consequence, Plaintiffs cannot meet their burden, and the Estate is entitled to summary judgment.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

The Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1335
(interpleader). The insurer invoked such jurisdiction when it filed its interpleader action after
removing this action from the Circuit Court of Cook County. Venue is proper in this district
because a substantial part of the events giving rise to the claims occurred in Cook County, Illinois.
The Policy was applied for and delivered in Cook County, and the initial Policy owner was a bank
in Cook County, acting as trustee for a trust domiciled in Cook County. Intervenor’s Local Rule

56.1(a)(3) Statement of Undisputed Material Facts (“SoF”) | 13-16.
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LEGAL STANDARD FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Summary judgment is appropriate if the movant shows that there is no genuine dispute as
to any material fact and the movant is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. Spurling v. C & M
Fine Pack, Inc., 739 F.3d 1055, 1060 (7th Cir. 2014). A defendant moving for summary judgment
satisfies its burden “(1) by affirmatively disproving the plaintiff’s case by introducing evidence
that, if uncontroverted, would entitle the movant to judgment as a matter of law (traditional test),
or (2) by establishing that the nonmovant lacks sufficient evidence to prove an essential element
of the cause of action (Celotex test).” Williams v. Covenant Med. Ctr., 737 N.E.2d 662, 668 (Ill.
App. Ct. 2000) (citing Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 323 (1986)) (internal citations
omitted). “If the nonmoving party cannot muster sufficient evidence to make out its claim, a trial
would be useless, and the moving party is entitled to summary judgment as a matter of law.”
Celotex, 477 U.S. at 331 (citing Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, Inc., 477 U.S. 242, 249 (1986)).

Further, “in ruling on a motion for summary judgment, the judge must view the evidence
through the prism of the substantive evidentiary burden.” Anderson, 477 U.S. at 254. Here,
Plaintiffs have the burden of proving the 1995 Trust by clear and convincing evidence, which
evidence cannot be “capable of reasonable explanation upon any other theory” and “must be so
unequivocal and unmistakable as to lead to only one conclusion.” Order at 3 (ECF No. 220).
“[T]here is no issue for trial unless there is sufficient evidence favoring the nonmoving party for a
jury to return a verdict for that party. If the evidence is merely colorable, or is not significantly
probative, summary judgment may be granted.” Anderson, 477 U.S. at 249-50. Under these
standards, the Estate is entitled to judgment as a matter of law.

ARGUMENT

The Estate is entitled to summary judgment for the following reasons:
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(a) The Estate, as default beneficiary, is entitled to the Policy proceeds under
both Illinois and Florida law unless Plaintiffs can prove the 1995 Trust by
clear and convincing evidence.

(b) Plaintiffs are attempting to prove the existence and terms of the 1995 Trust
through the testimony of David Simon and Ted Bernstein, who are
“interested parties” under Illinois’ Dead Man’s Act. Their testimony is
inadmissible in this proceeding, and Plaintiffs cannot otherwise establish
the 1995 Trust by clear and convincing evidence.

(©) Even if the testimony of David Simon and Ted Bernstein were not barred
by the Dead Man’s Act, the circumstantial evidence is inconsistent and
contradictory to such a degree that Plaintiffs still cannot prove the 1995
Trust by clear and convincing evidence.

L. The Estate, As The Default Beneficiary, Is Entitled To The Policy Proceeds Because
Plaintiffs Cannot Prove The Existence of The Purported 1995 Trust.

In the absence of a valid designated beneficiary, the Policy proceeds are payable to the
Estate as a matter of both Illinois and Florida law. See New York Life Ins. Co. v. RAK, 180 N.E.2d
470, 470-71 (I1l. 1962) (where beneficiary no longer existed, proceeds of life insurance policy
passed to the decedent’s estate); Harris v. Byard, 501 So.2d 730, 734 (Fla. Dist. Ct. App. 1987)
(in the absence of a named beneficiary, no basis in law for directing payment of insurance policy
proceeds to anyone other than decedent’s estate for administration and distribution).

Here, as of the Insured’s date of death, the designated primary beneficiary of the Policy
was LaSalle National Trust, N.A. as Trustee of the S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit
Trust. SoF {20. The S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust ceased to exist prior to
the Insured’s death, and neither it nor LaSalle National Trust, N.A. as Trustee thereof has made
any claim to the Policy proceeds. SoF {q 20-21. Thus, there is no valid designated primary
beneficiary of the Policy.

The contingent beneficiary was the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated

June 21, 1995 (the “1995 Trust”). SoF | 20. Plaintiffs admit that they have been unable to locate
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an executed original or executed copy of the 1995 Trust document. See SoF | 44. Nonetheless,
in Count II, Plaintiffs seek a declaration that the 1995 Trust was established on or about June 21,
1995 and is entitled to the Policy proceeds, the trustee is Ted Bernstein and the beneficiaries are
Simon Bernstein’s five children. First Amended Complaint, Count II (ECF No. 73). Alternatively,
Count III seeks a declaration that the Policy proceeds are being held in a resulting trust for the
benefit of Plaintiffs and Eliot Bernstein. Id., Count III. The only available evidence, however,
demonstrates that Plaintiffs cannot prove Simon Bernstein created or intended to create the 1995
Trust, nor can they prove its terms. Because Plaintiffs cannot establish the existence of the 1995
Trust, there exists no valid designated beneficiary under the Policy, and the proceeds are payable
to the Estate. As a result, the Estate is entitled to judgment as a matter of law.

“In Illinois, creation of an express trust requires: (1) intent of the parties to create a trust,
which may be shown by a declaration of trust by the settlor or by circumstances which show that
the settlor intended to create a trust; (2) a definite subject matter or trust property; (3) ascertainable
beneficiaries; (4) a trustee; (5) specifications of a trust purpose and how the trust is to be
performed; and (6) delivery of the trust property to the trustee.” Eychaner v. Gross, 779 N.E.2d
1115, 1131 (1l. 2002). “If any one of the necessary elements is not described with certainty, no
trust is created.” Id.

“[A] resulting trust is created by operation of law and arises out of a presumed intention of
the parties as evidenced by their acts and conduct.” Kaibab Indus., Inc. v. Family Ready Homes,
Inc., 444 N.E.2d 1119, 1126 (Ill. App. Ct. 1983). Where a party does not establish the intent
necessary to create an express trust, the Court cannot impose a resulting trust. See Estate of
Wilkening, 441 N.E.2d 158, 164 (Ill. App. Ct. 1982) (“By definition, a resulting trust is imposed

by operation of law to effectuate the intent of the parties. ... [T]he Estate did not establish the
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requisite intent necessary to create an express trust. Obviously, without the established intent, the
court cannot impose a trust that operates to effectuate that intent.”) (internal citations omitted).
Because they are unable to produce an executed copy of the 1995 Trust, Plaintiffs rely on
parol evidence to prove the existence and terms of the 1995 Trust. Order at 3 (ECF No. 220).
However, one seeking to establish an express trust by parol evidence bears the
burden of proving the trust by clear and convincing evidence. The acts or words
relied upon must be so unequivocal and unmistakable as to lead to only one
conclusion. If the parol evidence is doubtful or capable of reasonable explanation
upon any other theory, it is not sufficient to establish an express trust.
Eychaner, 779 N.E.2d at 1135; Order at 3 (ECF No. 220); All. to End Repression v. City of
Chicago, 74 C 3268, 2000 WL 562480, *5 (N.D. Ill. May 8, 2000) (evidence is clear and
convincing “only if the material offered instantly tilted the evidentiary scales in the affirmative
when weighed against the evidence offered in opposition™) (internal quotes omitted). Likewise,
the intent necessary to support a resulting trust must be established by clear and convincing
evidence. Kohlhaas v. Smith, 97 N.E.2d 774, 776 (Ill. 1951). In light of the facts taken most
favorably to the non-moving parties, Plaintiffs cannot possibly satisfy this standard.
A. Plaintiffs Cannot Prove the Existence and Terms of the 1995 Trust by ‘““Clear

and Convincing Evidence” Because the Testimony of David Simon and Ted
Bernstein is Barred by the Dead Man’s Act.

Plaintiffs have no evidence that anyone actually witnessed Simon Bernstein execute the
purported 1995 Trust or that anyone possesses an executed copy. To establish the intent to create
the 1995 Trust, Plaintiffs instead rely primarily on the testimony of David Simon and Ted
Bernstein that Simon Bernstein executed some form of the documents attached to Plaintiffs’ prior
summary judgment motion as Exhibits 15 and 16, which are purportedly unexecuted drafts of the
1995 Trust. As this Court already held, “[h]Jowever, the testimony of David Simon and Ted

Bernstein, along with the testimony of other Plaintiffs, is barred by the Illinois Dead Man’s Act to
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the extent it relates to conversations with the deceased or to any events which took place in the
presence of the deceased.” Order at 3 (ECF No. 220) (citing 735 ILCS 5/8-201). The Court’s
holding was absolutely correct and remains so.

David Simon is the sole witness who claims to have seen the executed version of the
purported 1995 Trust, and he testified that this took place during a meeting with Simon Bernstein.
SoF | 52. He also testified that he had a conversation with Simon Bernstein about the 1995 Trust
and took notes from that conversation on Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15. SoF {[45. The only other witness
who offered testimony about the terms of the 1995 Trust is Ted Bernstein, who attests that Simon
Bernstein told him he would be named trustee once the 1995 Trust was formed. SoF | 54-55.!

The testimony of both witnesses is barred by the Dead Man’s Act, which provides, in
pertinent part, that “no adverse party or person directly interested in the action shall be allowed to
testify on his or her own behalf to any conversation with the deceased ... or to any event which
took place in the presence of the deceased.” 735 ILCS 5/8-201. Plaintiff Ted Bernstein is an
“adverse party” to the Estate and “directly interested” because he will receive 20% of the
interpleaded Policy proceeds if Plaintiffs prevail. See SoF | 3-4. Thus, the Dead Man’s Act bars
Ted Bernstein from testifying about any conversation with Simon Bernstein or events which took
place in his presence.

In addition, Plaintiffs’ most critical witness, David Simon, is Pamela Simon’s spouse. SoF
q 6. Plaintiff Pamela Simon is not only an “adverse party,” but is also “directly interested”” because
she will receive 20% of the Policy proceeds if Plaintiffs prevail. SOF ({5, 7. As a result, the Dead
Man’s Act renders David Simon incompetent to testify about any conversation with or events

which took place in the presence of Simon Bernstein, such as David Simon purportedly reviewing

!'In addition to being barred by the Dead Man’s Act, the testimony of David Simon and Ted Bernstein is
also inadmissible hearsay. See infra § I(B)(1).
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the executed 1995 Trust document with Simon Bernstein. See In re Estate of Babcock, 473 N.E.2d
1316, 1319 (IlI. 1985). The Dead Man’s Act also bars David Simon from testifying about his
notes. See 735 ILCS 5/8-201; Theofanis v. Sarrafi, 791 N.E.2d 38, 50-53 (IIl. App. Ct. 2003).

“This dramatically limits the testimony upon which Plaintiffs may rely in support of their
[claims regarding the existence and terms 1995 Trust], and leaves the Court without any direct
testimony describing the Trust’s creation.” Order at 3 (ECF No. 220). Without such testimony,
the two purported drafts of the 1995 Trust document cannot establish the existence and terms of
the 1995 Trust by clear and convincing evidence. See id. (‘“those documents offer Plaintiffs little
support in the absence of the testimony from David Simon and Ted Bernstein describing how some
form of those exhibits was executed by Simon Bernstein”™).

Indeed, the mere existence of those two documents is not “so unequivocal and
unmistakable as to lead to only one conclusion,” i.e. that Simon Bernstein intended to create the
1995 Trust and its terms were as set forth in the purported drafts, which are not even identical.
Rather, the existence of those two documents is readily “capable of reasonable explanation upon
any other theory” than an intent to create a trust with those terms—indeed, multiple theories—for
example, that Simon Bernstein never actually saw the drafts or approved those terms, or he wound
up creating the 1995 Trust with completely different terms than the drafts, or the purported drafts
are not even drafts of the 1995 Trust.

In other words, Plaintiffs have no competent evidence upon which a trier of fact could find
that Simon Bernstein executed anything, much less a document creating the 1995 Trust. Plaintiffs

likewise have no evidence that would enable the factfinder to find that any such document

2 The Dead Man’s Act likewise bars testimony by Plaintiffs Lisa Friedstein and Jill Iantoni, both of whom
are “adverse” to the Estate and, like Ted and Pamela, “directly interested” because they will each receive
20% of the interpleaded Policy proceeds if Plaintiffs prevail. See SoF q 8-10; 735 ILCS 5/8-201.

7
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contained terms identical to the purported drafts or otherwise determine the actual or intended
terms of the purported 1995 Trust. Therefore, Plaintiffs cannot carry their burden of proving the
purported 1995 Trust by clear and convincing evidence. As a result, there is no valid designated
beneficiary and the Policy proceeds are payable to the Estate, which is entitled to judgment as a
matter of law. See RAK, 180 N.E.2d at 470-71 (where beneficiary no longer existed, proceeds of
life insurance policy passed to the decedent’s estate); Harris, 501 So.2d at 734 (in the absence of
a named beneficiary, no basis in law for directing payment of insurance policy proceeds to anyone
other than decedent’s estate for administration and distribution).

B. Even If The Testimony of David Simon and Ted Bernstein Were Not Barred

by the Dead Man’s Act, There is Still Not “Clear and Convincing Evidence”
Establishing the Existence and Terms of the 1995 Trust.

The Estate is entitled to summary judgment even if the testimony of David Simon and Ted
Bernstein were not barred by the Dead Man’s Act because the caliber and quality of that evidence
and the other circumstantial evidence, even taken most favorably to the non-moving parties, is
insufficient to allow a rational trier of fact to find an intent to create the 1995 Trust and determine
its specific terms by clear and convincing evidence. In deciding the Estate’s motion for summary
judgment, “[t]he evidence of the non-movant is to be believed, and all justifiable inferences are to
be drawn in his favor.” See Anderson, 477 U.S. at 255. But the Court must then determine
whether that evidence “is of insufficient caliber or quantity” to allow a rational finder of fact to
find that Plaintiffs have proven the 1995 Trust by clear and convincing evidence. Id. at 254.
Again, clear and convincing evidence “must be so unequivocal and unmistakable as to lead to only
one conclusion,” and “[i]f the ... evidence is doubtful or capable of reasonable explanation upon
any other theory, it is not sufficient.” Eychaner, 779 N.E.2d at 1135; Kohlhaas, 97 N.E.2d at 776;

All to End Repression, 2000 WL 562480 at *5.
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Here, the available evidence demonstrates that Plaintiffs cannot satisfy the foregoing
standard. Even assuming, arguendo, that the Dead Man’s Act did not bar the testimony of David
Simon and Ted Bernstein, that testimony and the other evidence does not unequivocally or
unmistakably prove the intent of Simon Bernstein to create the 1995 Trust or the terms of that
Trust. As detailed below, most of the testimony of David Simon and Ted Bernstein is hearsay,
even if not barred by the Dead Man’s Act. And the undisputed evidence about the events leading
up to the “discovery” of the drafts are utterly inconsistent with the existence of a 1995 Trust. These
include the inconsistent provisions of the drafts themselves, the inconsistencies between the
testimony of the family as to what the drafts were to show, and what they do show, the failure of
the family to discover those drafts for over a year despite supposedly exhaustive searches, and the
conduct engaged in by the family, including David Simon and Ted Bernstein in considering and
seeking to employ alternatives to a 1995 Trust to collect the proceeds.

1. The Inconsistent, Unexecuted Drafts of the 1995 Trust, and David
Simon’s and Ted Bernstein’s Inconsistent Testimony About Them and
the Trustee’s Identity, Do Not Meet the ‘“Clear and Convincing
Evidence” Standard.

In place of an executed 1995 Trust document, Plaintiffs rely on two purported drafts of the
1995 Trust that are inconsistent with each other and with David Simon’s testimony attempting to
explaining how those drafts came to be, which testimony is itself internally inconsistent. Plaintiffs’
Exhibit 16, the earlier draft, lists the potential trustees as “Shirley, David, [illegible name]?” and
the successor trustees as “Pam, Ted.” SoF {46. The more-recent “draft” embodied by Plaintiffs’
Exhibit 15, however, lists Shirley as trustee and David Simon as successor trustee. SoF | 48. In
contrast to Plaintiffs’ Exhibits 15 and 16, when the purported 1995 Trust first made a claim to the

insurance company, it represented that Plaintiffs’ former attorney, Robert Spallina, was the trustee.

SoF { 29. Despite all of this, in the current proceeding Plaintiffs claim now that Ted Bernstein is
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the trustee. Order at 6 (ECF No. 220).

Plaintiffs’ evidentiary basis for claiming Ted Bernstein is the trustee is two-fold. First,
David Simon’s testimony implies that he saw the executed 1995 Trust which provided that Ted
Bernstein was the trustee. SoF { 52. This is classic hearsay, however, in that the out of court
statement written in the document (i.e. that Bernstein is trustee) is being offered to prove the truth
of that assertion. As such, David Simon’s testimony on this point is inadmissible irrespective of
the Dead Man’s Act.

Second, Ted Bernstein claims that Simon Bernstein told Ted that he was forming a life
insurance trust and Ted would be one of the trustees once the trust was formed. SoF | 55. Ted
Bernstein further testified that his assertion that he is trustee is also based on David Simon telling
Ted that he was the trustee and Ted seeing his name handwritten as one of multiple potential
trustees on a document David Simon told him was a draft of the 1995 Trust. SoF qq 54-57. As
such, Ted Bernstein has no personal knowledge about whether he is trustee. Ted’s claim that he
is trustee is entirely based on inadmissible hearsay, i.e. the out of court statements, spoken by
Simon Bernstein and David Simon and written in the purported draft of the 1995 Trust, that Ted
is the trustee, which are being offered by Ted for their truth. Admissibility aside, this still cannot
constitute clear and convincing evidence that Ted is the trustee because it is capable of reasonable
explanation by many other theories, e.g. Simon Bernstein never formed the 1995 Trust or did but
decided not to make Ted trustee, the information given to Ted by David Simon was not accurate.

Similarly, David Simon’s explanation of how those purported drafts came to be, which is
inconsistent with the drafts, and his internally inconsistent attempts to explain the discrepancies,
are not the caliber and quantity of evidence that would enable a reasonable trier of fact to conclude

that Plaintiffs have shown the existence and terms of the 1995 Trust by clear and convincing

10
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evidence. For example, David Simon testified that the trustees and successor trustees listed in
Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16 are his handwritten notes from a June 20, 1995 conversation with Simon
Bernstein in which Simon Bernstein said he wanted his wife, Shirley, to be trustee and asked David
Simon to be the successor trustee, to which David Simon agreed. SoF { 45. In contrast to his
testimony about the conversation, David Simon’s handwritten notes of that conversation list
multiple potential trustees followed by a “?” and list multiple successor trustees—none of whom
is David Simon. See SoF q 46.

David Simon also testified that he used those handwritten notes on Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16
to create Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15. SoF | 47. Yet the trustees’ names handwritten on Plaintiffs’
Exhibit 16 are not the same as the trustee in Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15, and the successor trustee listed
in Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 is not even one of the two successor trustees whose names are handwritten
on Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16. See SoF | 46, 48.

Attempting to explain why the more recent draft (i.e. Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15) lists a different
individual than the individual who Plaintiffs now claim is the successor trustee, David Simon
testified at this deposition that, after agreeing himself to be successor trustee, he thought about it
overnight and then asked Simon Bernstein to replace him sequentially with Simon Bernstein’s
children. SoF {{ 49. In contrast, David Simon later attempted to support Plaintiffs’ summary
judgment motion by inconsistently attesting in his affidavit that he actually suggested that Simon
Bernstein appoint Ted Bernstein as the only successor trustee. SoF | 50. Not coincidentally, in
this proceeding, Ted Bernstein is who Plaintiffs now claim was the trustee. This supposed trustee
has never seen an executed copy of the 1995 Trust, and his only bases for claiming he is trustee
are Simon Bernstein telling him before any Trust was ever even purportedly created, David Simon

telling him it is so, and him having seen it written on a document that David Simon told him was

11



Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 246 Filed 05/25/16 Page 14 of 18 PagelD 4298
Case: 17-3595  Document: 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018  Pages: 547

a draft of the purported 1995 Trust. SoF | 54-57.

In sum, the purported drafts of the 1995 Trust have inconsistent terms, Plaintiffs have taken
inconsistent positions about the identity of the trustee, and David Simon’s internally inconsistent
testimony, which is inconsistent with the terms of the purported drafts, is also inadmissible
hearsay, like Ted Bernstein’s testimony. This aspect of the evidence is of insufficient caliber and
quantity to enable a rational trier of fact to conclude that Plaintiffs have proven by clear and
convincing evidence both an intent to create the 1995 Trust and its terms.

2. David Simon’s Testimony About the Discovery of the Purported Drafts
of the 1995 Trust Does Not Contribute to Satisfying the “Clear and
Convincing Evidence” Standard.

Plaintiffs’ testimony about the circumstances under which the purported drafts of the 1995
Trust were supposedly discovered does not support the validity of those documents or their value
in showing that Simon Bernstein intended to create a trust with those terms. Shortly after the death
of Simon Bernstein in 2012, his family (including the Plaintiffs) conducted what was described as
an “exhaustive search” for the 1995 Trust, and none was found. SoF  24-25. One year later,
David Simon (with the help of his brother and counsel herein, Adam), searched his office and
records in Chicago and purportedly located both a hard copy draft of the 1995 Trust and a version
prepared on a word processor at the Simon Law Firm. See SoF {q 39-42.

Between the “exhaustive” search conducted in the aftermath of Simon Bernstein’s death
and the search conducted by the Simon brothers, however, Plaintiffs and their then-attorney,
Robert Spallina, exchanged many emails referring to the inability to locate a trust document and
addressing how best to extract the insurance proceeds from Heritage. SoF {{ 32. David Simon
was a participant in those email exchanges, yet in none of those emails did he relate a recollection

of the critical fact that he drafted the 1995 Trust and saw the final executed version, which named

12
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Ted Bernstein trustee. See id.; Order at 4-5 (ECF No. 220). Nor did it come to his mind to check
his office files and his computer for this critical document. Those critical facts are also found
nowhere in the original Complaint David Simon’s brother filed in this action during that period.
SoF | 37. Apparently, David Simon inexplicably did not search his office and computer files for
Plaintiffs’ Exhibits 15 and 16 until one year later.
3. David Simon’s Uncorroborated Testimony about the Creation of the
1995 Trust Does Not Help Plaintiffs Satisfy the ‘““Clear and Convincing
Evidence” Standard.

According to David Simon, Simon Bernstein took the draft 1995 Trust document to
Hopkins & Sutter to be executed and the identity of the successor trustee on the executed version
was changed when he saw the final version. SoF { 48-52. This clearly implies that the document
was revised at Hopkins & Sutter, and thus, the firm would have an electronic and possibly a hard
copy of the final version of the document which was purportedly executed. David Simon testified
that Foley & Lardner, the successor firm to Hopkins & Sutter, and other attorneys who broke away
and started their own firm, were contacted to see if they had retained a copy of the 1995 Trust, but
they did not. Oddly, David Simon has no idea who specifically was contacted or even whether it
was him or someone else who contacted them. SoF  26; Order at 5 (ECF No. 220).

Perhaps more importantly, David Simon testified that after Simon Bernstein returned from
executing the 1995 Trust, he assisted Simon Bernstein in preparing documents to be submitted to
the insurer in order to give effect to the 1995 Trust and that he would have expected the insurer to
retain copies of the documents. See SoF | 53. Again, however, he cannot recall who called the
insurer or with whom that person spoke, and the insurer retained no copies of documents relevant

to the 1995 Trust. Id.; Order at 5-6 (ECF No. 220).

13
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4. The Creation of the 2000 Trust is Inconsistent with the Existence of the
1995 Trust and the Notion That Ted Bernstein is the Trustee.

While Plaintiffs addressed the lack of an executed 1995 Trust document in their email
exchanges, they also considered several other options for attempting to obtain the Policy proceeds
from the insurer. One of the options was “using” the 2000 Trust, a trust that Simon Bernstein
admittedly executed. SoF | 27-28. Plaintiffs deliberated extensively over this option, exchanging
numerous emails with their then-counsel, Robert Spallina, but this option was rejected because the
2000 Trust did not include Pamela Simon as a beneficiary. SoF { 27. As an initial matter, the
notion of Plaintiffs “using” the 2002 Trust to obtain the Policy proceeds is entirely inconsistent
with Ted Bernstein’s supposed understanding that he was the trustee of a 1995 Trust. His
participating in “using” the 2000 Trust to obtain Policy proceeds of which the 1995 Trust was
supposedly the beneficiary would have breached his fiduciary duties as trustee of the 1995 Trust.

More importantly, however, the existence of the 2000 Trust is also critical because it
identifies the proceeds of the insurance policy at issue here as an asset of that Trust, but does not
refer to the existence of the alleged 1995 Trust, which the 2000 Trust would have superseded. SoF
99 58-59; Order at 5 (ECF No. 220).? No rational trier of fact could conclude that Simon Bernstein
1) executed the 2000 Trust, 2) omitting any reference to a 1995 Trust, but 3) actually intended for
the Policy proceeds identified as an asset of the 2000 Trust not to pass in accordance with the terms
of that Trust and 4) instead to pass in accordance with the terms of a trust he supposedly created
five years earlier. And, on this evidence, no rational trier of fact could determine the specific terms

of the 1995 Trust by clear and convincing evidence.

3 Tt is also significant that no subsequent estate planning document executed by Simon Bernstein revokes,
or even refers to the existence of, a purported 1995 Trust. See SoF | 60-65.

14
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All of the evidence that exists in this case taken as true, and considered most favorably to
the Plaintiffs, nonetheless presents a confused, contradictory and inconsistent series of events with
regard to whether the 1995 Trust ever existed and what its terms were. Even if a trier of fact
believed that both David Simon and Ted Bernstein were telling the truth, i.e. believed what they
were saying, the Court must consider that testimony with all of the other circumstantial evidence,
not one item of which supports the notion that Simon Bernstein intended to create the 1995 Trust
or that anyone knows its terms. As a consequence, no reasonable trier of fact could conclude that
this amalgam of evidence proves the existence and terms of a 1995 Trust by clear and convincing
evidence.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the Estate respectfully requests that the Court grant summary
judgment in favor of the Estate on its Complaint for Declaratory Judgment (ECF No. 112) and on
Plaintiffs’ First Amended Complaint (ECF No. 73).

Dated: May 25, 2016
BRIAN M. O’CONNELL, PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVE

OF THE ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, Intervenor

By: __ /s/James J. Stamos
One of Intervenor’s Attorneys

James J. Stamos (ARDC # 3128244)
Theodore H. Kuyper (ARDC # 6294410)
STAMOS & TRUCCO LLP

One East Wacker Drive, Third Floor
Chicago, Illinois 60601

(312) 630-7979

jstamos @ stamostrucco.com

tkuyper @stamostrucco.com

Attorneys for Intervenor
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The undersigned hereby certifies that he caused a copy of the foregoing Intervenor’s
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Lisa Sue Friedstein Jill Marla Iantoni
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HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
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HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY
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INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95
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Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST, )
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )

Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95,
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN,

Third-Party Defendants.

)
)
)
)
)

Case No. 13 cv 3643
Honorable John Robert Blakey
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

INTERVENOR’S LOCAL RULE
56.1(a)(3) STATEMENT OF
UNDISPUTED MATERIAL FACTS

Filer:

Brian O’Connell, as Personal Representative

of the Estate of
Simon L. Bernstein, Intervenor.
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ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff,
V.

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant,
and,

PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON,
both Professionally and Personally
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P.
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES

Third-Party Defendants.

BRIAN M. O’CONNELL, as Personal
Representative of the Estate of
Simon L. Bernstein,

Intervenor.
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INTERVENOR’S LOCAL RULE 56.1(a)(3) STATEMENT OF UNDISPUTED
MATERIAL FACTS IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Intervenor Brian M. O’Connell, Personal Representative of the Estate of Simon L.
Bernstein (“Estate”), for his Statement of Undisputed Material Facts pursuant to Local Rule
56.1(a)(3), states as follows:

I THE PARTIES

1. The Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95 (“1995 Trust”) is
a Plaintiff and purports to be an irrevocable life insurance trust formed in Illinois. The Estate
disputes the existence and terms of the 1995 Trust. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’
Statement of Undisputed Material Facts | 1 (ECF No. 192); Order at 2-4 (ECF No. 220).)

2. Benjamin Brown, as Curator of The Estate of Simon L. Bernstein (the “Estate”),
filed a motion to intervene in this litigation. On July 28, 2014, the Court granted the motion to
intervene and the Estate became an Intervenor-Plaintiff. (ECF No. 121.) On November 3, 2014,
Brian O’Connell substituted his appearance as the Personal Representative of the Estate. (ECF
No. 126.)

3. Ted Bernstein, both individually and purporting to be Trustee of the alleged 1995
Trust, is a Plaintiff. Ted Bernstein has also been named as a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot
Bernstein’s third-party claims. Ted Bernstein is one of the five adult children of Simon
Bernstein. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts | 6
(ECF No. 192); Affidavit of Ted Bernstein { 25 (ECF No. 150-31).)

4. Ted Bernstein will receive over $300,000, representing 20 percent of the Policy
proceeds, if Plaintiffs prevail in this litigation. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon
Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts { 3 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 9:18-

10:4, 118:16-119:14 (ECF No. 192-1).)
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5. Pamela Simon is a Plaintiff, and has been named as a Third-Party Defendant to
Eliot Bernstein’s third-party claims. Pamela Simon is one of the five adult children of Simon
Bernstein. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts 10
(ECF No. 192); Affidavit of Pam Simon {{ 2-3 (ECF No. 150-32).)

6. David Simon is Pamela Simon’s husband, Adam Simon’s brother, and has been
named a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot Bernstein’s third-party claims. Adam Simon was
previously counsel for all Plaintiffs and is currently counsel for Plaintiffs the 1995 Trust, Ted
Bernstein and Pamela Simon, and Third-Party Defendants David Simon and The Simon Law
Firm. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts | 2
(ECF No. 201); Deposition of David Simon, 7:9-10 (ECF No. 192-2); Affidavit of David Simon |
20 (ECF No. 150-33); ECF Nos. 12, 26, 46, 224 and 226.)

7. Pamela Simon will receive over $300,000, representing 20 percent of the Policy
proceeds, if Plaintiffs prevail in this litigation. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon
Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts | 2 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of David Simon, 58:13-
59:4 (ECF No. 192-2).)

8. Jill Marla Iantoni is a Plaintiff, and has been named as a Third-Party Defendant to
Eliot Bernstein’s third-party claims. Jill Marla Iantoni is one of the five adult children of Simon
Bernstein. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts 9
(ECF No. 192); Affidavit of Jill lantoni ] 2-3 (ECF No. 150-34).)

9. Lisa Sue Friedstein is a Plaintiff, and has been named as a Third-Party Defendant
to Eliot Bernstein’s third-party claims. Lisa Sue Friedstein is one of the five adult children of
Simon Bernstein. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts

9 8 (ECF No. 192); Affidavit of Lisa Friedstein {] 2-3 (ECF No. 150-35).)
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10. Jill Marla Iantoni and Lisa Sue Friedstein will each receive over $300,000,
representing 20 percent of the Policy proceeds, if Plaintiffs prevail in this litigation. (Movants’
Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts | 4 (ECF No. 201);
Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 118:16-119:14 (ECF No. 192-1); Deposition of David Simon,
58:13-59:4 (ECF No. 192-2); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 (ECF No. 150-16); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16
(ECF No. 150-17).)

11. Eliot Bernstein (“Eliot”) was made a Party by virtue of Heritage Union Life
Insurance Company’s counterclaim for Interpleader, and Eliot filed third-party claims against
several Parties as described herein, making Eliot a Third-Party Plaintiff as well. Eliot is one of
the five adult children of Simon Bernstein. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of
Undisputed Material Facts | 3 (ECF No. 192); Affidavit of Ted Bernstein | 23 (ECF No. 150-
31).)

12. Heritage Union Life Insurance Company (‘“Heritage”) is the successor to the
Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Company (“Capitol Bankers”), which originally issued the
Policy to Simon Bernstein in 1982. Heritage was terminated as a party on February 18, 2014
when the Court granted Heritage’s motion to dismiss itself from the Interpleader litigation after
having deposited the Policy proceeds with the Registry of the Court pursuant to an Agreed
Order. (ECF No. 101.)

II. THE LIFE INSURANCE POLICY

13. In 1982, Simon Bernstein applied for a life insurance policy from Capitol
Bankers, which was issued as Policy No. 1009208 (the “Policy”). (Intervenor’s Response to
Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts { 26 (ECF No. 192); Affidavit of Don Sanders

19 6, 23 (ECF No. 150-30).) The amount of the Policy proceeds (plus interest) on deposit with
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the Registry of the Court exceeds $1.7 million. (ECF No. 101; Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 2 (ECF No.
150-3).)

14. The Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Application, dated October 12, 1982 (the
“Application”), designates Simon L. Bernstein as the Insured, lists S.B. Lexington, Inc. as his
employer, and designates the Owner of the Policy as “First Arlington National Bank Trustee of
S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust.” (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’
Statement of Undisputed Material Facts | 27 (ECF No. 192); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 3 (ECF No. 150-
4); Affidavit of Don Sanders | 48 (ECF No. 150-30).)

15.  The Application: (i) directs premium notices to be sent to S.B. Lexington, Inc.
Employee Death Benefit Plan c/o National Service Assoc. at 9933 Lawler Ste. 210, Skokie,
Ilinois 60077; (ii) lists Simon Bernstein’s occupation as an Executive with S.B. Lexington, Inc.
located in Skokie, Illinois; (iii) lists Simon Bernstein as the selling agent of the Policy; and (iv)
was signed in Illinois. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material
Facts | 28 (ECF No. 192); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 3 (ECF No. 150-4); Affidavit of Don Sanders 48
(ECF No. 150-30).)

16. In late 1982 when the Policy was issued: (a) the Policy would have been delivered
to the selling agent (i.e. Simon Bernstein), who would have then delivered the Policy to the
initial Owner; (b) Simon Bernstein resided and was domiciled in Glencoe, Illinois; (c) Simon
Bernstein’s offices were located in Chicago, Illinois; and (d) First Arlington National Bank was
located in Arlington Heights, Illinois. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of
Undisputed Material Facts | 28 (ECF No. 192); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 3 (ECF No. 150-4); Affidavit

of Don Sanders { 48 (ECF No. 150-30); Affidavit of Pam Simon {] 22-24 (ECF No. 150-32).)
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I11. THE DESIGNATED BENEFICIARIES

17. At the time the Policy was issued, the only designated beneficiary was First
Arlington National Bank as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust.
(Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts ] 29-30 (ECF No.
192); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 3 (ECF No. 150-4); Affidavit of Don Sanders { 48 (ECF No. 150-30).)

18. In June of 1992, LaSalle National Trust, N.A., as Successor Trustee of the S.B.
Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust, became Owner of the Policy. (Intervenor’s
Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts 31 (ECF No. 192); Plaintiffs’
Exhibit 7 (ECF No. 150-8); Affidavit of Don Sanders | 55 (ECF No. 150-30).)

19. In November of 1995, Capitol Bankers received a “Request Letter” signed by the
Owner of the Policy, LaSalle National Trust, N.A., pursuant to which the following changes
were made to the Policy: (a) LaSalle National Trust, N.A., as Trustee of the S.B. Lexington, Inc.
Employee Death Benefit Trust, was designated primary beneficiary; and (b) the “Simon
Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated June 21, 1995 (i.e. the 1995 Trust) was designated
contingent beneficiary. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material
Facts q 33 (ECF No. 192); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 8 at JCK000370 (ECF No. 150-9); Affidavit of Don
Sanders ] 56, 60 (ECF No. 150-30).)

20. As of September 13, 2012, the date of Simon Bernstein’s death: (a) LaSalle
National Trust, N.A., as Trustee of the S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust, was
designated primary beneficiary of the Policy; and (b) the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance
Trust Dated June 21, 1995” (i.e. the 1995 Trust) was designated contingent beneficiary of the
Policy. (Affidavit of Don Sanders (] 62, 72 (ECF No. 150-30); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 8 at

JCKO000370 (ECF No. 150-9); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 10:8-10 (ECF No. 192-1).)
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21. On April 3, 1998, S.B. Lexington, Inc. was voluntarily dissolved and the S.B.
Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust was terminated. (Intervenor’s Response to
Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts | 36 (ECF No. 192); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 9
(ECF No. 150-10); Affidavit of Pam Simon q 36 (ECF No. 150-32).)

22. Neither LaSalle National Trust, N.A. as Trustee of the S.B. Lexington, Inc.
Employee Death Benefit Trust, nor the S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust itself,
has made any claim to the Policy proceeds. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of
Undisputed Material Facts | 37 (ECF No. 192); Affidavit of Don Sanders | 77(a)-(b), 78 (ECF
No. 150-30).)

23. First Arlington National Bank has not made any claim to the Policy proceeds. Its
successor-in-interest, J.P. Morgan Bank, filed a responsive pleading in this action, and then a
motion for judgment on the pleadings in which it disclaimed any interest in the Policy proceeds
and requested to be dismissed. That motion was granted and J.P. Morgan Bank was dismissed as
a Party on March 12, 2014. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed
Material Facts { 37 (ECF No. 192); ECF No. 60; ECF No. 105.)

IV. THE FIRST “EXHAUSTIVE SEARCH”’ FOR THE 1995 TRUST

24, At least one “exhaustive search” for the 1995 Trust document was conducted
between Simon Bernstein’s death on September 13, 2012 and December 6, 2012, but no trust
document could be found. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of
Additional Facts | 9 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 55:1-11 and Dep. Ex. 3 at
TS004519 (ECF No. 192-1).)

25. According to David Simon, the first attempt to locate the 1995 Trust document

occurred in the winter of 2012-2013. He was aware of the search and advised that no such
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document was found. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of
Additional Facts | 10 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of David Simon, 59:13-17, 60:4-6 (ECF No.
192-2).)

26. David Simon also testified that Foley & Lardner, the successor firm to Hopkins &
Sutter, and some of the attorneys who broke away from Hopkins & Sutter and started their own
firm, were contacted to see if they had a copy of a 1995 Trust document, but they did not. David
Simon does not even know whether it was he or someone else who contacted Foley & Lardner
and the attorneys, or with whom they specifically spoke, and he testified that whoever it was may
have been asked to do so by him, his wife Pamela Simon, or his brother Adam Simon.
(Deposition of David Simon, 44:17-45:15, 46:2-4 (ECF No. 192-2).)

V. IDEAS ABOUT HOW TO OBTAIN THE POLICY PROCEEDS & UNSUCCESSFUL ATTEMPTS
TO DO SO

217. On August 15, 2000, Simon Bernstein executed the Simon Bernstein 2000
Insurance Trust (the “2000 Trust”), which identifies the Policy at issue in this litigation as an
asset of the 2000 Trust. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 23 at | 1 and Schedule A (ECF
No. 192-1); Order at 5 (ECF No. 220).)

28. Plaintiffs considered “using” the 2000 Trust to obtain the Policy proceeds, but this
option was rejected on or before November 19, 2012 because Pamela Simon was not included as
a beneficiary of the 2000 Trust. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 48:21-49:9, Dep. Ex. 1 and Dep.
Ex. 2 at TS004490 (ECF No. 192-1); Order at 5 (ECF No. 220).)

29. Plaintiffs’ former counsel, Robert Spallina, representing that he was trustee of the
1995 Trust, made an application to Heritage for the Policy proceeds on behalf of Plaintiffs.

(Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts { 7 (ECF No.
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201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 35:6-16 and Dep. Ex. 1 (ECF No. 192-1); Deposition of
David Simon, 81:15-82:2 (ECF No. 192-2).)

30. On October 19, 2012, Ted Bernstein sent Robert Spallina an email suggesting he
had a “solution to the life insurance policy which provides the desired result,” that he wanted to
discuss and that the initial conversation about it involve only him, Robert Spallina, Pamela
Simon and David Simon. The email also asked that Robert Spallina avoid any further overtures
to the insurance company until after the initial conversation in order “to avoid any unnecessary
confusion” for the insurance company. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s
Statement of Additional Facts | 7 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 1 at
TS004965 (ECF No. 192-1).)

31. On November 19, 2012, after Robert Spallina unsuccessfully attempted to claim
the Policy proceeds without providing any documentation, David Simon suggested attempting to
secure the Policy proceeds on behalf of the Plaintiffs by submitting a waiver and settlement
agreement to the insurer. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of
Additional Facts { 8 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 51:22-52:2, 53:22-54:4 and
Dep. Ex. 2 at TS004490 (ECF No. 192-1).) The Plaintiffs tried David Simon’s suggestion of a
waiver and settlement agreement, but it was not successful because Eliot would not agree.
(Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 54:13-25 and Dep. Ex. 3 (ECF No. 192-1).)

32. Between October 19, 2012 and February 8, 2013, the Plaintiffs exchanged many
emails discussing how best to obtain the Policy proceeds and referring to an inability to locate
the 1995 Trust document. (Order at 5 (ECF No. 220); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Exs. 1-
4, 8-9 (ECF No. 192-1).) David Simon was a participant in the email exchanges, yet in none of

those emails did he relate a recollection that he created the 1995 Trust document for Simon

10
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Bernstein, that he saw the final version of the 1995 Trust executed by Simon Bernstein, or that it
named Ted Bernstein as successor trustee of the 1995 Trust. (Id.)

33. One of those email exchanges on January 22, 2013 states that “none of us can be
sure exactly what the 1995 trust said.” (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 4 (ECF No. 192-
1).)

34. On February, 8, 2013, Pamela Simon informed Ted Bernstein that she could not
find a copy of the insurance Policy or the 1995 Trust. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon
Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts | 11 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein,
60:25-61:10, Dep. Ex. 8 at BT000049, and Dep. Ex. 10 at BT000047 (ECF No. 192-1).)

35. As of February 14, 2013, the Plaintiffs planned to pursue the Policy proceeds via
a Release and Settlement Agreement and have the proceeds paid either to Robert Spallina as
trustee or to the Tescher & Spallina trust account. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 62:17-63:3 and
Dep. Ex. 11 at TS004464 (ECF No. 192-1).)

36. From March 15, 2013 through April 12, 2013, Robert Spallina on behalf of
Plaintiffs was engaged in discussions with Heritage and they planned for Heritage to interplead
the funds into court in Florida. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Exs. 15 and 16 (ECF No.
192-1).) Unbeknownst to Mr. Spallina, however, on April 5, 2013, the Plaintiffs, through
counsel Adam Simon, filed a lawsuit in the Circuit Court of Cook County seeking to obtain the
Policy proceeds from Heritage. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 16 at TS005253-54 (ECF
No. 192-1); Notice of Removal { 1 (ECF No. 1).) As a result, Robert Spallina and the law firm
Tescher & Spallina ceased representing Plaintiffs in connection with their efforts to obtain the
Policy proceeds from Heritage. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 16 at TS005252, and

Dep. Ex. 17 at TS006547 (ECF No. 192-1).)

11
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37.  Despite David Simon’s current claims that he drafted the 1995 Trust document on
his computer and saw it after execution, the Complaint filed by his brother on April 5, 2013
makes no reference whatsoever to David Simon having drafted the 1995 Trust or having seen the
final version after it was executed, or to the identity of the trustee and successor trustee named in
the executed 1995 Trust, or to the alleged fact that Simon Bernstein ever even executed a 1995
Trust document. (Complaint at Law (ECF No. 1-1).)

38. As of August 30, 2013, the 1995 Trust (in any form) could not be located.
(Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts { 16 (ECF No.
201); Plaintiffs” Exhibit 15 at BT000002 (ECF No. 150-16); Deposition of David Simon, 95:9-13
(ECF No. 192-2).)

VI THE SEARCH WHICH UNCOVERED THE PURPORTED DRAFTS OF THE 1995 TRUST

39. David Simon claims to have located an unexecuted draft electronic copy of the
purported 1995 Trust (i.e. Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 (ECF No. 150-16)) on the computer system of
The Simon Law Firm on September 13, 2013. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon
Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts { 16 (ECF No. 201); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 at
BT000002 (ECF No. 150-16); Deposition of David Simon, 95:9-13 (ECF No. 192-2).)

40. According to David Simon, he located Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 with the help of his
brother, Adam Simon. (Affidavit of David Simon { 29 (ECF No. 150-33).)

41. David Simon also claims to have located an unexecuted draft paper copy of the
purported 1995 Trust (i.e. Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16 (ECF No. 150-17)) which contains his
handwritten notes in the stored files of The Simon Law Firm on or about September 13, 2013.

(Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts { 17 (ECF No.

12
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201); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16 (ECF No. 150-17); Deposition of David Simon, 94:13-95:8 (ECF No.
192-2); Affidavit of David Simon { 28 (ECF No. 150-33).)

42.  According to David Simon, he located Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16 without anyone
else’s assistance. (Affidavit of David Simon { 28 (ECF No. 150-33).)

43. According to Pamela Simon, however, she and David Simon located Plaintiffs’
Exhibit 15 and Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16, with assistance from their employees. (Affidavit of Pam
Simon { 37 (ECF No. 150-32).)

VII. THE EXISTENCE AND TERMS OF THE PURPORTED 1995 TRUST

44. Plaintiffs have produced no executed original or executed copy of a written trust
agreement reflecting the terms of the purported 1995 Trust. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of
Simon Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts { 6 (ECF No. 201); Answer to Intervenor
Complaint | 9 (ECF No. 144); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 13:13-15 (ECF No. 192-1).)

45. According to David Simon, he had a conversation with Simon Bernstein on June
20, 1995 about creating an insurance trust, during which Simon Bernstein said he wanted to
create one and name his wife Shirley as trustee and David Simon as successor trustee, and David
Simon agreed to be successor trustee. David Simon testified that he took handwritten notes of
this conversation on Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16. (Plaintiffs’ First Amended Complaint | 29 (ECF No.
73); Deposition of David Simon, 39:15-40:1, 40:17-41:1, 41:7-20, 96:3-11 (ECF No. 192-2);
Affidavit of David Simon | 28 (ECF No. 150-33).)

46. The handwritten notes on Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16, however, list the trustee as
“Shirley, David, [illegible]?”” and list the successor trustee as “Pam, Ted.” (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16

at BT000020 (ECF No. 150-17).)

13
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47.  David Simon testified that his assistant created Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 by making
the modifications reflected in David Simon’s handwritten notes on Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16.
(Deposition of David Simon, 40:17-41:1, 96:3-11 (ECF No. 192-2).)

48. Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15, however, identifies the trustee as “Shirley Bernstein” and
identifies the successor trustee as “David B. Simon.” (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 at BT000010 (ECF
No. 150-16).)

49. David Simon testified that, after thinking about it overnight, on June 21, 1995 he
asked Simon Bernstein to remove him as successor trustee and make the successor trustees
Simon Bernstein’s children sequentially. (Deposition of David Simon, 41:17-23 (ECF No. 192-
2).)

50.  David Simon averred, however, that he asked Simon Bernstein to appoint only
Ted Bernstein as successor trustee. (Affidavit of David Simon { 25 (ECF No. 150-33).)

51. David Simon testified that he did not change the name of the successor trustee
from his own name, and Simon Bernstein then took Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 to the law firm of
Hopkins & Sutter to be finalized and executed. (Deposition of David Simon, 40:2-7, 41:17-42:5
(ECF No. 192-2).)

52.  According to David Simon, he met with Simon Bernstein after the 1995 Trust
document was executed and reviewed the final executed version of it, which he claims named
Ted Bernstein as the successor trustee. (Deposition of David Simon, 42:6-43:1 (ECF No. 192-2);
Affidavit of David Simon | 27 (ECF No. 150-33).)

53. David Simon testified that, when he met with Simon Bernstein after the 1995
Trust document was executed, he had Simon Bernstein sign a change of beneficiary form to

submit to Lincoln Benefit in order to make the 1995 Trust the beneficiary of Simon Bernstein’s

14
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life insurance policy issued by Lincoln Benefit, and that he would have expected Lincoln Benefit
to retain a copy of that form. David Simon also testified that Lincoln Benefit was contacted and
they did not have a copy of the 1995 Trust. (Deposition of David Simon, 43:10-44:2 (ECF No.
192-2); Order at 5-6 (ECF No. 220).)

54. Ted Bernstein, purported trustee of the 1995 Trust, has never seen an executed
copy of a 1995 Trust document. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of
Additional Facts | 5 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 24:6-12 (ECF No. 192-1).)

55. According to Ted Bernstein, in the summer of 1995, he had a conversation with
his father in which his father told Ted that he was forming a life insurance trust for the Policy
and that Ted would be one of the trustees. No one except Simon Bernstein and Ted Bernstein
was present for the conversation. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement
of Additional Facts { 5 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 23:1-8 (ECF No. 192-1);
Affidavit of Ted Bernstein 88 (ECF No. 150-31).)

56. Ted Bernstein averred, based on having reviewed the purported drafts of the 1995
Trust document and facts as told to him by David Simon, that Ted was appointed successor
trustee of the 1995 Trust. (Affidavit of Ted Bernstein { 99 (ECF No. 150-31).)

57. Ted Bernstein testified that the bases for his knowledge that he is successor
trustee of the 1995 Trust are that he saw his name handwritten on Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16 at page
BT000020 (ECF No. 150-17), and after his father’s death, David Simon told him that he was
successor trustee of the 1995 Trust. When David Simon informed Ted that he was successor
trustee, Ted does not recall whether he even remembered the conversation he testified that he had
with his father during the summer of 1995. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 12:19-16:16, 17:5-17,

24:13-25:3 and Dep. Ex. 22 (ECF No. 192-1).)

15
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VIII. SIMON BERNSTEIN’S SUBSEQUENTLY-EXECUTED ESTATE DOCUMENTS

58. On August 15, 2000, Simon Bernstein executed the Simon Bernstein 2000
Insurance Trust (the “2000 Trust”), which identifies the Policy at issue in this litigation as an
asset of the 2000 Trust. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 23 at | 1 and Schedule A (ECF
No. 192-1); Order at 5 (ECF No. 220).)

59. The 2000 Trust document makes no reference to the 1995 Trust (i.e. the “Simon
Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated June 21, 1995”"), which the 2000 Trust would have
superseded. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 23 (ECF No. 192-1); Order at 5 (ECF No.
220).)

60. Pursuant to the terms of the 2000 Trust, the Trustees were only authorized to pay
the trust principal and income to only Shirley Bernstein and Simon Bernstein’s “descendants,”
with “descendants” being defined to “specifically exclude ... PAMELA BETH SIMON and her
descendants.” (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 23 at {{ 2(a)-(b), 9 (ECF No. 192-1).)

61. On May 20, 2008, Simon Bernstein executed the Simon L. Bernstein Irrevocable
Trust Agreement (the “2008 Trust”). The terms of the 2008 Trust, in effect, provide that no
inheritance shall pass to Ted Bernstein, Pamela Simon, or the lineal descendants of either Ted
Bernstein or Pamela Simon. (Deposition of David Simon, 55:2-17 (ECF No. 192-2); Deposition
of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 25 (ECF No. 192-1).)

62. In January 2012, Plaintiff Pamela Simon wrote to her father, Simon Bernstein,
expressing her distress over his act of “disinheriting” her, David Simon and their children, as
well as Ted Bernstein and his children. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 26 (ECF No.

192-1).) Pamela Simon wrote the note to her father because she was passionate about the fact

16
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that his “estate plan” did not include her and her family or Ted Bernstein and his family.
(Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 90:22-25, 91:13-25, and Dep. Ex. 26 (ECF No. 192-1).)

63. A few months before he died on September 13, 2012, Simon Bernstein arranged a
conference call with Robert Spallina, Plaintiffs and some of their spouses. During the call,
Simon Bernstein instructed that the assets of his estate and trust would be left to his ten
grandchildren and the insurance policy proceeds were to pass to his five children, in an effort to
quell some then-existing family acrimony about his girlfriend and about the trust document that
disinherited Pamela Simon, Ted Bernstein and their respective children. (Deposition of Ted
Bernstein, 90:11-18 (ECF No. 192-1); Deposition of David Simon, 53:1-19, 54:3-55:17 (ECF
No. 192-2).)

64. On July 25, 2012, Simon Bernstein executed the Simon L. Bernstein Amended
and Restated Trust Agreement (the “2012 Trust”), which amends and restates in its entirety the
2008 Trust. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 24 at TS007362 (ECF No. 192-1).) Pursuant
to the terms of the 2012 Trust, all of the Plaintiffs shall be deemed to have predeceased Simon
Bernstein and all assets are to be passed on equal shares among Simon Bernstein’s
grandchildren. (/d. at Art. I (B)-(C), Art. III (E)(1).)

65. On September 7, 2012, six days prior to his death, Simon Bernstein prepared a
holographic will directing a bequest to Maritza Puccio of, among other things, $100,000 from his
current insurance policy and expressing an intention to change the beneficiary on said policy to
reflect his wishes. (ECF No. 192-3 at TS003889). Simon Bernstein directed that the bequest to
Ms. Puccio should proceed in the event of his death “with no interruption from family or

probate.” (Id.) This document was not witnessed or notarized. (Id.)
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66.  There is no evidence that Simon Bernstein executed any other Wills or trust
agreements between July 25, 2012 and his death on September 13, 2012.
Dated: May 25, 2016

BRIAN M. O’CONNELL, PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVE
OF THE ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, Intervenor

By: __ /s/ James J. Stamos
One of Intervenor’s Attorneys

James J. Stamos (ARDC # 3128244)
Theodore H. Kuyper (ARDC # 6294410)
STtAMOS & TrRUCCO LLP

One East Wacker Drive, Third Floor
Chicago, Illinois 60601

(312) 630-7979

jstamos @stamostrucco.com

tkuyper @ stamostrucco.com

Attorneys for Intervenor
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that he caused a copy of the foregoing Intervenor’s
Local Rule 56.1(a)(3) Statement of Undisputed Material Facts to be served upon all
registered E-Filers via electronic filing using the CM/ECF system, and to be served upon the
following persons via U.S. mail, proper postage prepaid:

Lisa Sue Friedstein Jill Marla Iantoni

2142 Churchill Lane 2101 Magnolia Lane
Highland Park, IL 60035 Highland Park, IL 60035
Lisa@friedsteins.com jilliantoni @ gmail.com
Pro Se Litigant Pro Se Litigant

on this 25" day of May, 2016.

/s/ James J. Stamos
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE Northern District of lllinois — CM/ECF LIVE, Ver 6.1.1

Eastern Division

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd
6/21/95, et al.

Plaintiff,
V. Case No.:
1:13-cv-03643
Honorable John
Robert Blakey
Eliot Bernstein
Defendant.

NOTIFICATION OF DOCKET ENTRY

This docket entry was made by the Clerk on Thursday, May 26, 2016:

MINUTE entry before the Honorable John Robert Blakey: Status hearing held on
5/26/2016. Motion for leave to file amended complaint [231] is denied. Any response to
dispositve motions shall be filed on or before 7/26/2016; replies shall be filed on or before
9/6/2016. Status hearing set for 9/20/2016 at 9:45 a.m. in Courtroom 1725. Mailed
notice(gel, )

ATTENTION: This notice is being sent pursuant to Rule 77(d) of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure or Rule 49(c) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. It was
generated by CM/ECF, the automated docketing system used to maintain the civil and
criminal dockets of this District. If a minute order or other document is enclosed, please
refer to it for additional information.

For scheduled events, motion practices, recent opinions and other information, visit our
web site at www.ilnd.uscourts.gov.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE Northern District of lllinois — CM/ECF LIVE, Ver 6.1.1
Eastern Division

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd
6/21/95, et al.

Plaintiff,
V. Case No.:
1:13-cv-03643
Honorable John
Robert Blakey
Eliot Bernstein
Defendant.

NOTIFICATION OF DOCKET ENTRY

This docket entry was made by the Clerk on Thursday, June 2, 2016:

MINUTE entry before the Honorable John Robert Blakey: In light of the
proceedings in court on 5/26/16, the 6/7/16 Notice of Motion date is stricken, and the
parties need not appear. Mailed notice(gel, )

ATTENTION: This notice is being sent pursuant to Rule 77(d) of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure or Rule 49(c) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. It was
generated by CM/ECF, the automated docketing system used to maintain the civil and
criminal dockets of this District. If a minute order or other document is enclosed, please
refer to it for additional information.

For scheduled events, motion practices, recent opinions and other information, visit our
web site at www.ilnd.uscourts.gov.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS EASTERN DIVISION

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95, et al.,

Plaintiffs, Case No. 13-cv-3643
Judge John Robert Blakey
V.
Heritage Union Life
Insurance Co., et al., Filers:

Eliot Ivan Bernstein, Pro Se
Defendants.

THIRD-PARTY DEFENDANT ELIOT I. BERNSTEIN MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF
TIME TO FILE RESPONSE TO MOTIONS TO DISMISS

Comes now pro se indigent third-party defendant Eliot I. Bernstein who respectfully pleads,
prays and shows this Court as follows:
1. I am the third-party Defendant herein pro se and respectfully make this motion seeking
an extension of time to file and serve responses to the dispositive motions herein which
by Order of this Court are currently due on July 26, 2016.
2. Irespectfully pray for at least a 30 day extension which I assert in good faith is
reasonable under the circumstances but alternatively pray for no less than a 15 day

extension from the current deadline of July 26, 2016.
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3. I am under medical treatment for ongoing dental matters of a serious nature and under
Dentist-doctor prescribed narcotics and other medication and have significant issues
sleeping and related pain as a result.

4. More importantly as shown herein, I have been fighting for more than a month in the
Florida Courts simply to get access to Full Records and Indexes certified by Clerk Sharon
Bock of the 15th Judicial for the related cases in Florida which are not only the subject of
several appeals in the Florida Courts but also directly a part of the dispositive motions to
be responded to with the decisions and Orders of the Florida Courts being directly relied
upon by Ted Bernstein and his counsel David Simon in the dispositive motion [ am
attempting to respond to in this Court.

5. As shown to the Florida 4th District Court of Appeals, by operation of the Florida Rules
of Appellate procedure, full production of the Indexes and Records on Appeal
automatically occurs by the Clerk of the Court upon default unless a party specifies
otherwise.

6. And yet as an indigent litigant acting pro se I have been repeatedly denied access to these
records by the 4th District Court of Appeals while also being forced to undergo
unnecessary burdens at the 15th Judicial to re-assert my indigency status.

7. As shown herein, I filed a motion with specificity with the 4th DCA showing specifically
why I should be able to obtain what otherwise is automatically provided “in a normal
case” to all litigants and this specificity included but was not limited to swearing to the
Court that not only had I never been served various documents that are contained in the
full records and indexes therein, but one such document never served was a Petition for

Administration filed and signed by both attorneys Tescher and Spallina in the Estate of
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Simon Bernstein where said Petition specifically named myself as one of 5 children ( and
not the grandchildren ) as Beneficiaries of the Estate of Simon Bernstein which wholly
contradicts the positions taken by Ted Bernstein at a one-day “validity” trial that was
prejudicially “pre-determined” an artificially limited to “one day” only which did not
permit time for necessary witnesses like Donald Tescher who not only had signed the
document as an attorney which was contradicting the case presented by Ted Bernstein but
further that Donald Tescher had admitted in the only Deposition before Trial that his firm
had known about another fraud in those cases involving his partner Robert Spallina who
had “altered” my mother Shirley Bernstein’s trust attempting to illegally change the
beneficiaries and yet his firm took no action to correct for an entire year while letting Ted
Bernstein carry on in the fraud once Tescher and Spallina resigned and replaced
themselves with Ted as Trustee of the alleged Amended and Restated Simon Bernstein
Trust.

8. This Court will see that not only was this the only pre-trial Deposition in a very complex
case in the Florida courts but also was “limited” by the terms of the deposition and
where [ was not permitted an opportunity to question Donald Tescher whatsoever and to

the contrary the deposition was abruptly stopped when I asked my first question'.

! July 26, 2016 “Appellant’s Good Faith Draft Initial Brief on Appeal and Response To Show Cause;
Extension of Time”
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20160705%20FINAL%20ESIGNEDAPPELLANTSG
OODFAITHDRAFTBRIEFRESPONSESHOWCAUSEAPPEALVALIDITY4THDCA%20ECF%20STAMPED
%20COPY .pdf

And

June 20, 2016 “Appellant’s Motion To Supplement Record on Appeal”
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20160620%20Final%20Esigned%204thDCA%20Mot
i0n%20T0%20Supplement%20Record%200n%20Appeal%20Transcripts%20ECF%20Stamped%20Copy
pdf

And

June 14, 2016 “Motion for Extension of Time to Submit an Initial Brief upon Proper and Meaningful
Access to Records on Appeal, Vacating and Rehearing En Banc this Court’s Order of June 9, 2016 as
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9. Tjust recently completed serving my Initial Brief to the 4th DCA on the alleged
“validity” trial which was done under protest and with a reservation of rights claiming
prejudice on appeal by being denied Full Production of Records and Indexes as provided
by operation of Appellate Rules particularly where I also showed that an “unknown”
Judge had signed the Order admitting the Simon Bernstein Will into Probate time-
stamped in even before the Will itself was filed in Oct. 2012, showing further fraud and
collusion amongst the involved fiduciaries and Courts of Florida®.

10. Moreover I already have at least one other Initial Brief due in the next few days in the
Oppenheimer case where again fraud has been shown going back to 2010 and where
again full Records and Indexes have not been provided from all related cases. This fraud
in Oppenheimer was raised before this Court in my Petition for Injunction under the All
Writs Act which was denied by this Court while the pleading was not struck from the

Records.

violative of the US Constitution, Florida State Constitution and for a Written Opinion Clarifying such
matters;”

http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20160614%20FINAL %20ESIGNED%20MOTION%?2
OREHEARD%20ENI%20BANC%204thDCA%204D16%200222%20ECF %20STAMPED%20COPY .pdf
And

May 25, 2016 “Appellant’s Motion with Specificity to ; Order Production of the Full Record and

Extend Time to File Initial Brief’
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20160525%20F INAL %20ESIGNED%204th%20DCA
%204D16%200222%20Motion%20with%20Specificity%20t0%200rder%20Production%20Extend%20Ti
me%20LT%203698%20ECF %20STAMPED%20COPY .pdf

And

May 03, 2016 “Motion for Extension of Time to File Brief and Request for Order to Produce Indexes for
Appeal for Two Additional Cases the Appealed Order Addresses”
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20160503%20FINAL %20ESIGNED%204th%20DCA
%204D16-
0222%20Motion%20for%20Extension%200f%20Time%20and%20Additional%20Indexes%20Validity %20
Appeal%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY .pdf

And

April 12. 2016 “Appellant’s Response to Show Cause; Request for Extension to File Initial Brief”
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/201604 12%20FINAL%20ESIGNED%20EXTENSIO
N%20REQUEST%204thDCA%20Validity Trial%204.11.16%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY .pdf

2 July 12, 2016 “INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT”
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/201607 12%204th%20DCA%204D16-
0222%20FINAL%20ESIGNED%20INITIAL%20BRIEF%20APPEAL%20VALIDITY%20TRIAL%20PHILLI
P%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY .pdf
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There is also a brief coming due in the illegal “Guardianship” that was imposed on me as
well in the Florida courts.

Further, while I have reminded and pleaded to the 4th DCA to comply with obligations
under the Florida Statewide Court Fraud policy where the fraud in the Florida cases has
never been fully addressed ( nor acted upon by the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s
Department ), I have been busy formulating further submissions to the Florida Court
State Inspector General as well.

And in far more serious and pressing matters directly threatening my personal welfare
and the welfare of my family, as various documents, pictures and audio files have
emerged under Freedom of Information requests in regards to the gruesome death at my
parent’s home at 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, Florida of one Mitch Huhem in the
day or days before I filed my Emergency Petition for Injunction under the All Writs Act
with this Court on or about Feb. 24, 2016, where Mitch Huhem allegedly had previously
taken title to my parents’ property under an illegally created shell company Lions Head
Land Trust, Inc. and then suddenly died just as I was disclosing the fraud to this Court
and federal authorities, the glaring, widespread and pervasive contradictions of very key
and important details, virtually all details in this gruesome death and alleged
“investigation” of this death has consumed further time not only to assess the information
but further to begin compiling a detailed report / complaint to the FBI and other
authorities where I have direct knowledge that the FBI has an “open case” on at least
Robert Spallina involved in the frauds herein.

More seriously, the audio interview on one Laurence Pino shows direct attempts by Pino

to falsely implicate me in possible “foul play” in Mitch Huhem’s death, falsely
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implicating me with one Detective Perez of the PBSO with Laurence Pino being the
attorney who was involved in the illegal creation of the Lions Head Land Trust, Inc. and
also attorney representing Mitch Huhem who also happened to be a direct Beneficiary
under the new “changed” Will of Mitch Huhem that cut out his children,

The interview clearly shows Mr. Pino materially omitting key facts such as his
threatening email to one Leilani Ochoada on Feb. 19, 2016 after Pino’s own Executive
Assistant exposed that same day by email that Pino’s office had NO documents or
Authorizations on file from Leilani Ochoada thus implicating Pino in felony fraud at the
Florida Dept of State the Friday before Mitch Huhem ends up grotesquely dead in my
parents home and yet there was no mention of these facts by Pino to Detective Perez, nor
production of the emails and instead directly false slanderous statements are made by
Pino against me to the PBSO which given the serious defects and flaws in any alleged
“investigation” of this death creates a very realistic fear in my own life such that time is
necessary to be available to seek intervention from the FBI and other authorities.

Having personally viewed many of the pictures taken by the PBSO at my parents’ home
I can clearly affirm to this Court the very grotesque shocking nature of the death of Mitch
Huhem with blood pool and brain parts and fragments in my parents’ garage and yet
having spent nearly an hour on the phone with Detective Perez on or around April 16,
2016 on the Mitch Huhem death providing background information and even other
witnesses to call, there is not one single solitary mention of the phone call with me by
Detective Perez or anyone else in the PBSO that shows up anywhere in the alleged

“investigation”.
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Likewise, there is not one single reference or note from any information or conversation
provided to the PBSO by Mitch Huhem’s sisters and mother, nor any indication the
PBSO tried to take any statement from Mitch’s daughters who he spoke to in the days
before he was found dead according to his sisters and yet what has been turned over by
the PBSO are documents, pictures, records, photos and audio tapes showing glaring and
irrefutable contradictions of key details beginning with a 9/11 called claiming Mitch may
be “suicidal” by one Deborah Huhem which is later contradicted in a subsequent 911 Call
before a body is allegedly discovered where it turns out the body is only a few hundred
feet or more away from Deborah Huhem in the same house at 7020 Lions Head Lane,
Boca Raton, FI.

The lack of any consistent evidence turned over by the PBSO includes but is not limited
to contradictions of when the body is allegedly discovered, how the body appears when
discovered, contradictions of when Mitch was last seen by his wife, contradictions of his
last 24 hours and further not one single note or call or interview with key witness Leilani
Ochoada either who is referenced in my Feb. 24, 2016 Emergency Petition for an
Injunction under the All Writs Act as someone who came forward claiming she gave no
permission or authorization to Laurence Pino to incorporate this company in her name
that was used to take my parent’s home.

Consistent with what has gone on in this case in Illinois, however, the one common
thread shown by the PBSO disclosures to date is that Ted Bernstein is at the epicenter of
all of this being mentioned by Deborah Huhem multiple times on the the day the body is
allegedly found, being referred to by Deb Huhem, being called by Deb Huhem,

supposedly having meetings on the day in question with Mitch Huhem, even Ted
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Bernstein being called to the “scene” at 7020 Lions Head Lane by an unknown,
unidentified member of the PBSO and yet NO statement is taken of Ted Bernstein by the
PBSO until on or about late May of 2016 after these matters were disclosed to this Court
and yet consistent with the close special relationship between Ted Bernstein and the
PBSO, his “interview” is not even recorded with no audio tape made and nothing under
oath allegedly at Ted’s request.

Allegedly the phone information of Mitch Huhem’s phone and calls with Ted Bernstein
have been lost and or destroyed either by Deb Huhem or the PBSO allowing Deb Huhem
to keep the phone after the body was found even though the phone itself is the topic of
the alleged original 911 call, but it is fair to say that the discoveries from this part of the
case itself provide substantial “New Evidence” at least for motions in the related Florida
courts and may potentially provide same in this Court as well and thus the extension is
further needed to sort out and asseess these new details coming to light.

For relevancy purposes I respectfully refer your Honor back to the Feb. 24, 2016
Emergency Petition and not only take note of the “Discovery” abuse game going on for
years but also the “magically” found documents that show up at places like Lions Head
Lane AFTER it had already been Inventoried and documents removed by the PR, Brian
O’Connell, Esq. firm and remind your Honor of the Missing Mail and documents and
account information and computer information from the Lions Head Lane home and
failed court ordered inventory of Simon’s office whereby all his office records are now
presumed lost or destroyed, all of which relates and is relevant to matters before this

Court and where are the Trusts and Insurance information and similar information.
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22. I have previously provided the FBI with this Court’s Docket for review as well and will
be copying certain federal authorities on this motion herein due to the serious nature of
the actions, the crimes committed in the various frauds upon the Courts and what now
appears to many to be a gruesome bloody matter of foul play while certain Courts
continue on in the machinery of fraud denying access presently to proper records and
discovery.

WHEREFORE, Third-Party Defendant Eliot I. Bernstein respectfully prays for an Order
granting 30 days extension to file the responses to the dispositive motions herein or alternatively
no less than 15 days to complete such act and for such other and further relief as may be just and

proper.

Respectfully Submitted,

Date: July 17th, 2016

/sl Eliot lvan Bernstein

Eliot Ivan Bernstein

Third Party Defendant/Cross Plaintiff
PRO SE

2753 NW 34th St.

Boca Raton, FL 33434

Telephone (561) 245-8588
iviewit@iviewit.tv

wWwWw.iviewit.tv

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on July 17th, 2016 I electronically filed the foregoing with the

Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF and/or email. I also certify that the foregoing is being served
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this day on all counsel of record identified below via transmission of Notices of Electronic Filing

generated by CM/ECF or in some other authorized manner.

/s/ Eliot lvan Bernstein

Eliot Ivan Bernstein

Third Party Defendant/Cross Plaintiff
PRO SE

2753 NW 34th St.

Boca Raton, FL 33434

Telephone (561) 245-8588
iviewit@iviewit.tv

www.iviewit.tv

SERVICE LIST

James J. Stamos and
STAMOS & TRUCCO LLP
One East Wacker Drive, Third Floor
Chicago, IL 60601
Attorney for Intervenor,
Estate of Simon Bernstein
jstamos@stamostrucco.com,
dvasquez@stamostrucco.com
and
Kevin Patrick Horan
sberkin@stamostrucco.com,
khoran@stamostrucco.com

Adam Michael Simon, Esq. Ted Bernstein,

#6205304 880 Berkeley
303 East Wacker Drive, Boca Raton, FL 33487
Suite 2725 tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.com

Chicago, Illinois 60601
Attorney for Plaintiffs
(312) 819-0730
asimon@chicago-law.com

Alan B. Rose, Esq.
PAGE,MRACHEK,FITZGERALD,
ROSE, KONOPKA, THOMAS &
WEISS, P.A.

505 South Flagler Drive, Suite 600
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401
arose@pm-law.com

and

arose(@mrachek-law.com

Pamela Simon Estate of Simon Bernstein
President Personal Representative

STP Enterprises, Inc. Brian M. O'Connell, Partner and
303 East Wacker Drive Joielle Foglietta, Esq.

Suite 210 Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O’Connell

Chicago IL 60601-5210

) 515 N Flagler Drive
psimon(@stpcorp.com

20th Floor
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com

Jill lantoni

2101 Magnolia Lane
Highland Park, IL 60035
jilliantoni@gmail.com

Lisa Friedstein David B. Simon, Esq.

2142 Churchill Lane #6205304

Highland Park, IL 60035 303 East Wacker Drive, Suite 2725
Lisa@friedsteins.com Chicago, Illinois 60601
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lisa.friedstein@gmail.com Attorney for Plaintiffs
lisa@friedsteins.com (312) 819-0730
Michael Duane Sanders mds@ pw- Glenn E. Heilizer John M. O'Halloran joh@mcveyparsky-
law.com, sjohnson@pw-law.com glenn@heilizer.com law.com
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE Northern District of lllinois — CM/ECF LIVE, Ver 6.1.1
Eastern Division

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd
6/21/95, et al.

Plaintiff,
V. Case No.:
1:13-cv-03643
Honorable John
Robert Blakey
Eliot Bernstein
Defendant.

NOTIFICATION OF DOCKET ENTRY

This docket entry was made by the Clerk on Monday, July 18, 2016:

MINUTE entry before the Honorable John Robert Blakey: Eliot Bernstein's
motion for extension of time [252] is granted. Any response to dispositive motions shall
be filed on or before 8/26/2016; replies shall be filed on or before 10/6/2016. The 7/21/16
Notice of Motion date is stricken, and the parties need not appear. The status hearing
previously set for 9/20/2016 is stricken and reset for 10/27/2016 at 9:45 a.m. in
Courtroom 1725. Mailed notice(gel, )

ATTENTION: This notice is being sent pursuant to Rule 77(d) of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure or Rule 49(c) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. It was
generated by CM/ECF, the automated docketing system used to maintain the civil and
criminal dockets of this District. If a minute order or other document is enclosed, please
refer to it for additional information.

For scheduled events, motion practices, recent opinions and other information, visit our
web site at www.ilnd.uscourts.gov.
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,

Plaintiff,

V.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Defendant,

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY

V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant
and,

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA,
Successor in interest to LaSalle National
Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST,)
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
|
Counter-Plaintiff )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Case No. 13 cv 3643
Honorable John Robert Blakey
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95,
Ted Bernstein, as Trustee and
Individually,

Pamela B. Simon

(“Plaintiffs”)

PLAINTIFFS’ SUPPLEMENTAL
STATEMENT OF

UNDISPUTED MATERIAL FACTS IN
SUPPORT OF THEIR MOTION FOR
SUMMARY JUDGMENT
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Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95,
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN

Third-Party Defendants.

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff
V.

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

both Professionally and Personally
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P.
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON, )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
g
Third-Party Defendants. )
)

Plaintiffs, pursuant to Local Rule 56.1, submit the following supplemental statement of
uncontested material facts, including a supplemental appendix of exhibits hereto, in support of

their motion for summary judgment.
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l. INTRODUCTION

On March 27, 2015, Plaintiff’s filed their initial statement of undisputed facts numbered
1-75, in support of their motion for summary judgment. [Dkt. #150, PItf’s Statement of
Undisputed Facts]. Plaintiff’s motion for summary judgment was denied. [Dkt. #220].
Now the Estate of Simon Bernstein (the “Estate”) has filed its motion for summary judgment
claiming that Plaintiff’s cannot prove their claim to the Policy Proceeds and in the absence of
a named beneficiary of the Policy, the Estate takes the Policy Proceeds by default.

In order to respond to and overcome the Estate’s motion for summary judgment,
Plaintiffs must again set forth the undisputed facts that support their claims. Within the last
two months, Plaintiffs were able to obtain the Affidavit of Robert Spallina, Simon
Bernstein’s final estate planning attorney. Plaintiff served the affidavit upon all parties in
this litigation on July 15, 2016. In the interest of clarity and economy, instead of submitting
an entirely new statement of undisputed facts, Plaintiff is incorporating by reference its initial
statement of undisputed facts and then filing this supplemental statement in order to set forth
the additional undisputed facts contained in the Affidavit of Robert Spallina.

Plaintiffs recognize that its Initial Statement of Undisputed Facts contains references to
certain testimony involving conversations between Plaintiffs (and interested persons) and the
decedent that this court ruled were inadmissible under the Illinois Dead Man’s Act.
Plaintiffs’ memorandum in opposition to the Estate’s motion for summary judgment does not

rely upon such excluded testimony.
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1. PLAINTIFF’S SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT OF UNDISPUTED FACTS

76. In October of 2013, and then again in 2014 after the Estate intervened, Plaintiffs
served all parties with Rule 26 disclosures which disclosed Donald Tescher and Robert Spallina
(erroneously referred to at times as Ronald Spallina) and the law firm of Tescher & Spallina as
potential witnesses in this matter. On July 15, 2016, Plaintiff served all parties in this litigation
with the Affidavit of Robert Spallina who was Simon Bernstein’s final estate planning attorney
in the years before his death. Also, attached to the Affidavit of Robert Spallina are his
contemporaneous notes from his 2012 estate planning meetings with Simon Bernstein to which
he makes reference in his Affidavit. (Ex. 37, Affidavit of Robert Spallina).

77. Currently and for the past several years, there have been several actions pending in
the Palm Beach County Court, Probate Division. Certain testamentary trusts (not the insurance
trusts at issue here) and the Will of Simon Bernstein have been filed with and submitted to the
Probate Court.

78. On December 15, 2015, after a bench trial was held, and where Eliot Bernstein
appeared and represented himself pro se, Judge John L. Phillips entered an Order including the
following:

a. This was a “Final Judgment” on Count II of the Amended Complaint;

b. A trial was held on December 15, 2015 pursuant to the Court’s Order setting trial
on Amended Complaint Count II;

c. The Court received evidence in the form of documents and testimony of
witnesses;

d. The Court heard argument from counsel and pro se parties who wished to argue;

e. The Court found that five testamentary documents, including the Will of Simon
Bernstein and a Simon Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated
July 25, 2012 are “genuine and authentic, and are valid and enforceable according
to their terms.”
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f. That based on evidence presented, “Ted S. Bernstein, Trustee, was not involved in
the preparation or creation of the Testamentary Documents...Ted S. Bernstein
played no role in any questioned activities of the law firm of Tescher & Spallina,
P.A., who represented Simon and Shirley when they were alive. There is no
evidence to support the assertion of Eliot Bernstein that Ted Bernstein forged or
fabricated any of the Testamentary Documents, or aided or abetted others in
forging or fabricating documents. The evidence shows Ted Bernstein played no
role in the preparation of any improper documents, the presentation of any
improper documents to the Court, or any other improper act, contrary to the
allegations of Eliot Bernstein.

g. Thisruling is intended to be a Final Judgment under Rule 9.170 of the Florida
Rules of Appellate Procedure...” (Ex. 38, Probate Order of 12/15/15, Ted
Bernstein, as Trustee of Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement v. Alexandra
Bernstein...Eliot Bernstein, et. al. No. 502014CP003698.)

Dated: August 24, 2016 Respectfully submitted,

[s/ Adam Simon

Adam Simon, Esqg.
#6205304

303 East Wacker Drive
Suite 2725

Chicago, Illinois 60601
(312) 819-0730
Attorney for Plaintiffs
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,

Plaintiff,

V.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Defendant,

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY

Counter-Plaintiff

V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant
and,

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA,
Successor in interest to LaSalle National

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
;
Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST, )

Case No. 13 cv 3643
Honorable John Robert Blakey
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95,

Ted Bernstein, as Trustee and
Individually,

Pamela B. Simon, Jill lantoni, Lisa
Friedstein, David Simon, Adam Simon,
The Simon Law Firm, and STP
Enterprises, Inc.

SUPPLEMENTAL

APPENDIX TO PLAINTIFFS’
STATEMENT OF UNDISPUTED
MATERIAL FACTS IN SUPPORT OF
THEIR MOTION FOR

SUMMARY JUDGMENT
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N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95,
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN

Third-Party Defendants.

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff
V.

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON,
both Professionally and Personally
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P.
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES

Third-Party Defendants.

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

Plaintiff’s, pursuant to Local Rule 56.1, submit the following supplemental appendix to their

statement of uncontested material facts in support of their motion for summary judgment:
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EXHIBIT # DESCRIPTION

1 Financial Activity from Issue
Bates No. JCK001252-1259

2 Receipt from Registry of the Court for Policy Proceeds
Bates No. BT000106

3 Part | of Application
Bates No. JCK00419

4 VEBA Beneficiary Designation
Bates No. BT000001

5 Specimen Policy
Bates No. JCK001098-1117

6 Statement of Policy Cost and Benefit Info.
Bates No. JCK001023-24

7 NSA Letter regarding change of VEBA Trustee
Bates No. JCK000365

8 Capitol Bankers Request Letter, Confirmation and Cert. of Coverage
Bates No. JCK000370, 372, 514 and 554

9 Secretary of State Database Screenshot-S.B. Lexington, Inc.
Bates No. BT00027

10 Owner Change Confirmation
Bates No. JCK000560

11 Capitol Bankers Request Letter and Owner Confirmation
Bates No. JCK000566 and 563

12 Certificate of Death of Simon Bernstein
Bates No. JCK001311

13 Application for Reinstatement
Bates No. JCK00213-217

14 Confirmation of Reinstatement

Bates No. JCK000294




Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 255-1 Filed 08/24/16 Page 4 of 5 PagelD 4356
Case: 17-3595  Document: 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018  Pages: 547

EXHIBIT# | DESCRIPTION

15 Draft of Bernstein Trust with Meta Data
Bates No. BT000002-000012

16 Draft of Bernstein Trust with handwritten notes
Bates No. BT000014-000022

17 Diagram of Beneficiaries

18 Lincoln Benefit Policy Transfer of Ownership
Bates No. BT000112

19 SS-4 Form for Bernstein Trust Tax I.D.

Bates No. BT000104

20 Equifax Report
Bates No. JCK001084

21 National Service Association, Illinois
Secretary of State Screenshot

22 National Service Association, Florida
Secretary of State Screenshot

23 Heritage Union Life Insurance Company
Rule 12(b)(6) Motion to Dismiss

24 Will of Simon L. Bernstein
Dated July 25, 2012

25 Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint

26 Eliot Bernstein’s Answer, Counterclaims, Cross-Claims, and Third-Party
Claims

27 Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Intervenor Complaint

28 Insurer’s Interpleader Complaint

29 Affidavit of Don Sanders




Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 255-1 Filed 08/24/16 Page 5 of 5 PagelD 4357

Case: 17-3595  Document: 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018  Pages: 547
30 Affidavit of Ted Bernstein
31 Affidavit of Pam Simon
32 Affidavit of David Simon
33 Affidavit of Jill lantoni
34 Affidavit of Lisa Friedstein
35 Transcript of Deposition of David Simon
36 Heritage Letter to Simon Bernstein
37 Affidavit of Robert Spallina w/notes

38

Probate Court Order Dated 12/15/15
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,
by Ted S. Bernstein, its Trustee, Ted S.
Bermnstein, an individual,

Pamela B. Simon, an individual,

Jill Iantoni, an individual and Lisa S.
Friedstein, an individual.

Case No. 13 cv 3643
Honorable Amy J. St. Eve
Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

Plaintiff,
\Z

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY, '
Defendant,

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY, :

. Counter-Plaintiff
v,

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
TRUST DTD 6/21/95,

Counter-Defendant
and,

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK -
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee
Death Benefit Trust, et al.,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Third-Party Defendants. )
)

AFFIDAVIT OF ROBERT L. SPALLINA

L. My name is Robert L. Spallina. I am over the age of eighteen, and if duly sworn I

could competently and voluntarily testify to the facts set forth herein.
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2. While he was alive, Simon L. Bernstein (“Simon Bernstein’) was a client of my then
law firm, Tescher & Spallina, P.A. ("Firm"). The Firm and I provided estate planning advice and
represented Simon Bernstein in connection with the preparation and execution of various
testamentary documents from late 2007 until his death on September 13, 2012.

3. At all times material to my representation of Simon Bernstein, I was an attorney
admitted to practice in the state of Florida. I hold a Bachelor of Science in accounting from the
University of Florida Fisher School of Accounting; a Juris Doctor from Loyola Law School in Los
Angeles, California; and a Master of Laws Degree in Estate Planning from the University of Miami
‘School of Law. I.am a former Certified Public Accountant and Certiﬁed Financial Planner, and
began my career with KPMG Peat Marw1ck in Los, Angeles Iwas adxmtted to the Florida Bar in |
20()1 and focused my practice on wealth transfer planmng, post-mortem planning, probate and
related matters for high net worth individuals and families. |

4, Of relevance to ﬂllS lawsult concerning the proceeds of a.iife ineurance policy, during
the spring and early summer 2012, Simon Bernistein asked our Firm to assist him in modifying his :- .
testamentary doeuments. During this time, while discussing and reviewing his overall estate plan, -
Simon Bernstein and Ispeciﬁcally discussed the insurance policy at issue.

S. Simon Bernstein told me he owned:a life insurance policy with a current death benefit
of $1.6 miliion (the "Policy"). This is reﬂectect in nly attached notes of a.meeting with Simon - --
Bernstein on February 1, 2012, During this meeting and over the course of the next few months,
Simon Bernstein and I discussed the Polidy as part of his estate planning.

6. Simon Bernstein told me that the mtended beneficiaries of the Policy were his five

children equally, through an 1rrevocable hfe insurance trust that was the named beneficiary of the
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Policy. On February 1, 2012, Simon Bernstein was considering giving part of the Policy proceeds

to his girlfriend, Maritza Puccio. My notes reflect discussion of an increasing scale for Maritza:

0-2 yrs 250k
2-4yrs -~ 500k
>4 yrs 600k
7. I advised Simon Bernstein against changing the beneficiaries of his Policy to include

Maritza, and ultimately (even though Simon Bernstein requested a form to change the beneficiaries)
Simon Bernstein decided to leave the beneficiary unchanged.
8. Simon Bernstein also wanted to change other parts of his estate plan in 2012,

- Primarily, he wanted to change his current estate plan whzch Jbenefitted only three of his five.

"+ children; and had caused some family dlsharmony As pan of these dlscussmns, Slmon Bernstein . - .

and I again dlscussed the Policy. In the end, Simon Bernstein told me he had decided to leave the
*. Policy unchanged, so that all of the proceeds would go equally to his five children through the }.995 '
~. - Trust. Having thus provided for all of his children, Simon Bernstein decided toaltér his testamentary. - :.-
.. documents and to exercise a power of appointment he held':to leave all of his family's-wealth to his .-
ten grandchildren equally.
© 9. - As soon as Simon Bernstein mdde that. decision, he instructed me to set up a
" conference call with his children. Simon Bernstein told thém during the call that he had decided to
leave all of the money to the ten grandchildren. He did not discuss the Policy during that call, but
Simon Bemstein and I had specifically ‘discussed the Policy as part of our estate planning

discussions.
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10.  Simon Bernstein never showed me the 1995 Trust, although we discussed several
times the fact that (i) the 1995 Trust had been created and, (ii) now that his wife had died, the
beneficiaries of the 1995 Trust were his five adult children: Ted, Pam, Bliot, Jill and Lisa, each of
whom would receive one-fifth, or 20%, of the proceeds of the Policy. In 2012, Simon Bernstein
made no changes to the Policy’s ownership or beneficiary.

11.  Inlight of Simon Bernstein’s overall estate plan, including our specific discussions
about the beneficiaries of the proceeds of the Policy, Simon Bernstein in fact executed new
testamentary documents. Under Simon Bernstein's new Will and his Amended and Restated Trust
Agreement, both of which were formally executed on July 25, 2012, his ten grandchildren are the

. ultimate beneficiaries of all of his wealth other than the Policy, which I have no doubt he intended
‘to goto his children.. |
12.  Thefinal testamentary documents Simon Bernstein signed on July 25,2012, were the
... last ones: Simon Bernstein signed bef:ore he died on September 13, 2012, - P et

- 513, .+ Based-upon-my direct and-personal involvement in:meeting and discussing matters

with Simon Bernstein, and' my-personal knowledge of Simon Bernstein's testamentary documents . .

and his stated intent, I believe that Simon Bernstein was aware of and believed that the 1995 Trist-
existed and was named as the sole beneficiary of the Policy, or that Simon Bernstein was aware of
- and believed that the beneficiaries of the 1995 Trust (given that his wife had passed away) weré his
five adult children, who would each receive 20% of the life insurance proceeds.

14, Having discussed these matters with Simon Bernstein, and based upon my years of
experience as an estate planning lawyer, Simon Bernstein understcod that he retained ownership of

the Policy. Simon Bernstein always wanted maximum flexibility to change his estate plan, and
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putting ownership oi:‘ the Policy into an irrevocable trust (such as the 2000 trust drafted by lawyers
at Proskauer Rose) would have taken away Simon Bernstein's ability to change the Policy or the
beneficiaries. Because Simon Bernstein remained the owner of the policy, he had the ability to
change the beneficiary from the ILIT to a different beneficiary or beneficiaries up until the moment

he died.

15. I also know from discussions with Simon Bernstein that he was aware of asset
protection issues and was aware that the Policy proceeds would be exempt from his creditors, even
if Simon Bernstein owned the Policy on the date of his death. Simon Bernstein would not have
desired or intended to subject the proceeds of the Policy to claims of his creditors.

‘. -16. "  Further, Iknow fromdiscussions with Simon Bemsteintl.lat he was-aware of avoiding.
probate of assets. Under the structure he and I discussed, in whicﬁ thé Bene‘ﬁciary of .the Policy was. .
the 1995 Trust, the proceeds of the Policy would pass outside of probate. Simon Bernstein would

not havedesired or intended to subject these assets to-probate, so if the 1995 Trust did not exist; I-.

‘would have advised (and I believe Simon Bernstein-would have:followed my advice) that-a new. - - :

* - Trust document be drafted and executed-at the same time as. Simon'Bernstein's new testarhentary-. .. . . .

. documents on July 25; 2012.

17.. . Above all else, I know. from discussions with Simon.Bernstein that he wanted to : . .

. shield all of his assets from creditors, and in fact he was sued by William Stansbury shortly before
his death. Stansbury was a former shareholder with Simaon.Bernstein in a business, and Simon
Bernstein felt betrayed by Stansbury having sueéd Simon Bernstein:

18.  Simon Bernstein removed Stansbury as a fiduciary when he executed new

testamentary documents on July 25, 2012, and I do not believe Simon Bernstein would have allowed
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the Policy to be subjected to creditors' claims, especially Stansbury, by misrepresenting to me that

a 1995 Trust existed if one did not.

19.  Based upon the foregoing, I believe that Simon Bernstein intended the Policy

proceeds to be paid to his 1995 Trust, for the benefit of his five children.

FURTHER —
Dated:‘ér:n’;?_é 2016

Robert S

.&J\'
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS _{ DAY OF%U’N%,_ZOM, by
ROBERT SPALLINA, who is personally known to me or O provided the following
identification: - : . .

e Mo Colevechin
oo a0 Colloechip

EXPIRES: Degsmbar 28, 2018

g :
’% WO WWW.AARONNOTARY. GO County of Palm Beach, FL

LN

iy,



Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 255-2 Filed 08/24/16 Page 8 of 8 PagelD 4365

Case: 17-3595  Document: 12-

&D ﬁfﬁd‘/fr?ﬁj :

C O

..... L Flled 03/12/2018 Pages547

)
/P C — /Z!’zﬂ\rf"?f—(' T \/706 /C
CIC /reaem o ~ oo
(] -rn §oo L
Vi : /
'_Lbﬂﬂfh -, ‘% [;7*/,7- l{hruf f:,ff‘m 74)0
f2q JoN| - fecr - Aia P~
S bOH - Tq - , 7S s N
' (- JT ~
™ 7=~
) W Naa
Wrvr i Vi (/"“‘:ff‘ _Z@f_ /’CL’(__L/
— (il R = / O M B (;9; ~
- Preer ~  y, O VAN
- ”/2, letg - [ LT LB
/ Ak
rerc =
ml’,fll a 7;9 é/ y Vi yd ]
Loaal =00 20 — @ [Jrwc(lr)
[o Lo —
?&#% ~ < £ .
V! = JIT
A (—\M/‘w-r-/qr




Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 255-3 Filed 08/24/16 Page 1 of 6 PagelD 4366
Case: 17-3595 . Document: 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018  Pages: 547

EXHIBIT 38
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IN. THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND
FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

TED BERNSTEIN, as Trustee
of the Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement
dated May 20, 2008, as amended,

Plaintiff,
V.

ALEXANDRA BERNSTEIN; ERIC BERN STEIN;
MICHAEL BERNSTEIN; MOLLY SIMON;
PAMELA B. SIMON, Individually and as Trustee
f/b/o Molly Simon under the Simon L. Bemstein
Trust Dtd 9/13/12; ELIOT BERN STEIN, individually,
as Trustee f/b/o D.B., Ja. B. and Jo. B. under the
Simon L. Bernstein Trust Dtd 9/13/ 12, and on

behalf of his minor children D.B., Ja. B. and Jo. B.;
JILL JANTONI, Individually, as Trustee f/b/o JI.
under the Simon L. Bernstein Trust Dtd 9/13/ 12, and
on behalf of her Minor child J.I; MAX FRIEDSTEIN;
LISA FRIEDSTEIN, Individually, as Trustee f/b/o
Max Friedstein and C.F., under the Simon L.
Bernstein Trust Dtd 9/13/ 12, and on behalf of her
minor child, C.F.,

Defendants.

Probate Division
Case No.: 502014CP003 698X XX XNBIJ

/

FINAL JUDGMENT ON COUNT II OF THE AMENDED COMPLAINT
SRl AN LVOUNL L OF THE AMENDED COMPLAINT

This cause came before the Court for trial on December 15, 2015, pursuant to the Court's

ORDER SETTING TRIAL on AMENDED C OMPLAINT (DE 26) COUNT II dated September 24,

2015. The Court, having received evidence in the form of documents and testimony of witnesses,
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having heard argument of counse] and pro se parties who wished to argue, and being otherwise fully
advised of the premises, hereby enters a Final J udgment as to Count II of the Amended Complaint:

1. This is an action for declaratory judgment to determine the validity, authenticity and
enforceability of éertain wills and trusts executed by Simon Bernstein and Shirley Bernstein, as
follows:

A. Shirley Bemnstein Trust Agreement dated May 20, 2008 ("Shirley
Trust", attached to the Amended Complaint as Exhibit Ag, % PA AT TR A'L) XZO

B. First Amendment to Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement dated
November 18, 2008 ("Shirley First Amendment", attached to the
Amended Complaint as Exhibit By, ¢ Pz Arrex <) CV?

C. Will of Simon L. Bemstein dated July 25, 2012 ("Simon Wwill", .
attached to the Amended Complaint as Exhibit Cy, &x. £4 At mcm:) (ﬁ—;g
D. Simon L. Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated

July 25,2012 ("Simon Trust", attached to the Amended Complaint as
Exhibit Dy amdt = Ps™ g TRk ) Qe

E. Will of Shirley Bemstein dated May 20, 2008 ("Shirley Will",
attached to the Amended Complaint as Exhibjt Ej, ¢x. P1 AT TP“‘"Q A/%)
(collectively, the “Testamentary Documents”).

2. Based upon the evidence presented during the trial, the Court finds that the
Testamentary Documents, as offered in evidence by Plaintiff, are genuine and authentic, and are
valid and enforceable according to their terms.

3. The Court finds that Simon's Testamentary Documents were signed by Simon and
Shirley's Testamentary Documents were signed by Shirley, in the presence of two attesting witnesses

who signed in the presence of the testator and in the presence of each other. § 732.502, Fla. Stat.;

§ 736.0403(2)(b), Fla. Stat.

Page 2 of 5
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4. . The Court finds the Testamentary Documents meet the requirements for self-proof,
as specified in §732.503, Fla. Stat. Alternatively, the Testamentary Documents were properly
admitted based upon the testimony of at least one of the attesting witnesses, which occurred.
§733.201, Fla. Stat.

S. Based on the evidence presented, the Court finds that Plaintiff, Ted S. Bernstein,
Trustee, was not involved in the preparation or creation of the Testamentary Documents. ez, XL‘)
Ted S. Bernstein had never seen the documents before his father's death. Muerssw=; Ted S. Bernstein rp
played no role in any questioned activities of the law firm Tescher & Spallina, PA, who represented .

ELIST BERNSTEY >

Simon and Shirley while they were alive. There is no evidence to support the sertionsA that Ted
Bernstein forged or fabricated any of the Testamentary Documents, or aided and abetted others in
forging or fabricating documents. SthTed Bernstein played no role in the preparation of any 6«‘

improper documents; the presentation of any improper documents to the Court; or any other

improper act, contrary to the allegations of Eliot Bernstein, made-in-the-pleadines-in-this-ease-ori

6. Based on the evidence presented, the Court finds that an unauthorized version of the

First Amendment to Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement was prepared sometime after Simon died.

This document} (P1. Ex. 6) was not signed by Shirley Bernstein and, therefore, is not an operative

document.

7. This ruling is intended to be a Final J udgment under Rule 9.170 of the Florida Rules
of Appellate Procedure, determining the validity of Testamentary Documents, denying any objection
to the probate of Shirley's and Simon's Wills or the validity of the Trust Agreements, and

determining which persons are entitled to recejve distributions from these trusts and estates.

Page3 of 5
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8. Based upon the rulings made by the Court in this trial of Count 11, the Court reserves

Jurisdiction to determine the remaining issues in this action.

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers, in Palm Beach County, Florida, this _[_6; day of

December, 2015.
L. Phillips ~
CUIT COURT JUDGE

cc: All parties on the attached service list

Page4of 5
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SERVICE LIST Case No.: 502014CP003698XXXXNBIJ

Eliot Bernstein, individually

and Eliot and Candice Bemnstein,
as Parents and Natural Guardians of
D.B,, Ja. B. and Jo. B, Minors

2753 NW 34th Street

Boca Raton, FL 33434

(561) 245-8588 - Telephone

(561) 886-7628 - Cell

(561) 245-8644 - Facsimile

Email: Eliot 1. Bernstein (iviewit@iviewit.tv)

John P. Morrissey, Esq.

330 Clematis Street, Suite 213

West Palm Beach, FL 33401

(561) 833-0866 - Telephone

(561) 833-0867 - Facsimile

Email: John P. Morrissey
(ichn@jmorrisseylaw.com)

Counsel for Molly Simon, Alexandra Bermnstein,
Eric Bernstein, Michael Bernstein

Lisa Friedstein, individually and as trustee for her
children, and as natural guardian for M.F. and
C.F., Minors; and Max Friedstein

lisa friedstein@gmail.com

Jill Iantoni, individually and as trustee for her
children, and as natural guardian for J.I. a minor

jilliantoni@gmail.com

Alan Rose, Esq.

Mrachek Fitzgerald Rose
Konopka Thomas & Weiss, P.A.
505 S Flagler Drive, Suite 600
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
(561) 655-2250 - Telephone
(561) 655-5537 - Facsimile

Email; arose@mrachek-law.com

Pamela Beth Simon
303 E. Wacker Drive, Suite 2725
Chicago, IL 60601

Email: psimon(@stpcorp.com

Brian M. O’Connell, Esq.

Joielle A. Foglietta, Esq.

Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O’Connell
515 N. Flagler Dr., 20th Floor
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
561-832-5900 - Telephone
561-833-4209 - Facsimile

Email: boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com:;
jfoglietta@ciklinlubitz.com;
service@ciklinlubitz.com;
slobdell@ciklinlubitz.com

PageSof 5




Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 256 Filed 08/24/16 Page 1 of 18 PagelD 4372
Case: 17-3595  Document: 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018  Pages: 547

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE

INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,
Plaintiff, Case No. 13 cv 3643

Honorable John Robert Blakey

Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

V.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95,
Ted Bernstein, as Trustee and
Individually,

Pamela B. Simon

(“Plaintiffs”)

Defendant,

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY

Counter-Plaintiff
PLAINTIFFS’ SUPPLEMENTAL
STATEMENT OF

UNDISPUTED MATERIAL FACTS IN
SUPPORT OF THEIR MOTION FOR
SUMMARY JUDGMENT

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95

Counter-Defendant
and,

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employe
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA,
Successor in interest to LaSalle National
Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST, )
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95, )
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN )
)

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
e)
)
)
)
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Third-Party Defendants.

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff
V.

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and
as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
and,

PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON,
both Professionally and Personally
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P.
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES

Third-Party Defendants.

N N/ N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

NOW COMES Plaintiffs, Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust dated June 21,
1995, by Ted Bernstein, as Trustee, Ted Bernstein, individually, and Pamela Simon
(“Plaintiffs”), by and through their undersigned counsel, and respectfully submit this
memorandum of law in opposition to the motion for summary judgment filed on behalf of the

Estate of Simon Bernstein (the “Estate”).
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l. FACTUAL BACKGROUND

A. THE PARTIES
Please see SoF Y1-125 for a review of the identity and status of the parties. *
B. THE PoLicy

The Policy was originally purchased from Capitol Bankers by the VEBA in December of
1982 to insure the life Simon Bernstein. The “Policy” was issued as Policy No. 1009208 with an

original sum insured of $2,000,000.00. (SoF 26; Ex. 5)

C. THE INSURED

Simon Bernstein was the Insured under the Policy. Shirley, his spouse, predeceased
Simon Bernstein. The identity of the Insured is not in dispute, nor does anyone dispute that the

Insured passed away on September 13, 2012. (SoF, 126, 152, 68; Ex. 12)

D. THE INSURER

The Insurer of the Policy changed over the life of the Policy from time to time through
corporate succession. The Insurer has been previously dismissed from this case after having
deposited the Policy Proceeds with the Registry of the Court. Prior to its dismissal, the Insurer
did not dispute either the existence of the Policy or its liability for the Policy Proceeds following

the death of the insured. (SoF Y11)

E. THE PoLICY PROCEEDS (THE “STAKE”)

In the Insurer’s Complaint for Interpleader, the Insurer represented that the net death

benefit payable under the Policy on the date of Simon Bernstein’s death was $1,689,070 (less an

! Pursuant to Local Rule 56.1, Plaintiffs filed their original statement of uncontested facts for their initial motion for
summary judgment on March 27, 2015 [Dkt. #150]. Plaintiffs have now filed a filed their Supplemental Statement
of Uncontested Material Facts simultaneously herewith. Collectively, Plaintiff’s Statements of Uncontested Facts
and the Supplemental Statement of Facts are referred to herein as (“SoF”).

1
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outstanding policy loan). (Ex. 28 at §17). In its Rule 26 disclosures and in the Affidavit of Don
Sanders, the Insurer provided documentation and testimony verifying the amount of the Policy
Proceeds. No objections were made by any Party to this litigation regarding the amount of the

Policy Proceeds that the Insurer deposited with the Registry of the Court. (SoF 111)

F. THE PoLIcY PROVISIONS ON BENEFICIARIES

The Policy provisions which set forth both the definitions of a beneficiary under the
Policy, and the requirements for naming or changing a beneficiary of the Policy are the
controlling factors in making the determination as to whom is the beneficiary of the Policy
Proceeds. Bank of Lyons v. Schultz, 22 I1l.App.3d 410, 415, 318 N.E.2d 52, 57 (1% Dist., 1974)
citing 2 Appelman, Insurance Law and Practice §921 (1966). In this instance, the Policy defines

“Beneficiary” as follows:

A Beneficiary is any person named on our [the Insurer’s] records to receive proceeds of
this policy after the insured dies. There may be different classes of Beneficiaries, such as
primary and contingent. These classes set the order of payment. There may be more than
one beneficiary in a class. Unless you provide otherwise, any death benefit that becomes
payable under this policy will be paid in equal shares to the Beneficiaries living at the
death of the Insured. Payments will be made successively in the following order:
(emphasis added)

a. Primary Beneficiaries.

b. Contingent Beneficiaries, if any, provided no primary Beneficiary is living at the
death of the Insured.

C. The Owner or the Owner’s executor or administrator, provided no Primary or
Contingent Beneficiary is living at the death of the Insured.

Any Beneficiary may be named an Irrevocable Beneficiary. An irrevocable beneficiary
is one whose consent is needed to change that Beneficiary. Also, this Beneficiary must
consent to the exercise of certain other rights by the Owner. We discuss ownership in
part 2. (SoF, 126; Ex. 5 at bates no. JCK00101).

Here, the application for the Policy indicates that initial Policy Owner designated “First

Arlington Bank, Trustee of S.B. Lexington Employee Death Benefit Trust” [the “VEBA™] as the
2
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Beneficiary of the Policy. This was accomplished by the Policy Owner completing the

beneficiary section of the application. (SoF, 128).

The Policy also includes the Insurer’s requirements for the Policy Owner to effectuate a

change of beneficiary. With regard to changing the beneficiary, the Policy provides as follows:

The Owner or any Beneficiary may be changed during the Insured’s lifetime. We do not
limit the number of changes that may be made. To make a change, a written request,
satisfactory to us, must be received at our Business Office. The change will take effect as
of the date the request was signed, even if the Insured dies before we receive it. Each
change will be subject to any payment we made or other action we took before receiving
the request. (Ex. 5 at bates #JCK00103). (emphasis added).

G. THE DESIGNATED BENEFICIARIES OF THE PoLICY

According to the records of the Insurer, the last change of Beneficiaries was submitted to
the Insurer by the Policy Owner on or about November 27, 1995. (SoF, 1133). As a result of that
last change of Beneficiaries, the Beneficiaries of the Policy proceeds designated by the Owner as
of the Insured’s date of death (Sept. 13, 2012), were as follows: LaSalle National Trust, as
Successor Trustee (primary beneficiary), and Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust dtd

June 21, 1995 (contingent beneficiary). (SoF, 33 and /34)

The VEBA was an employee benefit plan that provided death benefits to the beneficiaries
of the S.B. Lexington VEBA plan participants. The Policy was initially purchased by the VEBA
and at Policy issuance the VEBA was both Policy Owner and Primary Beneficiary. (SoF, 127
and 128). As part of the VEBA, the plan participant (an S.B. Lexington Employee), was
authorized to designate his/her intended beneficiary of their death benefit under the VEBA.
Simon Bernstein, as a plan participant, executed a beneficiary designation form for the death

benefits provided through the VEBA. In August of 1995, Simon Bernstein designated the
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“Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust” as his beneficiary for the death benefit provided

through the VEBA. (SoF, 132; Ex. 4)

Simon Bernstein’s beneficiary designation form which contains his designation of the
Bernstein Trust as his beneficiary for the VEBA death benefit provides extremely strong
corroborating evidence of both (i) the existence of the Bernstein Trust; and (ii) Simon

Bernstein’s intent that the beneficiary of the Policy is the Bernstein Trust. (SoF, 132; EX. 4).

Plaintiffs also submit a simple diagram (Ex. 17) which is referred to and explained in
Ex. 30, Aff. of Ted Bernstein at 105-1106. This diagram illustrates that whether the Policy
Proceeds were paid to the Primary Beneficiary -- the VEBA-- or the Contingent Beneficiary --
the Bernstein Trust, the result is the same. Ultimately, the Policy Proceeds are to be paid to the

Bernstein Trust. (SoF, 44)

In 1998, S.B. Lexington was voluntarily dissolved and the VEBA terminated at the same
time. In conjunction with this dissolution, the ownership of the Policy was also changed in 1998
from the VEBA to Simon Bernstein. So, as of 1998, it is undisputed that the Primary
Beneficiary under the Policy, the VEBA, had ceased to exist, and thus the sole surviving

beneficiary was the contingent beneficiary, the 1995 Bernstein Trust. (SoF Y21 and /36)

ARGUMENT

A. STANDARDS

Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the summary judgment standards set forth by the court

in its Order of March 16, 2016. [Dkt. #220 at p.1-2].
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B. GOVERNING LAW

Where an insurance policy is the result of an application to an agent of the insurance
company within a state, the policy after having been issued, delivered by the company’s agent
within the state, and the premiums paid by the insured within the state to the company, the policy
becomes a contract of that state, subject to the applicable laws of said state. Where the most
significant contacts of the contract are made, the applicable law of that place is controlling.
Minnesota Mut. Life Ins. Co. v. Sullivant, 334 F.Supp 346, 349 (1971), citing New York Life Ins.

Co. v Head, 234 U.S. 149, 34 S.Ct. 879, 58 L.Ed. 1259 (1914).

Here, the law of the state of Illinois controls because it is undisputed that the first Policy
Owner, the VEBA, was domiciled at the offices of its Bank Trustee located in Illinois. Simon
Bernstein was the agent who sold the Policy and it is undisputed that when he sold the Policy he
was a citizen of the state of Illinois, and the Policy would have been delivered to the Owner in
the state of Illinois. Simon Bernstein was also the insured under the Policy and the application
was signed in Illinois. (SoF 128). In short, all of the significant contacts with regard to the
application, sale and delivery of the Policy occurred in Illinois. Also, the affidavit of David
Simon and the drafts of the 1995 Bernstein Trust indicate it was drafted in Illinois, by Illinois

counsel pursuant to Illinois law.

C. THE SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE INSURANCE TRUST DATED JUNE 21,
1995 (THE “ 1995 BERNSTEIN TRUST”)

As set forth above, the last named Contingent Beneficiary of the Policy was the Bernstein
Trust. One of the reasons the Insurer refused to pay the Policy Proceeds to the Bernstein Trust
upon presentation of the death claim was because no one has been able to locate an original or

copy of an executed trust agreement for the Bernstein Trust. (SoF 145). But, Plaintiffs in their
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Statement of Undisputed Facts set forth a comprehensive and cohesive bundle of evidence,
including signed documentation from both the settlor and the initial trustee of the Bernstein Trust
evidencing the existence of the Bernstein Trust. In addition, Plaintiffs have supplemented their
submissions and statement of undisputed facts with the affidavit of Robert Spallina, Simon

Bernstein’s final estate planning attorney.

Earlier in this litigation, Plaintiff’s ability to secure the testimony of Mr. Spallina was
impeded. Mr. Spallina was the subject of an SEC investigation resulting in an SEC Complaint
being filed and then promptly resolved in September of 2015. Subsequently, Mr. Spallina
voluntarily placed his Florida Law License on inactive status. Mr. Spallina’s legal issues have
been sufficiently resolved such that Plaintiffs have now been able to secure Mr. Spallina’s
affidavit. Mr. Spallina’s sworn testimony is crucial because it comes from an uninterested party
whose testimony is not barred by the Illinois Dead Man’s Act. Mr. Spallina’s affidavit also
includes corroborating evidence in his contemporaneous notes which are attached to his

affidavit.

In his affidavit, Mr. Spallina attests as follows:

a. That beginning in 2007 until his death, Mr. Spallina and his law firm provided estate
planning advice and represented Simon Bernstein.

b. That in the spring and early summer of 2012, Simon Bernstein consulted Mr. Spallina
to review his estate plan.

c. That Simon Bernstein informed him that he had formed the 1995 Bernstein Trust and
that the 1995 Bernstein Trust was the beneficiary of a life insurance policy with a
death benefit of $1.6 million. Simon Bernstein informed him that the beneficiaries of
the 1995 Bernstein were Simon Bernstein’s five children.

d. That Simon Bernstein discussed making changes to the beneficiary of the insurance
policy, but Mr. Spallina advised him against it, and Simon Bernstein left the
beneficiary unchanged.
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e. That Simon Bernstein purposefully never transferred ownership or changed the
beneficiary of the Policy to the 2000 Trust that had been drafted by an attorney for
Proskauer Rose. Simon Bernstein decided to retain ownership and control of the
Policy himself.

f. That Simon Bernstein made changes to his Estate plan in 2012 to provide that the
assets in his estate would skip a generation and would go to his ten grandchildren and
not his five children.

g. That Simon Bernstein informed Robert Spallina that he intended for his life insurance
Policy proceeds to pass ultimately to his five children, in equal shares, through the
irrevocable trust that was the named beneficiary of the Policy.

h. That having discussed these matters with Simon Bernstein , it was evident to Mr.
Spallina that Simon Bernstein understood the benefits of retaining ownership and
control of the policy in his own name, and also understood the asset protection and
administrative benefits of forming and naming an irrevocable trust -- the 1995
Bernstein Trust -- as the beneficiary of the Policy. (SoF, 176-178, Ex. 37, Affidavit
of Robert Spallina).

The Illinois Dead-Man’s Act does not bar the testimony of a decedent’s attorney
regarding conversations with decedent about his testamentary intent, his will or estate plan. Inre
Estate of Sewart, 274 11l.App.3d 298, 652 N.E.2d 1151, 210 Ill.Dec. 175 (5th Dist., 1995).

In Sewart, the court reasoned as follows:

Synek's testimony was not barred by the Dead—Man's Act for several reasons. First, as the
trial court found, Synek was not an interested person. Synek would not gain or lose as an
immediate and direct result of the suit. (See In re Estate of Henke (1990), 203 11l.App.3d
975, 149 Ill.Dec. 36, 561 N.E.2d 314; Michalski v. Chicago Title & Trust Co. (1977), 50
I11.App.3d 335, 8 1ll.Dec. 416, 365 N.E.2d 654.) Synek's right to recover fees against the
estate was not contingent upon his successful defense of the estate. Moreover, Synek was
not testifying on his own behalf. (See 735 ILCS 5/8-201 (West 1992)

In Michalski, the court enforced the transfer of interests in real estate to Plaintiffs even
though the deeds were missing and unrecorded. The court allowed the testimony of the
decedent’s attorney regarding decedent’s intent to transfer the real estate to plaintiffs over the
defendant’s objection made pursuant to the Dead-Man’s Act. The trial court, sitting without a

jury, allowed the testimony finding decedent’s attorney was not an interested person for purposes

7
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of the Dead Man’s Act. The court rejected defendant’s argument that the possibility of a legal
malpractice claim somehow made the attorney directly interested in the outcome. The Trial
Court’s holdings on both the evidentiary ruling on the application of the Dead Man’s Act and the
judgment for Plaintiff were unanimously affirmed. The reviewing court agreed that despite the
missing and unrecorded deeds, Plaintiff’s evidence was “overwhelming” and sufficient to satisfy
the applicable burden of proof of clear and convincing evidence. Michalski v. Chicago Title and
Trust Co., 50 I1l.App.3d 335, 365 N.E.2d 654, 8 11l.Dec. 416 (2" Dist., 2011).

All of the same factors that made the attorneys’ testimony admissible in the Illinois case
law cited above apply to Mr. Spallina’s sworn testimony in this matter. Mr. Spallina is not an
interested person, and has nothing to gain or lose as a direct result of the outcome of this
litigation which relates only to the determination of the beneficiary of certain life insurance
proceeds in which Spallina claims no interest.

Plaintiffs have also provided sworn witness testimony and unexecuted drafts of the
Bernstein Trust Agreement establishing the terms and beneficiary of the Bernstein Trust.
Further, Plaintiffs have attached affidavits of four of Simon Bernstein’s adult children
accounting for 4/5ths of the beneficiaries of the Bernstein Trust, and these 4/5ths are all in
agreement with regard to the terms of the Bernstein Trust and intent of the Settlor. It is also
important to note that this is not a case where the four consenting beneficiaries are trying to
exclude the fifth beneficiary. Instead, the four consenting beneficiaries seek distribution of the
Policy Proceeds to all five children of Simon Bernstein as beneficiaries, including Eliot

Bernstein.
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D. THE 1995 BERNSTEIN TRUST WAS FORMALLY ESTABLISHED BY SIMON
BERNSTEIN AS AN EXPRESS TRUST.

In Butler, the lowa Supreme Court cited to an extensive array of case law on the subject
of the establishment of express trusts including several applicable citations to Illinois law and
reviewed the following pronouncements:

“Neither a statement by the settlor, nor a formal written declaration is essential to
establish a trust”. The court continued, “Whether a trust has been perfectly created is
largely a question of fact in each case, and the court in determining the fact will give
efficacy to the situation and relation of the parties, the nature and situation of the
property, and the purpose and objects which the settlor had in view.” Butler v. Butler, 253
lowa 1084, 1113, 114 N.W.2d, 595, 612 (1962) citing Perry on Trusts and Trustees, 71"
Ed, vol. 1, p.124.

Next, the Butler court cited the Illinois Supreme Court case McDiarmid as follows:

“In support of their contention that they have proved an express trust appellees rely on
our holdings in Kingsbury v. Burnside, 58 Ill. 310, 11 Am.Rep. 67, and many other
decisions, including Whetsler v. Sprague, 224 1ll. 461, 79 N.E. 667, supra. These
decisions hold that the statute of frauds has been complied with if the trustee makes a
memorandum or writing showing that the property is held in trust. The details of the trust
may be established aliunde and even by parol evidence.” Butler, 235 lowa 1084, 1114,
114 N.W.2d 595, (1962) citing McDiarmid v. McDiarmid, 368 Ill. 638, 15 N.E.2d 493
(1938)

The Butler court also held that an express trust may be proven by a writing signed by the
grantor or trustee of the trust, but not from its cestui que. Holmes v. Holmes, 65 Wash. 572, 118

P. 733, 734 (1911), Pomeroy’s Eq. Juir. (3 Ed.) §81007. The court also set forth certain legal

principles regarding the Settlor’s manifestation of his intent to create a trust. The court stated:

“Except as otherwise provided by statute, the manifestation of intention to create a trust
may be made by written or spoken words or conduct. No particular form of words or
conduct is necessary for the manifestation of intention to create a trust.(cites omitted)
Acts prior to and subsequent to, as well as acts contemporaneous with the manifestation
which it is claimed creates a trust, may be relevant in determining the settlor’s intention
to create a trust.” Butler, 235 lowa 1084, 1113, 114 N.W.2d 595, 613 (1962)
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Since an interest in real property is not at issue here, the Statute of Frauds is not
applicable. But, even if it were, Plaintiffs’ have provided ample evidence in the form of signed
writings by both the Settlor and Trustee which establish the existence of the Bernstein Trust as
an express trust. As far as written evidence which establishes the formation and existence of the

Bernstein Trust, Plaintiffs submit the following:

1. The VEBA Beneficiary Designation form is critically important because it (i) contains
the signature of the Simon Bernstein, (ii) refers to the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust”, and (iii) memorializes Simon Bernstein’s intent that the Policy
Proceeds were to be paid to the Bernstein Trust. (SoF, 132). Under the case law
discussed above, this document alone is sufficient evidence of the establishment and
existence of the Bernstein Trust.

2. The SS-4 Form used to obtain the Federal Tax Identification Number for the Bernstein
Trust is also conclusive evidence of the formation of the Bernstein Trust. The SS-4 Form
contains reference to the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust”, and is signed
and dated on June 21, 1995 by the initial trustee of the Bernstein Trust, Shirley Bernstein.
(SoF, 141). As discussed above, the signature of a Trustee is also sufficient on its own to
evidence the establishment of a trust.

3. The Beneficiary Designation Forms for the Policy submitted by the Policy Owner
designates the Bernstein Trust as a Contingent Beneficiary. (SoF, 133 and 34)

4. The unexecuted versions of the Bernstein Trust Agreement provide evidence of the
Settlor’s intent to form the trust. This document also establishes the terms of the
“irrevocable trust”. According to both drafts of the Bernstein Trust Agreement, the
beneficiaries of the Bernstein Trust are the five children in equal shares. (SoF, 150)

5. The change of owner form signed by Simon Bernstein on August 8, 1995 which
transferred his ownership interest in the Lincoln Policy to the Bernstein Trust. This
document contains the full name of the Bernstein Trust, the tax identification number of
the Bernstein Trust as reflected on the IRS SS-4 form, and it identifies the initial trustee,
Shirley Bernstein.

In addition to the documentation produced in this case, Plaintiffs have proffered
corroborating parole evidence of Simon Bernstein’s intent to i) form the Bernstein Trust: (ii)
designate the Bernstein Trust as the beneficiary of the Policy proceeds; (iii) designate his wife

Shirley Bernstein, as initial trustee, and his son Ted, as successor trustee; and (iv) designate his

10
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five children as beneficiaries of the Bernstein Trust. Such additional evidence includes the
following:

a) Affidavit of Don Sanders, Asst. Vice-President of Operations of the Insurer

b) Affidavit of Ted Bernstein (revise to include his current appointments and approvals)
c) Affidavit of Pam Simon

d) Affidavit of Jill lantoni

e) Affidavit of Lisa Friedstein

f) Affidavit of David B. Simon

g) Deposition of David B. Simon

h) Affidavit of Robert Spallina

E. PLAINTIFFS HAVE SET FORTH UNDISPUTED EVIDENCE THAT THE
BENEFICIARY OF THE PoLICY PROCEEDS IS THE BERNSTEIN TRUST.

Plaintiffs have submitted a simple diagram marked as Ex. 17 in their Appendix of
Exhibits. In his Affidavit (Ex. 30 at 1106), Ted Bernstein explains the diagram and how it
illustrates Simon Bernstein’s intent with regard to the Policy Proceeds. This diagram shows that
when Simon Bernstein executed the VEBA Member Beneficiary Form in 1995, just months after
he formed the Bernstein Trust, he expressed his intent in a signed writing that the Policy
Proceeds should be paid to the VEBA and then flow through to the Bernstein Trust (Ex. 17,
Option A). Ina belt in suspenders approach, the Bernstein Trust was also named contingent
beneficiary of the Policy as illustrated in the diagram. So, if the Insured survived the primary
beneficiary--which he did in this case--the Policy Proceeds would still be paid to the Bernstein

Trust as contingent beneficiary (Ex. 17, Option B). (SoF, 144).

Simon Bernstein spent most of his career as a life insurance agent and owner and
operator of life insurance agencies and brokerages. (SoF, Y46). Simon Bernstein knew what
was required to change an owner or beneficiary of a life insurance policy, and that the terms of

the life insurance contract, and records of the insurer determine the beneficiary of the Policy

11



Case 1:13-cv-03643 Document 256 Filed 08/24/16 Page 14 of 18 PagelD 4385
Case: 17-3595  Document: 12-8 Filed: 03/12/2018  Pages: 547

Proceeds. Approximately a year before his death, Simon Bernstein completed the necessary
paperwork and submitted the required premium to reinstate the Policy after it had lapsed. In
doing so, Simon Bernstein made no changes to the owner or beneficiary of the Policy when he

transmitted the forms to the Insurer. (SoF, 144).

F. THE ESTATE OF SIMON BERNSTEIN’S INTERVENOR COMPLAINT

Benjamin Brown, as personal representative of the Estate of Simon Bernstein (the
“Estate”) was granted leave to intervene in this litigation on July 28, 2014 (SoF, 125). But,
intervenor’s complaint does not set forth a conflicting claim to the Policy Proceeds with any
affirmative evidence that the Estate was either a primary or contingent beneficiary of the Policy.
Instead the complaint merely sets forth the Estate’s assertion that if all other claimants fail to
establish a claim to the Policy Proceeds, than the Policy Proceeds should be paid to the Estate by
default. So, when reviewing this motion the court should look at the facts and submissions and
resolve all doubt in favor of the non-moving party, the Plaintiffs. If the court determines that
Plaintiffs submissions provide sufficient support for their claims to the Policy Proceeds such that

a triable issue of fact remains, then the court must deny the Estate’s motion.

It is also important for the court to take a step back and look at what the Estate is trying to
accomplish here. The 2012 Will of Simon Bernstein, determined by the Florida court to be valid
and enforceable according to its terms, is the controlling document governing the Estate and its
actions. (SoF, 1[79). The Estate should be enforcing the “WILL” of Simon Bernstein, but instead
the personal representative is doing his level best to subvert it. A Will, by its very nature, is a
legal instrument designed to express one’s intent. Simon Bernstein’s Will contains a provision

expressly reaffirming his beneficiary designations and his intent that any proceeds of an

12
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insurance contract be paid to the designated beneficiary of that contract. (SoF 168). Despite this
proclamation of the testator’s intent, the Estate in this litigation is acting in direct contravention
and with total disregard for the intent of the testator as expressed in his last Will, and in his

beneficiary designations.

G. THE ULTIMATE BENEFICIARIES OF THE PoLICY PROCEEDS.

On March 15, 2016, this court entered an Order denying Plaintiff’s motion for summary
judgment. But in the Order, this court noted that “if the Trust was established as Plaintiffs
claimed they would entitled to summary judgment.” Thus, the court has effectively narrowed the
remaining issues in this litigation to the existence and terms of the Trust. The identity of the
only surviving beneficiary named on the records of the insurer is not in dispute, and that
beneficiary is the 1995 Bernstein Trust. The fact that the 1995 Bernstein Trust was named as the
contingent beneficiary of the Policy during the life of the owner and insured and remained that
way until his death is further evidence in and of itself of the intent of Simon Bernstein to create
the Trust. Simon Bernstein’s Will executed in 2012, just months before his death, contains
further documented evidence of his intent that the Policy proceeds should be distributed not

through his Will or Estate but through the named beneficiary of his insurance policies.

To further corroborate Simon Bernstein’s intent which resulted in his estate plan,
Plaintiffs attach the affidavit of Robert Spallina. Plaintiff was previously impaired in their
ability to obtain Mr. Spallina’s affidavit due to legal issues Mr. Spallina was facing ultimately
resulting in SEC civil penalties. The allegations related to trades of shares of a public company
Mr. Spallina and others made after meeting with clients of their law firm for estate planning

purposes. Subsequently, Mr. Spallina voluntarily placed his Florida law license on inactive

13
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status. The SEC matters do not involve to any of the parties or issues either the instant litigation

or the Florida Probate Litigation.? In his sworn affidavit, Mr. Spallina confirms that he could

competently testify to the following facts:

a.

That Mr. Spallina, and the law firm of Tescher & Spallina, P.A. represented Simon
Bernstein in connection with his estate planning and the preparation and execution of
various testamentary documents from late 2007 until Simon Bernstein’s death on
September 13, 2012.

That Mr. Spallina met with Simon Bernstein in the early spring and summer of 2012
to discuss Simon Bernstein’s estate plan and to execute certain new testamentary
documents to effectuate parts of that plan while retaining the existing beneficiary
designation for the Policy at issue.

That Mr. Spallina’s contemporaneous handwritten notes from his 2012 meetings
including notes and testimony relating to the $1.6 million life insurance Policy and
Simon Bernstein’s intent to have those Policy proceeds flow through the Bernstein
Trust to his five children, equally.

Mr. Spallina testified about Simon Bernstein having considered changing the
beneficiary designation of the Policy to include Simon Bernstein’s then girlfriend.
Mr. Spallina testified to the fact that he advised Simon Bernstein against making such
change and that Mr. Bernstein heeded that advice. As a result, no change to the
beneficiary designation was submitted to the Insurer.

That Mr. Spallina was never shown the 1995 Trust by Simon Bernstein, but, he
discussed on several occasions with Simon Bernstein that the ultimate intended
beneficiaries of the Policy proceeds was his five children equally.

That Mr. Spallina had discussions with Simon Bernstein regarding the flexibility he
retained by retaining ownership of the Policy himself as opposed to placing it in an
ILIT-such as the 2000 Trust.

That Mr. Spallina and Simon Bernstein had discussion regarding the benefit of
maintaining the 1995 Trust as beneficiary of the Policy to simplify administration,
avoid probate and assure asset protection from creditors.

That based on Mr. Spallina’s discussions with Simon Bernstein, Mr. Spallina is
certain that it was Simon Bernstein’s intent to avail himself and his family of the

2 U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, Litigation Release No. 23368/September 28, 2015
Securities and Exchange Commission v. Robert Spallina, et. al., Civil Action No. 15-cv-7118 (D.N.J.)
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estate planning benefits derived from maintaining the 1995 Trust as beneficiary of the
Policy.

i. That Spallina drafted Simon Bersntein’s 2012 Last Will. The 2012 Last Will that
Simon Bernstein executed includes a reaffirmation of his intent that all proceeds from
insurance policy flow not through his Estate but according to the beneficiary
designations for any such policy.

All of Plaintiff’s evidence jibes with the two drafts of the 1995 Bernstein Trust. Both
drafts include beneficiary designations naming Simon Bernstein’s children as the beneficiary of
the Bernstein Trust to share equally. Plaintiffs have also submitted the Equifax investigation
report that was part of the Policy records, and that report indicates that Simon Bernstein told the
investigator that the Policies purchased by the VEBA are owned by a Trust and that the death
benefits are generally left to family members. (SoF, 130). The Affidavit of Ted Bernstein also
shows that on June 21, 1995 when the Bernstein Trust was formed, only two of Simon
Bernstein’s five children had children of their own. At the time, Simon Bernstein had four
minor grandchildren, the eldest of whom was six years old. (SoF, 148) Common sense in this
case also comports to the written evidence that in 1995, Simon Bernstein formed the 1995
Bernstein Trust to provide life insurance protection to his own immediate family--the five
children. Plaintiff’s evidence of the formation of the 1995 Bernstein Trust as an express trust is
further corroborated by Robert Spallina in his affidavit.

CONCLUSION

When considering this motion, the court must resolve all doubt in favor of the non-

movant. The Estate’s motion should be denied because Plaintiff’s submissions are sufficient to

create a triable issue as to whether the 1995 Bernstein Trust or a resulting trust is entitled to the

Policy Proceeds as Plaintiffs claim.
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Respectfully Submitted,

/s Adam M. Simon

Adam M. Simon (#6205304)

303 E. Wacker Drive, Suite 2725
Chicago, IL 60601

Phone: 312-819-0730

Fax: 312-819-0773

E-Mail: asimon@chicagolaw.com
Attorney for Plaintiffs
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE

INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,
Plaintiff, Case No. 13 cv 3643

Honorable John Robert Blakey

Magistrate Mary M. Rowland

V.

HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Defendant, Filers: Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95,
Ted Bernstein, as Trustee and
Individually,
HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE Pamela B. Simon (“Plaintiffs”).
COMPANY

Counter-Plaintiff
V.

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95
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)
Counter-Defendant )

and, )
)

FIRST ARLINGTON NATIONAL BANK )
as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee )
Death Benefit Trust, UNITED BANK OF )
ILLINOIS, BANK OF AMERICA, )
Successor in interest to LaSalle National )
Trust, N.A., SIMON BERNSTEIN TRUST, )
N.A., TED BERNSTEIN, individually and )
as purported Trustee of the Simon Bernstein )
Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95, )
and ELIOT BERNSTEIN )
)

)

;

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

Third-Party Defendants.

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN,
Cross-Plaintiff

V.

TED BERNSTEIN, individually and

as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein

Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dtd, 6/21/95

Cross-Defendant
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and,

PAMELA B. SIMON, DAVID B.SIMON,
both Professionally and Personally
ADAM SIMON, both Professionally and
Personally, THE SIMON LAW FIRM,
TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A,,
DONALD TESCHER, both Professionally
and Personally, ROBERT SPALLINA,
both Professionally and Personally,

LISA FRIEDSTEIN, JILL IANTONI

S.B. LEXINGTON, INC. EMPLOYEE
DEATH BENEFIT TRUST, S.T.P.
ENTERPRISES, INC. S.B. LEXINGTON,
INC., NATIONAL SERVICE
ASSOCIATION (OF FLORIDA),
NATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(OF ILLINOIS) AND JOHN AND JANE
DOES

Third-Party Defendants.

N e e e N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

NOTICE OF FILING

To:  SEE CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE ATTACHED

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the following documents, copies of which are attached, were filed with
the clerk of the court and are hereby served upon you:

PLAINTIFF’S SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT OF UNDISPUTED FACTS

PLAINTIFF’S SUPPLEMENTAL APPENDIX OF EXHIBITS

EX. 37 — AFFIDAVIT OF ROBERT SPALLINA AND ATTACHED NOTES

EX. 38 - PROBATE COURT ORDER ENTERED 12/15/15

PLAINTIFFS’ MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN OPPOSITON TO THE ESTAT’S MOTION FOR
SUMMARY JUDGMENT

DATED: August 24, 2016
RESPECTFULLY,

[s/Adam Simon
Adam M. Simon
#6205304

303 E. Wacker Drive
Ste. 2725

Chicago, IL 60601
(312) 819-0730
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned, an attorney, certifies that he caused a copy of the documents set forth below to be served
upon the undersigned via the Northern District’s ECF filing system, and by U.S. mail if indicated, proper
postage prepaid to the following on August 24, 2016:

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN
2753 NW 34 st.

Boca Raton, FL 33434
Appearing Pro Se

(By U.S. Mail)

Lisa Friedstein

2142 Churchill Lane
Highland Park, IL 60035
Appearing Pro Se

(By U.S. Mail)

Jill lantoni

2101 Magnolia Lane
Highland Park, IL 60035
Appearing Pro Se

(By U.S. Mail)

James J. Stamos

STAMOS & TRUCCO LLP

One East Wacker Drive, Third Floor
Chicago, IL 60601

Attorney for Intervenor,

Estate of Simon Bernstein

/s/ Adam M. Simon

Adam Simon, Esq.

303 East Wacker Drive, Suite 2725
Chicago, Illinois 60601

Attorney for Plaintiffs

(312) 819-0730
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS EASTERN DIVISION

Simon Bernstein Irrevocable
Insurance Trust Dtd 6/21/95, et al.,

Plaintiffs, Case No. 13-cv-3643
Judge John Robert Blakey
V.
Heritage Union Life
Insurance Co., et al., Filers:

Eliot Ivan Bernstein, Pro Se
Defendants.

LOCAL RULE 56.1(b)(3) RESPONSE TO INTERVENOR STATEMENT OF
UNDISPUTED MATERIAL FACTS AND LOCAL RULE 56.1(b)(3)(C) STATEMENT OF
ADDITIONAL FACTS REQUIRING THE DENIAL OF INTERVENOR MOTION FOR
SUMMARY JUDGMENT

COMES NOW Eliot Ivan Bernstein (“Eliot”), a Third Party Defendant, Pro Se and files
this “Response to Summary Judgement” and states under information and belief as follows:
I. THE PARTIES

1. The Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated 6/21/95 (“1995 Trust”) is
a Plaintiff and purports to be an irrevocable life insurance trust formed in Illinois. The Estate

disputes the existence and terms of the 1995 Trust. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’
Statement of Undisputed Material Facts 4 1 (ECF No. 192); Order at 2-4 (ECF No. 220).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

2. Benjamin Brown, as Curator of The Estate of Simon L. Bernstein (the “Estate”),
filed a motion to intervene in this litigation. On July 28, 2014, the Court granted the motion to
intervene and the Estate became an Intervenor-Plaintiff. (ECF No. 121.) On November 3, 2014,
Brian O’Connell substituted his appearance as the Personal Representative of the Estate. (ECF
No. 126.)

ANSWER:
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UNDISPUTED

3. Ted Bernstein, both individually and purporting to be Trustee of the alleged 1995
Trust, is a Plaintiff. Ted Bernstein has also been named as a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot
Bernstein’s third-party claims. Ted Bernstein is one of the five adult children of Simon
Bernstein. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts q 6
(ECF No. 192); Affidavit of Ted Bernstein § 25 (ECF No. 150-31).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

4. Ted Bernstein will receive over $300,000, representing 20 percent of the Policy
proceeds, if Plaintiffs prevail in this litigation. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon
Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts § 3 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 9:18-
10:4, 118:16-119:14 (ECF No. 192-1).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

5. Pamela Simon is a Plaintiff, and has been named as a Third-Party Defendant to
Eliot Bernstein’s third-party claims. Pamela Simon is one of the five adult children of Simon
Bernstein. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts q 10
(ECF No. 192); Affidavit of Pam Simon 9 2-3 (ECF No. 150-32).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

6. David Simon is Pamela Simon’s husband, Adam Simon’s brother, and has been
named a Third-Party Defendant to Eliot Bernstein’s third-party claims. Adam Simon was
previously counsel for all Plaintiffs and is currently counsel for Plaintiffs the 1995 Trust, Ted
Bernstein and Pamela Simon, and Third-Party Defendants David Simon and The Simon Law
Firm. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts 9 2
(ECF No. 201); Deposition of David Simon, 7:9-10 (ECF No. 192-2); Affidavit of David Simon
920 (ECF No. 150-33); ECF Nos. 12, 26, 46, 224 and 226.)

ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED
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7. Pamela Simon will receive over $300,000, representing 20 percent of the Policy
proceeds, if Plaintiffs prevail in this litigation. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon
Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts § 2 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of David Simon,
58:13-59:4 (ECF No. 192-2).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

8. Jill Marla Iantoni is a Plaintiff, and has been named as a Third-Party Defendant to
Eliot Bernstein’s third-party claims. Jill Marla Iantoni is one of the five adult children of Simon
Bernstein. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts q 9
(ECF No. 192); Affidavit of Jill Iantoni 9 2-3 (ECF No. 150-34).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

9. Lisa Sue Friedstein is a Plaintiff, and has been named as a Third-Party Defendant
to Eliot Bernstein’s third-party claims. Lisa Sue Friedstein is one of the five adult children of
Simon Bernstein. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts
9 8 (ECF No. 192); Affidavit of Lisa Friedstein 9 2-3 (ECF No. 150-35).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

10. Jill Marla Iantoni and Lisa Sue Friedstein will each receive over $300,000,
representing 20 percent of the Policy proceeds, if Plaintiffs prevail in this litigation. (Movants’
Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts q 4 (ECF No. 201);
Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 118:16-119:14 (ECF No. 192-1); Deposition of David Simon,
58:13-59:4 (ECF No. 192-2); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 (ECF No. 150-16); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16
(ECF No. 150-17).)

ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED

11. Eliot Bernstein (“Eliot”’) was made a Party by virtue of Heritage Union Life
Insurance Company’s counterclaim for Interpleader, and Eliot filed third-party claims against
several Parties as described herein, making Eliot a Third-Party Plaintiff as well. Eliot is one of
the five adult children of Simon Bernstein. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of
Undisputed Material Facts § 3 (ECF No. 192); Affidavit of Ted Bernstein 4 23 (ECF No. 150-

31).)
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ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

12. Heritage Union Life Insurance Company (“Heritage”) is the successor to the
Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Company (“Capitol Bankers”), which originally issued the
Policy to Simon Bernstein in 1982. Heritage was terminated as a party on February 18, 2014
when the Court granted Heritage’s motion to dismiss itself from the Interpleader litigation after
having deposited the Policy proceeds with the Registry of the Court pursuant to an Agreed
Order. (ECF No. 101.)
ANSWER:
DISPUTED, Filings show that it appears to have been Jackson National Life that deposited the
proceeds. There has been no insurance policy contract produced in this case for the policy at
issue. A sample contract was provided but this is not Simon Bernstein’s insurance policy
contract. Therefore, the term “Policy” does not actually relate to a bona fide life insurance
contract on the life of Simon Bernstein and using the term “Policy” may mislead the court to
believe a policy exists at this time. There can be no valid “Policy proceeds” as there is no bona
fide insurance policy produced at this time. Any and all parties associated with the depositing of
funds into the Registry should be active parties to the litigation.
II. THE LIFE INSURANCE POLICY

13. In 1982, Simon Bernstein applied for a life insurance policy from Capitol
Bankers, which was issued as Policy No. 1009208 (the “Policy”). (Intervenor’s Response to
Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts 4 26 (ECF No. 192); Affidavit of Don
Sanders
94 6, 23 (ECF No. 150-30).) The amount of the Policy proceeds (plus interest) on deposit with
the Registry of the Court exceeds $1.7 million. (ECF No. 101; Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 2 (ECF No.
150-3).)
ANSWER:
DISPUTED: The issued policy has not been produced by any party in this litigation and all

references to “the Policy” or the terms of said “Policy” cannot be verified at this time. All such
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items are in dispute until such time as proper records, verified records, complete and valid
records are produced and authenticated. Any and all parties associated with the depositing of

funds into the Registry should be active parties to the litigation.

14. The Capitol Bankers Life Insurance Application, dated October 12, 1982 (the
“Application”), designates Simon L. Bernstein as the Insured, lists S.B. Lexington, Inc. as his
employer, and designates the Owner of the Policy as “First Arlington National Bank Trustee of
S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust.” (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’
Statement of Undisputed Material Facts 4 27 (ECF No. 192); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 3 (ECF No. 150-
4); Affidavit of Don Sanders 9 48 (ECF No. 150-30).)

ANSWER:

DISPUTED: The “Application” is a copy of the alleged application for insurance. However, the
original application for life insurance must be attached to the binding issued policy and
maintained by the insurer with a copy attached to any policies distributed as part of the life
insurance contract. Until the insurer produces a bona fide policy for Simon Bernstein with the
original application attached this copy may not be the binding application used for the policy.
Any and all parties associated with the depositing of funds into the Registry should be active
parties to the litigation.

15. The Application: (i) directs premium notices to be sent to S.B. Lexington, Inc.
Employee Death Benefit Plan c/o National Service Assoc. at 9933 Lawler Ste. 210, Skokie,
Illinois 60077; (i) lists Simon Bernstein’s occupation as an Executive with S.B. Lexington, Inc.
located in Skokie, Illinois; (ii1) lists Simon Bernstein as the selling agent of the Policy; and (iv)
was signed in Illinois. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material
Facts 4 28 (ECF No. 192); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 3 (ECF No. 150-4); Affidavit of Don Sanders q 48
(ECF No. 150-30).)

ANSWER:
DISPUTED: See answer 14 above.

16. In late 1982 when the Policy was issued: (a) the Policy would have been delivered
to the selling agent (i.e. Simon Bernstein), who would have then delivered the Policy to the

initial Owner; (b) Simon Bernstein resided and was domiciled in Glencoe, Illinois; (¢) Simon
Bernstein’s offices were located in Chicago, Illinois; and (d) First Arlington National Bank was
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located in Arlington Heights, Illinois. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of
Undisputed Material Facts 4 28 (ECF No. 192); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 3 (ECF No. 150-4); Affidavit
of Don Sanders 4 48 (ECF No. 150-30); Affidavit of Pam Simon 9 22-24 (ECF No. 150-32).)

ANSWER:

DISPUTED: The insurer would have maintained the original policy with the original application
and other attachments and any other parties would have received copies of said policy. Any and
all parties associated with the depositing of funds into the Registry should be active parties to the

litigation.

I11. THE DESIGNATED BENEFICIARIES

17. At the time the Policy was issued, the only designated beneficiary was First
Arlington National Bank as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust.
(Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts 9 29-30 (ECF No.
192); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 3 (ECF No. 150-4); Affidavit of Don Sanders 4 48 (ECF No. 150-30).)
ANSWER:
DISPUTED: As there is no “Policy” or even a copy of the “Policy” provided to this Court or
any party in the litigation, the beneficiaries designated on the policy cannot be ascertained. As
only a “Sample” policy has been provided it lists only sample beneficiaries and owners. Any

and all parties associated with the depositing of funds into the Registry should be active parties

to the litigation.

18. In June of 1992, LaSalle National Trust, N.A., as Successor Trustee of the S.B.
Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust, became Owner of the Policy. (Intervenor’s
Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts 4 31 (ECF No. 192); Plaintiffs’
Exhibit 7 (ECF No. 150-8); Affidavit of Don Sanders § 55 (ECF No. 150-30).)

ANSWER:
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DISPUTED: Documents relating to the S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust aka
the VEBA Trust are missing and the terms of successorship have not been provided, nor has a
copy of the VEBA Trust been provided despite requests to produce such documents.

19. In November of 1995, Capitol Bankers received a “Request Letter” signed by the
Owner of the Policy, LaSalle National Trust, N.A., pursuant to which the following changes
were made to the Policy: (a) LaSalle National Trust, N.A., as Trustee of the S.B. Lexington, Inc.
Employee Death Benefit Trust, was designated primary beneficiary; and (b) the “Simon
Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated June 21, 1995” (i.e. the 1995 Trust) was designated
contingent beneficiary. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material
Facts 9 33 (ECF No. 192); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 8 at JCK000370 (ECF No. 150-9); Affidavit of
Don Sanders 99 56, 60 (ECF No. 150-30).)
ANSWER:
DISPUTED: All change of beneficiary and change of ownership in policies are also required to
be made part of the original insurance contract policy maintained by the insurer and reinsurers
and therefore without the bona fide original insurance contract and all attachments produced it
cannot be verified that this document JCK000370 was ever made part of the policy by the

carrier. Any and all parties associated with the depositing of funds into the Registry should be

active parties to the litigation.

20. As of September 13, 2012, the date of Simon Bernstein’s death: (a) LaSalle
National Trust, N.A., as Trustee of the S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust, was
designated primary beneficiary of the Policy; and (b) the “Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance
Trust Dated June 21, 1995 (i.e. the 1995 Trust) was designated contingent beneficiary of the
Policy. (Affidavit of Don Sanders 99 62, 72 (ECF No. 150-30); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 8§ at
JCK000370 (ECF No. 150-9); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 10:8-10 (ECF No. 192-1).)

ANSWER:
DISPUTED: Again, since there is no “Policy” the beneficiaries of the “Policy” cannot be
determined at this time until such time that the bona fide original policy is produced by the

insurance carrier or reinsurers. 20(b) is a wholly misleading statement by the Intervenor as the
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carrier has claimed that based on parole evidence the contingent beneficiary on the missing
policy is the Simon Bernstein Trust, N.A. Since no bona fide insurance contract exists however
to confirm who is listed in the policy as contingent beneficiary nobody can be certain who is
named on it. Any and all parties associated with the depositing of funds into the Registry should

be active parties to the litigation.

21. On April 3, 1998, S.B. Lexington, Inc. was voluntarily dissolved and the S.B.
Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust was terminated. (Intervenor’s Response to
Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts 9§ 36 (ECF No. 192); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 9
(ECF No. 150-10); Affidavit of Pam Simon 4 36 (ECF No. 150-32).)

ANSWER:
DISPUTED: Documents regarding the dissolution of the VEBA and distribution of plan benefits,
including individual policies that may have resulted from the dissolution upon any termination
have not been produced at this time. Discovery should be opened on these matters.

22. Neither LaSalle National Trust, N.A. as Trustee of the S.B. Lexington, Inc.
Employee Death Benefit Trust, nor the S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust itself,
has made any claim to the Policy proceeds. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of
Undisputed Material Facts 4 37 (ECF No. 192); Affidavit of Don Sanders 99 77(a)-(b), 78 (ECF
No. 150-30).)
ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

23. First Arlington National Bank has not made any claim to the Policy proceeds. Its
successor-in-interest, J.P. Morgan Bank, filed a responsive pleading in this action, and then a
motion for judgment on the pleadings in which it disclaimed any interest in the Policy proceeds
and requested to be dismissed. That motion was granted and J.P. Morgan Bank was dismissed as
a Party on March 12, 2014. (Intervenor’s Response to Plaintiffs’ Statement of Undisputed
Material Facts 9 37 (ECF No. 192); ECF No. 60; ECF No. 105.)
ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED - However, First Arlington National Bank, nor JP Morgan are listed at the time

of Simon’s death on any parole evidence regarding the policy as beneficiaries, either primary or
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contingent, as they appear to have been replaced by LaSalle National Trust, NA in all capacities.
LaSalle National Trust, NA or its successor Chicago Title is the primary beneficiary according to
the insurance companies parole evidence at the time of Simon’s death and yet, LaSalle, nor its
successor have made claim to the policy and may not at this time have been notified by the
carrier that according to their parole evidence they are the alleged beneficiary. Perhaps they
might have a copy of the policy.

Plaintiffs have claimed that Bank of America was the successor to LaSalle and while they were
made party to this litigation they were let out of this action by the carrier Jackson
National/Heritage removing them without any requesting any production or statements from
them and the court granted their removal. Perhaps they may have a copy of the policy. Any and
all parties associated with the depositing of funds into the Registry should be active parties to the

litigation.

IV. THE FIRST “EXHAUSTIVE SEARCH” FOR THE 1995 TRUST

24. At least one “exhaustive search” for the 1995 Trust document was conducted
between Simon Bernstein’s death on September 13, 2012 and December 6, 2012, but no trust
document could be found. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of
Additional Facts 9 9 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 55:1-11 and Dep. Ex. 3 at
TS004519 (ECF No. 192-1).)

ANSWER:

DISPUTED: There is nothing more than a conclusory statement by Ted Bernstein that an
alleged “exhaustive search” was done. Yet, this conclusory statement fails to provide any details
of when the search occurred, who was present, what was actually found, the types of areas where

records were sought, the traditional areas where records were kept and fails to provide other

relevant details. Ted Bernstein claimed that whatever records he found were turned over to his
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attorneys at Tescher & Spallina but Tescher & Spallina had no such records in their Production.
Nor has Ted Bernstein turned over any such records.

25. According to David Simon, the first attempt to locate the 1995 Trust document
occurred in the winter of 2012-2013. He was aware of the search and advised that no such
document was found. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of
Additional Facts 9§ 10 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of David Simon, 59:13-17, 60:4-6 (ECF No.
192-2).)

ANSWER:
DISPUTED. The non-moving party herein has insufficient information to confirm this statement
of fact.

26. David Simon also testified that Foley & Lardner, the successor firm to Hopkins &
Sutter, and some of the attorneys who broke away from Hopkins & Sutter and started their own
firm, were contacted to see if they had a copy of a 1995 Trust document, but they did not. David
Simon does not even know whether it was he or someone else who contacted Foley & Lardner
and the attorneys, or with whom they specifically spoke, and he testified that whoever it was may
have been asked to do so by him, his wife Pamela Simon, or his brother Adam Simon.
(Deposition of David Simon, 44:17-45:15, 46:2-4 (ECF No. 192-2).)

ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED

V.IDEAS ABOUT HOW TO OBTAIN THE POLICY PROCEEDS & UNSUCCESSFUL
ATTEMPTS TO DO SO

27. On August 15, 2000, Simon Bernstein executed the Simon Bernstein 2000
Insurance Trust (the “2000 Trust”), which identifies the Policy at issue in this litigation as an
asset of the 2000 Trust. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 23 at § 1 and Schedule A (ECF
No. 192-1); Order at 5 (ECF No. 220).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

28. Plaintiffs considered “using” the 2000 Trust to obtain the Policy proceeds, but this
option was rejected on or before November 19, 2012 because Pamela Simon was not included as
a beneficiary of the 2000 Trust. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 48:21-49:9, Dep. Ex. 1 and Dep.
Ex. 2 at TS004490 (ECF No. 192-1); Order at 5 (ECF No. 220).)
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ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

29. Plaintiffs’ former counsel, Robert Spallina, representing that he was trustee of the
1995 Trust, made an application to Heritage for the Policy proceeds on behalf of Plaintiffs.
(Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts § 7 (ECF
No.201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 35:6-16 and Dep. Ex. 1 (ECF No. 192-1); Deposition of
David Simon, 81:15-82:2 (ECF No. 192-2).)
ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

30. On October 19, 2012, Ted Bernstein sent Robert Spallina an email suggesting he
had a “solution to the life insurance policy which provides the desired result,” that he wanted to
discuss and that the initial conversation about it involve only him, Robert Spallina, Pamela
Simon and David Simon. The email also asked that Robert Spallina avoid any further overtures
to the insurance company until after the initial conversation in order “to avoid any unnecessary
confusion” for the insurance company. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s
Statement of Additional Facts 9§ 7 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 1 at
TS004965 (ECF No. 192-1).)
ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED: However, the emails produced come from a court ordered production' calling
for “ALL” documents of Tescher and Spallina to be turned over to the Curator of the Estate of
Simon at the time, Benjamin Brown, when Spallina and Tescher resigned as counsel and co-
trustees and co-personal representatives after their firm was found committing fraud, fraud on the
court, fraud on the beneficiaries and fraud on beneficiaries counsel in the Estate and Trust

litigations in Florida involving Simon and Shirley Bernstein. It has been learned that NO

ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS were produced by Tescher and Spallina and only copies of alleged

! February 18, 2014 Martin Colin Order for Production of ALL records from Tescher & Spallina

http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140218%200RDER%20COLIN%20TESCHER %2
OSPALLINA%20TO%20TURN%200VER%20ALL%20RECORDS%20PRODUCTION%200N%20PETITI
ON%20FOR%20DISCHARGE%20TESCHER%20SPALLINA%20Case%20502012CP004391XXXXSB%

20SIMON.pdf
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originals, including all of the testamentary documents, were provided violating the court order
that would have required the originals to be turned over.

Despite being advised by Eliot Bernstein of the failure of Spallina and Tescher to comply with
the court order to produce ALL documents, which would have included ALL Original
documents, neither Benjamin Brown, nor his successor in the Estate of Simon, Brian O’Connell,
nor Ted Bernstein or his counsel Alan B. Rose, have sought to have Tescher and Spallina comply
with the order or sought contempt charges.

Benjamin Brown was given copies of alleged original documents by Tescher and Spallina, see
Exhibit 1. It is further alleged that the copies and files tendered to Brown who then turned over
the majority of them to parties in the litigation have been being tampered with, including
changing files or modifying files used in online exhibits to this court, including the production
link exhibited in several prior filings @

http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140602%20ESTATE%20FILES%20FR

OM%20BEN%20BROWN%20CURATOR%20DELIVERED%20TO%20HIM%20BY %20TES

CHER%20AND%20SPALLINA%20PRODUCTION.pdf Third Party Plaintiff, Eliot

Bernstein, informed the court that file tampering in these matters was suspected and repeatedly
in pleadings has urged the Court to print out and attach the documents at the linked URL’s to any
pleadings to avoid such hacking and alteration of the records.

This failure to produce ANY original records in a case fraught with fraudulent documents,
fraudulent notarizations and more, committed by multiple parties, with new admissions by
Spallina in a December 15, 2015 hearing of frauds he committed in the Estate and Trusts and had
not revealed the crimes to any party until admitting them under oath in the hearing in Judge

Phillips court, makes all records used in these matters questionable as to their authenticity if they
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come from the copies of alleged originals produced by Tescher and Spallina who are in violation
of the court order to produce that would have required production of the originals and any
copies.

31. On November 19, 2012, after Robert Spallina unsuccessfully attempted to claim
the Policy proceeds without providing any documentation, David Simon suggested attempting to
secure the Policy proceeds on behalf of the Plaintiffs by submitting a waiver and settlement
agreement to the insurer. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of
Additional Facts § 8 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 51:22-52:2, 53:22-54:4 and
Dep. Ex. 2 at TS004490 (ECF No. 192-1).) The Plaintiffs tried David Simon’s suggestion of a
waiver and settlement agreement, but it was not successful because Eliot would not agree.
(Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 54:13-25 and Dep. Ex. 3 (ECF No. 192-1).)
ANSWER:
DISPUTED: Robert Spallina did provide documentation and made a formal signed claim form
for the policy proceeds alleging he was the “Trustee” of 1995 Trust document. Spallina also
provided an incomplete death certificate to the carrier when he filed his claim and failed to notify
the carrier at the time that his client Ted Bernstein had claimed that his father may have been
murdered by his girlfriend and there was an ongoing Palm Beach County Sheriff investigation
and Palm Beach Medical Examiner Autopsy Ted had instigated with the aid of his attorneys
according to Ted Bernstein.
The Waiver and Settlement Agreement proposed was not successful because David Simon and
Adam Simon filed a Breach of Contract lawsuit in Illinois court based on the carrier's failure to
pay the fraudulent claim submitted by Robert Spallina, who has now admitted that he was not
and is not the “Trustee” of the 1995 Trust. Thus, Spallina’s claim form to the carrier signed as
“Trustee” of the 1995 is Prima Facie evidence of insurance fraud and has been reported to state

and federal authorities as such for investigation. The Breach of Contract lawsuit was then moved

to this Court, where Ted Bernstein suddenly and without any documentation alleges to be the
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“Trustee” of the 1995 Trust. Both Ted Bernstein and Robert Spallina have claimed to have
never seen the 1995 Trust they claim to be operating under.

32. Between October 19, 2012 and February 8, 2013, the Plaintiffs exchanged many
emails discussing how best to obtain the Policy proceeds and referring to an inability to locate
the 1995 Trust document. (Order at 5 (ECF No. 220); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Exs. 1-
4, 8-9 (ECF No. 192-1).) David Simon was a participant in the email exchanges, yet in none of
those emails did he relate a recollection that he created the 1995 Trust document for Simon
Bernstein, that he saw the final version of the 1995 Trust executed by Simon Bernstein, or that it
named Ted Bernstein as successor trustee of the 1995 Trust. (Id.)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED: Again, the documents and emails referred to produced by Tescher and Spallina
and used by parties in this lawsuit cannot at this time be verified as copies of original documents

remain missing and not produced according to the court order for production.

33. One of those email exchanges on January 22, 2013 states that “none of us can be
sure exactly what the 1995 trust said.” (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 4 (ECF No. 192-

1).)

ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED: Again, the documents and emails referred to produced by Tescher and Spallina
and used by parties in this lawsuit cannot at this time be verified as copies of original documents
remain missing and not produced according to the court order for production

34. On February, 8, 2013, Pamela Simon informed Ted Bernstein that she could not
find a copy of the insurance Policy or the 1995 Trust. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon
Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts § 11 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein,
60:25-61:10, Dep. Ex. 8 at BT000049, and Dep. Ex. 10 at BT000047 (ECF No. 192-1).)
ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED: Again, the documents and emails referred to produced by Tescher and Spallina

and used by parties in this lawsuit cannot at this time be verified as copies of original documents

remain missing and not produced according to the court order for production
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35. As of February 14, 2013, the Plaintiffs planned to pursue the Policy proceeds via
a Release and Settlement Agreement and have the proceeds paid either to Robert Spallina as
trustee or to the Tescher & Spallina trust account. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 62:17-63:3 and
Dep. Ex. 11 at TS004464 (ECF No. 192-1).)

ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED: Again, the documents and emails referred to produced by Tescher and Spallina
and used by parties in this lawsuit cannot at this time be verified as copies of original documents

remain missing and not produced according to the court order for production

36. From March 15, 2013 through April 12, 2013, Robert Spallina on behalf of
Plaintiffs was engaged in discussions with Heritage and they planned for Heritage to interplead
the funds into court in Florida. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Exs. 15 and 16 (ECF No.
192-1).) Unbeknownst to Mr. Spallina, however, on April 5, 2013, the Plaintiffs, through
counsel Adam Simon, filed a lawsuit in the Circuit Court of Cook County seeking to obtain the
Policy proceeds from Heritage. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 16 at TS005253-54 (ECF
No. 192-1); Notice of Removal § 1 (ECF No. 1).) As a result, Robert Spallina and the law firm
Tescher & Spallina ceased representing Plaintiffs in connection with their efforts to obtain the
Policy proceeds from Heritage. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 16 at TS005252, and
Dep. Ex. 17 at TS006547 (ECF No. 192-1).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED: Again, the documents and emails referred to produced by Tescher and Spallina
and used by parties in this lawsuit cannot at this time be verified as copies of original documents
remain missing and not produced according to the court order for production

37. Despite David Simon’s current claims that he drafted the 1995 Trust document on
his computer and saw it after execution, the Complaint filed by his brother on April 5, 2013
makes no reference whatsoever to David Simon having drafted the 1995 Trust or having seen the
final version after it was executed, or to the identity of the trustee and successor trustee named in

the executed 1995 Trust, or to the alleged fact that Simon Bernstein ever even executed a 1995
Trust document. (Complaint at Law (ECF No. 1-1).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED: It should be noted that Adam Simon when filing this lawsuit knew that his

client Ted Bernstein had no 1995 Trust or copy of said 1995 Trust and thus could not at that time
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prove that he was in fact a trustee of said trust and yet Adam Simon filed the lawsuit claiming
Ted was factually the “Trustee” of the missing or surpressed 1995 Trust and sued parties as if he
were factually the “Trustee” and they were factually beneficiaries of a trust he claims never to
have seen. No copy of the underlying 1995 Trust was attached to the Complaint and the court
was not initially apprised that Ted could not prove his standing as Trustee of an alleged trust he
could not produce or had never seen Ted’s standing as Trustee of the 1995 Trust is still a
disputed issue in this litigation and Ted should be removed as alleged Trustee until such time that
this court can ascertain what if any trust terms apply when no executed original or copy of the
trust has been produced.

38. As of August 30, 2013, the 1995 Trust (in any form) could not be located.
(Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts § 16 (ECF
No.201); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 at BT000002 (ECF No. 150-16); Deposition of David Simon,
95:9-13 (ECF No. 192-2).)
ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

VI. THE SEARCH WHICH UNCOVERED THE PURPORTED DRAFTS OF THE 1995
TRUST

39. David Simon claims to have located an unexecuted draft electronic copy of the
purported 1995 Trust (i.e. Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 (ECF No. 150-16)) on the computer system of
The Simon Law Firm on September 13, 2013. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon
Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts 9§ 16 (ECF No. 201); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 at
BT000002 (ECF No. 150-16); Deposition of David Simon, 95:9-13 (ECF No. 192-2).)
ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED

40. According to David Simon, he located Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 with the help of his
brother, Adam Simon. (Affidavit of David Simon 9 29 (ECF No. 150-33).)

ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED
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41. David Simon also claims to have located an unexecuted draft paper copy of the
purported 1995 Trust (i.e. Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16 (ECF No. 150-17)) which contains his
handwritten notes in the stored files of The Simon Law Firm on or about September 13, 2013.
(Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts § 17 (ECF
No. 201); Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16 (ECF No. 150-17); Deposition of David Simon, 94:13-95:8 (ECF
No.192-2); Affidavit of David Simon 9 28 (ECF No. 150-33).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

42. According to David Simon, he located Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16 without anyone
else’s assistance. (Affidavit of David Simon § 28 (ECF No. 150-33).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

43. According to Pamela Simon, however, she and David Simon located Plaintiffs’
Exhibit 15 and Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16, with assistance from their employees. (Affidavit of Pam
Simon 9§ 37 (ECF No. 150-32).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

VII. THE EXISTENCE AND TERMS OF THE PURPORTED 1995 TRUST

44. Plaintiffs have produced no executed original or executed copy of a written trust
agreement reflecting the terms of the purported 1995 Trust. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of
Simon Bernstein’s Statement of Additional Facts 4 6 (ECF No. 201); Answer to Intervenor
Complaint 4 9 (ECF No. 144); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 13:13-15 (ECF No. 192-1).)

ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED

45. According to David Simon, he had a conversation with Simon Bernstein on June
20, 1995 about creating an insurance trust, during which Simon Bernstein said he wanted to
create one and name his wife Shirley as trustee and David Simon as successor trustee, and David
Simon agreed to be successor trustee. David Simon testified that he took handwritten notes of
this conversation on Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16. (Plaintiffs’ First Amended Complaint § 29 (ECF No.
73); Deposition of David Simon, 39:15-40:1, 40:17-41:1, 41:7-20, 96:3-11 (ECF No. 192-2);
Affidavit of David Simon 9 28 (ECF No. 150-33).)
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ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

46. The handwritten notes on Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16, however, list the trustee as
“Shirley, David, [illegible]?” and list the successor trustee as “Pam, Ted.” (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16
at BT000020 (ECF No. 150-17).)
ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

47. David Simon testified that his assistant created Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 by making
the modifications reflected in David Simon’s handwritten notes on Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16.
(Deposition of David Simon, 40:17-41:1, 96:3-11 (ECF No. 192-2).)
ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

48. Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15, however, identifies the trustee as “Shirley Bernstein” and
identifies the successor trustee as “David B. Simon.” (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 at BT000010 (ECF
No. 150-16).)
ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

49. David Simon testified that, after thinking about it overnight, on June 21, 1995 he

asked Simon Bernstein to remove him as successor trustee and make the successor trustees
Simon Bernstein’s children sequentially. (Deposition of David Simon, 41:17-23 (ECF No. 192-

2).)
ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED

50. David Simon averred, however, that he asked Simon Bernstein to appoint only
Ted Bernstein as successor trustee. (Affidavit of David Simon 9 25 (ECF No. 150-33).)

ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED
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51. David Simon testified that he did not change the name of the successor trustee
from his own name, and Simon Bernstein then took Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 15 to the law firm of
Hopkins & Sutter to be finalized and executed. (Deposition of David Simon, 40:2-7, 41:17-42:5
(ECF No. 192-2).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

52. According to David Simon, he met with Simon Bernstein after the 1995 Trust
document was executed and reviewed the final executed version of it, which he claims named
Ted Bernstein as the successor trustee. (Deposition of David Simon, 42:6-43:1 (ECF No. 192-2);
Affidavit of David Simon 9 27 (ECF No. 150-33).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

53. David Simon testified that, when he met with Simon Bernstein after the 1995
Trust document was executed, he had Simon Bernstein sign a change of beneficiary form to
submit to Lincoln Benefit in order to make the 1995 Trust the beneficiary of Simon Bernstein’s
life insurance policy issued by Lincoln Benefit, and that he would have expected Lincoln Benefit
to retain a copy of that form. David Simon also testified that Lincoln Benefit was contacted and
they did not have a copy of the 1995 Trust. (Deposition of David Simon, 43:10-44:2 (ECF No.
192-2); Order at 5-6 (ECF No. 220).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED

54. Ted Bernstein, purported trustee of the 1995 Trust, has never seen an executed
copy of a 1995 Trust document. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement

of Additional Facts 9§ 5 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 24:6-12 (ECF No. 192-1).)

ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED

55. According to Ted Bernstein, in the summer of 1995, he had a conversation with
his father in which his father told Ted that he was forming a life insurance trust for the Policy
and that Ted would be one of the trustees. No one except Simon Bernstein and Ted Bernstein
was present for the conversation. (Movants’ Reply to the Estate of Simon Bernstein’s Statement
of Additional Facts 9§ 5 (ECF No. 201); Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 23:1-8 (ECF No. 192-1);
Affidavit of Ted Bernstein 9§ 88 (ECF No. 150-31).)

ANSWER:
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UNDISPUTED

56. Ted Bernstein averred, based on having reviewed the purported drafts of the 1995
Trust document and facts as told to him by David Simon, that Ted was appointed successor
trustee of the 1995 Trust. (Affidavit of Ted Bernstein 9§ 99 (ECF No. 150-31).)

ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED

57. Ted Bernstein testified that the bases for his knowledge that he is successor
trustee of the 1995 Trust are that he saw his name handwritten on Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 16 at page
BT000020 (ECF No. 150-17), and after his father’s death, David Simon told him that he was
successor trustee of the 1995 Trust. When David Simon informed Ted that he was successor
trustee, Ted does not recall whether he even remembered the conversation he testified that he had
with his father during the summer of 1995. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 12:19-16:16, 17:5-17,
24:13-25:3 and Dep. Ex. 22 (ECF No. 192-1).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED
VIII. SIMON BERNSTEIN’S SUBSEQUENTLY-EXECUTED ESTATE DOCUMENTS

58. On August 15, 2000, Simon Bernstein executed the Simon Bernstein 2000
Insurance Trust (the “2000 Trust), which identifies the Policy at issue in this litigation as an
asset of the 2000 Trust. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 23 at § 1 and Schedule A (ECF
No. 192-1); Order at 5 (ECF No. 220).)

ANSWER:
UNDISPUTED:

59. The 2000 Trust document makes no reference to the 1995 Trust (i.e. the “Simon
Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust Dated June 21, 1995”), which the 2000 Trust would have
superseded. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 23 (ECF No. 192-1); Order at 5 (ECF No.
220).)

ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED: Again, the documents and emails referred to produced by Tescher and Spallina
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and used by parties in this lawsuit cannot at this time be verified as copies of original documents
remain missing and not produced according to the court order for production

60. Pursuant to the terms of the 2000 Trust, the Trustees were only authorized to pay
the trust principal and income to only Shirley Bernstein and Simon Bernstein’s “descendants,”
with “descendants” being defined to “specifically exclude ... PAMELA BETH SIMON and her
descendants.” (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 23 at 9§ 2(a)-(b), 9 (ECF No. 192-1).)
ANSWER:
DISPUTED: Again, the documents and emails referred to produced by Tescher and Spallina and
used by parties in this lawsuit cannot at this time be verified as copies of original documents
remain missing and not produced according to the court order for production

61. On May 20, 2008, Simon Bernstein executed the Simon L. Bernstein Irrevocable
Trust Agreement (the “2008 Trust”). The terms of the 2008 Trust, in effect, provide that no
inheritance shall pass to Ted Bernstein, Pamela Simon, or the lineal descendants of either Ted
Bernstein or Pamela Simon. (Deposition of David Simon, 55:2-17 (ECF No. 192-2); Deposition
of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 25 (ECF No. 192-1).)

ANSWER:

DISPUTED: Again, the documents and emails referred to produced by Tescher and Spallina and
used by parties in this lawsuit cannot at this time be verified as copies of original documents
remain missing and not produced according to the court order for production

62. In January 2012, Plaintiff Pamela Simon wrote to her father, Simon Bernstein,
expressing her distress over his act of “disinheriting” her, David Simon and their children, as
well as Ted Bernstein and his children. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 26 (ECF No.
192-1).) Pamela Simon wrote the note to her father because she was passionate about the fact
that his “estate plan” did not include her and her family or Ted Bernstein and his family.

(Deposition of Ted Bernstein, 90:22-25, 91:13-25, and Dep. Ex. 26 (ECF No. 192-1).)

ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED: Again, the documents and emails referred to produced by Tescher and Spallina
and used by parties in this lawsuit cannot at this time be verified as copies of original documents

remain missing and not produced according to the court order for production
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63. A few months before he died on September 13, 2012, Simon Bernstein arranged a
conference call with Robert Spallina, Plaintiffs and some of their spouses. During the call,
Simon Bernstein instructed that the assets of his estate and trust would be left to his ten
grandchildren and the insurance policy proceeds were to pass to his five children, in an effort to
quell some then-existing family acrimony about his girlfriend and about the trust document that
disinherited Pamela Simon, Ted Bernstein and their respective children. (Deposition of Ted
Bernstein, 90:11-18 (ECF No. 192-1); Deposition of David Simon, 53:1-19, 54:3-55:17 (ECF
No. 192-2).)

ANSWER:

DISPUTED: Robert Spallina’s new June 2016 Affidavit submitted to this Court states that in the
May 10, 2012 conference call the insurance policy was NOT discussed. This contradicts prior
claims that it was by parties. Simon Bernstein held the meeting to discuss with his children
possible changes he was considering making in his estate plan and gain consent from the three
children who were the named beneficiaries to possible changes from them to their children and
to include Ted and Pam’s children.

64. On July 25, 2012, Simon Bernstein executed the Simon L. Bernstein Amended
and Restated Trust Agreement (the “2012 Trust”), which amends and restates in its entirety the
2008 Trust. (Deposition of Ted Bernstein, Dep. Ex. 24 at TS007362 (ECF No. 192-1).) Pursuant
to the terms of the 2012 Trust, all of the Plaintiffs shall be deemed to have predeceased Simon
Bernstein and all assets are to be passed on equal shares among Simon Bernstein’s
grandchildren. (Id. at Art. I (B)-(C), Art. III (E)(1).)

ANSWER:

DISPUTED: There has been no original July 25, 2012, Simon L. Bernstein Amended

and Restated Trust Agreement (the “2012 Trust”) and despite Florida Judge John Phillips order
that such trust is valid, no valid original has been produced, similar again to this federal action
where original documents at this time have not been produced to validate any document
produced by Tescher and Spallina as a valid copy of an original document.

Again, the documents and emails referred to produced by Tescher and Spallina and used by

parties in this lawsuit cannot at this time be verified as copies of original documents remain

missing and not produced according to the court order for production.
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65. On September 7, 2012, six days prior to his death, Simon Bernstein prepared a
holographic will directing a bequest to Maritza Puccio of, among other things, $100,000 from his
current insurance policy and expressing an intention to change the beneficiary on said policy to
reflect his wishes. (ECF No. 192-3 at TS003889). Simon Bernstein directed that the bequest to
Ms. Puccio should proceed in the event of his death “with no interruption from family or
probate.” (Id.) This document was not witnessed or notarized. (Id.)

ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED: Again, the documents and emails referred to produced by Tescher and Spallina
and used by parties in this lawsuit cannot at this time be verified as copies of original documents
remain missing and not produced according to the court order for production.

66. There is no evidence that Simon Bernstein executed any other Wills or trust
agreements between July 25, 2012 and his death on September 13, 2012.

ANSWER:

UNDISPUTED

Third Party Plaintiff Eliot hereby incorporates by reference my prior responses in my filing of
Undisputed Facts for the Opposition of Summary Judgement I filed with this Court as additional

support herein, see Exhibit 2.

DATED: August 26, 2016
Respectfully submitted by,

/s/ Eliot Ivan Bernstein

Third Party Defendant/Cross Plaintiff PRO SE
Eliot Ivan Bernstein

2753 NW 34" st.

Boca Raton, FL 33434

Telephone (561) 245-8588

iviewit@iviewit.tv

WWW.1Viewit.tv
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on August 26, 2016 I electronically filed the foregoing with
the Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF. I also certify that the foregoing is being served this day
on all counsel of record identified below via transmission of Notices of Electronic Filing
generated by CM/ECF or in some other authorized manner.

/s/ Eliot Ivan Bernstein
Third Party Defendant/Cross Plaintiff PRO SE
Eliot Ivan Bernstein
2753 NW 34" st.
Boca Raton, FL 33434
Telephone (561) 245-8588
iviewit@iviewit.tv
WWW.1Viewit.tv
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